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retirement benefit plans, as well as changes made to the assumptions
used to measure these plans at December 31, 2007, compared with
December 31, 2006. See Note 19, "Employee Benefit Plans,” for more
information.

Detailed explanations for changes in the short-term and long-term
debt balances at December 31, 2007, comparad to December 31,
2008, are included in Note 13, “Short-Term Debt and Lines of Credit,”
and Note 14, “Long-Term Debt.”

Accounts payable increased $382.4 million (40.3%), from $949.4 million
at December 31, 2006, to $1,331.8 million at December 31, 2007.
Accounts payable recorded at PGL and NSG at December 31, 2007, was
$197.0 million. Accounts payable at Integrys Energy Services increased
$177.8 million, driven by the addition of PEC’s nenregulated business
($120.6 million of accounts payable related to PEC’ nonregulzted
operations was assumed on the merger date). Accounts payable at
Integrys Energy Sarvices also increased as a result of an increase in
natural gas purchases in the fourth quarter of 2007, compared with

the same quarter of 2006, due to general business growth.

Other current liabilities increased $304.0 millian (148.8%), from

$180.1 million at December 31, 2004, to $484.1 million at December 31,
2007, primarily due to an increase in liabilities related ta vacation,
salaries, and other general expenses related to the PEC merger.

Environmental remediation liabilities increased $609.8 million {636.5%),
from $95.8 million at Decembar 31, 2005, to $705.6 million at
December 31, 2007, The increase related to estimated costs of future
natural gas remediation for several manufactured gas plant sites at
PGL and N5G. PGI. and NSG anticipate that natural gas plant site
remediation costs wili be collected in rates; therefore, an offsetting
regulatory asset has been recorded. See Note 17, “Commitments

and Contingencies,” for more information.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We believe that our cash balances, liquid assets, operating cash
flows, access to equity capital markets and borowing capacity made
available because of strong credit ratings, when taken together,
provicle adecjuate resources to fund ongoing cperating requirements
and future capital expenditures related to expansion of existing
businesses and development of new projects. However, our operating
cash flow and access to capital markets can be impacted by
macroeconomic factors outside of our cantrol. In addition, our
borrowing ¢osts can be impacted by short-term and long-term debt
ratings assigned by independent rating agencies. Currently, we believe
our ratings are among the best in the enargy industry (see “Financing
Cash Flows—Credit Ratings” below).

Operating Cash Flows

During 2007, net cash provided by oparating activities was $238.5 million,
compared with $72.9 million in 2006. The $165.6 million increase in
net cash prmvided by operating activities was driven by a $84.0 million
decrease in working capital requirements year-over-year. It is impartant
to note that changes in working capital balances at February 21, 2007,
as @ result of the PEC merger are not incorporated in the Consolidated
Statemment of Cash Flows, as the merger was a noncash transaction.
Cnly PEC changes in working capital from the merger date to
December 31, 2007, are included. Inventory levels at Integrys Fnergy
Services increased from Decemnber 31, 2006, to December 31, 2007,
but this change was less than the increase from December 31, 2005,

to December 31, 2006, driving the majority of the decrease in working
capital requirements. Integrys Energy Services continued to see growth
in its natural gas business in both new and existing markets. The year-
over-year change in natural gas inventaries at the regulated utilities was
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not significant. The remaining increase in net cash provided by operating
activities was driven by a year-over-year increase in income available for
common shareho!ders.

During 2006, net cash provided by operating activities was $72.9 million,
compared with $77.4 million in 2005. The $4.5 million decrease in net
cash provided by cperating activities was driven by an $88.2 million
increase In cash required to fund working capital requirements, primarily
due i an increase in natural gas inventories at Integrys Energy Services.
Natural gas in storage at Integrys Energy Services increased $85.2 million
primarily related to a 121% increase in natural gas volumes in storage at
December 31, 2006, compared ta December 31, 2005 (partially offset
by a 20% decrease in the average cost of inventory in storage). Integrys
Energy Services chose to purchase more natural gas for storage due to
high natural gas storage spreads ffuture natural gas sales prices were
higher than the near term price of natural gas). The increase in cash
used to fund higher Integrys Energy Services natural gas inventaries
was partially offset at the regulated utilities by cash used 10 fund costs
incurred in 2005 related to the unplanned outage at Kewaunee, the
start-up of MISO, and coal shortages.

Investing Cash Flows

Net cash used for investing activities was $451.5 million in 2007,
compared with $1,030.1 million in 2006. The $578.6 million decrease
was driven by $459.3 million of cash used by Integrys Energy Group to
acquire natural gas operations in Michigan and Minnssota in 2006, Also
contributing $44.0 million to the decrease in net cash used for investing
activities in 2007 was WPSC's liquidation of the cash that was deposited
into an escrow account in 2006, which was used for the payment of the
outstanding principal balance of first mortgage bonds in January 2007
{discussed below in significant financing activities). Partiaily offsetting
these decreases were $58.4 million of proceeds received from the sale
of our investment in Guardian Pipeling, LLC, and WPS ESI Gas Starage,
LLC in 2006 and a $50.6 millicn year-over-year increase in capital
expenditures (discussed below).

Net cash used for investing activities was $1,030.1 million in 2006,
compared with $148.8 million in 2005, The $881.3 million year-over-year
increase was primarity due to $65%.3 million of cash paid in 2006 for the
acquisition of the Michigan and Minnesota natural gas distribution
operations from Aquila, $112.5 million of proceeds received in 2005
related to the sale of Kewaunee, $127.1 million of proceeds received in
2005 from the liquidation of the related non-qualified decommissioning
trust, and $95.1 million of proceeds received in 2005 from DPC upon
closing of the sale of a 30% awnership interest in Weston 4. Also
contributing to the increase was $22.0 million of cash deposited into
an escrow account in 2004 for the payment of the eutstanding principal
balance of first mortgage bonds in January 2007. Partially offsetting
the increase in cash used for investing activities was a $71.9 million
decrease in capital expenditures (discussed below), proceeds of

$38.5 million received in 2006 from the sale of the company’s one-third
interest in Guardian Pipeling, LLC, and proceeds of $19.% million
received in 2006 from the sale of WPS ESI Gas Storage, LLC.

Capital Expenditures
Capital axpenditures by business segment for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

Reportable Segment (Millions) 2006 2005

Electric utility $282.1  $3739
Matural gas utility 54.6 364
Integrys Energy Services 5.5 27
Holding company and other 0.2 0.9
Integrys Energy Group consolicdated $342.0 34139
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The decrease in capital expenditures at the electric utility in 2007
comparad with 2006 was mainly due to a decrease in capital
expenditures associated with the construction of Weston 4. The
increase in capital expenditures at the natwral gas utility was primarily
driven by capital requirements of PGL and NSG, which were acquired
in the merger with PEC on February 21, 2007. Capital sxpenditures in
2007 for PGL and NSG related mainly to the natural gas distribution
systems. The increase in capital expenditures at Integrys Energy Services
was due to capital required to open new offices in Colorade, Michigan,
and Washingten, D.C., as well as to move the Chicago office: improvements
at various generation facilities; new systems infrastructure; and the
Winnebago Energy Center landfill 9as project. The increase in capital
expenditures at the Holding Company and Cther segment was driven
by the purchase of a corporate airplane,

The decrease in capital expenditures at the elactric utility in 2006
compared with 2005 was mainly due to lower capital expenditures
associated with the construction of Weston 4. The increase in capital
expenditures at the natural gas utility was related to a combined
$20.1 million of capital expenditures incurred by MGUC and MERC
for natural gas mains.

Financing Cash Flows

Net cash used for financing activities was $459.2 million in 2007,
compared with net cash provided by financing activities of $891.7 million
in 2006. The $1.4 billion change was driven by $458.0 million of short-
term debt bomowings during 2004, compared with the repayment of
$463.7 million of shor-term debt in 2007, In 2007, Integrys Enargy
Group was able to pay down short-term debt with a porticn of the
proceeds received from the sale of PER. The remaining net change in
financing activity was driven by a $321.8 million decrease in leng-term
debt issuances year-over-year and a $119.0 million year-over-year
decrease in common stock issued. Short-term bomrowings in 2006 and
the long-term debt and stock issuances in 2006 were used primarily for
the acquisitions of the natural gas distribution operations in Michigan
and Minnesota. An $81.0 million increase in dividends paid in 2007,
campared with 2006, was driven by an increase in shares outstanding
and higher dividend rates. These items were partially offset by natural
gas loan proceeds at Integrys Energy Services of $34.4 million in 2007,
compared with repayment of $68.4 million of natural gas loans during
2006, An increase in natural gas spreads made it more conducive to
enter into natural gas loan ceals In 2007 compared with 2006.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $891.7 million in 2006,
comparad with net cash related to financing activities of $0 in 2005.
The change was primarily attributed to a $458.0 million increase in
short-term debt and the issuance of $447.0 million of long-term debt
in 2006. Increased borrowings wers used primarily for the acquisitions
of the natural gas distribution operations in Michigan and Minnesota,
construction expenditures related to Weston 4, working capital
requirements at Integrys Energy Services, and other general
corporate purposes.

Significant Financing Activities

Dividends paid increased in 2007 compared with 2004 as a result of the
merger with PEC, Integrys Energy Group issued 31.9 million shares of
common stock as part of the merger and increased the dividend paid
per share. The quarterly common stock dividend was increased from
57.5 cants per share to 66 cents per share in 2007, In February 2008,
Integrys Energy Group increased its quarterly common stock dividend
to &7 cents per share.

Integrys Energy Group had outstanding commercial paper bomowings
of $308.2 mitlion and $542.8 million at December 31, 2007, and 2004,
respectively. Integrys Energy Group had other outstanding short-term
debt of $160.0 million as of December 31, 2007, and 2006. In April 2006,
Integrys Energy Services entered into a $150.0 million credit agreement,

which has been renewed to April 2008, to finance its margin
requirements related to natural gas and electric contracts traded on
the New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX) and the Intercontinental
Exchange (ICE), as well as the cost of natural gas in storage and for
general corporate purposes. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
$150.0 millicn of borrowings were ouistanding under this credit
agreement, which s guaranteed by Integrys Energy Group.

In 2007, 2006, and 2005 Integrys Energy Group issued new shares of
common stock under its Stock Investment Plan and under certain stock-
based employee benefit and compensation plans. As a result of these
plans, equity increased $45.7 million, $25.0 million, and $29.0 million in
2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. Integrys Energy Group did not
repurchase any existing common stock during 2007, 2008, or 2005.

In Movember 2007, WPSC issued $125.0 million of 5.65%, 10-year seniar
notes. The net proceeds from the issuance of the senior notas were used
to fund construction costs and capital additions, reduce short-term
indebtedness, as well as for general corporate utility purposes.

On December 14, 2006, the Village of Weston, Wisconsin, issued

$22.0 million of 3.95% Pollution Cantrol Refunding Revenue Bonds and
loaned the proceeds from the sale of the bonds to WPSC, In return,
WPSC issued $22.0 million of 3.95% senior notes, due in 2013, to the
Village of Weston. At December 31, 2006, the $22.0 million of proceeds
received from the Village of Weston were classified as restricted cash. In
January 2007, WPSC used the restricted cash to repay the outstanding
principal balance of its 6.90% first mortgage bonds which originally were
to mature in 2013.

In December 2004, WPSC issued $125.0 million of 5.55% 30-year senior
notes. The net proceeds from the issuance of the seror nutes were used
for general corporate utility purposes, including funding construction
costs and capital additions and recucing short-term indebtedness,

On December 1, 2006, Integrys Energy Group issued $300.0 million of
junior subordinated notes. Interest has been fixed at 6.22% through the
use of forward-starting interest rate swaps. For more information on the
junior subordinated notes, see Note 14, “Long-Term Debt.”

tn November 2005, Integrys Energy Group entered into a forward
equity sale agreement with an afiliate of J.F. Morgan Securities, Inc.,
as forward purchaser, relating to 2.7 millien shares of Integrys Energy
Group's common stock. On May 10, 2006, Integrys Energy Group
physically settled the forwarc equity agreement by issuing 2.7 million
shares of common stock, and received proceeds of $139.6 million.
The proceeds were used to pay down commercial paper barrowings.

In Nowember 2005, Integrys Energy Group issued and sold 1.9 million
shares of common stock at a public offering price of $53.70 per share.
The proceeds of $98.3 million, net of underwriting discounts and
commissions, were used 1o reduce short-term debt and fund equity
contributions to subsidiary companies.

In June 2005, $62.9 million of non-recourse dabt at an Integrys Energy
Services subsidiary that was used to finance the purchase of Sunbury was
restructured! to a five-year Integrys Energy Group obligation in connection
with the sale of Sunbury’s allocated emission allowances. An additional
$2.7 million drawn on a line of credit at Integrys Energy Services was
rolled into the five-year Integrys Energy Group obligation. The floating
interest rate on the total five-year Integrys Energy Group obligation of
$65.6 million was fixed at 4.595% through two interest rate swaps.

Credit Ratings

Integrys Energy Group uses internally generated funds and commercial
paper botrowings to satisfy most of its capital requirements. Integrys
Energy Group also periodically issues long-term debt and common
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stock 1o reduce short-term debt, maintain desired capitalization ratios,
and fund future growth. Integrys Energy Group may seek nonrecourse
financing for funding nonregulated acquisitions. Integrys Energy
Group's cornmarcial paper barrowing program provides for working
capital requirements of the nonregulated businesses, FEC, UPPCO,
MGUC, and MERC. WPSC znd PGL have their own commercial paper
borrowing programs. NSG provides for its working capital needs
through inter-company borrowings. WPSC periodically issues long-term
debt, receives equity contributions from Intagrys Energy Group, and
mzkes payments for returns of capital to Integrys Energy Group to
reduce short-term debt, fund future growth, and maintain capitalization
ratios as authorized by the PSCW. PGL and NSG periodically issue
long-term debt in order to reduce short-term debt, refinance maturing
securities, maintain desired capitalization ratios, and fund future growth.
The specific forms of long-term financing, amounts, and timing depend
on business needs, market conditicns, and other factors.

The current credit ratings for Integrys Energy Group, WPSC, PEC, PGL,
and N3G are listed in the table below.

Credit Ratings

Integrys Energy Group
lssuer credit rating
Senior unsecured debt
Commercial paper
Credit facility
Junior subardinated notes

WPSC
Issuer credit rating
First mortgage bonds
Senior secured debt
Preferred stock
Commercial paper
Credit facility

FEC
issuer credit rating
Senior unsecured debt

PGL
lssuer credit rating
Senior secured debt
Commercial paper

NSG
Issuer credit rating

Senior secured debt

We believe these ratings continue to be among the best in the energy
industry and allow us to access commerdial paper and long-term debt
markets on favorable terms. Credit ratings are not recommendations to
buy and are subject to change, and each rating should be evaluated
independently of any cther rating.

In December 2007, Standand & Poor's and Moody's withdrew the
ratings assigned to PEC's commercial paper at the request of
Integrys Energy Group.

On November 13, 2007, Standard & Poor's revised the outlook on
Integrys Energy Group and all of its subsidiaries to stable from negative.
Standard & Poor's outicok had been negative since February 21, 2007,
for all integrys Energy Group companies, as discussed befow. The
revised outlook reflects Integrys Energy Group’s progress to improve its
financiai position and business profiles since its one-notch downgrade
on February 21, 2007. On November 13, 2007, Standard & Poor’s also
reaffirmed its A rating on WPSC senior secured debt.

On September 6, 2007, Standard & Poor’s raised the senior secured

debt for NSG one notch from A- to A. The new rating was the result of
a review and changes made to the collateral coverage requirements
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Standard and Poor's uses when assigning recovery ratings to United
States Utility First Mortgage Bonds.

On February 21, 2007, Standard & Poor's lowered the corporate credit
rating on Integrys Energy Group to A- from A and removed it from
CreditWatch with negative implications. Standard & Poors also lowersd
integrys Energy Group’s unsecured ratings to BBB+ from A and all other
issue-specific ratings by one notch. Standard & Pocr’s stated that the
ratings actions were due to concerns related to plans to expand its
energy marketing business, the dividend requirements resulting from
the PEC merger, moderate capital expenditure requirements, lower than
expected performance at MGUC and MERC, uncertainty regarding
future rate relief, and full integration of the newly acquired PEC utilities.
At the same time, Standard & Poor's lowered all WP5C's issue-specific
ratings by ore notch as they stated “WPSC’s liquidity is being pressured
by its ongoing construction program,” Standard & Paor’s affirmed all
PEC, PGL, and NSG ratings. Standard & Poor’s outlook for all Integrys
Energy Group related companies was negative pending successful
integration of recent acquisitions.

On February 21, 2007, Moody's downgraded the senior unsecured
rating of Integrys Energy Group to A3 from Al, the bank credit facility
to A3 from A1, the commercial paper rating to Prime-2 from Prime-1,
and thea junior subardinated notas to Baal from A2, Moody's also
downgraded WPSC's senior secured rating to Aa3 from Aa2, its senior
unsecured bank credit facility to A1 from Aa3, and its preferred stock to
A3 from A2 and confirmed WPSC's commercial paper rating at Prime-1.
At the same time, Moody's affirmed the ratings of PGL and NSG.
Moody's actions to downgrade were due to concerns about increases
in Integrys Energy Group's consolidated debt levels and business risk
profile evidenced by the increased scale and scope of the post merger
non-regulated energy marketing business plus the entry into the
historically more challenging regulatory jurisdiction of Illinois. Moody's
outlook for all Integrys Energy Group related companies is stable.

On February 21, 2007, Moody's also upgraded the senior unsecurad rating
of PEC to A3 fram Baa2, confarming it with those of Integrys Energy Group,
and affirmed all ather ratings for PEC. Moody's actions to upgrade the senior
unsecured rating were due to the expected business risk improvement
from the merger with Integrys Energy Group, which resulted in the sale
of PEP and transferred PEC's energy and marketing business to Integrys
Energy Services, leaving PEC holding only the two regulated subsiciaries,
PGL and NSG. In addition, the upgrade reflects Integrys Energy Group's
guaranty of the $325.0 million of PEC 6.90% notes due in 2011,

Discontinued Operations

Net cash provided by discontinued operations was $690.2 million in
2007 and $61.0 million in 2006. The increase in net cash provided by
discontinued operations was driven by approximately $879.1 millicn

of proceeds received from the sale of PEP in the third quarter of 2007,
Post-closing adjustments in the amount of $2.9 million were settled

in February 2008 related to this sale, which reduced the sale price to
$869.2 million, These post-closing adjustments were funded through other
current liabilities at December 31, 2007 and, therefore, are incduded in
Note 1(d), "Cash and Cash Equivalerts,” as a non-cash transaction.

Net cash provided by discontinued operations was $61.0 million in
2006 and §59.1 million in 2005, The increase in cash provided by
discontinued operations in 2006 was driven by a decrease in cash
paid for emission allowances required to operate Sunbury in 2006,
compared with 2005 (substantially all of the emission allowances
required to operate Sunbury through the 2006 sale were purchased in
2005}, and by the $33.6 million of proceeds received from the sale of
Sunbury in 2004. These increases were partially offset by $110.9 million
of proceeds received from the sale of Sunbury's allocated emission
allowances in 2005 {(which was partially offset by income taxes paid
related to the gain on the sale of these emission allowances).
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Future Capital Requirements and Resources

Contractual Obligations
The follawing table summarizes the contractual obligations of Integrys
Energy Graup, including fis subsidiaries.

Contractual Obligations
As of December 31, 2007
{Millions)

Long-term debt principal and interest payments ©

Operating lease obligations S 4372 "
Commadity purchase obligations @ . 9887
Purchase orders ® 3494
Other ¥ . 3795
Total contractual cash obligations $13401.2

M Represents bonds issued, notes issued, and loans made to Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries. All principal chligations are recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. For purposes of
this table, it is assumed that the intarest rates on variable rate debt at December 31, 2007, will ramain in effect uniil the debt matures.

B Energy supply coptracts at Integrys Energy Services included as part of commodity purchase obligations are generally entered inte #o meet obligations to deliver energy to customers. WP5C,
UPPCO, MGUC, MERC, PGL, and NSG expect to recover the costs of their contracts in future customar rates.

@ Includes obligations related to normal business operations and large construction obligations, inciuding 100% of Weston 4 obfigations. The sale of a 30% imerest in Weston 4 to DPC wes completed
in Nowernbar 2005, but WESC retains the legal ebligation to initially remit payrant to third parties for 100% of all construction costs incurmed, 30% of which will subsequently be bifled to DFC.

# Mainly represents expected pension and postretirenent funding ebligations.

The table above does not reflect any payments related to the information about environmental liabilities. Also, the table does not
manufactured gas plam remediation liability of $704.2 miltion at reflect any payments for our liability at December 31, 2007, for
December 31, 2007, as the amount and timing of payments are unrecognized tax benefits. See Note 14, "income Taxes,” for more

uncartain. See Note 17, "Commitments and Contingencies,” for more information about this liahility.




Capital Requirements
Estimated construction expenditures by company for the three-year
period 2008 through 2010 are as follows:

{Millions}
WPSC
Environmental projects
Wind generation projects
Electric and natural gas distribution projects
Natural gas laterals to connect to Guardian Pipeline
Weston 4 @
Cther projects

UPPCO

Electric distribution projects and repairs
and safety measures at hydroelectric facilities

MGUC

Matural gas pipe distribution systemn and
underground natural gas storage facilities

MERC
Natural gas pipe distribution system

PGL

Natural gas pipe distribution system and
underground natural ges storage facilities @

NSG
Natural gas pipe distribution system

Integrys Energy Services
Miscellaneous projects and landfill natural gas project

Integrys Business Support, LLC {I1BS)
Corporate services infrastructure projects
Total capital expenditures

M As of December 31, 2007, WPSC has incurad a total cast of approximately $516 million
reflated to its ownership interest in the project. WPSC has incurred approximately
£77 million and expects to incur an additiona! 16 million refated to the construction of
the transmission fadilities required to support Weston 4. ATC will reimburse WPSC for
these transmissian facilities and related carrying costs (approximately $8 million in
careying cosis) when Weston 4 becomas operational. Waston 4 is scheduled to be placed
in senvice in the firs? quarter of 2008.

B Indudes approximately $100 million of sxpenditures refated to the acceleratad eplacemeant
of cast iron mains at PGL. The expenditures were initially included n a request for recavery
fr & rider to PGL rate cass; however, the lllincis Commaerce Commission (ICC) rejectad the
ricier. The company is investigating alternative recovery options. See Note 23, “Regulatory
Envirenment, " for more information on the PGL rate case.

Integrys Energy Group expects to provide additiona| capital contributions
to ATC {not included in the above table) of approximately $47 million
for the period 2008 through 2010.

All projected capital and investrent expenditures are subject to
periodic review znd revision and may vary significantly from the
estimates depending on a number of factors, including, but not

limited to, industry restructuring, regulatory constraints, acquisition
opportunities, market volatility, and economic trends. Other capital
expenditures for Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries for 2008
through 2010 could be significant depending on its success in pursuing
development and acquisition opportunities. When appropriate,
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Integrys Energy Group may seek nonrecourse financing for a portion of
the cost of these acquisitions.

Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2007, Integrys Energy Group and each of its
subsicliaries were in compliance with all of their respective covenants
under their lines of credit and cther debt obligations.

For the period 2008 thraugh 2010, Integrys Energy Group plans to

use internally generated funds net of forecasted dividend payments,
cash proceeds from asset sales, and debt and equity financings to fund
capital requirements. Integrys Energy Group plans to maintain curment
debt to equity ratios at appropriate |levels to support current credit
ratings and corparate growth, Management believes Integrys Energy
Group has adequate financial flexdbility and resources to meet its
future needs.

See Note 13, “Short-Term Debt and Lines of Credit,” for more
information on our credit facilities and other short-term credit
agreements.

In April 2006, Integrys Energy Group filed a shelf registration under
the new United States Securities and Exchange Commissicn (SEC)
securities offering reform rules for the ability to issue debt, equity, and
certain types of hybrid securities. This shelf registration statement
inclucies the unused capacity remaining under integrys Energy Group's
pricr registration statement. Specific terms and conditicns of securities
issued will be determined prior to the actual issuance of any specific
security. Under the new SEC securities offering reform rules, Integrys
Energy Group will be able o issue securities under this registration
statement for three years. Integrys Energy Group’s Board of Directors
has authorized issuance of up to $700 million of equity, debt, or ather
securities under this shelf registration staterent, $300 million of which
was used in December 2006 when Integrys Energy Group issued junior
subordinated notes.

In May 2004, WPSC filed a shelf registration with the SEC autherizing
the issuance of up to $350 million of senicr debt securities. WPSC

" issued $125 million of senior debt securities under this registration

statement in December 2006 and an additional $125 million of senior
deht securities under this registration statement in November 2007,
leaving existing capacity under the registration statement of $100 million
as of December 31, 2007.

Other Future Considerations

Asset Management Strategy

Integrys Energy Group continues to pursue ahternatives for the sale
of the balance of its identified real estate holdings no longer needed
for operation.

Regulatory Matters and Rate Trends

To mitigate the volatility of electric fuel generation and purchased
power costs in 2008 and beyond, WPEC is employing risk management
technigues pursuant to its PSCW approved Risk Plan and Policy,
including the use of derivative instruments such as futures and options.

in WPSC's retail electric rate case proceeding for 2006, the PSCW appiied
a “financial harm” test when considering the rate recavery of certain costs
previously authorized for deferred accounting treatment. The PSCW has
not applied a financial harm test previously when considering the rate
recovery of costs that were pravicusly authorized for deferral. In WPSC’s
rate case praceading for 2004, after applying the financial harm test,

the PSCW disallowed rate recovery of the 2004 extended outage at
Kewaunee. The PSCW alse disallowed recovery of 50% of the pre-tax loss
realized on the sale of Kewaunee. None of these disallowed costs were
found 1o be imprudent by the PSCW. Notwithstanding the PSCW45
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decision on these Kewaunece related deferred costs, WPSC still believes it
is probable that all regulatory assets recorded at December 31, 2007, will
be collected from ratepayers.

Forecasting and monitaring of fuel costs have become extremely difficult
for both the PSCW and WPSC. These challenges can be attributed to
the implementation of the MISO Day 2 market and volatility in natural
gas prices. In 2005, the PSCW received several applications from
various Wisconsin electric utilities under the PSCW Chapter 114 fuel
rules for large rate increases due to increzsed natural gas prices. In
response, on February 7, 20046, the PSCW opened Docket 01-AC-224
to review the fuel rules. On February 1, 2007, the five utilities subject to
the current fuel rules filed proposed changes to the fuel rules with the
FSCW. The primary proposed change was to replace the trigger
mechanism with a true "dead band” of 1%, which would limit a uiility's
annual exposure or opportunity to a maximum of 1% of fuel costs. On
May 3, 2007, the PSCW directed staff to prepare a draft rule revision to
PSCW Chapter 116 fuel rules incorporating many of the components of
the utilities’ proposal, with a 2% bandwidth as opposed to the 1%
bandwidth recommended by the uiilities. The PSCW staff circulated a
craft rule to that effect and the parties have commented on the draft
rule. The draft rule is cumently awaiting PSCW action.

For a discussion of regulatory filings and decisions, see Note 23,
“Regulatory Environment."

See Note 9, "Regquiatory Assets and Liabilities,” for a list of regulatory
assets and liabilities recorded at December 31, 2007.

Natural Gas Charge Reconciliation Proceedings and

Related Matters

For the Integrys Energy Group regulated retail gas operations, the ICC,
PSCW, Minnesota Public Utility Commission (MPUC), and MPSC
conduct annual proceedings regarding the reconciliation of revenues
from the Gas Charge and related gas costs. In these proceedings, the
accuracy of the reconciliation of revenues and costs is reviewed and the
prudence of gas costs recovered through the Gas Charge is examined
by interested parties.

For additional information on the Gas Charge Reconciliation
Proceedings and Related Matters, see Note 17, *Commitments
and Contingencies.”

Industry Restructuring

ILLINCIS

The lllinois Attorney General filed a complaint at Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission {FERC) on March 15, 2007, against 15 power
generators and suppliers that won contracts in the auction to supply
Commanwealth Edison and the three Ameren wtilities. Integrys Energy
Services was named in the complaint because it won three tranches of
approximately 50 megawatts each in the auction. On August 29, 2007,
the Attorney General filed a motion to valuntarily dismiss the pending
action at the FERC with prejudice. The FERC ruled on that motion and
issued an order dismissing the people's claims basad on the lllincis
2006 power auction “with prejudice, and terminating the praceeding.”

On the heels of the lllinois Attomey General's complaint filed a1 FERC,
two class action lawsuits were filed by various ratepayers in Cook County.
Those complaints, which essentially mirrored the Attorney General's
complaint, were removed to federal court. Motions to dismiss these
cases filed by the defendants wera granted on December 21, 2007,

and the cases were dismissed without prejudice.

MAINE
Intagrys Energy Services continues 1o serve retail customers in both
northern and southern Maine by way of direct customer contracts and

Standard Offer Service for a number of utilities. Northern Maine
customers experienced a significant increase in their energy supply
rates starting January 1, 2007. This increase was a result of the
competitive bid process conducted in fate 2006 whereby Integrys
Energy Services was the successful bidder. Integrys Energy Services is
currently petitioning the Maine Public Utilities Commission for rate relief
as a result of market rule changes in the northern Maine market. These
changes are a part of bidder conditions for the utility Standard Offer
Service (default service) that was included in Integrys Energy Services’
bid in late 2006,

The legisiature is back in session and there are a few bills that will
be of interest to Integrys Energy Services, ranging from the creation
of a Northern Maine Power Authority, changes/enhancements to
transmission investment, encouragement of wind development, and
different levels of re-regulation,

New Renewable Portfolic Standard requirements are in effect for the
state of Maire, The new standard will cause Competitive Electric
Providers to acquire 10% of new renewabla generation by 2017. As
part of its obligations as an active Competitive Electricity Provider in
Maine, Integrys Energy Services is working to meet this obligation with
qualified generatars.

Seams Elimination Charge Adjustment
For a discussion of SECA, see Note 23, "Reguiatory Environment.”

Income Taxes

MICHIGAN TAXES

On July 12, 2007, the Michigan Govermnor signed legislation that replaced
the Single Business Tax with an effective date of January 1, 2008. On
September 30, 2007, the Michigan legislature passed, and the govemor
signed intc law, a “SFAS No. 109" amendment to the new Michigan
Business Tax [MET), providing a future tax deduction for existing book-tax
differences. This legislation zllows companies to record a state deferred
tax asset for this future tax deduction, which offsets the state deferved tax
liability recorded in the third quarter of 2007 for this new MBT.

On September 30, 2007, the Michigan legislature passed a bill that will
expand the state’s 6% sales tax to additional services. The Governor
signed the legislation on September 30, 2007. On December 1, 2007,
the Governor signed legislation that would repeal the previous expansion
of the state’s sales tax. The same legislation added an annual surcharge
to taxpayers MBT liability. These new provisions discussed above are
effective as of January 1, 2008, at which time we began recording the
effects on current eamings.

Environmental
See Note 17, " Commitmaents and Contingencies,” for a detailed
discussion of environmental considerations.

Wisconsin Energy Efficiency and Renewables Act

In March 2006, Wisconsin's Governor signed 2005 Wisconsin Act 141
(2005 Senate Bill 459), the Energy Efficiency and Renewables Act, which
requires Wisconsin electric providers to increase the amount of renewable
electricity they sell by 2% above their current level before 2010 and
6% above their current level by 2015. The goal isto have 10% of the
state's electricity generated from renewabie sources by 2015, which is
intended to increase the use of renewable energy in Wisconsin, promote
the development of renewable energy technologies, and strengthen

the state’s energy efficlency programs. As of December 31, 2007,
approximately 4% of Integrys Energy Group's generation in Wisconsin is
from renewable sources. Integrys Energy Group continuously evaluates
alternatives for cost-effective renewable energy sources and will secure
reliable and efficient renewable energy sources to meat both requiraments
by their respective datss. Currently, WPSC is negotiating 2 transaction 1o
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purchase a ?9-megawatt wind generation project, to be constructed in
Howard County, lowa. An agreement with the counterparty is anticipated
to be reached in the first quarter of 2008.

Michigan 21st Century Energy Plan

On January 31, 2007, the MPSC Chairman presented the “21st Century
Energy Plan” to Michigan's Governor. The plan recognizes the increased
need for energy in the next 20 years. The plan proposes an alternative
method of receiving pre-construction approval for significant generating
plant additions versus the alternative of building a generation plant and
then seeking approval for recovery of costs. The plan calls for legislation
1o implement a 10% renewable energy portiolio standard by 2015 as
well as a statewide enargy sfficisncy program. Discussions have moved
10 the legislature and several bills have been introduced, though none
have been enacted at this time.

Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator
WPSC, UPPCO, and Integrys Energy Services are members of the
MISO, which operates a financial and physical electric wholesale
market in the Midwest. The market pricing is based on a locational
marginal pricing systern. MISC participants offer their generation and
bid their cusiomer load into the market on an houry basis and on a
clay ahead basis. This results in net receipts from, or net obligations
ta, MISQ for each hour of each day. MISO aggregates these hously
transactions and provides bi-weekly settlement statements. These
disputable settlements have an adjustment period based on the
subsequent data which may require billing adjustments resulting in
increases or decreases to the net MISQ receipt or obligation. For
WPSC and UPPCO, it is anticipated that the billing adjustments will
be recovered through the state rate recovery process.

New Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 1(v), "New Accounting Pronouncemaents,” for a detailed
discussion of new accounting pronouncements.

Guarantees and Off Balance
Sheet Arrangements

See Mote 18, "Guarantees,” for information regarding guararizes.

Market Price Risk
Management Activities

Market price risk management activities include the electric and natural
gas marketing and related risk management activities of Integrys Energy
Services, zlong with ail apticns used to mitigate the risk of an increase
in il prices. Integrys Energy Services' marketing and trading operations
manage electricity and natural gas procurement as an integrated
portfolio with its retsil and wholesalz sales commitments. Derivative
instruments are utilized in these oparations.

Integrys Energy Services measures the fair value of derivative
instruments on a mark-to-market basis. The fair value is included in
assets or liabilities from risk management activities on Integrys Energy
Group's Consolidated Balance Sheet, with an offsetting entry to other
comprehensive income {for the effective portion of cash flow hedges) or
to earnings. The following table provides an assessment of the factors
impacting the change in the net value of Integrys Energy Services’
assets and liabilities from risk management activities for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

Irtegrys Energy Services
Mark-to-Market Roll Forward Gil Natural
{Millions) Options Gas Electric Total

Fair value of contracts at December 31, 2006 ™
Plus: Cantracts assumed in the merger with PEC
Less: Contracts realized or settled during period ™

Plus: Changes in fair value of contracts in existence at December 31, 2007 @

$4.7) $105.2

$ 7.1 $107.6

Fair value of contracts at December 31, 2007 ©

" Reflects the values reported on the balance sheet For net mark-to-market current and lang-term risk management assets and liabilities as of those dates.

¥ Includes the value of contracts in estistence at Decernber 31, 2006, that were no longer included in the net mark-10-markst assets as of Decamber 1, 2007, along with the amortization of
eantracts originally accounted for as derivatives and later designated as normal purchases and sales under SFAS No. 133,

¥ Includes unrealized gains and losses on contracts that existed at December 31, 2006, and contracts that were ertered into subsequent o December 31, 2006, which are included in Integrys
Energy Services” partfolio at Decembar 31, 2007, as well as gains and lcsses at the incaption of contracts when a liquid market exists.

There were, in many cases, offsetting positions entered into and settled
during the period resulting in gains or losses being realized during the
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current period. The realized gains or losses from these offsetting
positions are not reflected in the table above.
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Market quotes are more readily available for shart duration contracts (generally for contracts with a duration of less than five years). The table below
shows the sources of fair value and maturities of Integrys Energy Services' risk management instruments.

Integrys Energy Services
Risk Managemant Contract Aging at Fair Value

As of December 31, 2007 (Millions)

Source of Fair Value

Prices actively quoted

Prices provided by external sources »

Prices based on models and other valuation methods

Total fair value

$62.7

? Includes exchange-traded comtracts such as NYMEX and JCE conwacts and basis swaps.

®? Includes electric and natural gas coritract positions for which pricing information, used by Intagrys Energy Services to calculate fair valus, is obtained primarily through broker quates and other

publicly available sources.

Critical Accounting Policies

Integrys Energy Group has identified the following accounting policies
1o be critical to the understanding of our financial statements because
their application requires significant judgment and reliance on estimations
of matters that are inherently uncertain. \ntegrys Energy Group’s
management has discussed these critical aecounting policies with the
Audit Committee of the Board of Diractors.

Risk Management Activities

Integrys Energy Group has entered into contracis that are accounted
for as derivatives under the provisions of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended. At
Dacember 31, 2007, those derivatives nct designated as hedges are
primarily commodity contracts used to manage price risk 2ssociated
with natural gas and efectricity purchase and sale activities. The utilities
defer the effects of mark-to-market accounting for most energy-related
derivatives as regulatory assets or liabilities, pursuant to SFAS No. 71,
In addition, Integrys Energy Graup may apply the normal purchases
and sales exception, provided by SFAS No, 133, as amended, to
certain derivative contracts. The normal purchases and sales exception
provides that recognition of gains and losses in the consolidated
financial statements is not required until the settlement of the contracts.

Cash flow hedge accounting treatment may be used when Integrys
Energy Group enters contracts to buy or sell a commodity at a fixed
price for future delivery to protect future cash flows correspending with
anticipated physical sales or purchases. Fair value hedge accounting
may be used when Integrys Enargy Group holds assets or firm
commitments and enters into transactions that hedge the risk that the
price of a commodity may change between the contract’s inception
and the physical delivery date of the commaodity. To the extent that the
hedging instrument is fully effective in offsetting the transaction being
hedged, there is no impact on income available for commaon
shareholders prior to settlement of the hedge.

Derivative contracts that are determined to fali within the scope

of SFAS No. 133, as amended, are recorded at fair value on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets of Integrys Energy Group. Changes in
fair value, except those related to derivative instruments designated
as cash flow hedges or qualifying for regulatory deferral, are generally
included in the determination of income available for common
shareholders at each financial reporting date untit the contracts are
ultimately settled. When available, quoted market prices are used to
determine a contract’s fair value. If no active trading market exists for a
commedity or for a contract’s duration, fair value is estimated through
the use of internally developed valuation techniques or models using
external information wherever possible, Such estimates requira
significant judgment as to assumptions and valuation methodologies
deemed appropriate by Integrys Energy Group’s management. Like

most commoadity markets, after some length of time, markets for
natural gas end power become relatively illiquid, making it difficult
to abtain reliable price information,

As a component of the fair value determination, Integrys Energy Group
considers the requirements to service certain of its contracts as well as
counterparty credit risk and liquidity risk. This component of the fair
value determination is especially subjective because limited liquid
market information is available. Under 5FAS No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements,” beginning January 1, 2008, Integrys Energy Services
will na longer include transaction costs in these fair value determinations.
See Note 1(v), “New Accounting Pronouncements,” for more
information on this topic. The effect of changing the underlying
assumptions for this component of fair value at December 31, 2007,

is as follows:

Effect on Fair Value of Net Risk
Managament Assets at
Change in Component December 31, 2007 (Millions}
100% increase $£27.1 decrease
50% decrease $13.5 increase

These potential changes in fair vaiue would be included in curent and
long-term liabilities from risk management activities on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets and as part of nonregulatad revenue on the Consoliclated
Statements of Income, unless the related contracts are designated as
cash flow hedges, in which case potential changes would be included in
Cther Comprehensive Income-—Cash Flow Hedges on the Consolidated
Statements of Common Shareholders’ Equity.

Purchase Accounting

The merger with PEC in 2007, as well as the acquisitions of natural

gas distribution operations in Michigan and Minnesota in 2006, were
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in accordance
with SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations.” Under this statement,
the purchase price paid by the acquirer, including transaction costs,

is allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired as of the acquisition
date based on their fair values. The per share fair value of the common
stock issued by Integrys Energy Group for the acquisition of PEC was
determined by using the average market value of Integrys Energy
Group's common stock over 3 five-day period, beginning two days
before the announcement date of the merger. As Integrys Energy
Group announced its intent to sell PEP at the time of the closing of
the merger, the PEP assets and liabilities were reported at estimated
fair value less costs to sell.

Management makes estimates of fair value based upon historical
experience and informatian obtained from the management of the
acquired company. Assumptions may be incomplete, and unanticipated
events and circumstances may occur which may affect the validity of




such assumptions, estimates, or actual results. As discussed below
within "Asset Impairment,” a significant amount of goodwill resulted
fram these acquisitions, which requires impairment testing on at least
an annual basis.

In conjunction with the PEC merger, the most significant fair value
adjustments related to nonderivative commodity contracts and
customer relationships, which were recorded as intangible assets at
Integrys Energy Services, The intangible asset related to the contracts is
being amortized into earnings as the contracts settle, and the intangible
asset related to customer relationships is being amortized over the
estimated lives of those relationships. The amortization cf these items
had a negative impact on earnings in 2008.

PGL, NSG, MGUC, and MERC are predominantly regulated utilities;
therefore, in accordance with SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects
of Certain Types of Regulation,” the fair value of the majority of their
assets and liabilities did not change significantly as a result of applying
purchase accounting.

Environmental Activities Relating to Former
Manufactured Gas Operations

Integrys Energy Group's utility subsidiaries, their predecessors, and
certain former affiliates operated facilities in the past at multiple sites
for the purpose of rnanufacturing gas and storing manufactured gas
(manufactured gas sites). The wiility subsidiaries are accruing and
deferring the costs they incur in connection with environmental activities
at the manufactured gas sites pending recovery through rates or from
other entities. The amounts deferred include costs incurred but not
yet recovered through rates and management’s best estimates of the
costs that the utilities will incur in investigating and remediating the
manufactured gas sites. Managements estimates are based upon a
probabilistic model and an ongaing review by management of future
investigative and remedial costs,

Integrys Energy Group considers this policy critical due to the substantial
uncertainty in the estimation of future costs with respect to the amount
and timing of costs, and the extent of recovery from other potential
responsible parties. (See Note 17, “Commitments and Contingencies”
for further discussion of environmental matters.)

Asset Impairment

Integrys Enargy Group annually reviews its assets for impairment.
SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment and Risposal of
Long-Lived Assets,” and SFAS No_ 142, "Goadwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” form the basis for these analyses.

WPSC recorded goodwill of $34.4 million in its natural gas utility segment
resutting from the Wisconsin Fuel and Light acquisition in 2007. In 2006,
Integrys Energy Group recorded $267.0 million of goodwill in conjunction
with the acquisition of the natural gas distribution operations in Michigan
and Minnesata. In 2007, $644.% million of goodwill atributable ta the
PEC merger was recorded. The gaodwill for each of our reporting units
is tested for impairment annually or when events or circumstances
waimant based on the guidance of SFAS Ne. 142. The test for impairment
includes estimating the fair market value of each reporting unit using
assurmptions about future profitability of the reporting units. A significant
decrease in market values anc/or projected future cash flows could result
in an impairment loss.

The raview for impairment of tangible assets is more critical to Integrys
Energy Services than to our other segments because of its significant
investment in property, plant, and equipment and lack of access to

rate setting based on cost of setvice that is available to our regulated
segments. At December 31, 2007, the carrying value of Integrys Energy
Services' property, plant, and equipment totaled $140.1 million. Integrys
Energy Group believes that the accounting estimate related to asset
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impairment of power plants is a “critical accaunting estimate” because:
(1) the estimate is susceptible to change from period to period because
it requires management to make assumptions about future market sales
pricing, production cests, capital expenditures, and generation volumas
and (2) the impact of recognizing an impairment could be material to
our financial position or results of operations. Managements assumptions
about future electricity and capacity prices and generation volumes
require significant judgment because actual prices and generation
volumes have fluctuated in the past 25 a result of changing fusl costs,
environmental changes, and required plant maintenance and are
expected to continue to do so in the future,

The primary estimates used at Integrys Energy Services in the
impairment analyses are future revenue streams and operating costs,
A combination of inputs from both internal and extemal sources is used
to project revenue streams. Integrys Energy Services foracasts future
operating costs with input from external sources for fuel costs and
forward energy prices. These estimates are modeled over the projected
remaining life of the power plants using the methodslogy defined in
SFAS No. 144. Integrys Energy Services evaluates property, plant, and
equipment for impairment whenever indicators of impairment exist.
These indicators include a significant underperfermance of the assets
relative to historical or projected future operating results, a significant
change in the use of the assets or business strategy related to

such assets, and significant negative industry or economic trends.
SFAS Ne. 144 raquires that if the sum of the undiscounted expected
future cash flows from a company's asset is less than the canrying value
of the asset, an asset impairment must be recognized in the financial
statements. For assets held for sale, impainment charges are recorded
if the carrying value of such assets exceeds the estimated fair value
less costs to sell. The amount of impairment recagnized is calculated
by reducing the carrying value of the asset to its fair value (or fair value
lass costs to sell if held for sale).

Thraughout 2007, Integrys Energy Services tested various power plants
for impairment whenaver events or changes in circumstances indicated
that their carrying amount might not be recoverable. No impairment
charges were recorded in 2007 as a result of the recoverability tests.
Results of past impairment tests may not necessarily be an indicator of
future results given the nature of the accounting estimates involved, as
discussed more fully above. Changes in actual results or assumptions
could resuft in an impairmant.

Raceivables and Reserves

QOur regulated natural gas and electric utilities and Integrys Energy
Services accrue estimated amounts of revenue for services rendered
but not yet billed. Estimated unbilled sales are calculated using actual
generation and throughput volumes, recorded sales, and weather
factors. The estimatec unbilled sales are assigned different rates based
on historical customer class allocations, At December 31, 2007, and
2006, Integrys Energy Group's unbilled revenues were $4464.7 mitlion
and $184.8 million, respectively. Any difference between actual sales
and the estimates are recorded in reverwe in the next period.
Differences historically have not been significant.

Integrys Energy Services, UPPCO, MERC, MGUC, PGL, and N5G
record reserves for potential uncollectible customer accounts as an
expense on the income statement and an uncollectible reserve on
the balance sheet. WPSC, however, records a regulatory asset to offset
its uncoliectible reserve, The reserve is most critical to PGL because
their accounts receivables have higher credit risk and are sensitive

ta the price of natural gas, anc to Integrys Enargy Services because
their receivables comprise the majority of the total. PGLs reserve for
uncollectible accounts reflects its best estimates of probable losses
on the accounts receivable balances. The reserve is based on knawn
troubled accounts, historical experience, and other currently available
svidence. Provisions for bad debt expense are affected by changes
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in vaticus factors, including the impacts of natural gas prices and
weather. Each quarter, PGL evaluates the adequacy of the reserve for
uncollectible aczounts based on the most current available information
and adjusts the reserve for changes in estimated probable accounts
receivable losses. Integrys Energy Services calculates the reserve for
potential uncollectible customar receivable balances by applying an
estimated bad debt experience rate to each past due aging category
and reserving for 100% of specific customer receivable balances
deemed to be uncollectible. The basis for calculating the reserve

for receivables from wholesale counterparties considers netting
agreements, collateral, and guarantees. If the assumption that
historical uncoliectible experience matches current customer default is
incorrect, or if a specific customer with a large account receivable that
has not previously been identified as a risk defaults, there could be
significant changes to the expense and uncollectible reserve balance.

Pension and Postretirement Benefits

The costs of providing non-contributary defined benefit pension benefits
and other postretirement benefits, described in Note 19, “Employee
Benefit Plans,” are dependent upon numerous factors resulting fram
actual plan experience and assumptions regarding future experience.

Pansion and other postretirement benefit costs are impacted by actual
employee demographics {including age, compensation levels, and
employment periods), the level of contributions made ta the plans, and
earnings on plan assets. Pension and other postretirement benefit costs
may be significantly affected by changes in key actuarial assumptions,
including anticipated rates of return on plan assats, discount rates used in
determining the projected pension and ather postretirement benefit
obligations and pension and other postretirement benefit costs, and
health care cost trends. Changes made to the plan provisions may also
impact current and future pension and other postretirernent benefit costs.

integrys Energy Group's pension and other postratirement benefit plan
assets are primarily made up of equity and fixed income investments,
Fluctuations in actual equity market returns, as well zs changes in general
interest rates, may result in increased or decreased benefit costs in future
periods. Management believes that such changes in costs would be
recovered at our regulated segments through the ratemaking process.

The following chart shows how a given change in certain actuarial
assumptions would impact the projected benefit obligation and the
repcrted annuai pension cost on the income statement. Each factor
below reflects an evaluation of the change based on a change in that
assumption only.

Actuarial Assumption
(Millions, except percentages)

Discount rate
Discount rate
Rate of retum on plan assets
Rate of retum on plan assets

The following chart shows how a given change in certain actuarial
assumptions would impact the accumulated cther pestretirement
benefit cbligation and the reported anmual other postretirement benefit
cost on the income statement. Each factor below reflects an evaluation
of the change based on a change in that assumption only.

Actuarial Assumption
(Millions, except percentages) |

Discount rate

Discount rate

Health care cost trend rate
Health care cost trend rate
Rate of retum on plan assets
Rate of retum on plan assets

Irtegrys Energy Group utilizes the assistance of its plan actuares in
determining the expected timing of cash outflows from plan payments.
Integrys Energy Group considers bonds, rated by Moody's as "Aa” or
better, when determining the discount rate at the measurement date.
Regression analysis is applied to construct a best-fit curve that makes
coupon yields to maturity a function of time to maturity. The pension
or retiree medical cash flows are then matched io the appropriate spot
rates and discounted back to the measurement date.

To select an assumed long-termn rate of retum on qualified plan assets, the
histarical returns and the future expectations for retums for each asset
class are considered, 25 well as the target allocation of the benefit trust
portfolios. The assumed long-term rate of return was 8.5% in 2007, 2006,
and 2005. For 2007, 2006, and 2005, the actual rates of return on pension
plan assets, net of fees, were 6.2%, 11.3%, and 6.9%, respectively.

The determination of expected return on gualified plan assets is based
an a market-related valuation of assets, which reduces yearto-year
volatility. Cumulative gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greater
of the pension benefit obligation ar market-related value are amortizad
over the average remaining future service to expected retirement ages.
Realized and unrealized gains and losses on plan assets are recognized
for purposes of calculating benefit cost over a fiveysar period. Because
of this method, the future value of assets will be impacted as praviously
defarred gains or losses are recorded.

In selecting assumed health care cost trend rates, past performance and
forecasts of health care costs are considered. More information on health
care cost trend rates can be found in Note 19, "Employse Benefit Flans.”

For a table showing future payments that integrys Energy Group
expects to make for pension and cther postretirement benefits, see
Note 19, "Employee Benefit Plans.”




Regulatory Accounting

The elactric and natural gas utility segments of Integrys Energy Group
follow SFAS No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of
Regulation,” and our financial statemenits reflect the effects of the
different ratermaking principles followed by the various jurisdictions
regulating these segments. We defer certain items that would otherwise
be immediately recognized as expenses and revenues because our
regulators have authorized deferral of thesa items as regulatory assets
and regulatory liabilities for future recovery or refund to customers.
Future recovery of regulaiory assets is not assured, but is generally
subject to review by regulators in rate proceedings for mattars such as
prudence and reasonableness, Management reqularly assesses whether
these regulatory assets and liabilities are probable of future recovery

or refund by considering factors such as changes in the regulatory
environment, earnings at the utility segments, and the status of any
pending or potential deregulation legislation. Once approved, we
amortize the regulatory assets and liabilities inte income over the rate
recovery period. If recovery of costs is nat approved or is ne longer
deemed probable, these regulatory assets or liabilities are recognized
in current period income.

If our regulated electric and natural gas utility segments would no
langer meet the criteria for application of SFAS No. 71, we would
discontinue its application as defined under SFAS No. 101, "Regulated
Enterprises—Accounting for the Discontinuation of Application of
SFAS No. 71.7 Assets and liabilities recognized solely due to the actions
of rate regulation would no longer be recognized on the balance sheet
and would be classified as an extraordinary itarn in income for the
peried in which the discontinuation occurred. A write-off of all of
Integrys Energy Group's regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities at
December 31, 2007, would result in an 11.1% decrease in total assets
and a 4.7% decrease in total liabilities.

Tax Provision

As part of the process of preparing our Consolidated Financial
Statements, we are required to estimate our income taxes for each of
the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves estimating
our actual curent tax exposure together with assessing temporary
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differences resulting from differing treatment of items, such as
depreciation, for tax and accounting purposes. These differances result
in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included within our
Consolidated Balance Sheet. We must also assess the likelihood that
our deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income
and, to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we must
establish a valuation allowance, which is offset by an adjusiment to
income tax expense in the income statement. The interpretation of
tax laws involves uncertainty, since tax authorities may interaret them
differently. As of January 1, 2007, we adopted the provisions of

FASB Intevpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes—an Interpretation of FAS 109.” As allowed under Interpretation
No. 48, Integrys Energy Group elected to change its msthod of
accaunting te record interest and penalties paid on income tax
ohligations as a component of income tax expense.

Significant management judgment is required in determining our
provision for income taxes, our defemed tax assets and liabilities, and
any valuation allowance recorded against our deferred tax assets, The
assumptions involved are supported by historical data, reasonable
projections, and technical interpretations of applicable tax law and
regulation across multiple taxing jurisdictions, Significant changes in
these assumptions could have a material impact on Integrys Energy
Group's financial condition and results of operatians.

ImPact of Inflation

Our tinancial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
report operating results in terms of historic cost. The statements
provide & reasonable, objective, and quantifiable statement of financial
results, but they do not evaluate the impact of inflation. For our
regulated operations, to the extent we are not recovering the effects

of inflation, we will file rate cases as necessary in the various jurisdictions.
Our nonregulated businesses include inflation in forecasted costs.
However, any increase from inflation is offset with projected business
growth. Therefore, the estimated effect of inflation on our nonregulated
businesses is minor.




Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended December 31 (Millions, except per share data) 2006 2005
Noenregulated revenue $5,106.7 $5,301.3
Uity revenue 1,734.0 1.524.2
Total revenues 6,890.7 6,825.5
Nonregulated cost of Juel, natural gas, and purchased power 494689 51395
Litility cost of fuel, natural gas, and purchased power 1,006.1 801.2
Operating and maintenance expense 4343 5259
Depredation, amaortization, and decommissioning expense 1213 149.7
Taxes other than income taxes 50.9 50.3
Operating income 249.2 158.9
Miscellaneous income 428 88.8
Intarest expenss 99.2) 62.00
Minority interest 3.8 4.5
DOther {expense) income B2.6) 31.3
Income before taxes 196.6 190.2
Provision for income taxes 45.0 3.6
Income from continuing aperations 151.6 150.6
Discontinued nperations, net of tax 73 1.5
Income before ewrnulitive effect of change in accounting princlple 158.5 162.1
Cumulative effect of change in aceounting principle, net of tax - (1.6
Income before preferred stock dividends of subsidiary 158.9 160.5
Preferred stock dividerds of subsidiary 31 3
Income available for common shareholders $ 1558 $ 1574
Average shares of common stock
Basic 42.3 38.3
Ciluted 42.4 38.7
Earnings (loss) par common share (basic)
Income fram continuing operatians $3.51 $3.85
Discontinued aperations, net of tax $0a7 $0.30
Cumulative effect of change in aceounting principle, net of tax - (0.04)
Earnings per commen snare {basic) $3.68 5411
Earnings (foss) per common share {diluted)
Income fram continuing operations $3.50 387
Discontinued opara‘!ions, net of tax $0.17 30,30
Curnulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax - 0.04)
Eamings per commean share (diluted) $3.67 $4.07
Dividends per comman share $2.28 $2.24

The accompanying notes to Integrys Energy Group's consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consoclidated Balance Sheets

At December 31 (Millions)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable - net of reserves of $51.3 and $17.0, respectively
Accrued unkilled revenues

Inventories

Assets from fisk management activities
Regulatory assets

Assats held for sale

Cther current assets

Current assets

Property, plant, and ecuiprnent, net
Regulatary assets

Agsets from risk management activities
Goadwill

Pensicn assets

COther

Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Short-terrm debt

Current portion of long-term detzi 4
Accounts payable :
Liabilities from risk management activities

Regulatory liabilities

Deferred income taxes

Other current liabilities

Current Kabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxes

Deforred investment lax creclits

Regulatory liabilities

Environmental remediation liabilities

Pension and postretirement benefit obligations

Liabilities fram risk management activities S
Agset retirernent obligations s
Other

Long-term Habilities

Commitments and contingancies

Preferred stock of subsidiary with no mandatory redemption
Cammon stock equity
Total fiabilities and shareholders’ equity

The accompanying notes to Integrys Energy Group’s consolidated! financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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2004

$ 232
220
10373
184.8
156.3
1,068.4
87

6.1
120.4

25274

25348
430.1
308.2
303.9

357.3

$6,861.7

$ 7228
265
949.4
1,007
224

3t
160.1

259064

1.287.2
976
13.6

3.7
95.8
188.6
2647
10.1
111.3

2,370.6

51.1
1,533.6

$6,861.7




Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders’ Equity

Employee Stock
Plan Guarantees Accumulated
and Deferrad Capital in Other
Comprehensive Compensation Common Excess of Retained Treasury Comprehensive
Millions) Income Total Trust Stock  ParValue Earnings  Stock Income (Loss)
Balance at Dacember 31, 2004 $ - $1.001.8 $ (84 $375 § 5821 £497.0 $(0.3) $(18.1
Incame available for common shareholders 1574 1574 - - - 157.4 - -
Other comprehensive income — cash flow hedges
(et of tax of $7.%) 2.1 (12.1} - - - - - {12.1)

Other comprehensive income — minimum pension

liability (net of tax of $11.4} 171 17.1 - - - - - 17.1
Other comprehensive income - avaifable for sale

sacurities (net of tax of $0.4) 0.6 aé - - - - - 0.6
Cther comprehensive income — currency translation

(et of 1ax of $0.1) A

Comprehensive incame 163.

01 - - - - - 0.1

Issuance of common stock 1273 - 25 124.8 - - -
Dividends on comrnon stock - {85.4) - - - 85.4) - -
Other - 74 {2.5) 0.1 10.1 0.3) - -
Balance at December 31, 2005 $ - $1,304.2 $010.9) $401 § 7170 $5687 $0.3) $(10.4)
Income available for common sharehclders 155.8 155.8 - - - 155.8 - -
Other comprehensive income — cash flow hedges

(et of tax of $0.4) 10.6) 0.8 - - - - - 08
Other comprehensive income = minimum pension

liability (net of tax of $1.6) 24 24 - - - - - 24
Ohher comprehensive incorne — avaitable for sale

securities (net of tax of $0.2! 0.4) 0.4 - - - - - 04
Other eomprehensive income — currency translation

(net of tax of 50.2) 0.3 0.3} - - - - - (.3)
Comprehensive incorne 156.9 - - - - - - -
Issuance of commen stack - 144.6 - 332 161.4 - - -
Dividends an common stock. - {96.0) - - - (26.0) - -~
Adjustments to initially apply SFAS No. 158

(net of tax of $2.9) - {4.5) - - - - - 4.5)
Other = 8.4 2.3) 0.1 10.9 0.3) - =
Balance at December 31, 2006 $1.533.6

Incoma availabie for common shareholders

Other comprehensive income — cash flow hedge
(net of taxes of §3.1)

Other comprebensive income — SFAS No. 158

unrecognized costs (het of taxes of $3.0) 3.8 3.8 - - - - - 3B
Cther comprehensive income — available for sale
securities {net of taxes of $0.2 0.4 04 - - - - - o4

Orther camprehensive Income — foreign curreney

translation (net of taxes of $2.2) _3s a6 - - - - - 36
Comprehensive income 264.0 - - - - - - -
lssuance of common stock - 456 - 1.4 445 - - -
Peoples Energy merger - 1,559.3 - 319 15274 - - -
Stock-based compensation - 87 - - 8.7 - - -
Dividends on common stock - {177.0) - - - (177.0} - -
Qther - 1.6 {1.5) - 3.9 ©.5) - 02}
Balance at December 31, 2007 $ -~ $3,235.8 %14.7} $76.4 $24738 S701% $(0.3) $ (1.3}

The accompanying notes to |ntegtys Energy Group's consofidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Year Ended Dacember 31 (Milflons) 2006 2005
Dperating Activitios
Income before prefemed stack dividends of subsidiary $ 1589 $160.5
Adjustments to recendle net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Discontinued operations, net of tax 7.3} (11.5
Depreciation, amartization, and decommissioning expense 1213 1497
Racovery (deferral) of Kewaunee cutage expenses 25 49.2)
Refund of non-qualified decommissioning trust 545 -
Deferal of Weston 3 outage expenses - -
Recoveries and refunds of other regulatory assets and liabilities 57 16
Amortization of nonregulated customer contract intangibles - -
Realized gain on investrnents held in trust, net of regulatory deferral - 5.7
Unrealized (gains) losses on nonregulated enengy contracts 73 392
Pgnsion and postretirement expense 514 505
Pension and postretirement funding 432 (28.4)
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credit 124 9.0
Gains due to settlement of contracts pursuant to the merger with PEC - -
Gain on sale of interest in Guardian Pipeline, LLC (62) -
Gain on sale of WPS ES| Gas Storage, LLC %9 -
Gain on sale of partial interest in synthetic fuel operation (6.4 7.1
{Gain) Loss on sale of property, plant, and equipment 1.3 5.5
Ecuity incame, net of dividends 144 108
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principles, net of tax - 1.6
Other 25.2 (357
Changes in working capital
Receivables, net o 499.8)
Inventories {X06.5) 1129
Other current assets (32.4) {19.9)
Accounts payable 75 4873
Cther current liabilities 333 25.4
Net cash provided by operating activities 729 7.4
Investing Activities )
Capital expenditures (342.0} 413.9)
Praceeds from the sale of property, plant, and equipment 4.5 120
Purchase of equity investments and other acquisitions 0.1 (82.6)
Proceeds frorn the sale of interest in Guardian Pipaline, LLC 385 -
Proceeds from tha =ale of WPS ESI Gas Storage, LLC 19.9 -
Proceeds from the sale of Kewaunee power plant - 112.5
Proceeck from thae sale of partial interest in Weston 4 power plant - 95.1
Cash paid for transaction costs related to PEC merger {5.3) -
Proceeds from liguidation of non-qualified decommissioning trust - 127.1
Purchases of nuclear decommissioning trust investments - (18.8)
Sales of nuclear decommissioning trust investments - 18.4
Acqisition of netural gas operations in Michigan and Minnesota, net of liabilities assumed (659.3) -
Restricted cash for repayment of long-term debt (22.0) -
Transrnission interconnection (11.8) 63
Other 75 73
Net cash used for investing activitiss [1,030.1) (148.8)
Financing Activities
Short-term delot, net 4580 25.0)
Gas loans, net 63.4) (£}
Issuance of long-tern ckebt 447.0 -
Repayment of long-term delbt 4.00 3.4
Payment of dividends
Preferred stock (3.1) (3.0
Common stock 54.0) (85.4)
Issuance of common stock 164.6 127.3
' Other {6.4) {3.3)
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities 8917 -
Change in cash and cash equivalents - continuing oparations 65.5) .4
Change in cash and cash equivalents — discontinued operations
Met cash [used for) provided by operating activities 419 (15.0)
Net cash provided by investing activities 19.1 74.9
Net cash used for financing activities - 0.8)
Change in cash and cash gquivakents {4.5) (12.3)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 27.7 40.0
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year § 232 $ 27.7

The accompanying notes 1o Integrys Energy Group’s consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{a) Nature of Operations—integrys Energy Group is a holding
company whose primary wholly owned subsidiaries at December 31,
2007, include Wisconsin Public Service Corperation (WPSC), Upper
Peninsula Power Company (UPPCQ), Michigan Gas Utilities Corporation
(MGUC), Minnesota Energy Resources Carporation (MERC), The Peoples
Gas Light and Coke Company {PGL), North Shore Gas Company (NSG),
and Integrys Energy Services. Of these subsidiaries, six subsidiaries are
regulated electric and/or natral gas utilities and one subsidiary, Intagrys
Energy Senvicas, is a nonrequlated energy supply and services company,
Far more information about our regulated and nonregulated segments,
see Note 24, “Segments of Business.”

The term “utility” refers to the regulated activities of the electric and
natural gas utility segments, while the term “nonutility” refers to the
activities of the electric and natural gas utility segments that are not
regulated. The term “nonregulated” refars to activities at integrys
Energy Services.

The line item on the Consolidated Statements of Income “Income
available for common shareholders,” is net incoms.

{b) Consolidation Basis of Presentation—The Consalidated Financial
Statements include the accounts of Integrys Energy Group and all
majority owned subsidiaries, after eliminating intercompany transactions
and balances, and proportionate shares of jointly owned utility facilities.
if a mincrity owner's equity is reduced to zero, our pelicy is to record
100% of the subsidiary’s losses until the minority owner makes capital
contriburticns or commitments to fund its share of the operating costs.
The cost meathod of accounting is used for investments when Integrys
Energy Group owns less than 20% of the voting equity of the company,
unless other evidence indicates we have significant influence over

the operating and financial policies of the investee. Investments in
businesses not controfled by Integrys Energy Group, but over which we
have significant influence regarding the cperating and financial policies
of the investes, are accounted for using the equity methed. For
additional infermation on oaur equity method investments see Note 10,
“Investments in Affiliates, at Equity Method.”

Mergers and Acquisitions
Effective February 21, 2007, the Peoples Energy Corparation (PEC) .

merger was consummated and the assets and liabilities, results of
operations, and cash flows of PEC were includad in Integrys Energy
Group's Consolidated Financial Statements commencing February 22,
2007. See Note 6, *Acquisitions and Sales of Assets,” for more
information.

The assets and liabilities, results of operations, and cash flows of MGUC
and MERC were included in Integrys Energy Group's Consolidated
Financial Statements effective April 1, and July 1, 2006, respectively.
See Note &, "Acquisitions and Safes of Assets,” for more information.

Dispositions

Peoples Energy Production Cormpany's (PEP) results of operations and
cash flows were recardad as discontinued operations in 2007. The sale
of PEP was completed on September 28, 2007. Refer to Note 4,
“Discontinued Operations,” for more information.

For all penods presented, certain assets and liabilities of Sunbury and
Niagara have been reclassified as held for sale and Sunbury’s and
Niagara's results of operations and cash flows have baen reclassified as
discontinued operations. Refer to Note 4, "Discontinued Operations,”
for more information.
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() Use of Estimates—We prepare our financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We make estimates and assumptions that affect reported
amounts. These estimates and assumptions affect essets, liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and lizbilities at the date of the financial
staternents, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporiing period. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

{c} Cash and Cash Equivalents—We consider short-term investments
with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Thae following is supplemental disclosurs to the Integrys Energy Group
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows:

(Miflions)

Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes

2005

$59.6
50.4

2006

$87.6
37.7

Significant non-cash transactions were as follows:

(Milfions) 2006 2005

Weston 4 construction costs funded
through accounts payable

Equity issued for net assets
acquired in PEC merger

Realized ggin on settlement of
contracts due to PEC merger

PEP pest-closing adjustrnents funded
through ather current liabilities

Transaction costs refated 1o the
merger with Peoples Energy
funded through other
current liabilities

$320 $337

8.1 -

(e) Revenue and Customer Receivables—Revenues are recognized
on the accrual basis and include estimated armounts for electric and
natural gas services rendered but not billed. Currently there are no
customers or industries that account for more than 10% of Integrys
Energy Group's revenues.

Integrys Energy Group's regulated electric utility segment operations
use automatic fuel and purchased power adjustment clauses for the
retail electric portions of their business in Michigan and also far their
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) wholesale electric
business. There is a portion of Integrys Energy Group's who'esale
slectric business that limits cost recavery to no greater than the two-year
average rate charged o large industrial retail customers for that same
period. The Wisconsin retail electric portion of Integrys Energy Group's
business uses a “cost variance range” approach, based on a specific
estimated fuel and purchased power cost for the forecast year. If the
actual fuel and purchased power costs fall outside this range, the Public
Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) can authorize an adjustment
1o future rates. Decreases to rates can be implernented without &
hearing, unless requested by Integrys Energy Group, PSCW stzff, or
interveners, while increases to rates are generally subject to a hearing.

Billings to Integrys Energy Group's retail elactric customers under the
Michigan Public Service Commission's (MPSC) junisdiction include base rate
charges and a power supply cost recovery factor Power supply cost recovery
factors are established annually to recover projected power supply costs
approved by the MPSC. The MPSC recenciles these factors to actual costs
annually and permits 100% recovery of allowed power supply costs. Integrys
Energy Group recogrnizes any aver or undar recovery currently in its revenues,
and the regulatory asset or liability is recognized on the balance sheet until
settlernent. The deferrals are relieved with additional billings or refunds.




Integrys Energy Group's regufated natural gas utility segment operations
are approved to use one-for-one natural gas cost recovery plans for all
prudently incurred natural gas costs. These plans allow Integrys Energy
Group to pass changes in the cost of natural gas on to system natural
gas custorners, subjact to regulatory review for reasonableness,

All of Integrys Energy Group's utility subsidiaries are required to provide
service and grant credit to customers within thair service tamitories.

The companies continually review their customers’ credit-worthiness
and obstain or refund deposits accordingly. The utilities are generally
precluded from discontinuing service to residential customers during
winter moratoriurm months,

Far Integrys Energy Services’ merchant electric generation plants,
electric power revenues related tc fixed-price contracts are recognized
at the lower of amounts billable under the contract or 2n amount equal
to the volume of the capacity made available or the energy deliversd
during the period multiplied by the estimated average revenue per
kilowatt-hour per the terms of the contract. Under fioating-price
contracts, electric power revenues are recognized when capacity is
provided or enargy is delivered.

For its nonragulated business of supplying energy, management, and
consulting services to retail and wholessle customers, Integrys Energy
Services accrues revenues in the month that energy is delivered and/or
sarvices are rendered. Revenues related to derivative instruments
classified as trading are reported net of related cost of sales for all
periods presented.

) Inventories—inventories consist of natural gas in storage, liquid
propane, and fossil fuels, including coal, Average cost is used to value
fossil fuels, liquid propane, and natural gas in storage for our regulated
segments, excluding PGL and NSG. PGL and N5G price natural gas
storage injections at the calendar year average of the costs of natural
gas supply purchased. Withdrawals from storage are priced on the
last-in, first-out (LIFC) cost method. Inventories stated on a LIFO

basis represent approximately 14% of total inventaries at Dacember 31,
2007. The estimated replacement cost of natural gas in inventory at
Decernber 31, 2007, exceadad the LIFQ cost by approximately

$3204.4 million. Inventories at Integrys Energy Services are valued at

the lower of cost or market unless hedged pursuant to a fair value
hedge, in which case changes in the fair value of inventory subsequent
1o the hedge designation are recorded directly to inventory,

{g) Risk Management Activities—As part of our reqular operations,
Integrys Energy Group enters into contracts, including options, swaps,
futures, forwards, and other contractual commitments, to manage
market risks such as changes in commodity prices and interest rates.

Integrys Energy Group accounts for derivative instruments pursuant

to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133,
*Accounting for Detivatives Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as
amended and interpreted. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 133, all
derivatives are recognized on the batance shest at their fair value
except for certain derivatives that qualify for the normal purchases and
sates exception. Subsaquent changes in fair value of the derivatives are
recorded currently in earnings unless certain hedge accounting criteria
are met, If the derivatives qualify for regulatory deferral subject to the
provisions of SFAS No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types
of Regulation,” they are marked ta fair value pursuant to $FAS Ne. 133
and are offset with a comesponding regulatory asset or liability.

Integrys Energy Group classifies mark-to-market gains and losses on

derivative instruments not qualifying for hedge accounting or regulatery
deferral as a component of revenues.
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th) Emission Aflowances—Iniegrys Energy Services accounts for
emission allowances as an intangible asset, with cash inflows and
outflows reiated to purchases and sales of emission allowances
recorded as investing activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows. Integrys Enargy Services uses the guidance in SFAS No. 144,
*#ccounting for the Impairment and Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,”
to test allowances for impairment. The utilities account for allowances
as inventory at average cost by vintage year. Emission allowances
granted to WRSC are recorded at zero cost. Charges to income result
when allowances are utilized in operating the utilities’ generation plants.
Gains on sale of allowances are generally returned to ratepayers.

{iy Property, Plant, and Equipment—Utility plant is stated at the
original cost of construction including an allowance for funds used
during construction. The costs of renewals and betterments of units of
property {as distinguished from minor items of property) are capitalized
as additions to the utility plant accounts. Except for land, no gain or loss
is recognized in connection with ordinary retiraments of utility property
units. Maintenance, repair, replacement, and renewal costs associated
with items not qualifying as units of property are considered operating
expenses. PGL and NSG charge the cost of units of property retired,
sold, or otherwise disposed of to the accumulated provision for
depreciation and record the cost of removal, less salvage value,
assaciated with the retirement to depreciation expense, The other
utilities charge the cost of units of property retired, sold, or otherwise
disposed of, less salvage value, to the accumulated provision for
depreciation and initially record a regulatory liability for remeval costs
and charge the costs against the liability as incurred.

Integrys Enargy Group records straight-line depreciation expense over
the estimated useful life of utility property. The PSCW approved
depreciation rates for WPSC effective January 1, 2005. Dapreciation
rates for UPPCO were approved by the MPSC effective January 1, 2002,
Depreciation rates for MGUC and MERC were approved by the MPSC
and Minnesota Public Utility Cemmission (MPUC) effective April 1, 2006,
and July 1, 2006, respectively. In April 2005, the lllinois Commerce
Commmission (ICC) approved depreciation rates for PGL and NSG.
Annual utility composite depreciation rates are shown below.

Annual Utility Compasite

Depreciation Rates 2005
WPSC - Electric 3.65%
WPSC — Matural Gas 3.61%
UPPCO 2.85%
MGUC

MERC -
PGL -
NSG -

U Compuosite depreciation rate for 9 months of tha year
2 Composite depreciation rate for § months of the year.
% Composite depreciatian rate from February 22, 2007, thraugh the end of 2007.

Interest capitalization is applied to nonutility property during construction,
and gain and loss recognition occurs in connsction with retirements.
Currently, nonutility property at the regulated utilities consists primarily
of land.

Nonregulated plant ig stated at cost, which includes capitalized interest,
or estimated fair value at the time of acquisition. The costs of renewals,
betterments, and major overhauls are capitalized as additions to plant.
The gains or losses associated with ordinary retirements are recorded in
the period of retirement. Maintenance, repair, and minor replacerment
costs are expensed as incurred.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Mast of the nonregulated subsidiaries compute depreciation using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Structures and improvements 15 1o 40 years
Office and plant equipment 5 to 40 years
Office fumiture and fixtures 3 to 10 years
Vehicles 5 years
Computer equipment 3 to 8 years

Shorter of; life of the
lease or life of the assst

Leasehold improvements

The nonregulated Combined Locks Energy Center uses the units of
production depreciation method for selected components of equipment
having defined lives stated in terms of hours of production.

Integrys Energy Group capitalizes certain costs related to software
developed or obtained for internal use and amortizes those costs to
operating expense over the estimated useful life of the related software,
which ranges from 3 to 15 years.

{} Capitalized Interest and Allowance for Funds Used During
Construction—Cur nonregulatad subsidiaries capitalize interest for
construction projects, while our utilities capitalize the cost of funds used
for construction using a calculation that includes both intemal (equity)
and external {debt) components, as required by regulatory accounting.

Approximately 50% of WPSC's retail jurisdictional construction in progress
expenditures are subject to the allowance for funds used during
construction (AFUDC) caleulation, except on specific projects approved
by the PSCW. For 2007, WPSC's AFUDC retail rate was 8.61%. Carrying
costs related to Weston 4 are currently being recovered in rates.
WPSC's construction in progress AFUDC debt and equity percentage
formula for the wholesale jurisdiction is specified in the FERC's Uniform
Systern of Accounts. The 2007 average AFUDC wholesals rate was
8.54%. WPSC's allowance for equity funds used during construction for
2007, 2006, and 2005 was $0.9 million, $0.6 million, and $1.5 millian,
respactively. WPSC's allowance for borrowed funds used during
construction for 2007, 2006, and 2005 was $0.3 million, $0.2 million,
and $0.4 million, respectively.

The AFUDC calculation for the other utilities is determined by the
respective state commissions, each with specific requiremnents. Based
on those requirements, the other utilities did not record AFUDC far
2007, 2006, ar 2005.

Our nonregulated subsidiaries calculate capitalized interest on long-temm
construction. The interest rate capitalized is based upon the monthly
short-term borrowing rate Integrys Energy Group incurs for such funds.
The amount of interest capitalized during 2007, 2006, and 2C05 was
not significant.

(k) Regulatory Assets and Liabilities—The regulated electnc and
natural gas utility segments are subject 1o the provisions of SFAS No. 71.
Regulatory assets represent probable future revenue associated with
certain incurred costs that will be recovered from customers through the
ratemaking process. Regulatory liabilities represent amounts that are
refundable in future customer rates. Based an a current evaluation of
the various factors and conditions that are expected to impact future
cost recovery, we believe that future recovery of our regulatory assets is
probable, If at any reporting date a previously recorded regulatory asset
is ne longer probable of recovery, the regulatery asset is reduced 1o the
arnount considered probable of recovery with the reduction charged to
expense in the year the determination is made.

) Asset Impairment—We raview the recoverability of long-lived
tangible and intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No. 144, This
Statement requires review of assets when circumstances indicate that

the carrying amaunt may not be recoverable. The carrying amount of
assets held and used is not recoverable if it exceeds the undiscountad
surn of cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual
disposition of the asset. If the carrying value is not recoverable, the
impairment |oss is measured as the excess of the asset’s carrying value
aver its fair value. The carrying value of assets held for sale is not
racoverable if it exceeds the fair value less cost to sell the asset. An
impairment charge is recorded for any excess of the carrying value over
the fair value less cost to sell. If events or circumstances indicate the
carying value of investments accounted for under the equity method of
accounting may not be recaverable, potential impairment is assessed
by comparing the fair value of these investments to their carrying values
as well as assessing if a decline in fair value is temporary. If an impairment
s indicated, a charge is recognized equal to the amount the carrying
value exceeds the investment’s fair vaiue, Impairment charges are
recorded if the camying value of such assets exceed the future anticipated
cash flows. See Note 4, “Discontinued Operations,” for information
related to the impairment charge recorded at Sunbury in 2005,

{m) Goodwill and Cther intangible Assets—in accordance with

SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” goodwill and
other intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized, but are
subject to annual impairment tests. The regulated electric and natural gas
utifity segments perform their impairment test during the second quarter
of each year, while Integrys Energy Services performs its impairment test
annually during the third quarter. The intangikle asset impairment tests
are updated whenaver events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the assets might be impaired. Based upon the results of testing, no
irmpairments were noted in 2007, 2004, or 2005.

Other intangible assets with definite lives consist primarily of emission
allowances, customer related intangible assets, and customer contract
assets and liabilities. For more information on Integrys Energy Group's
intangible assets, see Note 11, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

{n} Retirement of Debt—FPremiums, discounts, and expenses incurred
with the issuance of outstanding long-term debt are amortized over the
terms of the debst issues. Any call premiums or unamortized expenses
associated with refinancing higher-cost debt obligations used to finance
regulated assets and operations are defined and emortized consistent
with regulatory treatment of those items.

(o) Asset Retirement Obligations—Integrys Energy Group applies
SEAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” and
intarpratation No. 47, "Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Qbligations.” Under these accounting standards, Integrys Energy Group
reccgnizes, at fair value, legal obligations associated with the retirement
of tangible long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, censtruction
or development, and/or normal operation of the assets. A liability is
recerdad for these cbligations as long as the fair value can be
reasonably estimated, even if the timing or methed of setiling the
obligation is unknown. The asset retirement obligations are accreted
using a credit-adjusted risk-free interast rate commensurate with the
expected settlement dates of the asset retirement obligations. The
assaciated retirement costs are capitalized as part of the related long-
lived assets and are cepreciated over the useful lives of the assets.

(p) Income Taxes—\We account for income taxes using the liability
method as prescribed by S5FAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes.” Under this method, deferred income taxes have been recorded
using currently enacted tax rates for the differences between the tax
basis of assets and liabilities and the basis regorted in the financial
statements. Our regulated utilities are allowed to defer certain
adjustments made to income taxes and record regulatory assets or
lizbilities related to these adjustments.



Integrys Energy Group adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB} Interpretation No. 48, *Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an Interpretation of FAS 109," on
January 1, 2007. As a result of the implementation of Interpretation
No. 48, Integrys Energy Group recognized a $0.1 million decrease in
the liability for unracagnized tax benefits, which was accounted for as
an increase in the January 1, 2007, balance of retained earnings.

Investment tax credits, which have been used to reduce our federal
income taxes payable, have been defarred for financial reporting
purposes. These deferred investment tax credits are being amortized
over the useful lives of the property to which they relate.

Integrys Energy Group files a consolidated United States income tax
return that includes domestic subsidiaries of which its ownarship is
80% or more. Integrys Energy Group and its consolidated subsidiaries
are parties to a tax allocation arrangement under which each antity
determines its income tax provision on a stand-alone basis. In several
states, combined or consolidated filing is required for certain members
of integrys Energy Group doing business in that state. The tax
allocation arrangement equitably allocates the state taxes associated
with these combined or consolidated filings.

(q) Taxes Other Than Income—integrys Energy Group presents revenug
net of pass-through taxes on the Consolideted Siatements of Income.

(r) Guarantees—Integrys Energy Group applies Interpretation No. 45,
"Quarantor's Acoounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees
Including Inclirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” which requires
that the guarantar recognize, at the inception of the guarantee, a
liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the
guarantge. See Note 18, "Guarantees,” for additional information on
interpretation No. 45,

() Stock-Based Employse Compensation—Integrys Energy Group
has stock-based employee compensation plans, which are described
more fully in Note 22, “Stock-Based Compensation.” Prior to January 1,
2C06, Integrys Energy Group accounted for these plans under the
recognition and measurement provisions of Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employses.”
Accordingly, Integrys Energy Group provided pro forma disclosure
amounts in accordance with SFAS No. 148, *Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure,” as if the fair value
method defined by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” had been applied.

The following table illustrates the effect on 2005 income available for
commen shareholders and eamings per share if Integrys Energy Group
had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS Ne. 123:

{Millions, except per share amounts) 2005
Income available for commen shareholders
As reported $157.4
Add: Stock-based compensation expense

using the intrinsic value method ~ net of tax 20
Deduct: Stock-based compensation expense

using the fair value method - net of tax (1.9)
Pro forma $157.5
Basic earnings per common share

As reparted $4N

Pro forma an
Diluted eamings per commeon share

As reported $4.07

Pra forma 4.07

Moving Forward

Effective January 1, 2006, Integrys Energy Group adopted the fair value
recagnition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” using
the modified prospective transition method. Under this transition method,
prior periods’ results are not restated. Stock-based compensation cost for
2006 included compensation cost for all stock-based compensation
awards grantad prior to, but not vet fully vested as of January 1, 2008,
based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the
original provisions of SFAS No. 123, adjusted for estimated future
forfeitures. The fair values of stock-based compensation awards granted
after January 1, 2006, were estimated in accordance with the provisions
of SFAS No. 123(R). There was no material cumulative effect of a change
in accounting prindple recorded upan adoption of SFEAS No. 123(R). The
implementatian of SFAS No. 123(R) did not have a material impact on
cash flows from operations and cash flows from financing activities.

{t) Cumulative Effect of Change In Accounting Principles—The
adoption of Interpratation Mo, 47 on December 321, 2005, resulted

in a $1.6 million aftertax cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, decreasing income available for common shareholders,
retated to recording a liability for asbestos remediation at certain of
Integrys Energy Services’ generation plants. Approximately $1.4 million
of the after-tax cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
recorded in 2005 related to Sunbury. For more information on Sunbury,
see Note 4, "Discontinued Qperations.” For the utility segments of
Integrys Energy Group, we concluded it was probable that any
differences between expenses under imterpretation No. 47 and
expenses currently recovered through customer rates will be
recaverable or refundable in future customer rates. Accordingly, the
adoption of Interpretation No. 47 had no impact on the utility
segments’ income, as its effect is offset by the establishment of
requlatory assets or liabilities pursuant to SFAS No. 71.

() Reclassifications—We reclassified certain prior year financial
statement amounts ta canform to the current year presentation,
Significant reclassifications are as follows.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Customers electing a budget payment plan had a ¢redit balance of
$49.2 million at December 31, 2004, Since this balance is subject to
change based upon the amount of future billings, this balance was
raclassified from accounts payable to other current liabilities to conform
to the December 31, 2007, presentation.

Consolidated Statements of Income

For the year ended December 31, 2006, and 2005, $16.5 millien and
$9.1 million, respectively, of software and intangible asset amortization
expense was reclassified from operating and maintenance expense io
depreciation and amortizaticn expense to conform to the presentation
for the year ended December 31, 2007,

Consofidated Staternent of Cash Flows

The reclassifications discussed above were also reflected as
reclassifications in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for

the year ended December 31, 2006, and 2005. These reclassifications
had no impact on total operating, investing, or financing activities.

{v} New Accounting Pronouncements—|n September 2006, the
FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” which defines
fair value, establishes new criteria to be considered when measuring
fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair value measurements.
Integrys Energy Group applies fair value measurements to certain
assets and liabilities, prirmarily derivative instruments, available-for-sale
securities, deferred compensation: habilities, financial instruments
required to be disclosed at fair value under SFAS No.107, "Fair Value
of Financial Instruments,” and long-lived assets evaluated for
impairments. SFAS No. 157 is effective for Integrys Energy Group on
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January 1, 2008, for financial assets and liabilities and January 1, 2009,
fer nenfinancial assets and liabilities.

SFAS No. 157 nuliified a portion of Emerging Issues Task Force

Issue No. 02-3, “Issues Involved in Accounting for Derivative Contracts
Held for Trading Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading
and Risk Management Activities.” Under Issue No. 02-3, inceptian
gains or losses were deferred unless the fair value of the derivative
was substantially based on quoted prices or other current market
transactions. However, SFAS No. 157 provides a framework to consider,
in evaluating a transaction, whether a transaction represents fair value
at initial recognition. Integrys Energy Services expects to recognize a
pre-tax cumulative effect increase to retained eamings of $4.5 million
on January 1, 2008.

SFAS No. 157 requires that a fair value measurement reflect the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability
based on the best available information. These assumptions include the
risks inherent in a particular valuation technique {such as a pricing
modlel) and the risks inherent in the inputs 1o the model. SFAS No. 157
also requires that we consider our own credit profile in valuing liabilities
and specifies that transaction costs should net be considered in the
determinaticn of fair value. On January 1, 2008, Integrys Energy Group
expects 1o recognize an increase to operating income of $0.5 million as
a result of considering its own credit profile in the measurement of
certain liabilities at fair value, and an increase of $11.0 million due to
the exclusion of transaction costs from Integrys Energy Services’ fair
valug estimates.

In February 2007, the FASE issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.” This standard
permits entities to choose 1o measure many financial instruments and
certain other iterns at fair value, following the provisions of SFAS

Mo. 157. SFAS Mo, 159 is effective for Integrys Energy Group beginning
January 1, 2008. We have chosen not to elect the fair value optien for
any of our financial assets and liabilities.

In Decerber 2007, the FASE issued SFAS Ne. 141(R), “Business
Combinations.” SFAS No. 141(R} provides greater consistency in the
accounting and financial reporting of business combinations. SFAS

No. 141(R) requires the acquiring entity in a business combination to
recognize all assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction
and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date,
measured at the fair value as of that date. This includes the measuremeant
of the acquirers shares issued as consideration in a business combination,
the recognition of contingent consideration, the aczounting for pre-
acquisition gain and loss contingencies, the recognition of capitalized
in-process research and developmaent, the accounting for acquisition-
related restructuring cost aceruals, the treatment of acquisitionrelated
transaction costs, and the recognition of changes in the acquirer’s
income tax valuation allowance and deferred taxes. This statement also
establishes disclosure requirements to enable the evaluation of the
nature and financial effect of the business combination. 5FAS No. 141(R)
is effective for business combinations consurmmated after January 1,
2009. Also effective January 1, 2009, any acjustments to uncertain tax
positions from business combinations consurmmated pricr to January 1,
2009, will no longer be recorded as an adjustment to goadwill, but will
be reported in income.

NOTE 2—FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The foltowing metheds and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of each class of financial instrument for which it is practicable to
estimate such value:

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, notes payable, and outstanding commercial paper:
The carrying amount approximates fair value due to the short maturity
of these investments and cbligations.

Long-term debt and preferred stock: The fair values of long-term debt
and prefemed stock are estimated based on the quoted market price for
the same or similar issues or on the current rates offered to Integrys
Energy Group for debt of the same remaining maturity.

Risk management assets—net: Assets and liabilities from risk managemervt
activities are recorded at fair value in accordance with SFAS No. 133,

The estimated fair values of our financial instruments as of
December 31 were:

2006
i Carrying Fair

{Millions) g Amount Value

Cash and cash equivalents o $ 232 $ 232
Restricted cash s 220 20
Accounts receivable -~ net 1,037.3 1.037.3
Accounts payable 949.4 245 4
Notes payable 160.0 160.0
Commercial paper 562.8 562.3
Long-term debt 1,313.7 1,323
Preferred stock 511 488
Risk managemenit assets — net 110.2 1104




NOTE 3—RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

The following table shows Integrys Energy Group's assets and liabilities from risk management activities as cf Dacember 31, 2007, and 2006:

(Miflions}

ilities

Utility Segments
Comracgdity contracts
Financial transmission rights
Cash flow hedges — cornmodity contracts
Nonregulated Segments
Commadity and foreign currency contracts
Fair value hedges
Commadity contracts
Interest rate swaps
Cash flow hedges
Commodity contracts
Interast rate swaps

Total

$1,266.4

Balance Sheet Presentation
Current
Long-term

$1,001.7
308.2 264.7

Total

$1,376.8

Assets and liabilities from risk management activities zre classified as
curent or long-term based upon the matunities of the underlying contracts.

Utility Segments

Derivative instruments at the utilities are entered into in accordance
with the terms of the risk management policies approved by Integrys
Energy Group’s Board of Directors and, if applicable, by the respective
regulators. For most energy-related physical and financial derivatives in
our regulated operations, our regulators allow the effects of mark-to-
market accounting to be deferred as regulatory assets and liabilities.
Management believes any gains or losses resulting from the eventual
settlement of these derivative instruments will be collected from or
refunded to customers.

The derivatives listed in the above table as "commadity contracts”
include a limited number of electric and natural gas purchase contracts
as well as financial derivative contracts (New York Mercantile Exchange
[NYMEX] futures and options) used by both the electric and natural gas
utility segments to mitigate the risk associated with market price
volatility of natural gas. The alectric utility segment also uses financial
instruments to manage transmission congestion costs, which are shown
in the above table as "financial transmission rights.”

Additionally, PGL uses derivatives to hedge changes in the price of natural
gas used to support operations. These instruments are designated as cash
flow hedges, which allow for the effective portion of the unrealized change
in value during the life of the hedge to be recorded in comprehensive
income, net of taxes. Commodity contracts that are designated as

cash flow hedges extend through February 2009. Cash flow hedge
ineffectiveness recorded in operating and maintenance expense on

the Consolidated Statements of Income related to these commodity
contracts was insignificant for the year ended December 31, 2007. When
testing for effectiveness, no portien of the derivative instruments was
excluded. Amounts recorded in other comprehensive income related to
these cash flow hedges will be recognized in earnings as the hedged
transactions occur or if it becomeas probable that the hedgad transaction
will not oceur. The amount to be recognized in earnings over the next

12 months as the hedged transactions cccur is insignificant.

Nonregulated Segments
The derivatives in the nonregulated segments not designated as

hedges under generally accepted accounting principles are primarily
commodity contracts used to manage price risk assaciated with natural

:' ™ " a3
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gas and electric energy purchase and sale activities and foreign
currency contracts used to manage foreign currency exposure related
to Integrys Energy Services' Canadian aperatians. In addition, Integrys
Enerqy Services entered into interast rate swaps associated with
long-term storage contracts as well as a series of options covering a
specified number of barrals of oil in order to manage exposure to the
risk of an increase in oil prices. Changes in the fair value of non-hedge
derivatives are recognized curmrently in earnings.

In the second quarter of 2006, Integrys Energy Services began entering
into a limited number of derivative energy contracts with terms that
extand as long as 12 years. Observable market data is not available

for the longer-dated portion (generally periods greater than five years}
(the uncbservable periods) of these contracts and, therefore, Integrys
Energy Services had valued the unobservable periads of thesa contracts
at zero, In the third quarter of 2007, Integrys Energy Services determined
that this approach was inappropriate under generally accepted accounting
principles and began to use internally developed pricing datz to
estimate the fair value of such unobservable periods. The cumulstive
effect related to prior periods was an increase in income from
continuing eperations and incame available for common sharehclders
of $4.6 milllioh, net of taxes. Management has determined that this
amount is not material to prier periods. The determination of fair value
for these derivative contracts is subjective and requires significant
management judgment.

Our nenregulated segments also enter into commodity derivative
contracts that are designated as either fair value or cash flow hedges.
Integrys Energy Services uses fair value hedges to mitigate the risk of
changes in the price of natural gas held in storage. The changes in
the fair value of these hedges are recognized currently in eamings, as
are the changes in fair value of the hedged items. Fair value hedge
ineffectiveness recorded in nonregulated revenue on the Consolidated
Statements of Income was not significant in 2007, Fair value hedge
ineffectiveness recorded in nonregulated revenue on the Consclidated
Statements of Income was a pre-tax gain of $3.7 million in 2006, and
a pre-tax loss of $2.5 million in 2005. Changes in the difference
between the spat and forward prices of natural gas were exduded
from the assessment of hedge effectiveness and reported directly in
nonregulated revenue. During 2007 and 2005, the amounts excluded
were not significant. During 2005, the amount excluded was a pre-tax
loss of $5.2 million.
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Commadity contracts that are designated as cash flow hedges extend
through December 2011, and are used to mitigate the risk of cash

flow variability associated with future purchases and sales of natural
gas and electricity. To the extent they are effective, the changes in the
values of these contracts are included in other comprahensive income,
net of taxes. Cash flow hedge ineffectiveness recorded in nonregulated
revenue on the Consclidated Statements of Income related to
commadity contracts was a pre-tax loss of $4.4 million in 2007, 2
pre-tax gain of $8.¢ million in 2005, and a pre-tax loss of $2.6 million

in 2005. When testing for effectiveness, no portion of the derivative
instruments was excluded. Amounts recorded in other comprehensive
incorne related to these cash flow hedges will be racognized in eamnings
when the hedged transactions affect eamings, which is typically as the

related contracts are settled, or if it is probable that the hedged
transaction will not occur. During 2007, the amount reclassified from other
comprehensive income into earnings as a result of the discontinuance of
cash flow hedge accounting for certain hedge transactions was not
significant. During 2006 and 2005, Integrys Energy Group reclassified
pre-tax gains of $2.1 million, and $5.2 millian, respectively, from other
comprehensive income into earnings as a result of the discontinuance of
cash flow hedge accounting for certain hadge transactions. In the next 12
months, subject to changes in rmarket prices of natural gas end electricity,
Integrys Energy Group expects that a pre-tax gain of $7.4 million will be
recognized in earnings as the hedged transaciions occur. This amount is
expected 1o be substantially offset by the settlement of the refated
nenderivative contracts that are being hedged.

NOTE 4—DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

PEP

In September 2007, Integrys Energy Group completed the sale of PEP, its
oil and natural gas production subsidiary acquired in the merger with PEC,
for $879.1 million. Post-closing adjustments in the amount of $9.9 million
were settled in February 2008 related to this sale, which reduced the
sale price to $849.2 million. These post-closing adjustments were
funded through other current liabilities at December 31, 2007, and,
therefore, are included in Note 1td), " Cash and Cash Equivalents,”

as a non-cash transaction. Including the impact of the post-closing
adjustments, the pre-tax gain recorded was $12.6 million ($7.4 millien
after-tax), and was included as a component of discentinued operations.

A summary of the components of discontinued operations recorded in
the Consolidated Statements of Incore related o PEF was as follows:

(Millicns)

Nonregulated revenue

Operating and maintenance expense
Gain on PEP sale

Taxes other than income

Other expense

Income before taxes

Provision for income taxes

Discontinued operations, net of tax

It is integrys Energy Group's policy to nct allocate interest to
discontinued operations unless the asset group being sold has external
debt obligations. PEP did not have any external debt obligations,

A summary of the companents of discontinued operations recorded in
the Consclidated Stataments of Income related to Niagara for the year
ended December 31 were as follows:

{Miflions}

Nenregulated revenug

Nonregulated cost of fuel, natural
gas, and purchased power

Operating and maintenance expense

Gain on Niagara sale

Depreciation and amortization expense

Taxes other than income

Other income

Income before taxes

Income tax provision

Discontinued operations, net of tax

No interest expense was allocated to discontinuad operations as
Niagarz did not have any external debt obligations.

Sunbury

In July 2006, Integrys Energy Services completed the sale of Sunbury.
Sunbury’s primary asset was the Sunbury generation plant located in
Pennsylvania. The gain recorded in 2006 was $20.2 million pre-tax
(312.5 million after taxes), and was induded as a component of
discontinued operations. This facility sold power on a wholesale basis
when market conditions were economically favorable.

A summiary of the components of discontinued aperations recorded
in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended
December 31 related to Sunbury were as follows:

Niagara
In Jaguary 2007, Integrys Energy Services completed the sale of {Milions) 2006 2005
Niagara for approximately $31 millien. The gain recorded in 2007 was Nonregulated revenue $69.2 31154
$24.8 million pre-tax {$14.7 million after-tax), and was included as & Nonregulated cast of fusl, natural gas, and
compenent of discontinued operations, This facility was a merchant purchased power 61.4 68.7
generation facility and sold power on a wholesale basis when market COperating and maintenance expense 17.9 275
conditions were economically favorable. Gain or Sunbury sale 20.2 -
Deprediation and amortization expense 03 0.2
The major classes of assets held for sale at December 31, 2006, for Gain on sale of emission allewances - (84.8)
Niagara were as follows: Impairment loss - 80.6
Millions) Taxes other than income Q.3 04
Interest expense — {10.4)
Inventories $0.4 Incorne before taxes 9.3 144
Property, plant, and equipment, net 4.6 Income tax provision 2.4 5.3
Other asssts 1.1 Discontinued operations, net of tax $469 § 9.1
Total assats held for sale $6.1




For the year ended December 31, 2005, interest expense of $9.1 million recognition of interest expense on the nan-recourse debt prior to the
was racognized related to the termination of an interest rate swap restructuring of this debt ta an Integrys Energy Group obligation in the
pertaining to Sunbury's non-recourse debt cbligation in addition 1o the second quarter of 2005.

NOTE 5—PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment in service at December 31 consists of the following utility, nonutility, and nonregulated assets:

(Millions)

Electric utility
Natural gas utility ‘
Total utility plant 3,311.3
Less: Accurmnulated depreciation 1,366.2
Net

Construction in progress
MNet utility plant

Menutility plant
Less: Acoumulated depreciation
Net nonutility plant

Electric nanregulated

Natural gas nonregulated

Other nonregulated

Total nonregulated property, plant, and equipment
Less: Accurnulated depredation

Net nonregulated property, plant, and equipment
Total property, plant, and equioment

The increase in the natural gas utility assets in 2007 is due to the marger with FEC. See Note 6, "Acquisitions and Sales of Assets,” for more
information on the merger with PEC. The increase in construction in progress in 2007 is mainly due to the construction of Weston 4, which is
schedu'ed to be placed in service in the first quarter of 2008.

NOTE 6—ACQUISITIONS AND SALES OF ASSETS

Marger with PEC {Millions)
Effective Fabruary 21, 2007, the PEC merger was completed and

WPS Resources Corporation changed its name to Integrys Energy
Group, Inc. The merger was accounted for under the purchase method of
accounting, with Integrys Energy Group treated as the acquirer, In the

Current assets
Assats held for sale (PEP)
Property, plant, and equipment, net

merger, shareholders of PEC received 0.825 shares of Integrys Energy geg'ﬂatj;’lfy assets
Group common stock, 31 par value, for each share of PEC common 0;:3 ";" . "
stock, no par value, which they held immediately prior to the merger. Tstra?:ig;m asse

The total purchase price was approximately $1.6 billion {as shown in the
table below). The results of operations attributable to PEC are included
in the Consolidated Financial Statements from February 22, 2007,
through December 31, 2007.

Current liabilities
Liabilities held for sale {PEF}
Long-term debt
Regulatary liakilities
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets acguired/purchase price

The purchase price was allocated based on the estimated fair market
values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The excess of
the purchase price over the estimated fair values of the tangible net
assets acquired was allocated to identifiable intangible assets, with the
remainder then allocated ta goodwill. The following table shows the
allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities In connection with the merger, Integrys Energy Services recorded a
assumed at the date of the acquisition. non-cash gain related to the deemed settlement of existing natural gas
and electricity contracts between Integrys Energy Services and certain
PEC suksidiaries. Based on forward energy prices existing at the date
of the merger, Integrys Energy Services recognized a $4.0 million gain,
representing the fair value of these natural gas and electricity contracts
at the merger date.

Acquired intangible assets are included in other long-term assets in the
above table. See Note 11, “Goodwill and Other intangible Assets,” Tar
a description of the acquired intangible assets,

Moving Forward
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Goodwill of $644.9 million was recorded in eennection with the merger,
none of which is deductible for tax purposes.

In order to achieve Integrys Energy Group's anticipated merger synergies,
a restructuring plan has been implemented, which includes a process to
eliminate duplicative jobs within Integrys Energy Group. Costs associated
with the merger-related involuntary 1ermination of employees at PEC
{the acquired company) have been recognized as a liability assumed in
the merger and included in the purchase price allocation. The following
table summarizes the activity related to these specific costs for the
pericd February 22, 2007, through December 21, 2007.

{Milions}

Accrued employee severance costs at beginning of period
Adjustments to accrual reflected in purchase price

Cash payments

Severance cost reserve at December 31, 2007

Costs related to the involuntary termination of the acquirer’s employees
are expensed following the guidance of SFAS No. 144, *Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” Costs associated with
the relocation or voluntary termination of employess zre expensed in
accordance with SFAS No. 88, "Employers’ Accounting for Settlernents
and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination
Benefits.” The foliowing tahle summarizes the activity related to

costs incurred under SFAS No, 146 and SFAS No. 88 for the period
Fabruary 22, 2007, through December 31, 2007.

(Millions)

Acerued employee severance costs at beginning of period
Severance expense recorded

Cash payments

Severance cost reserve at December 31, 2007

Purchase of Aquila’s Michigan and Minnesota Natural
Gas Distribution Operations

On April 1, 2006, Integrys Energy Group, through its wholly owned
subsidiary MGLIC, completed the acquisition of natural gas distribution
operations in Michigan from Aquila. On July 1, 2004, Integrys Energy
Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary MERC, completed the
acquisition cf natural gas distribution operations in Minnesota from
Aquila. Integrys Energy Group paid total consideration of $341.7 million
for the Michigan natural gas distribution operations, and $315.7 million
for the Minnasota natural gas distrilbution operations. Both amounts
include closing adjustments related primarily tc purchased working
capital. Both transacticns were accounted for under the purchase
method of accounting.

Supplemental Pro Forma Information

The following takle shows pro forma results of operations for
Integrys Energy Group for the year ended December 31, 2007, as

if the acquisition of PEC had been completed at January 1, 2007, as
well as pro forma results of operations for Integrys Energy Group for
the year ended December 31, 2006, as if the acquisitions of PEC and
the Michigan and Minnesota natural gas distribution operations frorr
Aguila had been completed at January 1, 2004. Pro forma results are
presented for informational purposes only, assume commercial paper
was used to finance the Michigan and Minnesota transactions, and
are not necessarily indicative of what the actual results would have
been had the acquisitions aztually occurred on January 1, 2007, and
January 1, 2006.

Pro Forma for the Year

Ended Dacomber 31
{Millions, except per share amounts)
Net revenue $9.686.1
Income from continuing operations 144.8
Income available for ]
common shareholders : 178.4

Basic earnings per share ~
continuing cperations
Basic eamings per share
Diluted earnings per share ~
continuing operations
Diluted earnings per share

Sale of WPS ESI Gas Storage, LLC

In Aprit 2008, Integiys Energy Services sold WPS ESI Gas Storage, LLC,

which awned a natural gas storage field |located in the Kimball Township,
St. Clair County, Michigan, for $19. million. The transaction resulted in the
recognition of a pre-tax gain of $2.0 million in the second quarter of 2006,

Sale of Guardian Pipeline

In Aprit 2006, WPS Investments, LLC, a consolidated subsidiary of
Integrys Energy Group, completed the sale of its one-third interest in
Guardian Pipeline, LLC to Northern Border Partners, LP for $38.5 million.
The transaction resufted in the recognition of a pra-tax gain of $46.2 millicn
in the second quarter of 2006

Sale of UPPCO Lands

In December 2005, UPPCO sold a portion of its real estate holdings,
which was no longer needed for operations, for $5.9 million. UPPCO
recognized a pre-tax gain of $5.5 million on the sale in 2005.

Dairyland Power Cooperative (DPC)

In November 2005, WPSC and DPC closed a transaction in which DPC
acquired a 30% ownership interest in Weston 4. Under the terms of the
agreement, WPSC raceived $95.1 millien in cash fram DPC for its share
of Weston 4 construction costs through the date of the closing. DPC is
remitting payments to WPSC for its 30% share of the remaining costs to
complete the construction of Weston 4 and will begin to reimburse
WPSC for its share of operating costs when the plant is operational.

Sale of Kewaunee

On July 5, 2005, WPSC completed the sale of its 5%% ownership interest
in Kewaunee to Dominion Energy Kewaunee, LLC, a subsidiary of
Dominicn Resources, Inc. At the same time, Wisconsin Power and Light
Company sold its 41% ownership interest in Kewaunee to Dominion.

WPSC’s share of the cash proceeds from the sale of Kewaunee was
£112.5 million. The sale rasulted in a loss of $12.5 million. The loss
includes adjustments far the fair value of an indemnity issued to cover
certain costs Dominion may incur related to an unplanned outage in
2005, as well as certain costs related to the termination of the plant
cperating agreement and withdrawal from Integrys Energy Group's
investment in the Nudlear Management Company, which served as the
licensed operator of Kewaunee.

In conjunction with the sale, Dominion received the assets in WPSC's
qualified decommissioning trust and assumed responsibility for the
eventual decommissioning of Kewaunee. These trust assets had a pre-tax
fair value of $243.6 million at closing. WPSC retained ownership of the
assets contained in its nonqualified decommissicning trust. Preceeds
recsived from the liquidation of the nonqualified decommissioning trust
were $127.1 million, substantially all of which have been refunded to
ratepayers. See Note 23, " Regulatory Environment,” for details regarding
regulatory treatment of the proceeds received from the nonqualified
decommissianing trust and the loss on the sale of Kewaunee,




At the closing date, WPSC's share of the carrying value of the assets Upon the closing of the sale, WPSC entered into an agreement with

and liabilities that were included within the sale agreement, or that were Dominion to purchase energy and capacity from the plant consistent
otherwise eliminated pursuant to the sale, were as follows: with volumes available when WPSC owned Kewaunee. The power
purchase agreement extends through 2013 when the plant’s current

{Millions) July 5, 2005 operating lizense will expire.

Qualified decommissioning trust fund $243.4

Other utility plant, net 1654

Other cument agsets 5.5

Total assets $414.5

Regulatory Habilities $G2.70)

Accourtts payable 25

Asset retirement obligations 3764

Total liabiliies $306.8

NOTE 7—JOINTLY OWNED UTILITY FACILITIES

WPSC holds an ownership interest in certain jointly owned electric costs, fuel inventary purchases, and operating expenses unless specific
generating facilities. WPSC is entitled to shares of the generating agreements have bean executed to limit its maximum exposure to
capability and output of each facility equal to its respective cwnership additional costs. WPSC's share of significant jointly owned electric
interest. WPSC also pays its ownership share of additional construction generating facilities as of December 31, 2007, is as follows:

{Millions, except for percentages and megawatts)

Ownership

WPSC's share of plant nameplate capacity (megawatts)
Utility plant in service

Accumulated depreciation

In-service date

Weston 4 is a nominal 500-megawatt coal-fired generation station that WPSC's share of direct expenses for these plants is recorded in

is scheduled to be placed in service in the first quarter of 2008, WPSC operating expenses in the Consolidated Statements of income. WPSC
has a 70% ownership in this facility. has supplied its own financing for all jointly owned projects.

NOTE 8—NUCLEAR DECOMMISSIONING TRUST

In conjunction with the sale of Kewaunee in July 2005, the qualified Decommissioning costs collected in customer rates and charges for
decommissioning trust assets were transferred to Dominion and WPSC realized earnings from the trusts were included in depreciation expense.
liquidated the assets contained in the nonqualified decommissioning Realized aftertax trust earnings otaled $41.C millian in 2005 as the
trust, Froceeds received from the liquidation of the nongualified trust assets were liquidated due to the sale of Kewaunee.

decommissioning trust are baing refunded to ratepayers. See Note 23,
" Regulatory Envirgnment,” for details regarding regulatory treatment of
the proceeds received from the nonqualified decammissioning trust.

Moving Forward
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NOTE 9—REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following regulatory assets and liabilities are reflected in our Consolidated Batance Sheets as of December 31:

{Millions)

Regulatory assats

Environmental ramediation costs (net of insurance recoveries)
Pension and postretiremnent benefit relzted iterms

De Pere Energy Center

Nuclear costs

Derivatives

Energy recoveries

Income tax related tems

Weston 3 lightning sirike

Midwest Independent Transmission Systern Operator (MISO) costs
Asset retirerment obligations

Costs to achieve merger synergies

Unamortized loss on debt

Reserve for uncollectible accounts

Reduced coal deliveries

Cther

Total

Balance Sheet Presentation
Current
Long-term

Total

Regulatory liabilities

Cost of removal reserve

Pension and postratirement benefit related items

Energy refunds

Derivatives

Income tax related items

Arerican Transmission Company LLC (8TC) and MISO refunds
Neon-gualified decommissioning trust

Other

Total

Balance Sheet Presentation
Cument
Leng-tem

Total

Our utility subsidiaries expect to recover their regulatory assets and
return their regulatory lisbilities through rates charged to customers
based on specific ratemaking decisions or precedent for each item
over periods specified by the regulators or over the normal operating
period of the assets and liabilities to which they relate. Based on prior
and current rate treatment for such costs, we believe it is probable that
our utllity subsidiaries will conzinue to recover from customers the
regulatory assets described above.

Pension and postretirement benefit related items at December 31,
2007, and 2006, include all adjustments made to implement

SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements
No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).” which was effective Decembaer 31, 2004,

See Mote 1(g), "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—Revenue
and Customer Receivables”; Note 3, "Risk Management Activities”;
Note &, "Acquisitions and Sales of Assets”; Note 15, "Asset Retirernent
Obtligations™; Note 17, " Compmitments and Contingencies”; Note 19,
“Emplayee Benefit Plans”; and Note 23, *Regulatory Environment”; for
more information on some of the more significant regulatory assets and
liabilities listed in the above table.




NOTE 10—INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES, AT EQUITY METHOD

Investments in corporzte joint ventures and other companies accounted
for under the equity method at December 31, 2007, and 2006, are
as follows:

{Miliions)

ATC

Wisconsin River Power Company (WRPC)
Other

Investmeants in affiliates, at equity method

Investments in affiliates undar the equity method are a component of
other assets on the Consolicdated Balance Sheets, and the equity income
is recorded in miscellaneous income on the Consalidated Statements of
Income. We are taxed on ATC's equity income, rather than ATC, due to
the tax flow through nature of ATC's business structure. Accordingly, the
provision for income taxes includes our taxes on this equity income.
Included in other investmants in 2006 in the above table is Integrys
Energy Services' ownership in ECO Coal Pelletization #12, LLC, See
below for further explanation of this investment.

ATC

Integrys Energy Group had an approximate 34.5% cwnership interest in
ATC at December 31, 2007. ATC is a for-prafit, tranemission-only company.
ATC owns, maintains, monitors, and operates electric transmission
assets in portions of Wisconsin, Michigan, Minnesota, and Hlinois.

In January 2008, ATC's Wausau, Wisconsin, to Duluth, Minnesota,
transmission line became operational. Intagrys Energy Group
committed 1o fund 50% of total project costs incurred by investing
additional equity in ATC,

The regulated electric utilities provide construction and other services
ta, and receive network transmission services from, ATC. The charges to
ATC for services and construction provided by the regulated slectric
utilities and tha network transmission service costs raceived from ATC
by the regulated electric utilities at December 31, were as follows:

{Millions) 2006 2005

Total charges to ATC for
services and construction

Total network transmission sarvice
costs provided by ATC

$1265 §729

g 5633 4542

Integrys Energy Group recorded dividends received of $36.7 million,
$2%.7 million, and $17.8 million from ATC in 2007, 2005, and 2005,
respectively. Integrys Energy Group made capital contributions to ATC
of $50.9 million, $36.5 million, and $65.1 million in 2007, 2006, and
2008, respectively.

WRPC

WPSC owns 50% of the voting stack of WRPC, which operates two
hydroelectic pfants on the Wisconsin River and an oil-fired combustion
turbine. Twe~thirds of the energy output of the hydroelectric plants is
sold to WPSC, and the remaining one-thind is sold to Wisconsin Power
and Light. The electric power from the combustion turbire is sold in
aqual parts to WPSC and Wisconsin Power and Light.

Moving Forward

WPSC has sales tc and purchases from WRPC and receives net
proceeds from sales of energy into the MISO market from WRFC. The
related party transactions recarded and net proceeds received at
December 31, were as follows:

(Millians) 2006 2005
Revenues from services

provided to WRPC $1.8 $0.7
Purchases of energy from WRPC 4.1 4.3
Net proceeds from WRPC sales

of energy into the MISO 4.2 3.1

WPSC recorded dividends received of $0.9 million, $4.2 million, and
$7.8 million from WRPC in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Of Integrys Energy Group's equity in net incoma disclosed below,
$1.8 million, $3.2 million, and 3$4.9 million relates to WPSC's invesoment
in WRPC in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

ECO Coal Pelletization #12

At December 31, 2007, Integrys Energy Services held a 70% ownership
intarest in ECO Coal Pelletization #12, LLC, which beld an equity
method investment in an entity that produced synthetic fuel for tax
credits under Section 29/45K of the Internal Revenue Code. By law,
Section 29/45K federal tax credits for synthetic fuel produced from coal
expired on Decernber 31, 2007, therefore, this facility ceased operation
effective January 1, 2008. Integrys Energy Services' investment in this
facility was not significant at December 31, 2007, or 2006. The losses
and royalty income received from the equity method investment
Integrys Energy Services held through its ownership interest in ECO
Coal Pelletization #12, LLC, were as follows:

{Millions)

Losses genemted from oparations
of ECO Coal Pelletization #12
Integrys Energy Services' partners
share of the losses {recorded

25 minority interest)
Royalty income recognized

2006 2005

$23.9 3168

38 {45
= (3.5

In 2007, 2006, and 2005, the operation of this facility generated -
positive earnings when including the tax credits generated and the
impact of gains on oil apticns utilized te mitigate the risk that rising oil
pricas had on the value of the tax credits.

Guardian Pipeline

Guardian Pipeline, LLC owns a natural gas pipeling, which began
operating in 2002, that stretches about 140 miles from near Joliet,
lllinois, into southern Wiscorsin. It can transport up to 750 million
cubic feet of natural gas daily. In April 2006, Integrys Energy Group
completed the sale of its one-third interest in Guardian Fipeline to
Northern Border Partners, LP. See Note &, “Acquisitions and Sales of
Assets,” for mare information related te the sale.

Integrys Energy Services recorded related party transactions for
purchases from Guardian Pipeline. These purchases amounted to
$0.9 million in 2006 through the date of sale, and $0.6 miflion in 2005,

Other Investments
Other investmants aecounted for under the equity methad include various
investments that wers nat significant at December 31, 2007, and 2004.




Nortes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Data financial data of Guardian Pipeline is not included in the 2007 or 2006
Combined financial data of ATC and WRPC are incdluded in the table information, as (ntegrys Energy Group sold this investment in April 2006
below for 2007 and 2006. Combined financial data of ATC, WRPC, and and the financial information from January 1, 2006, through the date of
Guardian Pipeline are included in the table below for 2005, The sale was not significant.
{Millions) 2006 2005
Income statement data
Revenues $ 3475 $ 3398
Operating expenses 184.3 189.4
Other expense 349 37.8
Nat incormne $ 128.3 $ 1126
Integrys Energy Group’s equity in net income $ 422 § N8
Balance sheet data
Curment assets ¢ 362 $ 403
Non-current assets 1,872.4 1,791.8
Total assets $1,908.6 $1,832.1
Current liabilities 3 3064 $ 1585
Long-term debt 6A8.9 7969
Other non-current liabilities 128.2 102.4
Sharehalders’ equity 825.1 774.3
Total liabilities and shareholders’ aquity $1,908.6 $1,832.1
The following table shows goodwiil recorded by Integrys Energy Group Integrys Erergy Group had the following changes to the carrying
as of December 31, 2007, and 2006: amount of goodwill for the year ended Dacember 31, 2007:
December 31, (Mitions)
(Millions) 2006 Goodwill recorded at December 31, 2004 $303.9
Matural Gas Utility segment $303.9 Purchase accounting adjustments for MGUC and MERC )
Integrys Energy Services - Goodwill associated with PEC merger
Total goodwill by segment $303.9 Goodwill recorded at December 31, 2007

Identifiable intangible assets other than goodwill are included as a compenertt of other assets within the Consaolidated Balance Sheets. Information in
the tables below relates to purchased identifiable intangible assets for the periods indicated.

(Millions) i iy o December 31, 2005
gy Scupaeilabail Gross Carrying  Accumulated

Asset Class i Amount Amortization Net
Customer related i $12.2 $4.3) $ 79
Natural gas and electric contract assets 2 o - - -
Matural gas and electric contract Kabilities # - - -
Emission allowances ® s 50 0.8 42
Other : O - . GeRokaRe R e 39 {0.8) 3.1
Total SRR Y ey bR b $21.1 $(5.9) 515.2

M inchides customer relationship 38815 assotiated with bath PECs noncegulated retail natural gas and elactric operations and MERCS nonutility hame serdces business. The remaining weighted
averags amortization period for customer related intangible assets is approximately 8 years,

2 Represents the fair value of certain PEC natural gas and electric customer contracte acquited in the merger that were nat tonsidered to be derivative instruments, and as a result, wers recordad as
intangible essets.

& Censists of both short-term and Iong-term intangibie assets refated ta customer contracts in the amount of $20.5 millin and $5.5 millicn, respectively, which have a weighted average amortization
period of 1.2 years,

¥ Cansists of both shomt-term snd long-tam intangibie hakilities related 0 custorner contracts in the armount of $7.1 million and §13.4 millien, respectively, which have a weighted sverage
amortization period of 28 years.

B Emission allowances da nat have a contractual term or expiration date.

Intangible assat amortization expense for all imangibles (except for the increase in amortization expense in 2007 primarily related ta customer
natural gas and electric contracts, which are discussed bslow), in the refated intangible assets associated with PEC's nonregulated retail and
aggregate, for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, electric operations and MERC's non-utility home services business.

was $8.5 million, $2.1 milfion, and $2.2 million, respectively. The

et

oz
s




Amortization expense for the next five fiscal years is estimated and purchased power and is not included in the table at the left.
as follows: Amortization ¢f these contracts in 2007 resulted in an increase to
(Millions) nonregulated fuel, natural gas, and purchased power in the amount of
$21.0 millicn. Estimated future amortization of these contracts will
increase nonregulated cost of fuel, natural gas, and purchased power
by $13.3 millien in 2008. The estimated future amortization of these
contracts will decrease nonregulated cost of fuel, natural gas, and
purchased power by $2.9 millian in 2009, $2.7 million in 2010,
$2.0 million in 2011, and $0.2 millien in 2012, The amecrtization of
these contracts substantially reduces the PEC margin that would have
The effect of purchase accounting related to the natural gas and electric been recognized related to these contracts absent the merger.
contracts is recorded as a component of nonregulated fuel, natural gas,

For year ending December 31, 2008
For year ending Decembar 31, 2007
For year ending December 31, 2010
For year ending December 31, 2011
For year ending December 31, 2012

NOTE 12—LEASES

Integrys Energy Group leases various property, plant, and equipment. Year ending December 31 (Millions)
Terms of the operating leases vary, but generally require Integrys

Energy Group to pay property taxes, insurance premiums, and s

: . - 2009
maintenance custs associated with the leased property. Many of 2010
Integrys Energy Group’s leases contain ene of the following options: 2011
{a) Integrys Energy Group can, at the end of the lease term, purchase

. ) 2012

the property at the current fair market value or (b) exercise a renewal

; . ) Later years
option, as set forth in the lease agreement. Rental expense attributable

Total payments

to operating leases was $13.6 million, 37.0 million, and $6.6 million in
2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. Future minimum rental obligations
under non-cancelable operating leases, are payable as follows:

NOTE 13—SHORT-TERM DEBT AND LINES OF CREDIT

Integrys Energy Group manages its liquidity by maintaining adequate external financing cammitments. The information in the table below relates to
Integrys Energy Group's short-term debt and tines of credit.

{(Millions) Maturity 12/31/2006
Credit agreements and revolving notes
Revelving credit facility {Integrys Energy Group) &/02/10 $ 5000
Revelving credit facility (Integrys Energy Group) S0YN 500.0
Bridge credit facility (Integrys Energy Group) © 0507 121.0
Revolving credit facility (WP50) @ 6/02110 115.0
Revolving credit facility {PEC) @ 61311 -
Revolving credit facility (PGL) *® 712110 -
Revolving credit facility (integrys Energy Services) @ 418/08 150.0
Revolving short-term notes payable (WPSC) 5/13/08 10.0
Uncommitted secured cross-exchange agreement {integrys Energy Services) 4/15/08 -
Totg| short-term credit capacity 1,2646.0
Less:
Uncollateralized portion of gross margin credit agreement -
Letrers of credit issued inside credit facilities 152.4
Loans outstanding under the credit agreements 160.0
Commercial paper outstanding ™ 562.8
Accrued interest cr original discount on outstanding commarcial paper 0.7
Available capacity under existing agreemenis $ 5201

" Matured on 9/05/2007-

B Provides backup for WPSCs commercial paper borrowing program.

B Borrowings under this agresment are guaranteed by Inteqrys Energy Group.

¥ Provides backup for PGLs seasanal commercial paper borrowing program,

& Matures on 04/18/2008. Bereewings under this agreement are guaranteed by Integrys Energy Group.

# Facility is rengwed evary six morths,

0 & portion of the proceeds from the sale of PEP in September 207 were used to reduce the commercial paper bormwings.

i
(3,0
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Integrys Energy Group’s short-term borrowings consist of commercial paper backed by the unsecured revolving credit facilities (discussed above), as
well as short-term notes as shown below.

{Millions, except for percentages} 2006 2005
As of end of year

Cornmerdial paper cutstanding $562.8 $254.8
Average discount rate on outstanding commercial paper 5.43% 4.54%
Short-term notes payable autstanding $1400 £10.0
Average intarest rate on short-term notes payable 5.56% 4.32%
For the year

Maximurm amount of short-term debt $1,0856 $310.7
Average amount of shart-term debt $678.8 $174.4
Average interest rate on short-term debt 5.34% 3.21%

The commercial paper at December 31, 2007, had varying maturity dates ranging from January 2, 2008, through January 11, 2008,




NOTE 14—LONG-TERM DEBT

December 31,
(Millions) 2006
WPSC m
First mortgage bonds
Series Year Due
6.90% 2013 § 220
7.125% 2023 0.1
Senigr notes
Seres Year Due
£.125% 2011 150.0
4.875% 2012 150.0
4.80% 2013 125.0
3.95% 2013 220
&.08% 2028 500
5.55% 2036 125.0
5.65% 2017 -
UPPCO
Series Year Due
2.32% 2021 13.5
PEC®
Unsscured seniar nota
Series Year Due
A, 6.90% 2011 -
Fair value hedge adjustment -
PGL (L]
Fixe n n
Series Year Due
HH, 4.75% 2030 adjustable after July 1, 2014 -
KK, 5.00% 2033 -
LL, 3.05% 2033 -
MM-2, 4.00% 2010 -
NN-2, 4.625% 2013 -
QQ, 4.875% 2038 adjustable after Novernber 1, 2018 -
RR, 4.30% 2035 adjustable after June 1, 2016 -
Adjustable first and refunding mortgage bonds
sefigs Yeor Due
QO 2037 -
PP 2037 -
NSG @
First mo n
Series Year Due
M, 5.00% 2028 -
N-2, 4.625% 2013 -
Integrys Energy Group
Series Year Due
7.0% 2009 150.0
5.375% 2012 100.0
Unsecured junior subordinated notes
Serjes Year Dug
611% 2056 300.0
Unsecured term loan due 2010 - Integrys Energy Group 63.6
Term |oans — nonrecourse, collateralized by nonregulated assets ® 13.7
Intagrys Enengy Services” loan -
Other term loan ™ 27.0
Senior secured note ¢ 2.0
Total 1,315.9
Unamortized discount and premiurn on bonds and debt (2.2
Tota! debt 1,313.7
Lass current portion (26.
Total long-term debt $1,287.2

M in Jenuery 2007, WPSC used the proceads from the $22.0 milfion 3.95% senior nates issued
in December 2006 to the Village af Westan, Wisconsin, to repay the outstanding principal
balance of the 6.90% first mortgage bonds.

WPSCS long-term first mortgage bonds and senior notes are subject 10 the terms and
conditions of WPSCs First Mortgage Indznture. Undar the terms of the indenture,
subistantially all property owmed by WFSC is pledged as collsteral for thass outstanding

iy s P ke P
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debt secaritios. Al of these debt securiTies require semi-annual payments of interest,
Principal payments are dug on the maturity date of each saries. WPSC senior notes
become non-coflateralized it WPSC retires all of its outstanding first mortgage bonds and
no new maortgage is put in their place.

WPSC issued §125.0 million of 5.55% 30-year senior notes on Decernber 1, 2006. The net
proceeds from the issuance of the senior nates were used for general corporate utility
purposes, induding funding canstruction costs and capital additions and reducing
short-term indebtedngss,

I Novernber 2007, WPSE isvad $120.0 milfion of series 5.65% seniar notes due
November 1, 2017, The net proceeds from the issuance of the senior notes ware used
for general conporate Ltility purposes, including funding canstruction costs snd other
capital additions

2 Undar the terms of UPPCO' First Mortgage Indenture, substantiafly ail property owned by
UPPCO is pledged as caltateral for this cutstanding deb series. Interast payments are due
semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 with a sinking fund payment of $900,000 due
cach November 1. The final sinking fund payment due Nevember 1, 2021, will campletely
retire the series.

A On March &, 2007, Integrys Energry Group announced that it had entered into a first
supplemental indenture with PEC and The Bank of Naw York Trust Company, N.A. The
terms of the supplermental indenture provide that Integrys Energy Group will fully and
unconditionally guarantee, on a senicr unsecured basis, PECs obfigations undsr its
$325.0 miilion, 890% notes due January 15, 2011. Sea MNote 18, “Guaramtees,” for more
infarmation redated to this guaranty.

A On February 1, 2008, the interest rate on the $50.0 milfion 3 05% Series LL first mortgage
bonds at PGL, which support the lilinois Developmant Finance Authority Adjustable-Rate
Gas Supply Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 20038, was sstablished at & term rate
through January 31, 2012, at 375%, adjustable after February |, 2012, These honds wers
subject to a mandatory terder for purchase for remarketing on February 1, 2008, snd, as 2
result, are presented as current portion of fong-term debt an Integrys Energy Group®
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2007.

An indenture of mortgage, dated January 2, 1926, as supplemented, securing the First and
Refunding Mortgage Bonds issued by PGL, constitutes a direct, first-rortgage lien on
substantially al! property owned by PGL,

o)

PGL has outstanding 357 0 million of Adystable Rate, Series (0 bonds, die October 1,
2037, and $51.0 mitlion of Adiustable Rate, Series PP bonds, due Octobet 1, 2037, which
are currently in a 35-day Auction Rate Mode (the interest rate is reset svery 35 days
thraugh an auction process). The weighted-average intarest rate for the period beginning
February 22, 2007, and ending Drecember 31, 2007, was 3.96% for both Series OO and
PP bonds.

® An indenture of mortgage, dated April 1, 1955, as supplemented, sacuring tha first
martgage bonds issued by NSG, constitutes & direct, first-mortgage lien on substartisly all
property ownad by NSG,

3

Cn Decernber 1, 2008, integrys Energy Group jssued $300.0 million of junior subordinated
notes. Due to certain faatures of these notes, rating agendies consider tham to be hybrid
instruments with @ combination of debt and equity characteristics, These notes have a
60-year term and rank junicr to all current and future indebtedness of Integrys Energy
Group, with the sxceptian of trade accounts payable and other accruad fiabilitias arising

in the ardinary course of business. Interest s payable serm-annually at the stated rate of
£.11% for the first ten years, but the rate has been fixed at 6.22% through the use of
forward-starting interest rate swaps. The interast rate will ffloat for the remainder of the
term. The notes can ba prepaid without penalty after the first ten years. Integrys Enargy
Graup has agread, however, in a replacerment capital covenant with the holders of Integrys
Energy Group’s 5.375% unsecured senior netes due December 1, 2012, that it wil not
recleem or repurchase the junior subordinated notes on or priar to December 1, 2035,
unless such repurchases or redemptions are made from the procesds of the sale of specific
securities cansidemd by rating agencies 1o have equity characteristics equal to or greater
than these of the junior subcrdinated notes.

&

Barrowings by Integrys Energy Services under term loans and collateralized by
nonreguilated assets totaled §10.5 million st December 31, 2007 The assets of

VWPS Naw England Ganeration, Ine. and WPS Canada Generatian, fnc, subsicharies of
Integrys Energy Services, coliataralize $3.0 million and 7.5 mitlion, respectively, of
the tatal outstanding amount. Bath loans have semi-annual instaliment paymants,
interest rates of 8 75%, and maturity dates in May 2010,

@ In April 2001, the Schuyikill County Industrial Development Authority isswed $27.0 millkan
of refunding tax-exempt bonds. The proceeds from the boncls wera loaned 10
WPS Westwond Ganeratian, LLT, a subsidhary of Inteqgrys Energy Services. This kosn is
rapaid by WPS Westwood Generation to Schuylkill County Industrial Develggrment
Authority with monthly payments that have a floating interest rate that is reset weekly.
At Decernber 31, 2007, the interest rate was 3.70%. The loan is to be repaid by April 2021.
Integrys Energy Group agreed to guarantee WPS Weshwood Generstion's obligation to
pravide sufficient funds to pay the loan and the related obligations and indemnities.

1% Upper Peninsuia Building Cevelopment Corporation has a senier sacured note of
$1.7 milkion as of December 31, 2007, which requires semi-annual payments at an interest
rate of 9.25%, and maturas in 2011. The note is secured by a first mortgage lien on the
building they own, which is also leased to UPFCO far use as their corporate headquarters.

PGL and NSG utilize mortgage bonds to secure tax exempt financing.
The lllincis Finance Authority has issued tax exempt bonds for the
benefit of PGL and NSG, and the City of Chicago has issued tax
exempt bonds for the benefit of PGL. Each issuance is collateralized by
an equal principal amount of PGLs or NSG% first mortgage bonds.

At Decermber 31, 2007, Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries were
in compliance with all covenants relating to outstanding debt. A
schedule of all principal debt payment amounts, including bond
maturities and early retirements, far Integrys Energy Group is as follows:

Year ending December 31 (Millions)

2008

2009

2010

2011

202

Later years
Totel payments

NOTE 15—ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The utility segments identified asset retirement obligations primarily
related to asbestos abaterment at certain facilities, office buildings, and
service centers; disposal of PCB-contaminated transformers; removal of
natural gas distribution pipe (including ashestos and PCBs); and closure
of fly-ash landfills at certain generation facilities. In accordance with
SFAS Mo. 71, the utilities establish regulatory assets and liabilities to
record the differences between angoing expense recognition under
SFAS No. 143 and Interpretation M. 47, and the rate-making practices
for retirement costs authorized by the applicable regulators. Asset
retirement obligations identified at Integrys Energy Services relate to
asbestos abatement at certzin generation facilities.

As discussed in Note &, " Acquisitions and Sales of Assets,” the sale
of Kewaunee to Dominion was completed on July 5, 2005. As a result
of the sale, Dominion assumed the asset retirement obligation related
o Kewaunse. As discussed in Note 4, " Discontinued Operations,”
Integrys Energy Services completed the sale of Sunbury in July 2006,
which included the transfer of asset retirement obligations relatad

to Sunbury.

Changes to Asset Retirement Obligation Liabilities
The following table shows changes to the asset retirement obligations
of Integrys Energy Group through December 31, 2007.




Integrys

Energy
Millions) Lhilities Services Total
Assat retirernent obligations at Decernber 31, 2004 53644 $2.2 $366.5
Accretion 124 0.2 12.6
Agset retirement obligation transferred 1o Deminion {374.4) - {376.4)
Adoption of Interpretation No. 47 8.2 39 12.1
Assat retirement obligations at December 31, 2005 8.6 6.3 14.9
Asset retirement obligations from acquisition of natural gas operations in Michigan and Minnesota 03 - 03
Asset retirement obligations transferred in sales - [5.8) (5.8)
Accretian Qs 0.2 0.7
Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2006 ¥.4 0.7 10.1

Asset retirernent obligations frarn merger with PEC
Asset retirement obligations transferred in sales

Asset retirement obligations settled

Accretion

Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2007

NOTE 16—INCOME TAXES

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities below as net amounts, consistent with regulatory treatrment. The
Certain temporary differences, in which the offsetting amount is principal components of our deferred tax assets and liabilitias
recordled as a regulatory asset or liability, are presented in the table recognized in the balance sheats as of December 31 are as follows:
{Millions)
Deferred tax assets:

Tax credit camyforwards

Plant related

Employee benefits

Bad debts

Regulatory deferrals

State capital and operating less carmyforwards
Deferred deductions

Cther

Total deferred tax assets

Valuation allowance
Met deferred tax assets

Defarred tax liabilities:

Plant related

Regulatory deferrals

Price risk management, net
Deferred income
Employee benefits

Other

Total deferred tax lisbilities

Consolidated Balance Sheet Prasentation:
Current deferred tax liabilities

Long-term deferred tax liabilities

Net deferved tax liabilities

Deferred tax credit carmyforwards at December 31, 2007, include Group operates the period Is 15 years or more, with the majority
$102.1 million of alternative minimum tax credits related to tax credits beginning to expire in 2013. Valuation allowances have been

. available under Section 29/45K of the Internal Revenue Code. These established for certain state cperating and capital loss carmyforwards
alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards can be camied forward due to the uncertainty of the ability to realize the benefit of these losses
indefinitaly. Carryforward periods for state capital and operating loss in the future,

carryforwards vary. In the majority of states in which Integrys Energy

Maving Forward
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Federal Income Tax Expense

The following table presents a reconciliation of federal income taxes to
the provisian for income taxes reported in the Cansclidated Statements
ot Income for the pericds ended Dacember 31.

The taxes are calculated by multiplying the statutory federal income tax

rate by bock income before federal income tax.

(Miflions, except for percentages) 2006 2005
Rate Amount Rate Amount

Statutary federal income tax 35.0% $48.8 35.0% $66.8
State income taxes, nat 6.5 12.8 4.3 8.2
Foreign income taxes, net - - on 0.2)
Unrecognized tax benefits - Interpretation No. 48, net - - - -
Benefits and compensation 2.5 £.8) (2.8) (4.8}
Investment tax credit 0.4y 0.8) 09 (1.7}
Federal tax credits (15.8) {30.2) {14.1) (269
Other differences, net 0.1 {0.8) 0.8 {1.8)
Effective income tax 22.9% $45.0 20.8% $37.6
Current provision

Federal $211 $13.1
State 6.2 14.3
Foreign 5.3 3.2
Total current provision 326 306
Deferred provision 11.4 13.0
MNet operating loss carryforwards 1.8 2.3
Unrecognized tax benefits — Interpretation No. 48, net - -
Interast - -
Panalties - -
Investment tax credit (0.8) (1.7}
Total income tax expense $45.0 $39.6

Foreign incorna before taxes was $23.3 million in 2007, $24.5 million in

Subsidiaries of Integrys Energy Group file income tax retums in the
2006, and $10.2 million in 2005.

United States federal jurisdiction, in various United States state and
local jurisdictions, and in Canada. Subjact to the following major
exceptions listed below, Integrys Energy Group is no longer subject
to United States federal, state and local, or fereign income tax
exarinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2003.

As the related temporary differences reverse, our regulated utilities
are prospectively refunding taxes to or collecting taxes from customers
for which deferred taxes were recorded in prior years at rates different
than cutrent rates. The regulatory {asset) liability for these and other
regulatory tax effects totaled ${11.3) million and $9.7 million as of ]

Wisconsin Department of Revenue—WPSC has agreed to statute
December 31, 2007, and 2006, respectively.

extensions for tax years covering 1996-2002.

Effective January 1, 2007, Integrys Energy Group records penalties and »
accrued interest related to income taxes as a component of income tax
expense. Prior to January 1, 2007, Integrys Enargy Group recorded

interest and penalties as componants of income before taxes. Integrys ]
Energy Group recognized interest and penaities of $2.3 million in 2007,
$0.3 mitlion in 2008, and $0.3 million in 2005. Integrys Energy Group
had accrued ligkilities for interest and penalties of $4.6 million at
December 31, 2007, and $0.2 million at January 1, 2007,

Jllinois Department of Revenue—~PEC and combined subsidiaries
have agreed to statute extensions for tax years covering 2001-2004,

United States Internal Revenue Service (IRS}—PEC and consolidated
subsidiaries have agreed to statute extensions for tax years covering
1999-2004.

In 2007, Integrys Energy Group has closed the following examinations for:

Unrecognized Tax Benefits "
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized
12x benefits is as follows:

IRS—Integrys Energy Group (formery WPS Resaurces Comporation) and
consolidated subsidiaries have an agreed to audit report and closing
staternent for an IRS examination of the 2002 and 2003 tax years.

Unrecognized Tax (Millions)

Balance at January 1, 2007
Increase related to tax positions acquired
Increase related to tax positions taken in prior years
Decrease related to tax positions taken in prior years
Decrease related to tax pasitions taken in current year
Decrease related 1o settlements
Decrease related 1o lapse of statutes

Balance at December 31, 2007

m [RS—Integrys Energy Graup (formerly WPS Resources Corporaticn) and
consclidated subsidiaries have settled all issues for 2004 and 2005.

® |RS—PEC and consolidated subsidiaries have a partially agreed to
audit report and closing statement for an IRS examination of the
199%-2003 tax years, but one open issue fram the agertts report has
been protested by the taxpayer and has been sent to |RS appeals.

m llinois Department of Revenue—PEC and its combined subsidiaries
have an agreed to audit report and closing statement with the IDR
for the 2001 and 2002 tax years.

At December 31, 2007, unracognized tax benefits of $0.8 million
could affect Integrys Energy Group’s effective tax rate for continuing
cperations if recognized in subseguent periads.




Integrys Energy Group has the following open examinations:

B IRS—PEC and consalidated subsidiaries have an open examination
for the 2004-2005 tax years.

w llincis Department of Revenue—PEC and combined subsidiaries
have an open examination for the 2001-2006 tax years.

®m Wisconsin Department of Revenue—WPSC has an open examination
for the 1996-2001 tax years.

We do not expect a significant impact 1o our unrecognized tax benefits
from the expiration of the statute of limitatians in any jurisdiction to
occur within the next 12 months. We do expect to setile several of the
examinations listed above within the next 12 manths and estimate that
it is reasonably possible our unrecognized tax benefits could be
reduced up to $2.0 million within the next 12 months.

NOTE 17—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commadity Purchase Obligations and Purchase Order
Commitments

integrys Energy Group routinaly enters into long-tarm purchase and
sale commitments that have various quantity requirements and
duratiens. The regulated natural gas utilities have obligations to sell
natural gas 1o their customers, and the regulated electric utilities have
obligations to distribute and sell electricity to its customers. The utilities
expect to recover costs related to these obligations in future customer
rates. Additionally, the majority of the energy supply contracts entered
into by our nonregulated segment, Integrys Energy Services, are to
meet its abligations to deliver energy to customers.

The obligations described below are as of December 31, 2007.

® The electric utility segment has obligations related to coal and
transportation that extend through 2015 and total $569.5 million,
abligations of $1.3 billion for either capacity or energy related to
purchased power that extend through 2016, and obligations for
ather commaodities totaling $9.2 million, which extend through 2012,

® The natural gas utility segment has obligations related to natural gas
supply and transportation contracts totaling $784.2 million, some of
which extend through 2019

| Integrys Energy Services has obligations related to energy supply
cantracts that extend through 2018 and total $4.3 billion. The
majority of these obligations end by 200%, with cbligations totaling
$323.9 million extending beyond 2011,

& integrys Energy Group also has commitments in the form of purchase
orders issued to various vendars, which totaled $349.1 million.
A significant portion of these commitments relate to large
construction projects.

Environmental

Pulliam Air Notice of Violation

In September 2007, a Notize of Violation {NOV) was issued 10 WPSC

by the Wisconsin Departrnent of Natural Resources (WDNR) alleging
various violations of the Pulliam facility’s Title V permit, primarily
pertaining to certain recordkeeping and monitoring requirements. WPSC
met with the WDNR in Novernber 2007 1o discuss and attampt to resclve
the matters identified in the NOV, and subsequently submitted additional
information pursuant to the WDNR's request. While not confirmed by the
WDNR, it is WPSC’s understanding that this issue is essentially resolved.

Weston 4 Air Penmit

In November 2004, the Sierra Club filed a petition with the WDNR under
Section 285.61 of the Wisconsin Statutes, seeking a contested case
hearing on the constructicn parmit issued for the Weston 4 generation
station, which is a necessary predicate to plant construction under the
pertinent air amission regulations (hereinafter refemed 1o as the "Weston 4
air permit”). In February 2004, the administrative law judge affirmed the

Muoving Forward

Weston 4 air permit with changes ta the emission limits for sulfur dioxide
and nitrogen oxide from the coal-fired boiler and particulate from the
cooling tower, The changes, which were implermented by the WDNR

in a revised permit issued on March 28, 2007, set limits that are more
stringert than those criginally set by the WDNR (hereinafter referred to
as the “March 28, 2007, permit language™).

Cn April 27, 2007, the Sierra Club filed a second petition requesting a
contested case hearing regarding the March 28, 2007, permit languzge,
which was granted by the WDNR. Bath parties subsequently moved for
summary judgment. In a decision issued on November 8, 2007, the
administrative law judge granted WPSC's motion for summary judgment
in that proceeding, upholding the March 28, 2007, permit language.

The Sierra Club filed petitions with the Dane County Circuit Court on
April 27, 2007, and November 14, 2007, for judicial review of the Weston 4
air permit and the underlying proceedings before the administrative law
judge. These two judicial review proceedings were consolidated by the
vourt, and the parties are currently briefing the issues.

These activities did not stay the construction of the Weston 4 facility or
the administrative law judge’s decision on the Weston 4 air permit.
WPSC believes that it has substantial defenses to the Sierra Clubs
challenges. Until the Sierra Club's challenge is finally resalved, Integrys
Energy Group will not be able to make a final determination of the
probable cost impact, if any, of comoliance with any changes to the
Weston 4 air permit on ils future eperating or construction costs.

Waston rating Permits

in July 2005 and February 2006, NOVs were issued to WPSC by the
WDNR alleging various violations of the operating permit requirements
applicable to the then existing Weston fadility. Subsequently, by leter
dated April 11, 2007, the WDNR referred the matters set forth in the
NOVs to the Wisconsin Attorney General's office. The referral letter
alleged that the Weston facility was not in compliance with the following
provisions of the facilitys Title V operating permit: (i} limitations on the
sulfur cantent of the fuel oil stored at the Weston facility; i} the carben
monoxide and nitregen oxide imits for certain of the facility’s combustion
turbines; (i) the particulate matter emission limits applicable to the coal
handlling equipment; {iv} opacity manitoring requirements; and {v}
requirement to conduct an elemental metals analysis. WPSC is negotiating
with the Wisconsin Attorney General's office to resolve the matters.

In early November 2006, it came to the attention of WPSC that previous
ambient air quality computer modeling dane by the WDINR for the Weston
facility (and other nearby air sources) did not take into account the
emissions from the existing Weston 2 facility for pumposes of evaluating air
quality increment consumption under the required Pravention of Significant
Deterioration, WPSC believes it has undertaken and completed corrective
measures to address any identified modeling issues and anticipates
issuance of a revised Trde V penmit in the near future that will resolve this
issue. In the unlikaly event the revised Title V permit, orce issued, does not
resolve the issues caused by the WONR air quality modeling esors, WFSC
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believes that such issues could be resolved through a limited compliance
plan zpplicable to appropriate equipment or operations at the Weston
facility. Integrys Energy Group currently is not able to make a final
determination of the probable cost impact of this issue, if any.

M In

Mercury

In October 2004, the mercury emission control rule became effective in
Wisconsin (Chapter NR 446}, requiring WPSC to control annual system
mercury emissions in phases. The first phase will occur in 2008 and 2009.
In this phase, the annual mercury emissions are capped at the average
annual systern mercury emissions for the period 2002 through 2004. The
next phase will run from 2010 through 2014 and require a 40% reduction
from average annual 2002 through 2004 mercury input amounts. After
2015, a 75% reduction is required with a goal of an BO% reduction by
2018. The State of Wiscansin had filed suit against the federal
government along with other states in opposition to the federal mercury
rule. On February 8, 2007, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of
Columbia Circuit ruled in favor of the petitioners and vacated the federal
rule. It is not known whether the United States Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA} will appeal or procesd with the new rulemaking. WPSC
estimates capital costs of approximately $22 millicn, which includes
estimates for both whoily owned and jointly awned plants, to achieve
the proposad reductions in the State's revised draft rule. The capital
costs are expected to be recovered in a future rate case,

Weston 4 installed and will operate mercury control technolagy, which
will achieve a mercury emissian rate that mests the permit limit for
mercury. The State of Wisconsin is considering rules which would
exceed the vacated federal requirements. These rules have not been
finalized at this time. Based on information understood to date, these
rules may reguire additional investment by WPSC in order to comply.
The capital costs are anticipated to be recoversd in future rate cases.

Sulfur Dicxide and Nitrogen Oxide

The EPA finalized the Clean Air [nterstate Rule (formerly known as the
Interstate Air Quality Rule), which will reduce sulfur dioxide and nitrogen
oxide emissions from utility bailers located in 29 states, including
Wisconsin, Michigan, Pennsylvania, and New York. The final Clean Air
Interstate Rule requires reduction of sulfur dicxide and nitrogen oxide
emissions in two phases. The first phase requires about 2 50% reduction
beginning in 2009 for nitrogen oxide and beginning in 2010 for sutfur
dicxide. The second phase begins in 2015 for both pollutants and
requires about a 5% reduction in emissions. The rule allows the State
of Wisconsin to either require utilities located in the state to participate
in the EPA's interstate cap and trade program ar meet the state’s
emission budget for sulfur dioxide and nitregen oxide through
measurss to be determined by the state. Wisconsin's rule, which
incorporates the cap and trade approach, has completed the state
legislative review and has been forwarded to the EPA for final review.

Currently, WPSC is evaluating a number of options that include using the
cap and rade program and/or installing controls. For planning purposes,
it is assumed that additional sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxide controls
will be needed an existing units or the existing units will need to be
converted to natural gas by 2015. The installation of any controls and/or
any conversion to natural gas will need to be scheduled as part of WPSC's
long-term maintsnance plan for its existing units. As such, controls or
conversions may need 1o take place before 2015. Cn a preliminary basis
and assuming controls or conversion are required, WPSC estimates
capital costs of $572 million, which includes estimates for bath wholly
owned and jointly owned plants, in order to meet an assumed 2015
compliance date. This estimate is based on costs of current control
technology and current information regarding the final EPA rule. The
costs may change based on the requirements of the final state rules. The
capital costs are anticipated to be recovered in future rate cases.

Manufactured Gas Plant Remediation

Integrys Energy Group’s natwral gas utilities, their predecessors, and
certain former affiliates operated facilities in the past at multiple sites for
the purpose of manufacturing and storing manufactured gas, and as
such, are respansible for the envionmental impacts at 55 manufactured
gas plant sites located in Wisconsin, Michigan, and lllingis. All are former
regulated sites and, as such, are being remediated, with costs charged
10 existing ratepayers at WPSC, MGUC, PGL, and NSG. Nine of these
sites have been transferred to the EPA Superfund Alternative Sites
Program, and 11 sites have been transferred to the EFA's Superfund
Removal Program, with the intent of being transfemed 1o the EPA
Superfund Alternative Sites Pragram. Integrys Energy Group estimated
and accrued for approximately $704.2 million of future undiscounted
investigation and cleanup costs as of December 31, 2007. Integrys
Energy Group has recorded a net regulatory asset of $758.8 million
related to the recovery of beth unrecovered expenditures, and estimated
future expenditures as of December 31, 2007. Integrys Energy Group
has received $52.5 million in insurance recoveries as of December 31,
2007, which were recorded as a reduction to the regulatory assets.

The natural gas utilities are coordinating the investigation anc the
deanup of the manufactured gas plant sites under what is called a “multi-
site” program. This program involves pricritizing the work to be done at
the sites, preparation and approval of documents commen to all of the
sites, and utilization of a consistent approach in selecting remedies.

The EPA identified NSG as a petentially responsible party (PRP} under the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act
of 1980, as amended (CERCLA)}, at the Waukegan Coke Plant Site located
in Waukegan, llinois (Waukegan Site). Tha Waukegan Site is part of the
Qutboard Matine Corporation {OMC) Superfund Site. The EPA also
identified OMC, General Mators Corporation, and certain other parties as
PRPs at the Waukegan Site. N5G and the other PRPs are parties to a
consent decree that requires NSG and General Motars, jointly and
severally, to perform the remedial action and establish and maintain
financial assurance of $27.0 million (in the form of certain defined net
worth levels which NSG has met). The soil compaonant of the remedial
action was completed in August 2005. The final design for the
graundwater companent of the remedial action has been completed and
construction of the groundwater treatment plan has commenced. The
EPA agreed to reduce the financial assurance requirement to $21.0 million
to reflect completion of the soil component of the remedial action.

With respect to portians of certain sites in the City of Chicage (Chicago),
PGL received demands from site owners and others asserting standing
regarding the investigation or remediation of their parcels. Some of
these demands seek to require PGL to perform extensive investigations
or remediations. These demands include notice letters sent to PGL by
River Village West LLC. In April 2005, River Village West filed suit egainst
PGL in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Minois
under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). The suit,
River Village West LLC et al. v. The Peoples Gas Light and Coke
Company, No. 05-C-2103 (N.D. 1ll. 2003} (RVW I}, seeks an order
directing PGL to remediate three former sites: the former South Station,
the former Throop Street Station and the former Hough Place Station,

In August 2006, a member of River Village West individually filed suit
against PGL in the United States District Court for the Northern District
of lllinois under RCRA. The suit, Thomas A. Snitzer v. The Peoples Gas
Light and Coke Campany, No. 06-C-4465 (N.D. [Il. 2006) (Snitzer I,
seeks an order directing PGL to remediate the Willow Street Station
former manufactured gas plant site which is lotalad along the Chicage
River. In October 2006, the same individual filed another suit in the
United States District Court for the Northern District of lliinois under
RCRA and CERCLA. The suit, Thomas A. Snitzer v. The Peoples Gas
Light and Coke Company, No. 06-C-5%C1 (N.D. lll. 2006) (Snitzer 1),
seeks an order directing PGL to remediate four former manufactured




gas plant sites, which are iocated on or near the Chicago River: 22nd
Street Station, Division Street Station, Hawthorne Station, and North
Shore Avenue Station. This individual also notified PGL of his intent to
file suit under RCRA and CERCLA seeking an order directing PGL to
remediate two other such sites: Calumet Station and North Station.

In February 2007, Snitzer | and Snitzer Il were consalidated with the
RVW Hl case. In June 2007, PGL filed a motion to dismiss, or in the
alternative, stay the consolidated litigation on the kasis of the transfer
of the sites at issue in the litigation ta the EPA Superfund Removal
Pragram. On Septamber 28, 2007, the federal district court issued a
ruling staying the litigation "pending the conclusion of the United
States EPA actions” at these sites. The effect of this ruling, if it stands, is
to bring thae litigation to a halt uniil some future point in time when the
EPA has completed its actions and then only with respect to issues “left
over” from the EPA sections. There is no time limit on the stay and it
may be years before plaintiffs will be permitted to proceed with the
litigztion, if 2t all. The plaintiffs have filed a motion for reconsideration.

Management believes that any casts incurred for envirormental activities
relating to former manufactured gas plant operations that are not
recoverable through contributions from other entities or frem insurance
carriers have been prudently incurred and are, therefore, recoverable
through rates for WPSC, MGUC, PGL, and NSG. Accordingly,
management believes that the costs incurred in connection with former
manufactured gas plant operations will not have a material adverse effect
on the financial positicn or results of cperations of Integrys Energy Group.

Flood Demage
In May 2003, a fuse plug at the Silver Lake reservoir owned by UPPCO

was breached, This breach resulted in subsequent flooding downstream
on the Dead River, which is focated in Michigan's Upper Peninsula near
Marquette, Michigan. Several lawsuits were filed related to this incident,
all of which have been settled and for which insurance recovery was
received in excess of the applicable self-insured retention.

UPPCO has completed significant erwironmental restoration activities
and is working with the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
to deterrine what additional activities are necessary 1o resolve the
impacts associated with this event. Integrys Energy Group maintains a
comprehensive insurance program that includes UPPCO that it believes
is sufficient to cover its responsibilities related to this event. The self-
insured retention on this policy is not material to Integrys Energy Group.

In November 2003, UPPCO received approval from the MPSC and the
FERC for deferral of incremenial operation and maintenance costs that
are not reimbursable through insurance. At this time, it is expected that
all of these costs will be recoverad by third party settlements. UPPCO
also receivad approval from the MPSC to defer incremental pawer
supply costs associated with the incident. Recovery of the deferred
power supply costs will be addressed in future rate proceadings.

UPPCO has announced its decision to restore Silver Lake as a reservoir
for power generation, pending approval of an economically feasible
design by the FERC. The FERC has required that a koard of consultants
evaluate and oversee the design approval process. UPFCO continues to
work with its Board of Directors and the FERC to develop an
economiczlly feasible design.

a i p ing Site in.D . [
In 1994, NSG received a demand from the 5.W. Shattuck Chemical
Company, Inc. alleging that N3G is a successor to the liability of a
former entity that was allegedly responsible during the periad 1934
thraugh 1941 for the disposal of mineral processing wastes containing
radium and other hazardous substances at the site. In 1992, the EPA
issued a record of decision {RQOD) for the Denver site and remediation
work began. The remedy selected in the ROD consisted of the on-site
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stabilization, solidification, and capping of scils containing radicactive
wastes. In 1998, the remedial action under the 1992 ROD was
completed. In 2002, the EPA issued an amended ROD that required
remaving the monolith cap and undertaking additional soil excavation.
The work performed under the Amended RQD began in September
2002 and was completed in September 2006,

NSG does not believe that it has liability for the costs related to this
site, but cannct determine the matter with certainty. At this time, NSG
cannot reasonably estimate what range of loss, if any, may occur. In the
event that NSG incurs liability, it would pursue reimburserment from
insurance carriers and other responsible parties, if any.

nhouse
There is increasing concemn over the issue of climate change and the
effect of emissions of greenhouse gases. Integrys Energy Group is
evaluating both the technical and cost implications which may result
from a future state, regional, or federal greenhouse gas regulatory
program. This evaluation indicates that it is probable that any regulatory
program that caps emissions or imposes a carbon tax will increase costs
for Integrys Energy Group and its customers. The greatest impact is
likely to be on fossil fuel-fired generation, with a less significant impact
on natural gas storage and distribution operations. At this time, there is
ne commercially available technology for removing carbon dioxide from
a pulverized coal-fired plant, but significant research is in progress.
Efforts ars underway within the utility industry to develop cleaner ways to
bum caal. The use of alternate fuels is alsc being explored by the
inclustry, but there are many cost and availability issues. Based on the
complexity and uncertainty of the climate issues, a risk exists that future
carban regulation will increase the cost of electricity produced at coal-
fired generation units. However, we believe the capital expanditures we
are making at our generation units are appropriate under any reasonable
mandatory greenhouse gas program, and we believe future expenditures
by our regulated electric utilities will be recoverakle in rates. Integrys
Energy Group will continue to monitor and manage potential risks and
opportunities associated with future greanhouse gas regulatory actions.

Natural Gas Charge Reconciliation Proceedings and
Related Matters

Natural Gas Charge Settlement
Fer PGL and NSG, the ICC conducts annuzl proceedings regarding the

reconciliation of revenues from the natural gas charge and related
natural gas costs. The natural gas charge represents the cost of natural
gas and transportation and storage services purchased by PGL and
NSG (Gas Charge). In these proceedings, interested parties review the
accuracy of the reconciliation of revenues and costs and the prudence
of natural gas costs recovered through the Gas Charge. If the ICC were
to find that the reconciliation was inaccurate or any natural gas costs
were imprudently incurred, the ICC would order the utility to refund the
affected amount to customers through subsequent Gas Charge filings.

Pursuant to a 200é settlement agreement related to fiscal year 2001-
2004 natural gas costs, PGL and NSG agreed to make payments of up
10 $30 million towards conservation and weatherization programs for
low and moderate income custormers. At the date of the PEC merger,
$25 millien of that amount had not yet been paid and was recorded as
a preacquisition contingency. At December 31, 2007, $20 milfion
remains unpaid and was incduded in other long-term liabilit/es.

PGL and N5G also refunded certain amounts related to fiscal 2001-2004
natural gas costs, but those refunds had been completed prior to the
PEC merger.

The settlement agreement provides that PGL and NSG will cooperate
with Chicago and the lllinois Attorney General (*AG™ to identify those
customers who were not receiving natural gas as of the date of the
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Agreement that are financial hardship cases. The hardship cases were
identified by the utilities, the AG, and Chicago. Following identification,
PGL and N5G reconnected the hardship cases. PGL and NSG forgave
all outstanding debt for reconnected customers. Although PGL and
NSG believe they have fully complied with this provision of the
Agreement, Chicago and the AG have indicated that they believe the
terms of the hardship program are broader than what PGL and NSG
believe they are obligated to implement. Management continues to
believe that it has fully complied with the obligations of the Agreement
with respect to the hardship program.

PGL and NSG agreed to conduct internal and extemal audits of their
natural gas procurement practices. An annual intemal audit is required
for five years, and the first two are completed. The external audit being
performed by a consulting firm retained by the ICC is in progress. No
findings or recommendations have yet been issued.

The fiscal 2005 Gas Charge reconciliation cases were initiated in
Navember 2005. The settlement of the prior fiscal years’ Gas Charge
reconciliation proceadings daes not affect these cases, except for PGL's
agreement to credit fiscal 2005 Hub revenues as an offset to utility
customers’ natural gas charges. The ICC staff and intervener witnesses
recommended disallowances. The majority of the recommended
disallowances are for a one-time adjustment to transportation customers’
bank {storage) natural gas liability balances. For PGL, the ICC issued its
order, which accepted the administrative law judges' recommendations
and ICC staff's recommended disallowances in their entirety, on January 16,
2008. The gas cost disallowance for PGL is $20.5 million. For NSG, the
ICC issued its order, which accepted the administrative law judges’
recommendations and ICC staff’s recommended disallowances in their
entirsty, on January 16, 2008. The natural gas cost disallowance for NSG
is $1.0 million. On February 14, 2008, PGL and NSG filed for rehearing
on one of the two bank (storage) gas liability issues. The disallowance for
the rehearing issue is approximately $0.8 millian for PGL and $0.3 million
for NSG. The ICC must act on rehearing no later than March 5, 2008,
The customer refunds from the 2005 Gas Charge recondiliation cases
have been accounted for as a preacquisition contingency. As of
December 31, 2007, PGL and NSG recorded a current liability of

$22.5 million and $1.1 million, respectively, including interest.

The fiscal 2006 Gas Charge reconciliation cases were initiated on
Navember 21, 2006. PGL and NSG filed their direct testimony on

April 10, 2007. On May 16, 2007, the ICC initiated Gas Charge
reconciliation cases for the period of October 2006 through December
2004 to cover the gap created by PGL and N5G's change to a calendar
year reconciliation period. The ICC staff moved to consolidate the new
cases with the fiscal 2006 caces, and the administrative law judge
granted the metion in July 2007. PGLs and NSG’ direct testimony for
the October through December 2006 period was filed on Qctober 17,
2007, There is 3 status hearing scheduled for March 17, 2008, to set a
schedule. As of December 31, 2007, the amounts recorded related to
the 2006 Gas Charge reconciliation cases were insignificant.

The ICC initiated the calendar year 2007 Gas Charge reconciliation
cases on November 28, 2007. The initiating order directs PGL and NSG
to file direct testimony on April 15, 2008. There is a status hearing
scheduled for July 15, 2008,

Clags Action

In February 2004, a purported class action was filed in Cook County Circuit
Court against PEC, PGL, and NSG by customers of PGL. and NSG,
allaging, amang other things, viclation of the Illinais Consumer Fraud and
Deceptive Business Practices Act related to matters at issue in the utilities’
fiscal year 2001 Gas Charge recondiliation proceedings. The suit, Alport et
al. v. Peoples Energy Corporation seeks unspecified compensatory and
punitive damages. PGL and NSG have been dismissed as defendants and
the only remaining counts of the suit allege viclations of the Consumer

Fraud and Daceptive Business Practices Act and that PEC acted in concert
with others to commit a tortious act. PEC denies the allegations and is
vigorously defending the suit.

Based upon the settlement of the ICC’ final orders in PGLs and NSG's
fiscal years 2001 through 2004 reconciliation cases, the court, on
September 25, 2006, granted in part PEC's metion to dismiss the case
by limiting the potential class members in the suit to those persons who
were customers during the time that PEC's joint venture with Enron was
in operation and did not receive part of the settlement proceeds from
the reconciliation cases. However, the court denied PEC's mation to
dismiss the case to the extent that the complaint seeks punitive
damages (regardless of whether such customers received part of the
settlement proceeds from the recondliation cases}. The plaintiffs filed a
third amended complaint and a motion for class certification, and an
April 25, 2007, the Court denied, without prejudice, pleintiffs motion
for class certification. On June 29, 2007, PEC filed a motion to dismiss
the proceeding for failure to join a necessary party. Plaintiffs filed an
amended complaint on July 11, 2007. On December 4, 2007, the court
denied PEC’s motion to dismiss. Managerment cannot predict the
outcome of this litigation at this time.

Corrosion Control Inspection Proceeding

lllincis state, as well as federal laws, require natural gas utilities to
zonduct periedic corrosion control inspections on natural gas pipelines.
On April 19, 2006, the ICC initiated a citation proceeding related to such
inspections that were required to be performed by PGL during 2003 and
2004, but which were not completed in the requisite timeframe. On
December 20, 2006, the ICC entered an order approving a stipulation
between the parties to this proceeding under which PGL agreed that it
had not been in compliance with applicable regulations, and further
agreed to pay a penalty of $1.0 million, pay for a consultant to conduct a
comprehensive investigation of its compliance with ICC pipeline safety
regulations, remain compliant with those regulations, not seek recovery
in future rate cases of certain costs related to non-compliance, and hold
meetings with the City of Chicago to exchange information. This order
resolved only the ICC proceeding and did not constitute a release of any
other potential actions outside of the ICC proceeding. With respect to
the comprehensive investigation, the ICC selected an auditar for this
matter and the auditor, the 1CC staff, and PGL began the investigation
process during the second quarter of 2007. No findings or
recommendations have yet been communicated.

On May 16, 2006, the AG served a subpoena requesting documerits
relating to PGLS corrosion inspections. PGL's counsel has met with
representatives of the AG's office and provided documents relating ta
the subpoena. On July 10, 2006, the United States Attorney for the
Northern District of lllinois served a grand jury subpaena on PGL
requesting documents relating to PGLs corrosion inspections. PGLs
counsel has met with the United States Attarney’s office and provided
documents relating to corrosion inspections. PGL has had no further
communication with the United States Attorney’s office since that time.
Management cannot predict the outcome of this investigation and has
not recerded a liability associated with this contingency.

Builders Class Action

In June 2005, a purported class action was filed against PEC and its
utility subsidiaries by Birchwood Builders, LLC in the Circuit Court of
Cook County, lllinois alleging that PGL and NSG were fraudulently and
improperly charging fees to customers with respect to utility
connections, disconnections, reconnections, relocations, extensions of
natural gas service pipes and extensions of distribution natural gas mains
and failing to retum related customer deposits. PGL and NSG filed two
mations to dismiss the lawsuit. On January 25, 2007, the judge entered
an order dismissing the complaint, but allowing the plaintiffs the option
of filing an amended complaint fexcept as to the plaintiffs’ seeking of
dedaratory relief, which was dismissed with prejudice). The judge also



file://''/nMjp

ruled that the plaintifts could file their claims directly with the ICC. On
June 28, 2007, plaintiffs filed an amended complaint with the Circuit
Court. PGL and NSG responded by filing motions to dismiss and are

NOTE 18—GUARANTEES

As part of normal business, Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries
enter inta various guarantees providing financial or performance
assurance to third parties on behalf of certain subsidiaries. These
guarantees are enterad into primarily to support or enhance the
creditworthiness otherwise attributed to a subsidiary on a stand-alone

basis, thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit to accomplish

the subsidiaries’ intended commercial purposes.

Most of the guarantees issued by Integrys Energy Group include inter-
company guarantees between parents and their subsidiaries, which are
eliminated in consclidation, and guarantees of the subsidiaries’ own
performance. As such, these guarantees are excluded from the
recognition and measurement requirements of Interpretation No. 45.

awaiting a decision on these motions. PEC and its utifity subsidiaries
continue ta believe they have meritorious defenses and intend to
vigarously defend against the class action lawsuit.

The following table shows Integrys Energy Group’s ouistanding
guarantees at December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005:

December 31,

(Millians} 2006 2005

Guarantees of subsidiary debt
and revolving line of credit
Guarantees supporting commadity
transactions of subsidiaries

g$ 1783 § 272

1,3140 11547

Standby letters of credit 155.3 114.3
Surety bonds 1.2 08
Other guarantees 10.2 13.6

Total guarantees $1,659.0 $1,310.6

Integrys Energy Group's outstanding guarantees at December 31, 2007, will expire as shown in the following table:

(Mitlions)

Guarantees of subsidiary debt and revolving line of credit
Guarantees supperting commaodity transactions
of subsidiaries
Standby letters of credit
Surety bonds
Other guarantees

Total guarantees

At December 31, 2007, management was authorized to issue corporate

guarantees in the aggregate amount of up to $2.1 billion to support the

business operations of Integrys Energy Services. The following
outstanding amounts are subject to this timit:

(Milfions)

Guarantees supporting commodity
transactions of subsidiaries

Guarantess of subsidiary debt

Standby letters of credit

Surety bonds

Total guarantees subject to $2.1 billion limit

In February 2008, Integrys Energy Group's Board of Directors increased
this limit to $2.35 billion.

Of the parental guarantees provided by Integrys Energy Group to
Integrys Energy Services, the current amount at Decemnber 31, 2007,
which Integrys Energy Group wouid be obligated to support, is
approximately $620.1 million.

At December 31, 2007, Integrys Energy Group's $203.1 million of
outstanding guarantees supporting subsidiary debt and revolving lines
of credit consisted of the following:

® An agreement to fully and uncenditionally guarantee PEC's
$400.0 million revolving line of credit,

B An agreement to fully and unconditionally guarantee, on a senior

unsecured basis, PEC's obligations under its $325.0 million, 6.90%
notes due January 15, 2011,
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m A $150.0 million credit agreement at Integrys Energy Services
used fo finance natural gas in storage and margin reguirements
related to natural gas and electric contracts traded on the NYMEX
and the Intercontinental Exchange (ICE), as well as for general
corporate purposes, and

m 5281 million of guarantees supporting cutstanding debt at Integrys
Energy Services' subsidiaries, of which $71.1 million is subject to
Integrys Energy Services' parental guarantee limit discussed above.

At December 31, 2007, Integrys Energy Group’s $1,907.4 million of
outstanding guarantees supporting cemmadity transactions of
subsidiaries consisted of the following:

@ Parental guarantees of $1,761.0 million to support the business
operations of Integrys Energy Services, of which $8.1 million is
not included in the table an the left of guarantees subject 1o the
$2.1 billion limit, due to specific authorization received from
integrys Energy Group's Board of Directors,

w  $0.1 million, of an authorized $15.0 million, of corparate guarantees
to support energy and transmission supply at UPPCO that are not
reflected on Integrys Energy Group's Consolidated Balance Sheet,

® Guarantees of $60.9 million and $75.4 million, respectively, related
to natural gas supply at MGUC and MERC. Corporate guarantees
in the amounts of $75.0 million and $125.0 million have been
authorized by Integrys Energy Group’s Board of Directors to support
MGUC and MERC, and

m $10.0 million, of an authorized $125.0 million, to support business
operations at PEC.
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At December 31, 2007, financial institutions, at the request of Integrys
Energy Group, have issued $137.1 million in standby letters of credit
for the benefit of third parties that have extended credit to certain
subsidiaries. Of this amount, $132.5 million was issued to support
Integrys Energy Services’ operations, including $2.5 million that
received specific authorization from Integrys Energy Group's Board of
Diiractors; $4.3 million was issued for workers compensation coverage
in llinois; and the remaining $0.3 million relates to letters of credit at
MGUC and MERC. Any amounts owed by our subsidiaries are reflected
in Integrys Energy Group's Consolidated Balance Sheet.

At December 31, 2007, Imegrys Energy Greup furnished $1.7 million
of sursty bonds for various reasons, including werker compensation
coverage and obitaining various licenses, permits, and rights of way.
Liabilities incurred as a result of activities covered by surety bonds are
included in Integrys Energy Group’s Consolidated Balance Sheet.

At December 31, 2007, Integrys Energy Group’s outstanding
$10.2 million of other guarantees consisted of the following:

& A guarantee issued by WPSC to indemnify a third party for
exposures related to the construction of utility assets. This amount is
not reflected on the Censolidated Balance Sheet, as this agreement
was enterad into prior to the effective date of Interpretation No. 45.
The maximum exposure related to this guarantee was $3.8 million at
December 31, 2007, and $4.2 million at December 31, 2006.

NOTE 19—EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Defined Benefit Plans

integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries have three non-contributory
qualified retirement plans covering substantially all employees, as well
as several unfunded nonqualified retirement plans,

Integrys Energy Group alse currently offers medical, dental, and life
insurance benefits to employees and their dependents. Integrys Energy
Group expenses the costs of these benefits for active employees as
incurred and funds benefits for retirees through irrevocable trusts as
allowed for income tax purposes.

The net periodic benefit cost associated with the plans is allocated

among integrys Energy Group's subsidiaries, Actuarial caleulations are
performed (based upon specific employees and their related years of
setvice) in order to determine the appropriate benefit cost allccation.

The costs of pension and ather postretirement benefits are expensed
over the period during which the employee renders service. The
transition obligation related te plans that existed at Integrys Energy
Group prior to the PEC merger is being recognized over a 20-year
pericd beginning in 1993, Integrys Energy Group uses a December 31
measurement date for all of its plans.

Integrys Energy Group adapted SFAS No. 158, “Employars’ Accounting
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an
amendmeant of FASB Statements Mo. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R),” at
December 31, 2006. SFAS No. 158 requires employers to recognize a
defined benefit postretirement plan’s funded status in the balance
sheet, and recognize changes in the plan’s funded status in
comprehensive income in the year in which the changes oceur. Integrys
Energy Group's regulated utilities record changes in the funded status
to regulatory asset or liability accounts, pursuant to SFAS No. 71,

B A liability related to WPSC's agreement to ingemnify Dominion
for certain costs arising from the resolution of design bases
dacumentation issues incurred prior to Kewaunee's scheduled
maintenance period in 2009, As of December 31, 2007, WPSC had
paid $4.8 million to Dominicn related to this guarantee, reducing
the liability to $4.1 million. The liakility recorded for this guarantee
was $5.3 million at December 31, 2006.

m A $2.3 million indemnification provided by Integrys Energy Services
related to the sale of Niagara. This indemnification related to
potential contamination from ash disposed from this facility, A
$0.2 million liability was recorded related to this indemnification
at December 31, 2007.

Typicaily, under agreements related to the sale of assets or subsidiaries,
Integrys Energy Group of its subsidiaries agree to indemnify the buyers
for losses resuliing from potential breaches of Integrys Energy Group’s
or its subsidiaries’ representations and wamanties thereunder. Integrys
Energy Group believes the likelihood of having to make any material
cash payments under these sales agreements as a result of breaches of
representations and wasranties is remote, and as such, has not recorded
any liability related to these agreements.

During the third quarter of 2007, Integrys Energy Group made a series
of changes to certain of its retirement benefit plans. Specifically, the
changes indude:

® Closure of the defined benefit pension plans to non-unian new hires,
effective as of January 1, 2008;

m A freeze in defined benefit pension service accruals for non-union
employess, effective as of January 1, 2013;

® A freeze in compensation amounts used for determining defined
benefit pension amounts for non-union employees, effective as of
January 1, 2018;

m Revised eligibility requirements for retiree medical benefits for
employees hired on ar after January 1, 2008, and the introduction,
beginning in 2013, of an annual premium raduction cradit for
employees retiring after December 31, 2012; and

m Closure of the retiree dental and life benefit programs to all new
hires, effective January 1, 2008, and elimination of these benefits for
any existing employees retiring after December 31, 2012,

As a result of the changes described above, Integrys Energy Group
remeasured certain of its pension and other postretirement benafit
obligations as of August 1, 2007. The curtailment gains and losses
recognized, as a result of the plan design changes, were not significant
and are included in the table on the next page.

A second remeasurement occurred on October 1, 2007, because the

ratification of a union contract resutted in changes to a postretirement
medical plan. The changes did not result in a curtailment.
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The following 1ables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the plans’ benefit obligations and fair value of assets during 2007, 2006, and 2005,

{Millions) Pension Benefits Other Benefits
Reconciliation of benefit obligation ‘ ;
(qualified and non-qualified plans) 20046 2005 2005
Obligation at January 1 $727.8 $720.7 $294.7
Service cost 24.2 239 80
Interest cost 421 40.3 16.5
Plan amendments - - -
Flan curtailiments - - -
Plan spin off - Kewaunee sale - (25.7) {13.3)
Plan acquisitions — MGUC and MERC 60.8 - -
Plan acquisitions — PEC - - -
Actuarial {gain) loss — net (12.5) 82 (2.6}
Participant contributions - - -
Benefit payments {48.1) (35.6) (5.4
Federal subsidy cn benefits paid - - -
Obligation at December 31 $787.3 $727.8 $286.9
{Milfions) Pension Benefits
Recondliation of fair value of plan assets %
{qualified plans) 2006 2005 2005
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $583.0 $588.9 $170.9
Actual retum on plan assets 67.3 397 1.3
Employer contributions 253 8.2 204
Participant contributions - - -
Plan spin off — Kewaunee sale - {(15.5) (10.4
Flan acquisitions — MGUC and MERC 45.0 - -
Plan acquisitions — PEC - - -
Benefit payments (46.6) (38.3) 9.7
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $674.0 $583.0 $183.0
Amounts recognized in Integrys Energy Group’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31 related to the benefit plans consisted of:
Pensicn Benefits Other Benefits

{Millicns)

2006

MNoncument assets
Current iabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defired benefit pension plans
was $1.1 billion and $700.1 million at December 31, 2007, and 2004,
respectively. Information far pension plans with an accumulated benefit
obligation in excess of plan assets is presented in the following table.

December 31,
(Millions) et 2006
Projected benefit obligation $34.3
Accumulated benefit chligation 322

Fair value of plan assets

Moving Forward
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The following takle shows the amounts that have not yet been recognized in Integrys Energy Group's net periodic benefit cost as of December 21,
Amounts related to the nonregulated entities are included in accumulated other comprehensive income, while amounts related to the utilities are

recorded as regulatory assets or liabilities.

Pension Benefits

Other Bansfits

{Millions}

Accumulated other compreahensive income (pre-tax)
Net actuarial loss
Prior service costs (credits)

Total

Net regulatory assets

Net actuarial loss (gain)

Prior service costs (oredits)

Transition obligation

Merger related regulatory adjustrnent

Total

Integrys Energy Group recorded the PEC pension assets acquired and
iiabilities assumed at fair value at the February 2007 acquisition date.
PGL and NSG continue to have rates set based on their historical basis
of accounting, including amontizations of prior service cost, actuarial
losses, and transition cbtigations, which were recognized in the
Consclidated Financial Statements as regulatory assets at the purchase
date. The amount reflected in net pericdic benefit cost in the table
below is based on the amount used in the rate-setting process for PGL
and NSG. The difference in the basis of accounting is shown as a
merger related regulatory adjustment in the table above.

The estimated net loss and prior service cost for defined bensfit
pension plans that will be amortized as a component of net periodic

benefit cost during 2008 are $0.9 million and $5.1 million, respectively.
The estimated net loss, prior service credit, and transition obligation
for other postretirement benefit plans that will be amortized as a
component of net periodic benefit cost during 2008 are $0.6 million,
%(3.8} millicn, and $0.3 million, respectively. The estimated merger
related regulatory adjustment that will be amortized as a component of
net periodic benefit cost for defined pension and other postretirement
benefit plans during 2008 is $2.6 million and $2.7 milfion, respectively.

The following table presents the components of the consolidated net
periodic benefit cost for the plans:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
(Millians} 2006 2005 2004 2005
Net periodic benefit cost
Service cost $24.2 $23.9 71 $ 80
Interest cost 421 40.3 17.3 16.5
Expected return on plan assets (44.2) (43.6) (13.5) (12.5)
Plan curtailments (gain) loss - - - -
Amortization of transition obligation 0z 0.2 04 04
Amoriization of prior-service cost (credit) 5.1 5.3 2.2 (2.2)
Amortization of net loss 2.8 8.7 5.3 55
Amortization of merger related requlatory adjustment - - - -
Net periodic benefit cost $37.2 $34.8 $14.4 $15.7
Assumptions — Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans
The weighted average assumptions used at Decermber 31 in accounting for the plans are as follows:
Pension Benefits Cthar Benefits

2006 2005 2006 2005
Discount rate for benefit obligations 5.87% 5.65% 5.87% 5.66%
Discount rate for net periodic benefit cost 5.65% 5.75% 5.65% 5.75%
Expected retum on assets 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 8.50%
Rate of compensation increase 5.50% 5.50% - -




The assumptions used for Integrys Enargy Group’s medical and dental cost trend rates are shown in the following table:

Assumed medical cost trend rate (under age 45)
Ultimate trend rate
Uhimate trend rate reached in

Assumed medical cost trend rate (over age 65)
Ukimate trend rate
Ultimate trend rate reachad in

Assumed dantal cost trend rate

2006 2005
2.0% 10.0%
5.0% 5.0%

2010 2010

11.0% 12.00
6.5% 6.5%

2011 2011

5.0% 5.0%

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the
amounts reported by Integrys Energy Group for the health care plans.
A 1% change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the
following effects:

{Millions)

Intagrys Energy Group

Effect on total of service and interest
cost components of net periodic
postretirement health care benefit cost

Effect on the health care component
of the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits Plan Assets
Weighted-average asset allccations of the plans at December 31, 2007,
and 2006, are as follows:

Pension Plan Postretirement

Assets at Plan Assats at

Decarmber 31, December 31,

Asset category 2006 2006

Equity securities 60% 81%

Debt securities 35% 39%
Real estate 5% -

Total 100% 100%

The target asset allocations far plans in place prior to the PEC merger
for the above listed asset classes are as follows: pension plan—equity
securities 0%, debt securities 35%, and real estate 5%; postretirement
plan—equity securities 65% and debt securities 35%. The target asset
allocations for plans acquired in the PEC merger are as follows: pension
plan—equity securities 70% and debt securities 30%; postretirement
plan—equity securities 60% and debt securities 40%. The Board of
Directors has established the Employee Benefits Administrator
Committee 1o manage the operations and administration of all banefit
plans and related trusts. The Committee periodically reviews the asset
allocation, andl the portfolio is rebalanced when necessary

Cash Flows Related to Pension and Other
Postretirement Benefit Plans

Integrys Enargy Group’s funding palicy is to contribute at least the
minimum ameunts that are required to be funded under the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act, but not more than the maxirmum
amounts that are cumently deductible for income tax purposes. Integrys
Energy Group expects to contribute $24.8 million to pension plans and
$12.8 million to other postretirement benefit plans in 2008.

The following table shows the payments, reflecting expected future
service, which Integrys Energy Group expects to make for pensicn and
other postretirement benefits. In addition, the table shows the expected
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federal subsidies, provided under the Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Madernization Act of 2003, which will partially offset
ther pastretirement benefits.

(Milfions)

2013-20n7

Defined Contribution Benefit Plans

Integrys Energy Group maintains 401(k) Savings Plans for substantially all
full-time employees. Prior to 2008, employees generally could contribute
from 1% to 30% of their base compensation to individual accounts within
the 401{k) Savings Plan. The Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP)
required a match in the form of shares of Integrys Energy Group's
comman stock equivalent to 100% of the first 4% and 50% of the next
2% contributed by non-union employees. Certain non-union employess
automatically qualified for participation in the ESOP and certain union
employees receive a cantribution to their ESOP account regardless of
their participation in the 401(k) Savings Plan. The ESCP held 2.3 million
shares of Integrys Energy Group's common stack {market value of
$121.9 million) at December 31, 2007, Certain employees participate in
a discretionary profit-sharing contribution and/er cash match in place of
participation in the ESOP. Total costs incurred under these plans were
%$14.4 million in 2007, $9.4 millicn in 2006, and $8.4 million in 2005,

In conjunction with the PEC merger, Integrys Energy Group made
changes to the defined contribution benefit plans effective January 1,
2008, These changes include:

® A lump-sum company contribution compenent for certain
employees;

® Company match equivalent to 100% of the first 5% contributed by
non-union employees; and

® Employess can centribute up to 50% of their base compensation.

Integrys Energy Group maintains deferred eompensation plans that
enzble certain key amployees and non-employee directors to defer a
portion of their compensation or fees on a pra-tax basis. Non-employee
directors can defer up to 100% of their director fees. Compensation is
generzlly deferred in the form of cash, indexed to certain investment
options, or Integrys Energy Group common stock with deemed
dividends paid on the common stock automatically reinvested. Effective
March 31, 2008, the investment option of indexing to Integrys Energy
Group’s return on equity will ke closed to new contributions.
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The deferred compensation arrangements in which distributions are made
solely in Integrys Energy Group’s common stock are dlassified a5 an equity
instrument. Changes in the fair value of the deferred compensaticn
obligatiori-are not recognized. The deferred cormpensation obligation
associated with this amangement was $24.6 million at December 31,
2007, and $19.9 million at December 31, 2006,

The portion of the deferred compensation obligation associated

with deferrats that allow for distribution in cash is dassified as 2 liability
in the Consolidated Belance Sheets and adjusted, with & charge or
credit to expense, to reflect changes in the fair value of the deferred
compensation cbligation. The sbligation classified within other long-

term liabilities was $30.2 million at December 31, 2007, and
$26.8 million at December 31, 2006. The costs incurred under this
arrangement were $2.3 million in 2007, $3.0 million in 2008, and
$2.6 million in 2005.

The deferred compensation pragrams are pariially funded through
shares of Integrys Energy Group's common stock that is held in a rabhbi
trust. The commaon stock held in the rabbi trust is classified as a
reduction of equity in a manner similar to accounting for treasury stock.
The total cost of Integrys Energy Group’s commen stack held in the
rabbi trust was $14.7 million at December 31, 2007, and $13.2 million
at December 31, 2004.

NOTE 20—PREFERRED STOCK OF SUBSIDIARY

Integrys Energy Group's subsidiary, WPSC, has 1,000,000 authorized shares of preferred stock with no mandatory redemption and a $100 par value.

Outstanding shares are as follows at December 31:

(Millions, except share amounts)

Tota

2006
5 Shares Carrying
Series Outstanding Value
.00% 130,765 $13.1
5.04% 79,920 3.0
5.08% 42,928 5.0
&6.76% 150,000 15.0
6.88% 150,000 15.0
510,413 $51.1

All shares of prefenred stock of all series are of equal rank except as to
dividend rates and redemption terms. Payment of dividends from any
earned surplus or ather available surplus is not restricted by the terms
of any indenture or other undertaking by WPSC, Each series of
outstanding preferred stock is redeemable in whole or in part at WPSC's
option at any time on 30 days’ notice at the respective redemption
prices. WPSC may not redesm less than all, nor purchase any, of its
preferred stock during the existence of any dividend default.

In the event of WPSC's dissolution or liquidatian, the holders of
preferred stack ere entitled to raceive (a) the par value of their preferred

NOTE 21—COMMON EQUITY

Integrys Energy Group had the following shares outstanding at
December 31, 2007, and 2006, respectively:

Shares outstanding at December 31 2006
Comman stock, 31 par value,

200,000,000 shares authorized 43,387,440
Treasury shares 12,000
Average cost of treasury shares $25.19
Shares in deferred compensation

rabbi trust 311,666
Average ¢ost of deferred

compensation rabbi trust shares $42.24

Treasury shares at December 31, 2007, and 2006, refate 16 our
Non-Employee Directors Stock Optien Plan. All options under this plan
have a ten-year life, but may not be exercised until one year after the
date of grant.

We issue common stock under our Stack Investment Plan and under
certain of our stock-based employee benefit plans. These stack
issuances increased equity $45.7 million, $25.0 million, and

$29.0 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

stock out of the corporate assets other than profits befare any of such
assets are paid or distributed to the holders of common stock and

(b) the amount of dividends accumulated and unpaid on their preferred
stock aut of the surplus or net profits before any of such surplus or net
profits are paid to the holders of common stack. Thereafter, the
remainder of the corporate assets, surplus, and net profits shall be paid
to the holders of common stock,

The preferred stock has no pre-emptive, subscription, or conversion
rights, and has ne sinking fund provisions.

Pursuant to the merger with PEC, sharehaolders of PEC received

0.825 shares of Integrys Energy Group (then known as WPS Resources}
commen stock, $1 par value, for each share of PEC common stock, no
par value, that they held immediately prior to the merger. This resuited
in an increase in common stock outstanding of 31,238,491 shares and
increased equity $1.6 billien as of December 31, 2007,

In November 2005, Integrys Energy Group entered into a forward
aquity sale agreement with an affiliate of J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc.,
as forward purchaser, refating to 2.7 million shares of Integrys Energy
Group's common stock. On May 10, 2006, Integrys Energy Group
physically settled the forward equity agreement (and, thereby, issuad
2.7 million shares of common stock) and received proceeds of
$139.6 million. The proceads were used to pay down commerdial
paper borrawings originally utilized to finance the acquisition of

the natural gas distribution operations in Michigan and for general
corporate purposes.




Reconciliation of Integrys Enengy Group's Common Stock

common stock shares Shares Qutstanding
Balance at December 31, 2004 37,500,791
Shares issued
Stock Investment Flan 370,928
Stock-based compensation 262,714
Comman stock offering 1,900,000
Rabbi trust shares 55,465
Bakance a2t December 31, 2005 40,089,898
Shares issued
Stock investment Plan 404,878
Stock-based compensation 134,392
Comman stock affering 2,700,000
Rabbi trust shares 56,292

Balance at December 31, 2006
Shares issued
Merger with PEC
Stock Investment Plan
Stock-based compensation
Rabbi trust shares
Balanca at December 31, 2007

43,387 460

Dividends

Integrys Energy Group is a halding company and our ability to pay
dividends is largely dependent upon the ability of our subsidisries to pay
dividends to us. The PSCW has by order restricted our subsidiary, WPSC,
to paying nomal dividends on its common steck of no more than 103%
of the previous year’s common stock dividend. The PSCW also requires
WPSC to maintain a financial capital structure (i.e., the percentages by
which each of common stock equity, preferred stock equity and debt
constitute the total capital invested in a utility}, which has a common
equity range of 50% to 55%. The PSCW has also established a targeted
financial common eguity ratio at 52% that results in a regulatory commen
equity ratio of 57.46%. The primary difference between the financial and
the regulatory common ecuity ratio relates to certain off-balance sheet
obligations, primanly purchased power abligations, considered by the
FSCW in establishing the financial common equity target. Each of these
limitations may be madified by a future order of the PSCW. Qur right te

(Millions, except per share amounts)

receive dividends on the common stock of WPSC is also subject to the
priar rights of WP5C's preferred shareholders and to provisions in WPSC's
restated articles of incorporation which limit the amount of commen
stock dividends which WPSC may pay if its common stock and gcommon
stock surplus accounts constitute less than 25% of its total capitalization.
These limitations are not expected o limit any dividend payments in the
foreseeable future. At Dacember 31, 2007, WPSC had $335.9 miflion of
retained eamnings available for the payment of dividends.

LUPPCQ's indentures relating to its first mortgage bonds contain certain
limitations on the payment of cash dividends on its comman stock,
which s held solely by Integrys Fnergy Group. Under the maost resirictive
of these provisions, $26.1 million of retained earnings were available at
December 31, 2007, for the payment of common stock cash dividends
by UPPCO.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, PEC, MGUC, MERC, and
Integrys Energy Services have not made any dividend payments. Thase
companies do not have any dividend restrictions.

At December 31, 2007, Integrys Energy Group had $680.4 million of
retained eamings available for the payment of dividends. Integrys
Energy Group doues not have any dividend restrictions.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing income available for
comrnon shareholders by the weighted average number of shares of
comman stock outstanding during the periad. Diluted earnings per
share are computed by dividing income available for common
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares of common
stock outstanding during the period adjusted for the exercise and/or
conversion of all potentially dilutive securities. Such dilutive items
include in-the-money stock cptions, performance stock rights, and
shares related to the forward equity transaction discussed above. The
calculation of diluted earnings per shara for the years shown below
excludes some insignficant stock option and performance stock rights
that had an anti-dilutive effect. The fallowing table reconciles the
computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Numerator

Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations, net of tax

Cumulative effect of change in accounting pringigles, net of tax
Preferred stock dividends declared

Net earnings available far common shareholders

Denominator:

Average shares of common stock outstanding — basic
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options

Average shares of common stodk outstanding — diluted

Net earnings per share of commen stock
Basic
Diluted

2006 2005

$151.6 $150.6
7.3 11.5

- (1.6

(3.1) 3.1
$155.8 $157.4
42.3 383
0.1 0.4
42.4 38.7

$3.68 $4.11

367 407

5
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NOTE 22—STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

In May 2007, Integrys Energy Group’s shareholders approved the 2007
Ormnibus Incentive Compensatian Plan (2007 Omnibus Plan). Under the
provisions of the 2007 Omnibus Plan, the numkber of shares of stock that
may be issued in satisfaction of plan awards may not exceed 3,500,000,
and no more than 1,500,000 shares of stock can be granted as
performance shares or restricted stock. No additional awards will be issved
under prior plans, although the plans will continue to exist for purposes
of the existing outstanding stack-based compensation. At Dacember 31,
2007, stack options, performance stack rights, restricted shares, and
stock appreciation rights were outstanding under the various plans.

Stock Options

Under the provisions of the 2007 Omnibus Plan, ne single employee
who is the chiefl executive officer of Integrys Energy Group or any of the
other four highest compensated officers of Integrys Energy Group and
its subsidiaries can be granted options for more than 1,000,000 shares
during any calendar year. No stock options will have a term longer than
tan years. The exercise price of ezch stock option is equal to the fair
market value of the stock on the date the stock option is granted.
One-faurth of the stock options granted vest and become exercisable
each year on the anniversary of the grant date.

The fair values of stock option awards granied in May 2007 and
December 2006 were estimated using a binomial lattice model,

The expected term of option awards is caleulated based on histarical
exertise behavior and represents the period of time that options
granted are expected 1o be outstanding. The risk-free interest rate

is based on the U.5. Treasury yield curve. The expected dividend
yield incorporates the post-mergar dividand rate as well as historical
dividend increase patterns. Integrys Energy Group's expected stock
price volatility was estimated using the 10-year historical volatility.

The fair values of stock opticn awards granted in December 2005

were estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing madel. The
following table shows the weighted-average fair values along with
the assumptions incorperated into the models:

2006 2005
Weighted-average fair value $6.04 3440
Expected term &years & years
Risk-free interest rate 442%  4.38%
Expected dividend yield 490%  4.73%
Expected volatility 17% 12%

Total pre-tax compensation cost racognized for stock optiens during
the years ended December 31, 2007, and 2006, was $1.8 million and
$1.8 million, respectively. No compensation cost was recognized for
stack options in 2005, as Integrys Energy Group did not adopt the fair
value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), *Share-Based Payment,”
until January 1, 2006. The total compensation cost capitalized in 2007
and 2006 was immaterial. As of December 31, 2007, $1.% million of
total pre-tax compensation cost related to unvested and outstanding
stock options is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average
period of 2.9 years.

Cash raceived from option exercisss during the years ended Decamber 31,
2007, 2006, and 2005, was $14.0 million, $1.9 million, and $5.9 million,
respectively. The tax benefit realized from these option exercises was
$2.3 milfion in 2007, immaterial in 2006, and $1.3 million in 2005.

A summary of stock aption activity for the year ended December 31,
2007, and the number of outstanding and exercisable stock options at
December 31, 2007, is presented below:

Weighted-Average Aggregate
Weighted-Average Remaining Intrinsic
Stock Exercise Price Contractual Life Value
Options Per Share (in Years} Miliions)
Quistanding at December 31, 2008 1,968,625 $45.53

Converted options from merger
Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Expirad

Cutstanding at December 31, 2007
Exercisable at December 31, 2007

On February 21, 2007, all of PEC's then outstanding stock options were
converted into 377,833 integrys Energy Group stock options based on
the exchange rstio of 0.825. These options were fully vested prior to
the merger date.

During the years ended December 31, 2006, and 2005, the intrinsic value
of options exercised totaled $0.% million and $3.3 million, respectively.

The aggregate intrinsic value for outstanding and exercisable aptions in
the above table represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value that would have
been received by the option holders had they afl exercised their options at
December 31, 2007. This is calculated as the difference between Integrys
Energy Group's closing stock price on December 31, 2007, and the option
exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-the-money stock options.

Performance Stock Rights

Perfermance stock rights vest over a three-year performance period and
are paid out in shares of Integrys Energy Group's common stock. No
single employee whao is the chisf executive officer of Integrys Energy
Group or any of the other four highest compensated officers of Integrys

Energy Group and its subsidiaries can receive a payaut in excess of
250,000 performance shares during any calendar year. The number of
shares paid out is calculated by multiplying a performance percentage
by the number of outstanding stock rights at the completion of the
vesting period. The performance percentage is based on the total
shareholder return of Integrys Energy Group's commen stock relative to
the total sharehelder return of a peer group of companies. The payout
may range from 0% to 200% of target.

The fair value of performance steck right awards granted in December
2005 was estirmated using integrys Energy Group's common stock price
on the date of grant, less the present value of expected dividends over
the three-year vesting period, assuming a payout of 100% of targat.
The fair values of performance stack rights granted in May 2007 and
December 2006 were estimated using a Monte Carlo valuation model,
incorporating the assumptions in the table on the next page. The
risk-free interest rate is based on the U.%. Treasury yield curve. The
expected dividend yield incorporates the post-merger dividend rate as
wel! as historical dividend increase patterns. The expected vaolatility was
estimated using three years of historical data.

o




2006

Expected term

Risk-free intarest rate
Expected dividend yield
Expected volatility

Pre-tax compensation cost recorcled for performance stock rights for
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, was $3.5 million,
$2.8 million, and $3.4 million, respectively. The total compensation cost
capitalized during these same years was immaterial. As of December 31,
2007, $2.3 million of total pre-tax compensation cost related to
unvested and outstanding performance stock rights is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.7 years.

A summary of the activity related to performance stock rights for the
year ended Dacember 31, 2007, is presented below:

Performance  Weighted-Average
Stock Rights  Grant Date Fair Value
Outstanding at
Decernber 31, 2006 215,568 $45.58
Granted
Forfeited
Outstanding at
December 31, 2007

No performance shares were distributed during the year ended
December 31, 2007,

Restricted Shares
In December 2006, May 2007, and September 2007, a portion of the
long-term incentive was awarded in the form of restricted shares. Most

of these shares have a four-year vesting periad, with 25% of each award
vesting cn each anniversary of the grant date. During the vesting pericd,
award recipients have voting rights and are entitled to dividends in the
same manner as other common shareholders. Restricted shares have a
value equal to the fair market value of the shares on the grant date.
Total pre-tax compensation cost recognized for restricied shares was
$1.4 million during the year ended December 31, 2007, and immaterial
for the year ended December 31, 2006. The total compensation cost
capitalized in 2007 and 2006 was immaterial. As of December 31, 2007,
$3.8 million of total pre-tax compensation cost related o these awards is
expected to be recognized over a waighted-average period of 3.1 years.

A summary cf the activity related to restricted shares for the year ended
December 31, 2007, is presented below:

Restricted Weighted-Average
Shares Grant Date Fair Value
Outstanding at
December 31, 2006 71 35273
Granted - T
Vested
Forfeited

Outstanding at
December 31, 2007

Stock Appreciation Rights

On February 21, 2007, all of PEC’s then outstanding stuck appreciation
rights were converted inte 14,021 Integrys Energy Group stock
appreciation rights. The fair value of the stock appreciation rights is
estimated with a Black-Scheles model and was not significant at
December 31, 2007. No stock appreciation rights were issued during
the year ended December 31, 2007,

NOTE 23—REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

Wisconsin

On February 11, 2008, WPSC filed with the PSCW to regpen its 2008
fuel filing, requesting an increase in retail rates. The increase is intended
to recaver $13.4 million of additional fuel and related costs in 2008. The
increase in costs is due to a later start-up of the Weston 4 unit, increased
coal and coal transportation costs, and increesed natural gas costs. The
rate increase is anticipated to go into effect March 3, 2008, subject to
refund based on an audit of the fuel filing.

On Octoker 6, 2007, Weston 3, a 321.4-megawatt base load coal-fired
generating facility located near Wausau, Wiscensin, sustained damage
from a major lighning strike that ferced the facility out of service until
January 14, 2008. The damage required the repair of the generator
rotor, the turking rotors, and the boiler feed pumps. WPSC incurred
approximately $7 million of incremental pre-tax non-fuel operating and
maintenance expenditures through December 31, 2007, to repair and
return Weston 3 1o service. WPSC has insurance in place that is expected
to cover all equipment damage costs, less a $1.0 million deductible.
WPSC was granted approval from the PSCW to defer the costs, net of
insurance recaveries, for recovery in a future rate proceeding. WPSC also
incurred a total of $21.7 million of incremental pre-tax fuel and purchased
power costs through December 31, 2007, and a total of spproximately
$24 million: during the entire 14-week outage. WPSC filed a request

with the PSCW 1o defer the replacemant purchased power costs for

the Wisconsin retail portion of these costs and was granted approval
retroactive to Cctober &, 2007. 1t is anticipated that WPSC will recover

Moving Forward

replacement purchased power costs for the Michigan retail partion of
these costs through the armual power supply cost recovery mechanism.

Assuming favorable outcomes for the recovery of deferred replacement
purchased power and non-fuel operating and maintenance expenses,
WPSC does not expect this incident to have a material impact on
future eamings.

The PSCW approved the merger with PEC as of February 16, 2007,
The merger approval order contains the following conditions:

= WPSC will not have a base rate increase for natural gas or electric
servica prior to January 1, 2009. WPSC was allowed to adjust rates
for changes in purchased power costs as well as fuel costs related to
electvic generation due to changes in the NYMEX natural gas futures
prices, coal prices, and transpaortation costs for coal. WPSC made this
fuel and purchased power cost filing on August 14, 2007, requesting
an increase of $33.3 million (3.6%). The August 14, 2007, fuel and
purchased power cost filing included recovery of the increased
elactric transmission costs and recovery of deferred MISQ Day 2 costs
over three years. The PSCW granted a proposed increase effective
January 16, 2008, which reflected updated fuel and purchased power
cast information. The final rate order issued on January 15, 2008,
allowed for a $23.0 million (2.5%) retail electric rate increase and
included recavery of deferred 2005 and 2006 MISQ Day 2 costs
over a one-year period and increased transmission costs.
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B WPSC was required to seek approval for the formation of a service
company within 120 days of the closing of the merger. On June 8§,
2007, Integrys Energy Group and its regulated utilities filed
applications with the ICC, PSCW, MPUC, and MPSC seeking the
necessary regulatory approvals or waivers associated with the
formation and eperation of the service company. All required
regulatory approvals were recaived and Integrys Business Suppert,
LLC became an operational centralized service company on
January 1, 2008,

& WPSC will not recover merger related transaction costs. Recovery of
merger related transition costs in 2009 and later years will be limited
to the verified synergy savings in those years.

& WPSC will hold ratepayers harmlass from any increase in interest and
preterred stock casts attributable to nanutility activities, provided that
the authorized capital structure is consistent with the authorized costs.

B WPSC will not pay dividends to Integrys Energy Group in an amount
greater than 103% of the prior year's dividend.

On January 11, 2007, the PSCW issued a final written arder autharizing
a retail electric rate increase of $54.7 million (6.61%) and a retail natural
gas rate increase of $18.9 million (3.77%), effective January 12, 2007.
The 2007 rates reflect a 10.9% return on comman equity. The PSCW
also approved a common equity ratio of 57.46% in its regulatory capital
structure. The 2007 retail electric rate increase was required primarily
because of increased costs associated with electric transmission, costs
related to the construction of Westan 4 and the additional personnel to
maintain and operate the plant, and costs to maintain the Weston 3
generation unit and the De Pere Energy Center. The 2007 retail natural
gas rate increase was driven by infrastructure improvements necessary
to ensure the reliability of the natural gas distribution system and costs
associated with the remediation of former manufactured gas plant sites.

in 2006, WPSC filed an agreement with the PSCW to refund a portion
of the difference between the projected fuel costs in the 2006
Wisconsin retail rate case and actual fuel costs incurred fram January
2006 through March 2006, as well as the projected fuel savings in April
through June 2006. In March 2007, the PSCW approved a refund to
WPSC retail electric customers of $14.5 million. This refund had been
accrued at December 31, 2006. The refund resulted in a credit to
customers’ bills over the period mid-March through mid-April. At
Decamber 31, 2007, a regulatory liability of $1.9 million remained to be
refunded to customers in 2008, and was included in the final order for
the fuel filing and in the 2008 rate increase described previousty.

On December 22, 2005, the PSCW issuad a final written order authorizing
a ratail electric rate increase of $79.9 million (10.1%) and a retail natural
gas increase of $7.2 million [1.1%), effective January 1, 2006, The 2006
rates reflect an 11.0% return on commaon equity. The PSCW also
approved a common equity ratio of 57.7% in its regulatory capital
structire. The 2006 retail electric rate increase was required primarily
because of higher fuel and purchased power costs (including costs
associated with the Fox Energy Center power purchase agresment),
and also for costs related to the construction of Weston 4, higher
transmission expenses, and recovery of a portion of the costs related

10 the 2005 Kewaunee outage. Partially offsetting the items discussed
abave, retail electric rates were lowered to reflect a refund tc customers

of the proceeds received from the liquidation of the nonguzlified
decommissioning trust fund as s result of the sale of Kewaunee
(discussed below). The 2004 retail natural gas rate increase was driven
by infrastructure improvements nacessary to ensure the reliability of the
natural gas distribution systermn.

WPSC received $127.1 million of proceeds from the liquidation of the
Kewaunee nonqualified decommissioning trust fund in 2005, to be
refunded to customers in the following manner:

® The PSCW ruled that WPSC's Wisconsin custorners were entitled to
be refunded approximately 85% of the proceeds over a two-year
period beginning on January 1, 2006.

m  The MP5SC ruled that WPSC’s Michigan customers were entitled to be
refunded approximately 2% of the proceeds over a é0-month pericd,
beginning in the third quarter of 2005. Subsequently, the MPSC
issued an onder authorizing WPSC to amortize the approximately
$2 million remaining balance of the refund simultaneously with the
amortization of approximately $2 million of the 2005 power supply
under collections from January 2007 through July 2010.

®  The FERC ruled that WPSC's wholesale custorners were entitled
to be refunded the remaining 13% of the proceeds. A refund of
approximately $3 million was made to one customer in the second
guarter of 2006, which was offset by approximataly $1 million related
to both the loss WPSC recorded on the sale of Kewaunee and costs
incurred related to the 2005 Kewaunee outage. Pursuant to the FERC
order settlement received on August 14, 2007, WPSC completed
lump-sum paymaents to the remaining FERC customers of approximately
$16 million (indluding interest), representing their contributions to the
nongualified decommissioning trust fund during the petiod in which
they received service from WPSC. The settiernent would also require
these FERC customers to make two separate lump-sum payments to
WPSC with respect to the loss from the sale of Kewaunes and the
2005 Kewaunee power outage. Payments made to WPSC total
approximately $1 million and $8 millien, respectively, and were nattad
against the $16 million refund due to these customers.

At Decernber 31, 2007, WPSC had recorded a $1.3 million regulatory
liability representing the amount of proceeds received from the
liuication of the nonqualified decommissioning trust fund remaining
to be refunded in 2008.

The PSCW disallowed recovery of 50% of the 2005 loss on the sale of
Kewaunee. The entire loss had previously been approved for deferral,
resulting in WPSC writing off $6.1 million of the regulatory asset previously
recorded. WPSC petitioned the PSCW for rehearing on this matter; however,
the raquest for rehearing was denied and this decision is naw final.

On February 20, 2005, Kewaunee was temporarily removed from
service after a potential design wezknass was idantified in its auxiliary
feeclwater system. In WPSC’s 2006 rate case, the PSCW determined
that it was reasonable for WPSC to recover all deferred costs related to
the 2005 Kewaunee forced outage over a five-year period, beginning
on January 1, 2006. At December 31, 2007, $29.3 million was left to be
collected from ratepayers and remained recorded as a regulatory asset
related to this cutage.
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In 2005, WPSC received notification from its coal transportation suppliers
that extensive maintenance was required on the railroad tracks that lead
into and out of the Pewder River Basin. During the maintenance efforts,
WPSC received approximately 87% of the expected coal deliveries. WPSC
took steps 1o conserve coal usage and secured alternative coal supplies at
its affected generation fadlities during that time. The PSCW appraved
WPSC's request for deferrad treatment of the incremental fuel costs
resulting fram the coal supply issues. As of December 31, 2007, $3.0 million
was deferrad related 1o this matter. These costs were addressed in WFSC's
2007 retail electric rate case and will be recoverable in 2008.

Michigan

On December 4, 2007, the MPSC issued a final written order
authorizing a retail electric rates increase of $0.6 million, effective
Decemnber 5, 2007. WPSC' last retail electric rate increase in Michigan
was effective in July 2003. The 2008 rates reflact a 10.6% return on
common equity. The MP5C also approved a common equity ratic of
56.4% in its regulatory capital structure. The 2008 retail electric rate
increase was raquired hecause of increased costs primarily related to
the construction of Weston 4 and the costs tc maintain and operate the
plant, a decrease in industrial load, and inflation since July 2003. As
approved by the MPSC, effective December 5, 2007, WPSC also began
recavering the capacity payments related to its power purchase
agreement with Dominion Energy Kewaunee, LLC through the power
supply cest recovery mechanism.

On June 27, 2006, the MPSC issued a final written order authorizing a
retail electric rate increase for UPPCO that reflects a 10.75% retum on
common equity and a common equity ratio of 54.9% in its regulatory
capital structure, The increased retail electric rate does not reflect the
recovery by UPPCO of any deferred costs associatad with the Silver
Lake incident, which will be addressed in a future rate procesding.

lllinois

On March 9, 2007, PGL and NSG filed requests with the ICC to
increase natural gas rates on an annualized basis for PGL and N5G by
$102.5 million and $4.3 million, respectively, for 2008. Both the PGL
and NSG filings included an 11.06% return on common equity and a
common equity ratia of 56% in their regulatory capital structure. In
addition, PGL and NSG proposed the following "riders” that would
allow changes in costs to be passed through between rate cases, Cther
than the infrastructure rider, which was a rmechanism to recover the
retum on, and retum of, capital investment in excess of historical capital
investmant associated with accelerating the replacemant of cast iron
mains and only applied to PGL, the riders that applied to both PGL
and N5G wera:

B a “decoupling” mechanism that would allow PGL and NSG to adjust
rates going forward to recover or refund the difference between
actual recovered non-gas costs recovered in revenue and authorized
non-gas costs;
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B & mechanism to recover the natural gas cost portion of uncollectible
expense based on cument natural gas prices; and

m a2 mechanism to recaver $6.4 million and $1.1 million of energy
efficiency costs for PGL and NSG, respectively, under & program to
be approved by the ICC,

On February 5, 2008, the ICC issued a final written order authorizing

a rate increase of $71.2 million for PGL, which includes a return on
comman equity of 10.19% and a commen equity ratic of 56% in jts
regulatory capital structure, and a rate decrsase of $0.2 million for NSG,
which includes a return on comman equity of 9.99% and a common
equity ratio of 54% in its regulatory capital structure. The arder includes
approval of the decoupling mechanism as a four-year pilot and the
energy efficiency mechanism for both PGL and NSG. The infrastructure
mechanism (proposed by PGL) and the uncollectible expense
mechanism {proposed by bath PGL and NSG} were not approved,

PGL ane NSG filed tariffs in compliance with the order on February 8,
2008, and the new rates went into effect on February 14, 2008. A
rehearing request, which is a prerequisite for any party wishing to
appeal the order, is due 30 days after service of the order.

The PEC merger was effective February 21, 2007. PGL and NSG are
wholly owned by PEC. On February 7, 2007, the ICC approved the PEC
marger by accepting an agreed upon order among the active parties to
the merger case. The order included Conditions of Approval regarding
commiiments by the applicants to:

m provide certain reports,

B perform studies of the PGL natural gas system,

B promote and hire a limited number of union employees in
specific areas,

B maka no reorganization-related layoffs or position reductions within
the PGL union workforce,

B maintain both the PGL and NSG operation and maintenance and
capital budgets at recent levels,

m file a plan for formation and implementation of a service company,

m  accept certain limits on the merger-related costs that can be
recovered from ratepayers, and

B not seek cost recovery for any increase in deferved tax assets that

may result from the 1ax reatment of the PGL and NSG storage
natural gas inventory in connection with closing the merger.

Eor
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The Conditions of Approval also included commitments with respect

to the recently completed rate cases of PGL and NSG. These are

the inclusion of merger synergy savings of $11.4 million at PGL and
$1.6 millicn at NSG in the proposed test year, the recovery of $6.2 million
at PGL and $0.8 million at NSG of the mergerrelated costs in the test
year (reflecting recovery of $30.9 million at PGL and $4.2 million at NSG
of costs over 5 years), proposing a combined PGL and NSG $7.5 million
energy efficiency program which was contingent on receiving cost
recovery in the rate case orders, and filing certain changes to the small
volume transpertation service pragrams. Finally, the order provides
autherity for PGL and NSG to recover from ratepayers in a future rate case
up to an additional $9.9 millicr of cornbined merger costs, for a maximum
potential recovery of $44.9 million. PGL and NSG must demonstrate in the
future that merger synergy savings realized have exceeded the merger
costs. As of December 31, 2007, the regulatory asset balance representing
merger costs to be recovered totaled $12.8 million 2t PGL and $1.7 millicn
at NSG.

Federal

Through a series of orders issued by the FERC, Regional Through and
QOut Rates for transmission service batwesn the MISO and the
Pennsylvania, Mew Jersey, Maryland Interconnection were eliminated
aflective December 1, 2004. To compensate transmission owners for the
revenue they will no longer receive due to this rate elimination, the
FERC ordered a transitional pricing mechanism czlled the Seams
Elimination Charge Adjustmeant (SECA) to be put into place. Load-
serving entities paid these SECA charges during a 16-month transition
period from December 1, 2004, through March 31, 2006.

For the 1é-month transiticnal period, Integrys Energy Services raceived
billings of $1%.2 million {pre-tax} for these charges. Integrys Energy
Services expensed $14.7 million of the $19.2 miltion, as it is probable
that Integrys Energy Services’ total exposure will be reduced by at least
$4.5 million due to inconsistencies between the FERC's SECA order and
the transmissicn owners’ compliance filings. Integrys Energy Services
anticipates settling a portion of its SECA matters through vendor
negotiations in 2008. Integrys Energy Services has reached settlement
agreements with three of its vendors for a combined $1.6 million.

ln August 2006, the administrative law judge hearing the case issued an
Initial Decision that was in agreement with all of Integrys Energy
Services’ pasitions. If the Final Order, which is expected some time in
2008, is consistent with the Initial Decision of the administrative law
judge, Integrys Energy Services’ exposure of $17.2 million may be
reduced by as much as $13 million (pre-tax). The Final FERC Crder is
subject to rehearing and then court challenges. Any refunds to Integrys
Energy Services will include interest for the period from payment to
refund. Since SECA is a iransition charge that snded on March 31,
2006, it does not directly impact Integrys Energy Services’ long-term
competitiveness because tha only unresalved issue is the final FERC
Order and pending refund.

The SECA is also an issue for WPSC and UPPCQO. It is anticipated that
most of the SECA rate charges incurred by WPSC and UPPCO and any
refunds will be passed on to customers through rates, and thus, will not

have a material effect on the financial positian or results of operations
of WPSC or UPPCO.




NOTE 24—SEGMENTS OF BUSINESS

SFAS No, 131, "Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information,” reguires that companies disclose segment
information basad on how management makes decisions about
allocating resources to segments and measuring their performance.

Integrys Energy Giroup manages its reportable segments separately
due to their different operating and regulatory environments. At
December 31, 2007, Integrys Energy Group reported five segments,
which are described below.

m The two requlated segments include the regulated electric utility
cperations of WPSC and LUPPCO, and the regulated natural gas
utility operations of WPSC, MGUC, MERC, PGL, and N5G. PEC's
regulated natural gas utility operations (PGL and NSG) were
included in results of operations since the merger date.

m Integrys Energy Services is a diversified nonregulated energy supply
and services company serving residential, commercial, industrial, and

wholesale custormers in developed competitive markets in the
United States and Canada.

m The nonragulsted oil and natural gas production segment includes

the results of PEF, which were reported as discontinuad operations.
PEF engages in the acquisition, development and production of oil
and natural gas reserves in selected onshore basins in the United
States through direct ownership in oil, natural gas, and mineral
leases. In September 2007, Integrys Energy Group completed the
sale of PER.

The Holding Company and Cther segment, another nonregulated
segment, includes the operations of the Integrys Energy Group
helding company and the PEC holding company, along with any
nonutility activities at WPSC, MGUC, MERC, UPPCO, PGL, and NSG.
Equity earnings from our investments in ATC, WRPC, and Guardian
Pipeline, LLC (prior to its sale in 2006) are included in the Holding
Company and Other segment.

The tables below present information for the respectiva years pertaining
to our operations segmented by lines of business.

Electric Gas Total Energy  Natural Gas Company and Ruconcifing Energy Group

2007 (Milions) WHility @ Urtility ™ Utility ® Services Production Other®  Eliminations Consolidated
Income Statement
External revenues $1,202.9 $2,102.5 $3,3054 $£6,975.7 $ - $ 113 $ - $10,2924
Intersegment revenues 43.2 1.2 4.4 4.0 - 1.2 {49.6} -
Depreciation and

amortization expensa 80.1 97.7 177.8 144 - 29 - 195.1
Miscellaneous

income (expense) 8.3 55 13.8 0.3 01 8149 (30.9) 64.1
Interest expense 324 534 858 135 24 3.7 (30.9} 164.5
Provision {oenefit) for

incame taxes 5.5 14.5 66.0 262 {1.0) {5.3) - 86.0
Incame (foss) from

continuing operaticns 29.6 29.6 1192 83.2 2.5 (18.8) - 181.1
Discontinued operations - - - 148 58.5 - - 73.3
Preferred stock dividends

of subsidiary 2.2 09 a1 - - - - 31
Income (loss) available

for comman shareholders 874 28.7 116.1 8.0 56.0 {18.8) - 251.3
Total assets 2,470.8 47778 7.248.6 3,150.6 - 1,911.4 {1,076.2) 11,2344
Cash expenditures for

long-lived assets 202.6 158.8 361.4 20.5 - 10.7 - I92.6

WU includes only utility operations.
¥ Monuility operations are included Jn the Holding Company and Other cohem,

2 Gther miscellanaous income includes $52.3 millon of pre-tax income from equity method investments.

e o o
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Nonutility and
Regulated Utilities Nonregulated Operations
Natural Integrys Holding Integrys
Electric Gas Total Enargy Company and Reconciling  Energy Group
2006 (Millions) Utility @ Uhility Utility © Services Other Eliminations Consolidated
Income Statement
External revenues $1,0579 $676.1 $1,734.0 $5,151.8 3 49 $ - $6,890.7
Intersegment revenues 41.5 08 42.3 73 1.2 (0.8} -
Depreciation and
amaortization expense 785 327 1M.2 24 0.7 - 121.3
Miscellanecus income (expense) 3.2 1.0 42 (11.4) 6.0 (16.0) 42.8
Interest expense 300 18.1 48.1 154 51.7 (16.0) 992
Pravision {(benefit] for income taxes 48.6 1.5 50.1 5.0 .13 - 45.0
Income {loss) from
continuing operations 876 (1.3) 863 &5.0 03 - 151.4
Discontinued aperations - - - 73 - - 7.3
Preferred stock dividends of subsidiary 21 1.0 R - - - 31
Income (loss) available
for common sharehalders 85.5 2.3) B3.2 2.3 D3 - 155.8
Total assets 2,368.0 1,483.9 38519 27367 7415 458.4) €,861.7
Cash expenditures for
long-lived assets 2821 54.6 3367 5.5 0.2} - 342.0
It Inchuckes only utility operations.
& Monulifty operations are included in the Halding Company and Other calumn.
% Orher miscellanecus income includes $42.2 million of pre-tax income from equity mathad investments.
Nonutility and
Regulated WHilities Neonregulated Operations
Natural integrys Holding Integrys
Electric Gas Total Energy Company and  Reconciling Energy Group
2005 (Millions) Utility @ Uhility Utility Services Other ® Eliminations Consolidated
Income Statement
External revenues $1,003.6 $520.6 $1,624.2 £5,301.3 & - % - $4,852.5
Intersegment revenues 335 1.4 349 13.6 1.1 (49.6) -
Depreciation and
amortization expense 120.4 195 1399 25 03 - 149.7
Miscellaneous income (expense) 520 07 52.7 {0.8) 149 4.5 88.8
interest expense 27.1 87 358 4.4 26.3 (4.5) 62.0
Provision {benefit) for income taxes 37.0 73 443 2.4 2.3 - 3%9.6
Income from
continuing operations 66.2 14.3 80.5 642 59 - 150.6
Discontinued operations - - - 11.5 - - 1.5
Curnulative effect of change
in accounting princigle - - - (1.8) - - (1.6)
Preferrad stock dividends of subsidiary 20 1.1 31 - - - 21
Income availzble
for commen sharehclders 64.2 13.2 774 74.1 59 - 157.4
Cash expenditures for
long-lived assets 3739 364 410.3 2.7 0.9 - 113.9
W Includes anly ublity operations.
¥ Nonutiliy operations are included in the Holding Company and Cther column,
® Other miscellantous income includes $31.8 millian of pre-tax income from equity method investments,
2006 2005
Geoagraphic Information Long-Lived
{Millians) Ravenues Assats Revenues
United States $4,908.5 $3.605.1 $4.659.8
Canada * 1,982.2 2140 2,165.7
Total $6,890.7 $3.626.1 36,8255

* Revenues and assets of Canadian subsicharies.




NOTE 25—QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)

{Millions, except for share amounts) March Juna Septemabyor  Docomber - . Towl |
Operating revenues $2,746.5 $2,351.7 $21225 $3,0614 51024
Operating income (loss) 1831 {33.9 54.1 1641, A
Income (foss) from continuing aperations 1972.2 (3%.6) 11.4 Lo E . ¢ 2 M |
Discontinued operations, net of tax 230 240 323 T T = & N
Preterred stock dividends of subgidiary 0.8 (X 0.7 : J_g_.ﬁ o .....3“-1' .
Incomne {loss) available for common shareholders 1394 {164} 43.2 851 ) 25%.3
Average number of shares of common stock (basic) 575 746.0 76.2 745 716 -
Average number of shares of common stock (diluted) 57.8 76.0 76.5 76.6 718
Earnings (loss) per common share (basic) *

Income (loss) from continuing operatians $2.02 ${0.53) $0.14 $1.19 $2.49

Discentinued operations 0.40 0.31 0.43 0.0 1.02

Earnings (loss) per common share (basic) 242 {0.22) 0.57 141 35
Eamings (loss) per common share (diluted) *

Income (loss) from continuing operatians 2 0.53) 0.14 1.19 248

Discontinued operations 0.40 0.31 .42 {0.08) 1.02

Earnings (loss) per common share [diluted) 241 0.22) 0.56 1.1 350

* Earmings per share for the individua! quarters do not total the year ended eamings per share amount because of changes to the average number of shares outstanding and! changes in incremental
issuable shares throughout the year.

Three Months Ended
2006

{Millions, except for share amounts) March June September  December Total
Operating revenues $1.995.7 $1,475.3 $1,555.1 $1,864.6 $6,890.7
Qperating income 95.1 67.4 444 421 2492
Income from continuing operations 59.3 41.9 28.0 224 1516
Discontinued operatiors, net of tax 16 6.2) 12.2 0.3) 7.3
Preferred stock dividends of subsidiary 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.8 3.1
Income available for common shareholders 60.1 34.2 39.5 21.3 155.8
Average number of shares of commaon stock (basic) 40.3 422 433 435 423
Average number of shares of common stock (diluted) 40.6 2.2 434 43.6 424
Eamings (loss) per common share (basic) *

Incame from continuing operations $1.45 $0.97 $0.63 $0.50 $3.51

Discontinued operations 0.04 {0.14) 0.28 0.01) 017

Eamnings per cormmon share (basic) 1.49 0.83 o9 D49 3.68
Eamings (lozs) per common share {dilutecl) *

Income from continuing operations 1.44 0.97 0.63 0.50 3.50

Discontinued cperations 0.04 .14} 0.28 0.0 .17

Eamings per comman share (diluted) 1.48 0.83 091 0.49 3.67

™ Eamings per share for the indivicial quarters do not tota! the year ended earnings per share amount because of changes to the average number of shares outstanding and changes in increments)
isawable shares throughout the year

Because of various factors, the quarterly results of operations are not necessarily comparable.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Deloitte.

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Integrys Energy Group, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying conselidated balance
sheets of Integrys Energy Group, Inc. and subsidiaries {the
“Company”} as of December 31, 2007, and 2006, and the
related consolidated statements of income, common
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2007. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our epinion, such consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position

of Integrys Energy Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
Decamber 31, 2007, and 2006, and the results of thair
operations and their cash flows far each of the three years

in the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with
accounting principles generally acceptec in the United States
of America.

As discussed in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, at December 31, 2006, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158,
*Emplayers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension

and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of

FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).”

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as

of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established

in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsering Organizations of the Treadway
Cornmission and our report dated February 27, 2008,
expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal
control over financial repaorting,

Dabuith & Tpuche LLP

Milwaukea, Wisconsin
February 27, 2008




Financial and Other Statistics

As of or for Year Ended December 21
(Mifiions, except per share amounts, stock price, return on average equity,
and number of shareholters and employees)

Total revenues
Income from continuing operations
Income available for common shareholders

Total assats
Preferred stock of subsidiaries

Long-term debt {esccluding current partion)

Shares of cormmon stock (less treasury stock and shares in deferred compensation trust)
Outstarding
Average

Eamings per comman share (basic)
Income from continuing operaticns
Eamirgs per common shara

Earnings per common share (dilutad)
Income from continuing cperations
Famings per commen share

Dividend per share of comnon stock

Stock price at year-end

Baok valse per share

Retum on average equity

Nurmber of common stock shareholders
Number of employses

™ ncludes the impact of the Peoples Energy Corperation merger on February 21, 2007.

2006 @ 2005 2004 2003
$6,890.7 $6,825.5 $4,876.1 $4,309.8
151.6 150.6 156.6 107
155.8 157.4 139.7 Q4.7
68617 54625 43768 42923
511 511 51.1 51.%
1,287.2 847.1 865.7 871.9
43.1 39.8 37.3 36.6
42,3 383 374 330
£3.51 $3.85 34.10 $3.26
3.68 411 374 287
350 381 408 3.24
347 407 372 235
228 2.24 2.20 214
$54.03 £55.31 $49.96 $46.23
$35.61 $32.76 $29.30 $27.40
10.6% 13.6% 13.5% 11.5%
19,837 20,701 21,358 22,172
3,326 2,945 3,008 3,080

@ Includes the impact of the acquisition of natural gas distibution operations from Aquila by Michigan Gas Utilities Corperation on April 1, 2006, and Minnesota Energy

Resources Comporation on July 1, 2006.
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Board of Directors”*

Keith E. Bailey

Age 65 m Tulsa, Oklahoma

Former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer -
The Williams Companias, Inc.

{Director since 2005} W Financial Committee

Richard A. Bemis
Age 66 ® Sheboygan Fzlls, Wisconsin
Co-chairman of the Board of Directors — Bemis Manufacturing Company
(Diractor since 1983) ® Compensztion Committee m
Environmental Comimittee

James R, Boris

Age 63 B Chicago, lllinois

Former Chainman and Chief Executive Officer - Everen Capital Corporation
and Everen Securities, Inc. (formerly Kemper Securities, Inc.)

{Diractor since 199%) m Non-Executive Chairman

William J. Brodsky

Age 64 ® Chicago, lllinais

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer - The Chicage Board Options Exchange
{Director since 1997) m Compensation Committee

Albert J. Budney, Jr.

Age 60 w Dover, Massachusetts

Fomner President - Niagara Mohawk Holdings, Inc. and
Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation

{Director since 2002) @ Governance Committee (Chair)

Pastora San Juan Cafferty

Age 67 1 Chicago, lllinois

Professcr emerita - University of Chicago
{Director since 1988) m Governance Committee

Ellen Camahan

Age 52 ® Chicago, Hlinois

Managing Director - Seyen Capital Management LLC
Managing Director — William Blair Capital Management, LLC
{Director since 2003} m Audit Committes

Diana 5. Ferguson

Age 44 m Chicago, lllinois

Former Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer —
Merisant Worldwide, Inc.

{Director since 2005) m Audit Committee

Robert C. Gallagher

Age 69 W Green Bay, Wisconsin

Former Chairman of the Board - Associated Banc-Corp.
{Diractor since 1972) @ Financial Committes (Chair)

Kathryn M. Hasselblad-Pascale

Age 60 m Green Bay, Wisconsin

Maraging Partner — Hasselbtad Machine Company, LLP

(Director since 1987) B Environmental Committee (Chair} m
Governance Committee

John W, Higgins

Age 41 m Chicago, [llinois

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer — Higgins Development Partners
(Director since 2003) m Environmental Committee

James L. Kemerling

Age 68 w Wausau, Wisconsin

Presiclent and Chief Executive Officer — Riiser Oil Compary;, Inc.
(Director since 1988) m Audit Committee B Financial Committes

Michael E. Lavin

Age 62 m Chicaga, lllincis

Former Midwest Area Managing Partner = KPMG LLP
{Director since 2003) m Audit Committee (Chair)

John C. Meng

Age 63 m Green Bay, Wisconsin

Fommer Chairman of the Board — Schreiber Faods, Inc.
(Director since 2000} @ Compensation Committee {Chain

William F. Pratz, Jr.

Age 63 m Nerthfield, lllinois

Fomner President and Chief Executive Officer - Santa’s Best, LLP
{Director since 2001) B Audit Committee

Larry L. Weyers

Age 52 m Chicago, lllinais

President and Chief Executive Officer — Integrys Energy Group, Inc.
{Director since 1996)

* Age is 25 of Decamber 31, 2007. Years as director take into consideration service with Integrys Energy Group or Peoples Energy Corporation.

Management Team**

Lawrence T. Bargard Bradley A. Johnsen
President and Chief Operating Officer—  Vice President and Treasurer

Integrys Gas Group Age 53 m Years of service 2B
Age 46 ® Years of service 23

Thamas P. Meinz
Charles A. Cleninger Exerutive Vice President -
President — Minnesota Energy External Affairs

Resources Corporation
Age 49 m Years of service 26

Gary W. Erickson
Presicent— Michigan Gas
Utilities Corporation

Age 65 W Years of senvice 37

Diane L. Ford

Vice Fresident and
Corperate Controller

Age 54 B Years of service 32

Age 61 m VYears of service 38

Phillip M. Mikulsky
Executive Vice President and
Chief Developrment Officer
Age 59 # Years of servica 36

Thomas A. Nardi
Prasident — Integrys Business
Support, LLC

Age 53 ® Years of service 7

Charles A. Schrock
Presidant — Wisconsin Public
Service Carporation
Age 54 m Years of service 28

Barbara A. Nick

President — Upper Peninsula
Power Company

Age 49 w Yaars of service 23

Bernard J, Treml

Senior Vice President and
Chief Hurnan Resource Officer
Age 55 W Years of service 35

Jasaph P. O'Leary

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Age 53 B Years of service &

Mark A, Radtke Larry L. Weyers
President - Integrys Energy President and Chief Executive Officer
Sarvices, Inc. Age &2 @ Years of service 22
Age 46 W Years of service 24

Barth J. Wolf
Desirge Rogers Vice President - Chief Legal Officer
President — The Peoples Gas Light and Secretary

and Coke Company, and Age 50 ® Years of service 19
Presicent — North Shore Gas Company

Age 48 m Years of service 10

*= Title, 2ge, and years of service are as of December 31, 2007. Years of service take Into consideration service with Integrys Energy Group or a system company.
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Comparative Five-Year Investment Performance Graph @
The following graph presents a five-year comparison of:
B Integrys Energy Group's common stock cumulative total return,
B Standard & Poor'’s (S&P) 500 Index, and
® Edison Electric Institute (EEY) Gas and Electric Index for the last five fiscal years.
Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return®
300
250
200
L
0~
3
b |
o
)
150
100
50
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
YEAR
* integrys Energy Group -4~ S&P 500 Index  -® EE| Gas and Electric Index
2002 2003 2004 2003 2006
Integrys Energy Group 100 125 142 1464 167
S&P 500 Index 100 129 143 150 173
EEl Gas and Electric Index 100 135 156 183 221

. Assumes $100 invested on Decamber 31, 2002, in Integrys Enengy Group Commean Stock, S&P 500 Index, and EEI Gas and Electric index.

" This performance graph is not to be deemed 1o be filad with the Securities and Exchange Commission, except to the extent specifically
requested by Integrys Energy Group ar incorporated by reference in docurments otherwise filed.

® Total return assutnes reinvestment of dividends.

T e e g = B e G i Sk

Moving Forward




investor Relations WISCONSIM UTILITY lNVES'TC.JRS, iI.\IC. B .

integrys Energy Group, Inc. With aver 16,000 mem.bers, W.lscc?nsm Utility In.\:es‘tors, Inc. (WUI] lSl an

700 North Adams Street independent, no.n—profrt organization representing the coHectrvg voicas of
all sharehalders in Wisconsin utilities. It monitors and evaluates industry

Green Bay, Wl 54301 issues and trends and is a resourca far its members, regulators, and the

Mailing Address: public. WUl can be reached by calling 408-663-5813 or by e-mail at

integrys Energy Group, inc. contact@wuiinc.org.

P. Q. Box 1900t

Green Bay, Wl 54307-9001 MINNESOTA UTILITY INVESTORS, INC.

Telaphone: 800-228-4888 Minnesata Utility Investors, Ine. (MUI) is an independent, non-profit

Fax: 920-433-1524 organization representing the collective voices of nearly 27,000 shareholders

E-Mai!: investor@integrysgroup.com in efectric and gas utilities aperating in Minnescta. For more information,
MUI can be reached by caliing toll-free 888-850-5171 or by e-mail at
Financial Anaiyst inquiries mui@mnutilityinvestors org.

Steven P Zschbach, CFA EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

Vice President - Investar Relations integrys Energy Group, Ine. is committed to equal employment opportunity

integrys Energy Group, inc. for all qualified individuals without regard to race, color, religion, sex,

130 East Randolph Drive national origin, age, sexual orientation, dizability, disabled veterans, recently

Chicago, IL 60601 separated veterans, other protected veterans, and armed forces service

Telaphone: 312-228-5408 medal veterans, or any other pratected class. To this end, we support and
will cooperate fully with alt applicable laws, regulations, and executive

TEG Stock Exchange Listing orders in all of our employment policies, practices, and decisions.
New York Stock Exchange

nrem~ Ticker Symbol: TEG
NYSE. Listing Abbreviation: (ntegrysEngy

Transfer Agent and Registrar

For General Informatian:

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038

Web Site: www.amstock.com

E-Mail: info@amstock.com

Telephone: 800-236-1551 (toll free), 718-921-8124 (internationai)
Fax: 718-236-2641

For Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company

Wall Street Station

P . Box 922

MNew York, NY 10269-0550

Telephone: 800-2356-1551 (toll free)

LAy

%{9 Printed on paper that contains 10% total recovered fiber/all post-consumer fiber.
Subjects in photos were not placed in unsate conditions for the production of this Annual Report.

€ 2008 Integrys Enargy Group, Inc.

e
integrys-

Corporate Office
130 East Randolph Drive, Chicago, Il 60601 Telephone: 312-228-5400 Web Site: www.integrysgroup.com



mailto:Investor@integrysgroup.com
http://www.amstock.com
mailto:info@amstock.com
mailto:contact@wuiinc.org
mailto:mui@mnutilityinvestors.org
http://www.integrysgrDup.com

C-2 Exhibit C-2 “SEC Filings,” provide the most recent 10-K/8-K Filings with the SEC. If applicant does
not have such filings, it may subrhit those of its parent company. If the applicant does not have such
filings, then the applicant may indicate in Exhibit C-2 whether the applicant is not required to file
with the SEC and why.

Enclosed is the Integrys Energy Group, Inc's 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 and
the current 8-K.
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 8-K
CURRENT REPORT

Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Sacurities Exchange Act of 1934

Date of Report: May 15, 2008

(Date of earliest event reported)
Cammission Registrant; State of Incorporation
Eile Nuymber Address; and Teleph
1-11337 INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP, INC.
(A Wisconsin Comporation)
130 East Randolph Drive
Chicago, lllinois &60601-6207
(312) 228-5400

RS Employer
Identification N

39-1775202

Check the appropriate bax balow If the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultangously satisfy the filing obligation of the

regisirant under any of the following provisions:

[ ] Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 undar tha Securities Ast (17 CFR 230.425)

[ 1 Saliciting matarial pursuant to Ruls 14a-12 under the Exchange Act {17 CFRA 240.14a-12)

[ ] Precommancement communications pursuant o Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))

[ 1 Pre-commencement communications pursuant & Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchangs Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4{c}))



Item 5.03

liam 9.01

Amendments to Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws; Change In Fiscal Year.

Eftective May 15, 2008, the Integrys Energy Group Board of Directors approved iwo
amendments to its By-laws. First, Article Hll, Section 2 of the company’s By-laws was
amended to decrease the size of the Board of Directors from 16 members to 14 members.
Second, Article [ll, Section 5.c. of the company’s By-laws was amended to aliow the Lead
Director 1o also call special meetings of the Board of Directors.

Financial Statemoants and Exhibits.

(a)
(b)
(c)
)

Not applicable.
Not applicable.
Not applicable.
Exhibits. The {ollewing exhibits are being filed herawith;

(3.1)  Amendments to the By-laws of Integrys Energy Groun, Inc. effective May 15,
2008

(3.2)  Integrys Energy Group, Inc. By-laws as in effect at May 15, 2008



SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the reguirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Ragistrant has duly caused
this report 1o be signed on its behalf by the undsrsignad hereunto duly authorized.
INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP, INC.

By /s/ Bradley A, Johnson
Bradley A, Johnson
Vice Prasident and Treasurer

Date: May 20, 2008



Exhiblit
Number

(3.1)
(3.2)

INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP, INC.

Exhibil index to Form 8-K
Daied May 15, 2008

Amendments to the By-laws of Integrys Energy Group, Inc. May 15, 2008

Integrys Energy Group, Inc. By-laws as in sffect at May 15, 2008



1.

Exhibit 3.1

ARTICLE Iil. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Geneoval Powers

The business and affalrs of the Corporation shall be managsd by jts Board of Diractors.
The Board shall determine the nature and character of tha business to be conducted by
the Gorporation and the method of doing $0; what employees, agents, and officers shall
be emploved and their compensation; and what purchases or contracis for purchase shall
be made. The Board may delegate any of ils aforesald powers io committees or to
officers, agents, or employees as it may from time to fime detarmine. The Board of
Directors may elact from among the diraciors a Chairman of the Board of Directors and a
Vice Chalrman of the Board of Directors.

Number of Directors

designated Class A, Class B, and Class C. Each class shall consist, as nearly as may he
poseibla, of one-third of the total number of directors constituting the entire Board of
Directors.

Term

Tha term of the initial Class A dlrectors shall lerminate on tha date of tha 2007 annual
mesting of sharsholders; the term of the initial Class B directors shall terminate on the
dai= of the 2008 annual mesting of shareholders; and the term of the Glass C directors
shall terminate on the date of the 2009 annun! meeting of shareholders. At each annual
meeting of shareholders beginning in 2007, successors to the class of directors whose
term expires at that annual meeting shall be elected for a three-year term and until their
successors are elected and qualified. Hf the numbear of directors is changed, any increase
or decraase in directorships shall be apportioned among the classes so as to maintain
the number of directors in each class as nearly equal as possibie, and any additional
directors of any class elected to fill a vacancy resulling from an increase in such class
shall hold office for a term that shall coinclde with the ramalning term of that class, but in
no case will a decrease in tha number of directors shorten the term of any incumbent
diractor.

Gualifications

No director shall be eligible for re-election aiter attaining the age of 70 years. Directors
need not be shareholders of the Corparation or residents of the State of Wisconsin.

Meetings

The Board ol Directors shall hold its mestings at such place or places, within or without
the State of Wisconsin, as the Board may from time to time determine.

a. A meeting of the Board of Diseclors, o be known as the annual meeting, may be
held, without notice, immediately after and at the same place as the annual
meeting of the shareholders at which such Board is elecied, for the purpose of
electing the officers of the Corporation and to transact such other business as
may come bafore the Board. Such annual mesting may be held at a diffarant
place than the annual meeting of shareholders andfor an a date subsequent to
the annual meeting of sharehoiders, if notice of such different place and/or date
has been given fo or waived by all the directors.



b. Regular meelings of the Board of Directors may be held without call and without
notice, at such times and in such places as the Board may by resoluiion from
time fo fime datamine.

C. Special meetings of the Board of Dlrectors may be callad at any time by the
Chairman of the BoardEliEi gdd Hitetlor] or the Chist Executive Officer and
shall be called by the Sacratary of the Corparation upon the written request of
thres or more directors.

Notlce; Walver

Notice of aach special meating of the Board of Diractors shall be given by written notice
delivered or communicated in persan, by telegraph, teletype, facsimile or other form of
wire or wireless communication, or by mail or private cayrier, to each director at hig or har
business addrass or at such olher address as such diracior shall have designated in
writing filed with the Secretary, in each case not less than 48 hours prior to the meeting.
The notice nesd not prescribe the purpose of the special meeting of the Board of
Directors or the business 1o be transacted at such meeting. If mailed, such notice shall
be deemed to be effective when deposited in the United States mail so addressed, with
postage thereon prepaid. K notice is given by tslagram, stch notice shall be deamed to
be effective when the telegram is delivered ta the telegraph company. If notice is given
by private ¢arrier, such notice shall be deemed to be effective when delivered {o the
private carrier, Whenever any notice whatever I8 required to be given to any director of
the Corporation under the Articles of incorporation or these By-laws or any provision oi
the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law, a waiver theraof in writing, signed at any time,
whether betore or after the daie and tima of meeting, by the director entitled to such
natice shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. The Corporation shall
retain any such waiver as part of the permanent corperate records. A director's
atiendance at or participation in a meeting walves any required nctice to him or her of the
meeting unless the director at the beginning of the meaeting or promptly upon his or her
arrival chjects to holding the meating or transacting business at the mesting and does nat
theraafter vote for or assent to action taken af the mesting,

Quorum

Except as otherwige provided by the Wisconsin Business Carporation Law or by the
Articles of Incorporaiion or these By-laws, @ majority of the number of directors specified
in Section 2 of Article |l of these By-laws shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business at any mesting of the Board of Directors. Except as otherwise provided by the
Wisconsin Business Corporation Law, the Articles of Incorporaiion, or these By-laws, a
quorum of any committee of the Board of Directors created pursuant to Section 13 hereof
shall consist of a mgjorily of the number of directors appointed to serve on the committee.
A majority of the directors present (though less than such quorum) may adjourn any
meeting of the Board of Diractors or any committee thereof, as the case may be, from
tima to Ime without further natice.

Manner of Acting

The affirmative vote of a majarity of the directors prasent at a meeting of the Board of
Directors or a committee thereof at which a quorum Is present shall be the act of the
Beard of Directors or such committee, as the case may be, unless the Wisconsin
Business Corporation Law, the Articles of Incarporation, or these By-laws require the vole
of a greater number of directors.



10.

11.

12

13.

Minutes of Meetings

Minutes of any regular dr special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be prepared and
distributed to each director.

Vacancies

Vacancles accurring in the Board of Directors shall be filled in the manner provided in
Articie 5 of the Articles of Incorporation.

Compensation

The Board of Directors, inrespective of any peraonal inferest of any of its members, may
establish reasonebla compensation of all directors for services to the Comporation as
directors, officers, or otherwise, or may delagate such autherity to an appropriate com-
mities. The Board of Directors also shall have authority to provide for or delegate
authority to an appropriate commities to provide for reasonable pensions, disability or
death benefits, and other benefits or payments, to directors, officers, and amployees and
ta their estates, families, dependants, or henaficlaries on account of prior servicas
rendared by such directors, officers, and employees to the Corporation.

Presumption of Assent

A director who is present and is announced as present ai & meeting of the Board of
Directors or any commitiee thereol created in accordance with Section 13 of this
Article I, when corporate action is taken, assents o the action {iaken unlass any of the
following occurs:

a. The director objects at the beginning of the meeting or prompily upon his or her
arrival to holding the meefing or transacting business at the meeling;

b. The direcior's dissent or abstention from the action takan is entered in the
minutes of the mesting; or

c. The direclor delivers written notice that complies with the Wisconsin Business
Corperation Law of his or her diszent or abstention to the presiding officer of the
mesting belore its adjournment or 1o the Corporation immediately after
adjournment of the maeting.

Such right of digsent or abstention shall not apply to a diractor who votes in favor of the
actlon taken.

Committees

The Board of Diractors by resolution adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of all of
the directors then in office may create one or more committees, appoint members of the
Board of Directors o serve on the committees and designate other members of the
Board of Directors to serve as altemates. Each committee shail have at least one
member who shall, unless otherwise pravided by the Board of Direciors, serve af the
pleasure of the Board of Direclors. A committee may be authorized to exercise the
authority of the Board of Directors, except that a committee may not do sny of the
following: (a} approve or recommend to sharsholders for approval any action or matier
axpressly raquired by the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law, Chapter 180 of the
Wisconsin Statutes, to be submitted to sharehoiders for approval; and (b) adopt, amend
or repeal any By-Lew of the Corporation. Unleas atherwise provided by the Board of
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Directors In craating the committee, a committes may employ counsel, accountania and
other consuitants ta assisi it in the axercise of its authority.

Telephonic Meetings

Excapt as herein provided and notwithstanding any place set forth in the nofice of the
meeting or these By-laws, membars of the Board ol Diractors (and any commitises
thereof created pursuant to Section 13 of this Article 111} may participats in regular of
special meetings by, or through the use of, any means of communication by which all
perticipants may simuitaneously hear each other, such as by conference telephore. Ka
maeting is conducted by such maans, then at the commencament of such meeting the
presiding officer shall inform the participating directors that a meeling is taking place at
which official business may be transacted. Any participant In & meeting by such means
shall be deemed present in parson at such meeting. Natwithstanding the foregoing, no
action may be taken at any meeting held by such means on any particular matter which
the presiding officer determines, in his ot har sols discration, to be inappropriate under
the circurnstances for action at & mesting held by such means. Such determination shall
be made and anncounced in advance of such mesting.

Action without Neeting

Any action required or permiited by the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law to be taken
at a meeting of the Board of Directors or a committee thereof created pursuant to
Section 13 of this Article 1ll may be taken without a mesting if the action is taken by all
members of ihe Board or of the committee. The action shall be evidenced by ore or
more written consents describing the action taken, signed by each direcior or commitiee
member, and retainad by the Corporation. Such action shall be effective when the last
director or committee member signs the gonsent, unless the cansent specifies a different
sffective date.

Non-Executive Chairman of the Beard

if a Chairman of the Board of Directors shall be elected, he or she shall preside as
Chairman of all mestings of the shareheiders and of the Board of Directors. He or she
shall have such other authority as the Board may from time to ime prescribe. If there is
no Chairman of the Board, or in the absance of the Chairman, the prasiding officer at
meetings of the shareholders, and of the Board of Diractors shall be the Lead Director, if
any, cr in the ebsence of the Lead Director, if any, ancther officer in the following order of
priority: Vice Chairmean of tha Board of Directors, President and Vice Presidents (subjec,
howsver, to Section 4 of Article (V). The Chairman shadl be nelther an officer nor an
employee of the Corporation by virtue of his or her alaction and service as Chairman of
the Board; provided, however, the Chairman may be an officer of the Corporation. The
Chairman may use the title Chairman or Chairman of the Board interchangeably.
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INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP, INC.

Exhibit 3.2

BY-LAWS

As in Effect at
May 15, 2008

ARTICLE I. OFFICES
Principal Oifice

The principal office of the Gorporaiion in the State of Wisconsin shall be in the City of Green Bay.
The Gorporation may also have officas at such othar piaces, within and outside of the State of
Wisconsin, as the Board of Directors may designate or as the businass of the Corporation may

require.
Reglstered Office

The Board of Directors shall designate the registered affice of the Corporation and may change
such registered office by resolution.

ARTICLE Il. SHAREHOLDERS
Annual Meeting

The annual mesting of the shareholders (*Annual Meeting™ shall be held each year af such time
and on such day as may be designated by resolution of the Board of Directors. In fixing & meeting
date for any Annuai Mesting, the Board of Diractors may consider such factors as it deems
relevant within the good faith exercise of its business judgment. '

Purposes of Annual Meeting

At each Annual Meeting, the shareholders shall elact the number of diractors equal 1o the number
of directors in the class whose term axpires at the fime of such Annual Meseting and transact such
other busiress as may properly come befare the Annual Meeting in accordance with Section 14 of
Article 1] of these By-laws. If the eleciion of directors shall not be held on the date fixed as herein
provided, for any Annual Meeting, or any adjoumment thereof, the Board of Directors shall cause
the election lo be held at a special meeting of sharehclders (a "Special Meeting”} as soon
theraafier as is practicable.

Speclal Meetings

a. A Special Meeting may be called only by (i) the Board of Directors, (fi) the Chairman of the
Board, (i) ihe President or (iv) tha Secretary and shall be called by the Chairman of the
Board, the President or the Secretary upon the demand, in accordance with this Section
3, of the holders of record of shares representing at least 10% of all the votes entitled to
he cast on any issue proposed to be considered at the Special Meeting.

b. In order that the Corporation may determine tha shareholders anfitfed to demand a
Special Maating, the Board of Directors may fix a record date to determine the
shareholders entitled 1o make such a demand (the "Demand Record Date"}). The
Demand Record Dale shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the
Demand Record Dale is adopted by the Board of Directors and shall not he more than ten
days atter the date upon which the resclution fixing the Demand Record Date is adopted

1
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by the Board of Directars. Any sharaholder of record seeking 1o have shareholders
demand a Special Meeting shall, by sending writtan nofice to the Secretary of the
Corporation by hand or by certified or registered mall, retumn recsipt requesied, request
the Board of Directors to fix a Damand Record Date. The Board of Directors shall
promptly, but in all events within ten days after tha date oh which & valid requast to fix a
Demand Record Date is received, adopt a resolution fixing the Demand Record Date and
shall make & public announcement of such Demand Record Date. If no Demand Record
Date has been fixed by the Board of Directors within ten days after the date on which
such request is received by the Secretary, the Demand Record Dale shali be the 10th day
after the first date on which a valid written request to set a Demand Record Date is
recasived by the Secretary. To be valid, such written request shali set forth the purpose or
purposes for which the Spacial Meeting Is to b held, shall be signed by one or more
shareholders of record (or thelr duly authorized proxies or other represemtatives), shall
bsar the date of signature of each such sharsholder {or praxy or other representativa) and
shall set forth all information about each such sharsholder and about the beneficial owner
or owners, if any, on whose behaif the request is made that would be required to be set
forth in & shareholder's notice described in paragraph (a) (i) of Section 14 of this Articla Il.

In order for a shareholder or shareholders to demand a Special Meeting, a writien
demand or demands for a Special Meeting by the holders of record as of the Demand
Record Date of shares reprasenting at least 10% of all the votes entitled to be cast on any
issue proposed to ba considerad at tha Special Maeting must be delivered ta the
Corporation. To bs valld, each written demand by a sharshalder for a Spacial Meeting
shall set forth the specific purpose or purposes for which the Special Mesting is to be held
{which purpose or purposes shall be limited to the purpose or purposes set forth in the
wriiten request to get a Demand Record Date received by the Corporaticn pursuant to
paragraph (b) of this Section 3), shall be signed by one or more persons who as of the
Demand Record Daie are shareholders of record (or thelr duly authorlzed proxies or other
representatives), shall bear the date of signature of each such shareholder (or proxy or
other representative), and shall set forth the name and address, as they appear in the
Corporation's books, of each shareholder signing such demand and the cless and -
number of shares of the Comoration which are owned of record and beneficlally by each
such sharsholder, shall be sent to the Secrstary by hand or by certlfled ot ragisterad mall,
refum recaipt requested, and shall be received by the Secratary within seventy days after
the Demand Racord Date,

The Corporation shall hat be requirsd to call a Special Meeling upon sharsholder demand
unless, in addition to the documents required by paragraph (¢} of this Section 3, the
Secrelary raceives a written agreement signed by each Soliciting Sharaholdsr (as defined
balow), pursuant to which each Soliciting Shareholder, joinily and severally, agrees to pay
the Corporation's costs of halding the Special Mesting, inciuding the costs of preparing
and mailing proxy materials for the Corporation’s cwn solicitation, provided that if sach of
the resolulions introduced by any Soliciiing Shareholder at such meeting is adopted, and
each of the individuals nominated by or on behaif of any Soliciting Sharsholder for
election as a director at such meeting is elected, then the Soliciting Shareholders shall not
be required fo pay such costs. For purposes of this paragraph (d}, the following terms
shall have the meanings set forth below:

{i) "Affiliate” of any Person (as defined herein) shall mean any Person controlling,
controlied by or under common contral with such first Parson.

(i "Pariicipant” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Rule 14a-11
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act").
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(i) “Person” shall maan any individual, firm, corporation, parinership, joint veniure,
association, trust, unincorporated organization or other andity.

(iv) "Proxy" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Rule 14a-1 promulgated
under the Exchanga Act.

{v) *Sollcitation” shall have the meaning assignad to such 1arm in Rule 14a-11
promulgated under the Exchange Act.

{wi) "Soliciting Sharehoider® shall mean, with raspsct o any Special Meeting
demanded by a shareholder or shargholdars, any of the followlng Persons:

(a) if the number of shareholders signing the demand or demands of
meeting delivered fc the Corparation pursuant ta paragraph (¢} ol this
Section 3 Is ten ar fewer, each shareholder signing any such demand;

{b) if the number of shareholders signing the demand or demands of
meeting delivered 1o the Corporatien pursuant to paragraph (c) of thie
Section 3 is more than ten, each Parson who either (I) was a Participant
in any Sclicitation of such demand or demands or {ll) at the iime of the
delivery to the Corporation of the documents described in paragraph
(c) of this Section 3 had engaged or intands to engage in any Solicitation
of Proxies for use at such Spacial Mesting (othar than a Solicitation of
Proxies on behalf of the Corporation); or

(¢ any Affiliate of a Soliciting Sharsholder, if a majority of the directors then
in offica determine, reasonabiy and in good faith, that such Affiliste
should be raquired to sign the written notice described in paragraph (<) of
this Section 3 and/or the written agreement described in this paragraph
{d) in order to prevent the purposes of this Saction 3 from being evaded.

Except as provided in the following sentence, any Special Meeting shall be held at such
hour and day as may be designated by whichever of the Board of Direclors, the Chairman
of the Board, the President or the Secretary shall have called such meetling. In the case
of any Special Meeting called by the Chairman of the Board, the Prasidsnt or the
Secretary upon the demand of shareholders (a "Demand Spacial Mesting™), such meeting
shall bs held at such hour and day as may be designated by the Board of Directors;
provided, however, that the date of any Demand Special Mesting shall be not mare than
seventy days after the Meeting Record Date {as definec in Section 6 of Article Il of these
By-laws); and provided further that in the eveni that tha diractars then in office fail to
designate an hour and date for a Demand Special Masting within ten days after the date
that valid written demands for such meeling by the holders of record as of the Demand
Record Date of shares reprasenting af least 10% of all the votes entitled to be cast on
each issue proposed to be considered at the Special Meeting are delivered to the
Corporation {the "Delivery Date"}, then such meating shall be hald at 2:00 P.M. local time
on the 100ih day afiar the Delivery Date or, if such 100th day is not a Business Day (as
defined below), on the first preceding Business Day. In fixing a meeting date for any
Spacial Meeting, the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board, the President or the
Secretary may consider such factars as it or he deems relevant within the good feith
exercise of its or his business judgmant, including, without limitation, the nature of the
action proposed to ba taken, the facts and circumstances surrounding any demand for
such meeting, and any plan of the Board of Directors to call an Annual Meeting or &
Special Meeting for the conduct of related business.
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f. The Corparation may engage regionally or nationally recognizad independent Inspectors
of elections to act as an agent of the Corporation for the purpose of promptly performing &
ministerial review of the valldity of any purported written demand or demands for a Special
Mesting raceived by the Secretary. For the purpose of permitting the inspeciors to
perform such review, no purported demand shail be deemed 1o have been dslivered to
the Corporation until the earlier of (i) five Business Days fallowing receipt by the Secretary
of such purported damand and (jf) such dale as the independent inspectors certify to the
Gorparation that the valid demands received by the Sacratary rapresent at least 10% of afl
the votes entitied to be cast an each issue proposed to be considersd at the Spaclal
Mesling. Nothing contained in this paragraph (f) shall in any way be construed to suggest
or imply that the Board of Directors or any shareholder shall not be entitled to contest the
validity of any demand, whether during or after such five Business Day period, or io take
any other action (including, without limitation, the commencement, prosecution or defense
of any litigation with respect thersto).

9 For purposas of these By-laws, "Business Day” shall mean any day other than a
Saturday, a Sunday or a day on which banking institutions in tha State of Wisconsin are
authorized or abligated by law or executive order {o close.

Place of Meeting

The Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board, the President or the Sacretary may designate
any placae, elther within or without the State of Wisconsin, as the place of meeting for ary Annual
Meseting or for any Special Meeting or for any postponement or adjournment theredf. If no
designation is made, the place of meeting shall be the principal business office of the Corporation
in the Stale of Wisconsin. Any mesting may be adjourned to reconvene at any place designated
by vole of the Board of Directors or by the Chairman of the Board, the President or the Secretary.

Notice of Meeting

Written or printed nolice steting the date, time and place of any Annhus! Meeting or Speciat
Meeting shall be deliverad not less than ten days (unless a longer period is requited by the
Wisconsin Business Carporation Law or the Articles of Incorporatlon of the Corporation) nor more
than 70 days before the date of such meeting elther parsanally or by mall, by or at the diraction of
the Chairman of the Board, the Prasident or the Secretary, io each shareholder of record entitled
fo voie at such meeting and to such cther shareholders as required by the Wisconsin Business
Corporation Law. In the event of any Demand Special Meeting, such notice shall be sent not
more than 45 days after the Delivery Date. f mafied, notice pursuant to this Section 5 shall be
deemed to be effective whan depositad In the Unitad States mail, addressad to the shareholder at
his address as it appears on the stock record books of the Corporation, with postags therson
prepaid. Unless otherwise required by the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law or the Articles of
incorporation of the Corporation, & notice of an Annual Mesting nesd not include a description of
the purpose for which the mesting is called. In the case of any Speciai Meeting, (a) the notice of
mesting shall describe any business that the Board of Directors shall have theretofore determined
io bring before the maeting and (b} in the case of a Demand Special Meating, the notice of
mesting (i) shall deseribe any business set forth in the statement of purpose of the demands
received by the Corporation in accordance with Section 3 of this Article Il and {ii) shall contain all
of the information required in the notice receivad by the Corporation in accordance with Section
t4(b} of this Articls Il. I an Annual Meeting or Spactal Meeting is adjourned to a difierent date,
time or place, the Gorporafion shall not be required 1o give notlce of the new date, time or place if
the new date, time or place Is announced at the maeting befors ad)ournmant; provided, however,
that if a new Meeting Record Date for an adjourned meeting is or must be fixed, the Corporation
shall give notice of the adjourned meeting to persons who are shareholders as of the new Meeting
Record Date. '
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Fixing of Record Date

The Board of Diractors may fix in advance a date not less than 10 days and not more than 70
days prior to the date of any Annual Meeting or Special Mesting (olher than a Demand Special
Meeting) as the record dale for the purpose of dstermining shareholders snfitled to notice of, and
to vote at, such meeling ("Meeting Record Date"). (f a Mesting Record Daie is not fixed by the
Board of Directors or by the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law for any Annual Meeting or
Special Meeting (other than a Demand Special Meeting), the Meeting Record Date shall be the
close of business on the day before the first notice is given to Shareholders. In the case of any
Demand Special Meeling, (i) the Meeling Record Date shall not be later than the 30" day after the
Delivery Date and (i) if the Board of Directors fails to fix the Mesting Record Date within 30 days
zftsr the Dalivery Date, then the close of business on such 30 day shall be the Meeting Record
Date. The shareholders of record on the Mesting Record Date shall be the shareholders entitled
to notice of, and 1o vole at, the meeting. Except as provided by the Wisconsin Business
Corporation Lew for a court-ardered adjournment, a determination of shareholders entitied to
notice of, and to vote at, any Annual Meeting or Special Meeting is effective for any adjournment
of such meeting unless the Board of Dlrectors fixes a new Meeting Record Date, which it shall do
if the meeting is adjourned 1o a dale mare than 120 days after the date fixed for the original
mesting. The Board of Directors may also fix in advance a date as the record date for the
purpose of determining sharesholders entitled to take any other action or determining sharsholders
for any other purpose. Such racord date shall be hot more than 70 days prior to the date an which
the particular action, requiring such determination of shareholders, is to be taken. The record
date for determining shareholders entitled to a distribution (other than a distribution involving 2
purchase, redemption or other acquisition of the Corporation's shares} or a share dividend is the
date on which the Beard of Direclors authorizes the distribution or share dividend, as the case
may be, unless the Board of Directors fixes a different record date.

Yoting Records

After & Meeting Recerd Date has been fixed, the Corporation shall prepare & list of the names of
all of the shareholders entitled t¢ nolice of the meeting. The list shall be arranged by class or
series of shares, if any, and show the agdress of, and number of shares held by, each
sharsholder. Such list shall be avaitable for inspection by any sharsholder, beginning two
business days after notice of the meeting is given for which the list was prepared and continuing
to the date of the meeting, at the Corporation’s principal office or af & place identified in the
meeting notice in the city whare the meeting will be held. A shareholder or his agent may, on
written demand, inspect and, subject ta the limitations imposed by the Wisconsin Business
Corperation Law, copy the list, during regular business hours and at his or her expense, during the
period that il is available for Inspaction pursuant ta this Sectlon 7. The Corporation shall make the
shareholders' list avallabie at the meeting and any shareholder or his or her agent or attorney may
inspect the [ist at any time during the meeting or any adjoumnment thereof. Refusel or leilure to
prepare or make aveilable the shareholders' list shall not affact the valldity of any action taken at &
meeting of shareholders.

Quorum and Voling Requirements; Postponemeants; Adjournments

a Shares entitied fo vote as a separate voling group may take action on a matter at any
Annugl Meeting or Special Meating only if a quorum of thase shares exisis with respsct to
that matter, If the Corporation has enly one class of stock outstanding, such class shall
constitute a separate voling group for purposes of this Section B. Except as otherwise
provided in the Articles of Incorporation of this Corporation or the Wisconsin Business
Corporation Law, a majority of the votes entitled to be cast on the matier shall constitute &
quorum of the voting group for aciion on that matter. Once a share is representsd for any
purpose at any Annual Meeting or Spaclal Mesting, other than for the purpose of objecting
to holding the meeting or transacting business at the mesting, it is considered presant for

&
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purposes of determining whether a quorum exlsts for the remainder of the meeting and
for any adjournment of that meeting, unless a new Meating Record Date is or must he sat
for the adioumed meeting, if a quorum exists, except in the case of the alection of
directors, action on a matter shall be approved if the voles cast within the voiing group
favoring the action axceed the votes cast opposing the action, unless the Articles of
Incorporation of the Corpovation or the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law regjuires a
greater number of affirmative votes. Unless otherwise provided in the Articles of
Incorporation of the Corporation, sach director shall be elecled by a plurality of the votes
cast by the shares entiied 16 vole in the selsction of directors at any Annual Meeting or
Spacial Mesting at which a quorum is present.

b. Tha Board of Diractors acting by resolution may postpone and rescheduls any previously
scheduled Annual Meeting or Special Meeting; %rovided, however, that a Demand Special
Meeting shall not be postponed beyond the 100™ day following the Delivery Date. Any
Annual Mesting or Special Meeting may be adjournad from time 10 time, whether or not
there is a quorum, (i) at any time, upon a resolution of shareholders i tha votes cast in
favor of such resoluticn by the holdars of shares of each voling group entitied 1o vote on
any matier thereiofore proparly brought before the meeting exceed the number of voles
cast against such resolution by the holders of shares of each such voting group or (ii) at
any time prior to the ransaction of any business at such meeiing, by the Chalman of the
Board, the President or the Secretary or purauant to & resolution of the Board of Directors.

No notica of ths time and place of adjourned mestings need be given except as required
by the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law. At any adjourned meeting at which a
quorurn shall be present or represented, any business may be transacted which might
have been transacted et the meeting as originally notified.

Conduct of Meetings

Tha Chalrman of tha Board, and in his absencs, the Vica Chairman of the Board, and in his
absance, the President, and in their absence, a Vice President in the order provided under
Section 4 of Article IV of these By-laws, and in their absence, any person chosen by the
shareholders present shall call any Annual Meeting or Spacial Meeting o order and shall act as
chairman of such maeting, and the Secretary of the Corporation shall act as secretary of all
Annual Mestings and Special Meetings, but In the absencs of the Secretary, the presiding officer
miay appoint any other person to act as secrefary of tha meeling.

Proxlas

AL all meetings of shareholders, a shareholder entitled to voie may vole his or her or its shares in
perscn of by proxy. A shareholder antitled to vote at a meeting of shareholders may autherize
another person ta act for the shareholder by appointing tha parson as proxy. Without miting the
mannar in which a shareholder may appoint a proxy, a sharehalder or the shareholder's
authorized officer, directar, employee, agent or attorney-in-fact may use any of the following as a
valid means to make such an appointment:

a Appointment of a proxy in writing by signing or causing the sharsholder's signature to be
affixed to an appointment form by any reasonable means, including, but not limited te, by
facsimile signature.

b. Appointrment of a proxy by transmitting or authorizing the transmission of an electronic
transmission of the appeintment io the person who will be appointed as proxy orto a
proxy sclicitation firm, proxy support service organization or like agent authorized to
receltva the tranamission by the person who will be appointed as proxy. Every electronic

. transmisslon shall contain, or be accompanied by, information that can ba used to
reasonably determine that the sharehaldsr transmitted ot authorized the transmission of

&
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the electronic transmission, Any person charged with determining whether a shareholder
transmitted or authorized the transmission of the slacironic transmission shall apecify the
information upon which the determination is mads,

An appointment of a proxy is eiffective when a signad appointment form or an electronic fransmission
of the appointment ig recsivad by the inspector of elactions or the officer or agent of the Corporation
authorized to tabulate voles. An appointment ls valid for 11 months unless a different pariod is
expressly provided in the appointment. Unless otherwise provided, a proxy may be revoked any time
before it is voted, either by appointing a new proxy in accordance with the Wiscongin Business
Corporation Law or by oral notice given by tha shareholder ta the presiding officer during the mesting,
The presence of a sharsholder who has made an effective proxy appointment shall nol ltself
constitute a ravocation. The Board of Diractors shall have the power and authority to make rules
establishing presumptions as to the valldity and sufficiency of proxies.

Voting of Shares

8. Each outstanding share shall be antitled to ona vote upon sach malter submifted o 2 vote
at any Annual Meating or Spacial Mecting, except to the extent that the voting righis of the
shares of any class or classes are enlarged, limited or genied by the Wisconsin Business
Carporation Law or the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation,

b. Sharas held by another corparation, If a sufficient number of shares entitled to elect a
majority of the directors of such other corparation is held directly or indirectly by the
Corporation, shall nat be entitied to vote at any Annual Meeting or Special Meeting, but
shares held in a fiduciary capacity may be votsd.

Acoeptance of Instruments Showing Shareholder Action

If the name signed on a vote, consent, waiver or proxy appointment corresponds to the name of a
shareholder, the Corporation, if acting in good faith, may accept the vole, consent, waiver of proxy
appointment and give it effect as the act of a shareholdar. If tha name signed aon a vete, consent,
waiver or proxy appointment does not cotrrespond to the name of a shareholder, the Corporation,
if acting in good faith, may accept the vote, consent, wajver or proxy appointment and give it offect
as the act of the shareholder if any of tha following apply:

a, The shareholder is an entity and the name signed purports to be that of an officer or
agent of the entity.

b. The name purports to be that of a parsonal rapresentative, administrator, executor,
guardian or conservator representing the sharehalder and, if the Corporation requests,
evidence of fiduciary status acceptable to the Corporation is presented with respect to the
vote, consent, waiver or proxy appeiniment.

C. The name signed purports to be that of a receiver or rusiee in bankruptey of the
shareholder and, if the Corporation requests, evidence of this stafus acceptable to the
Corporation is presented with respect to the vole, consent, waiver or proxy appaintment.

d. The name signed purports to be that of a pledgee, beneficial owner, or attomey-in-fact of
the shareholder and, if the Corporation requests, evidence accaplable io the Corporation
of the signalory’s authority to sign for the shareholder is presented with respect fo the
vote, consent, waiver or proxy appointment.
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e Two of more persons are the shareholder as co-tenants or fiduciaries and the name

signed purports to be the name of at least one of the ¢co-owners and the person signing
appears to be acling on hehalf of all co-owners.

The Corporation may reject 2 vote, consent, waiver or proxy appoiniment if the Secretary or other officer
or agent of the Comporation who is authorized to tabulate votes, acting In good faith, has reasonable basis
for doubt about the valldity of the sighaturs on it or about the signatory's authority to sign for the
sharsholder,

13.

14.

Waiver of Notice by Shareholders

A shareholder may waiva any notice raquired by the Wisconsin Businass Corparation Law, the
Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation or these By-laws belore or afier the date and time
stated in the notice. The waiver shall be in writing and signed by the sharshoider entitied to the
hotice, contain the same information that would have been required in the notice under applicable
provisions of the Wisceonsin Business Corporation Law (except that the time and place of meating
need not be stated) and be delivered to the Corporation for inclusion in the corporale racords. A
shareholder's attendance at any Annual Meeting or Speciel Meeting, in person or by proxy, waives
objection to all of the following: (a) lack of nolice cr defective notice of the meeting, unless the -
shareholder at the beginning of the meeting or promptly upon arrival objects to holding the
meeting or transacting business at the meeting; and (b) consideration of a particular matter at the
meeting that is not within the purpose describad in the mesfing notice, uniess the shareholder
objects to considaring the matter when it is presented.

Notice of Sharsholder Business and Nomination of Directors

a. Annial Meatings.

(i) Nominations of persons for election to the Board of Directors of the Corporation
and the proposal of business to be considerad by the shareholders may be made
at an Annual Meeting (A) pursuant to the Corporation’s notice of meeting, (B) by
or at the diraction of the Board of Diractars ar (C) by any shareholder of the
Corporation who is a shareholder of record at tha time of giving of nofice provided
for In this Section 14 and who is entitled to vote af the maesting and complies with
the notice proceduras set forth in this Section 14.

{i}) For nominationa or other business to be properly brought before an Annual
Meeting by a shareholder pursuant to clause (C) of paragraph {a)i) of this
Section 14, the sharehokder must have given timely natice thereof in writing fo the
Secretary of the Corporation. Ta be timely, a sharehglder's notice shall be
received by the Sacretary of the Corporatien at the principal offices of the
Corporation not less than 45 days nar {excapt for shareholder proposals included
in a proxy statement for such Annual Meeting In accordance with the
requirements of Rule 148-8 under the Exchange Act) more than 70 days prior 10
the {irst annual enniversary of the date set forth in the Corporation's proxy
statemen for the immediately preceding Annual Meeting as the dale on which the
Corporation first malled definitive proxy matarials for the immadiatsly preceding
Annua! Mealing (the "Anniversary Date"); provided, however, that in the event that
the date for which the Annual Meeting is called &s advanced by more than 30 days
or delayed by more thar. 30 days from the first annual enniversary of the
immediately preceding Annual Meating, notice by the shareholder to be timely
must be so deliverad not earlier than the close of business on the 100" day prior
ta the date of such Annual Meeting and not later than {A) the 75" day prior to the
date of such Annual Meeting or (B) the 10® day following the day on which pubiic
announcement of the date of such Annual Mesting is fivst made. In no event shall
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the announcement of an adjournment of an Annual Meesting commence a new
time pericd for the giving of a shareholder notice as describsd above. Such
shareholder's notice shall be signed by the shareholder of yecord who intends to
make the nomination or introduce the other business (or his duly authotized proxy
or other representative), shell bear the date of signature of such shareholder (or
proxy or other representative) and shall set forth: {A) the name and address, as
thay appear on this Corporation’s books, of such sharehclder and the beneficial
owner of owners, if any, on whose behalf the nominaltion or proposal is made; (B)
the class and number of sherss of the Corporation which are beneficlally owned
by such shareholder or beneficial owner or owners; (C) a representation that such
shargholder is a holder of record of shares of the Corporation antitied to vote at
such meeting and Intands to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting to make
the namination o7 Introduce the other business specified in the notice; (D} in the
case of any proposed nomination for election or re-elsction as a director, (1} the
name and residence address of the person or persons to be nominated, (1) a
dascription of all arrengements or Understandings befween such shareholder or
beneticial ownar or owners and each nominae and any other person or persons
{namirng such person or persons) puirsuant to which the nomination is to be mada
by such shareholder, (I} such other information regarding each nomines
proposed by such sharehokder as would be required to be disclosed in
solicitations of proxies for elections of directors, or would be otherwise required to
be disclosed, in sach case pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act,
Including any information that would be required to be includad in a proxy
statement filed pursuant to Regulation 14A had the nominee been nominated by
the Board of Directars and (IV) the writien consent of each nominee to be named
in a proxy statement and to serve as a direcior of the Corporation if so elected;
and (E} in the case of any other business that such shareholder proposes to bring
befora the meeting, (i) a briaf description of the businass desired to be brought
hefors the meeting and, i such business includes a propesal to amend these
Bwaws, the language of the proposed amendment, (I} such shareholder's and
heneficial owner's or owners' reasons for conducting such business at the
mesting and {lil) any material inferest in such business of such shareholder and
beneficial pwnar or owners.

Notwithstanding anything in the second senlence of paragraph (8)({ii) of this
Section 14 to the contrary, in the event that the number of directors to be elected
to the Board of Directors of the Corporation is increased and there is no public
announcemeant naming all of the nominees for director or specilying the size of
the increased Board of Directors made by the Corporation ot least 45 days prior
to the Anniversary Date, & shareholder's notice required by this Secticn 14 shall
also be considered timely, but only with respect to nominees for any new
positions craated by such Inctease, If It shall be received by the Secrelary at the
principal offices of the Corporation not later than the close of business on the 10"
day following the day on which such publlic anncuncement is first made by the
Corporaticn.

Special Meetings. Only such business shall be conducied at a Special Meeting as shall
have been described in the notice of meeting sent to shareholders pursuant to Section 5
of Article 1l of these By-laws. Nominations of persons for election to the Board of
Directors may be made at & Special Meeting at which diractors are to be elscted pursuant
to such notica of meeting (i) by or at the diraction of the Board of Dirsctors or (i) by any
shareholder of the Gorporation who (A} is a shareholder of record at the time of giving of
such notice of meeting, (B) is entitled to vote at the meeting and (C) complies with the
notice procedures set forth in this Section 14, Any sharsholder desiring to nominale
persons for election to tha Board of Directors at such & Speclal Meeting shall cause a
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written notice to be received by the Secretary of the Corporation at the principal offices of
the Corparation not earller than ninety days prior to such Speclal Meeting and not later
than the close of businass on the later of (x} the 60th day prior to such Special Mesting
and (y) the 10th day follawing the day on which public announcement Is first made of the
date of such Special Mesting and of the nominees proposed by the Board of Directors to
be electad at such meeting. Such written natica shall be signed by the sharsholder of
racord whe Intends to make the namination (or his duly authorized proxy or other
ropresentative), shall bear the date of signature of such shareholder (or proxy or other
representative) and shall set forth: (A) the name and address, as they appear on the
Comparation's baoks, of such shareholder and the beneficlal owner or owners, if any, on
whose bshalf the nomination is made; (B} the class and number of shares of the
Corporation which are beneficially ownad by such shareholder or beneficlal owner or
owners; (C) & representation thal such sharehoider Is a hoider of record of shares of the
Corporation entitied to vote at such meeting and intends 1o appear in person or by proxy
at the meefing to make the nomination spscified in the notice; {D) the name and
residence address of the parson or parsons 10 be hominaled; (£} a description of all
arrangemerds or understandings betwsen such shareholder of beneficial owner or
owners and each nominee and any other person or persons (naming such person or
persons) pursuant to which the nomination is to be made by such sharsholder; (F) such
cther information regarding each nominee proposed by such shareholder as would be
required to be disclosed Ih solicitations of proxies for elactions of directors, or wouid be
otherwise required to be disclosed, in each case pursuant 1o Regulation 14A under the
Exchange Act, including any information that would be required 1o be included in a proxy
staterment filed pursuant to Regulation 14A had the nominee been nominated by the
Board of Directors; and {G) the written consent of each nominsa to bs named in a proxy
statemant and to serve as a director of the Corporation if so elected.

General.

{)] Only persons who are nominated in accordance with the procedures set forth in
this Section 14 shall be eligible to serve as directors. Only such business shall be
conducted at an Annual Mesting or Special Meeting as shall have been brought
befora such meeting in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section
14. The chairman of tha meeting shall hava the power and duly to determine
whether & nomination or any business proposed to be brought bafore the meeting
was made in accordance with the procedures set forth In this Sectlon 14 and, if
any proposed nomination or business is not in compliance with this Section 14, to
declare that such defective proposal shall be disregarded.

(i) For purposes of this Saction 14, *public announcement” shall mean disclosure In
a press release reported by the Dow Jones News Servics, Associatad Press or
comparable national news service or in a document publicly filed by the
Comoration with the Securiies and Exchange Commigsion pursuant to Seclion
13, 14 or 15{d) of the Exchange Act.

{ii) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 14, a shareholder shall
also comply with all applicable reguiremenis of the Exchange Act and the rules
and ragulations thereunder with respact 1o the matters set forth in this Section 14.
Nothing in this Section 14 shall be daemed to limit the Corporation's obligation to
include shareholder proposals in its proxy statement If such inclusion is required
by Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act
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ARTICLE K. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
General Powers

The business and effalrs of the Corporation shall be managed by ite Board of Diractors. The
Board shall determine the nalure and character of the business to be conducted by the
Corporation and the method of doing so; what employees, agents, and officers shalt be employed
and their compensaiion; and what purchases or contracts for purchase shalf be made. The Board
may delsgate any of its aforesald powers to committees or to officers, agents, or employess as It
may from time to time determine. The Board of Directors may elect from among the directors a
Chairman of the Board of Directors and a Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors,

Number of Diractors

The number of directors of the Corporation shall be 14, divided into three classes: designated
Class A, Class B, and Class C. Each class shall consist, as nearly as may ba possibis, of
one-third of the total number of directors constituting the entire Board of Directors.

Term

The term of the initial Class A directors shall terminate on the date of the 2007 annual meeting of
sharehoiders; the term of the initia! Class B directors shall terminate on the date of the 2008
annual meeling of ehareholdars; and the term of the Class C directors shall terminate on the date
of the 2009 annual meeting of shareholders, At each annual meeting of shareholders beginning
in 2007, successors to the class of directors whose term expires at that annugl mesting shall be
elected for a three-year term and untii their successors are slected end qualified. If the number of
direciors is changed, any increase or decrease in directerships shall be apportioned among the
classes so as to mainiain the number of diraclors In each class as nearly equal as possible, and
any additional directors of any class elected o fill a vacancy resulting from an increase in such
class shall hold office for a term that shall coincide with the remaining term of that class, but in no
case will a decrease in the number of directors shorien the term of any incumbent director.

Qualifications

No director shall be eligible for re-slection after attaining the age of 70 years. Directors need not
be shareholders of the Corporalion or rasidents of the State of Wisconsin.

Meetings

The Board of Directors shall hold its meetings at such place or places, within or without the State
of Wisconsin, as the Board may from time to time determine.

a. A meeting of the Board of Directors, to be known as the annual meeting, may be held,
without notice, immediately after and at the same place as the annual meeting of the
sharehalders at which such Board is slected, for the purpose of electing the officers of the
Corporation and to transact such other businase as may come befora the Board. Such
annual meating may be held at a different place than the annual meeting of shareholders
and/or an a daie subsequent to the annual meeting of shareholders, if notice of such
different place and/or date has besn given to or waived by all the directors,

b. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without call and without notice, at

such fimes and in such places as the Board may by resclution from time to time
determine.
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c. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by the Chairman of
the Board, the Lead Director, or the Chief Executive Officer and shafl be cailed by the
Secretary of the Corporation upon the writben request of three or more directors.

Notice; Walver

Notice of each speclal mesting of the Board of Directors shall be given by written notice delivered
or communicated In parson, by telegraph, teletype, facsimile or other form of wire or wireless
communication, or by mait or privata carrier, to each director at his o her businass address or at
such other address as such director shall have designated In writing filed with the Secratary, in
each case not less than 48 hours priot to the mesting. The notice need not prescribe the purpoee
of the special mesting of tha Board of Directors or the businass 1o be transacted at such meeting.

If mailed, such notlcs shall be desmead to be effective when dapasited in the United States mail
so addressed, with postage thereon prepaid. If notice is given by telegram, such notice shall be
deemed to be effective when the telegram is delivered to the telegraph company. If nolice is
given by private carrier, such notice shall be deamed to be effective when delivered to the private
carrier. Whenever any notice whatever is required to be given to any dirsctor of the Corporation
under the Articles of Incorporation or these By-laws or any provislon of the Wisconsin Business
Corporation Law, a waiver theraaf In writing, signed at any time, whether before or after the date
and time of mesting, by the director entitled io such nofice shall be deemed squivalent to the
giving of such notice. The Corporation shall retain any such waiver as pari of the permanent
corporate records, A director's attendance at or participation in & meeting waives any raquired
notice to him or her of the meeting unless the director at the beginning of the maeeting or promptly
upon his or her arrival objects to halding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting and
does not thersattar vote for or assent 1o action taken at the mesting.

Quorum

Except as otherwise provided by the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law or by the Articles of
Incorporation or thase By-laws, a8 mejority of the number of directors specified in Section 2 of
Article Hi of these By-laws shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeling
of the Board of Directors. Except as otherwise provided by the Wisconsin Business Corporation
Law, the Articles of Incorporation, of these By-laws, a quorum of any commiitee of the Board of
Directors created pursuant to Section 13 hereof shall consist of a majority of the number of
directors appointed to serve on the commitiee. A majority of the directors present (though less
than such quorum) may adjoum any meeting of the Board of Directors or any commitiee thereof,
as the case may be, from time to tima without furthar notice.

Manner of Acting

The affirmalive vote of a majority of the directors present at & meeting of the Board of Directors or
a commitiee thereof al which a quorum is presant shall be the act of the Board of Blirectors or
such committee, as the case may bs, unless the Wigconsin Business Corporation Law, the
Articias of Incorporation, or these By-laws require the vote of a greatar number of diraciors.
Minutes of Meetings

Minutes of any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be prepared and
distributed to each director.

Vacancies

Vacancies oceurring in the Board of Directors shall be filled In the manner provided in Article 5 of
the Articles of Incomoration.
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Compensation

The Board of Directors, irrespective of any parsonal interest of any of its members, may establish
reasonable compensation of all directors for services to the Corporation as directors, officars, or
otherwise, or may delegate such autherity to an appropriate committes. The Board of Directors
also shall have authority 1o provide for or delsgate authority to an appropriate committes to
provide for reasonable pensions, disability or death benefits, and other benefils or payments, 1o
direclors, officers, and employees and to thelr estates, families, dependents, or beneficlaries on
account of prior services rendered by such directors, officers, and employess to the Corporation.

Presumption of Assent
A director who is present and Is announced as present at a meeting of the Board of Direciors or

any commiltee thereof created in accordance with Section 13 of this Artizla [, when corporate
action is taken, assents to the actlon faken unless any of the following occurs:

a The director objecis af the beginning of the meeting or promptiy upon his or her arrival to
holding the meeting or transacting business at the meating;

b The diractor's dissent or abstention from the aclion taken is entered in the minutas of the
meeting; or

c. The director delivers written notice that complies with the Wisconsin Business

Corporation Law of his or her dissent or abstantion o the presiding officer of the meeting
before its adjournment or to tha Corporation immediately after adjournment of the
mseting.

Such right of dissent ar abstention shall not apply to a diractor who votes in favar of the action
taken.

Commitiess

The Board of Directors by resolution adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of all of the
directors then in office may create one or more committess, appoint members of the Board of
Directors fo serve on the committees and designate other members of the Board of Directors to
gerve as allernates. Each committee shall have at least ohe membar who shall, unless otherwise
provided by the Board of Directors, serve af the pleasure of the Board of Directors. A committee
may be authorized 1o exercise the authority of the Board of Directors, except that a committee
may not de any of the following: (=) approve or racommend to shareholders for approval any
action or matter expressly raquired by the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law, Chapter 180 of
the Wisconsin Statutes, to be submitted to shareholders for approval; and (b) adopt, amend or
repeal any By-Law of the Corporation. Unless otherwise provided by the Board of Directors in
creating the commiitee, a commitiee may emplay counsel, accountants and other consultanis to
assist it in the exercise of its authority.

Telephonic Meetings

Except as hereln provided and notwithstanding any place set forth in the notice of the mesting or
these By-laws, members of the Board of Directars (and any commitices thereof created pursuant
to Section 13 of this Arlicle Ill) may participate in regular or special meetings by, or through the
use of, any means of communication by which all participants may simultanesusly hear each
cther, such as by conferenca telaphone. If a meeting is conducted by such means, then at the
commencement of such meeting the presiding officer shall inform the pariicipating directors that a
meeting is taking place at which official business may be Iransacted. Any participant in a meeting
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by such means shall be deamed present In person at such mesting. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, no action may be taken at any meeting hald by such means on any particular matter
which the presiding officer determines, in his or her sole discretion, to be inappropriate under the
circumstances for action at a meeting held by such means. Such determination shall be made
and announced in advance of such mesting.

Action without Meeting

Any action required or permitted by the Wisconsin Business Cerporation Law 1o be taken at a
meeting of the Board of Dirsctors or a committee thereof created pursuant to Section 13 of this
Article 1l may be taken without a mesting If the action is taken by all members of the Board or of
the committes. The action shall be avidenced by one or mare written cansents deacribing the
action taken, signed by each director or committee mamber, and retained by the Corporation.
Such action shall be effective when the [ast director or committee member signs the consent,
unless the consent spegifies a different efiective date.

Non-Executive Chairman of the Board

If 2 Chairman of the Board of Directors shall be elected, he or she shall preside as Chairman of all
meetings of the sharehelders and of the Board of Directors. He or she shall have such other
authority as the Board may from time to time prescribe. If there is ng Chairman of the Board, or in
the absence of the Chairman, the presiding officer at meetings of the shareholders, and of the
Board of Directors shall be ithe Lead Director, if any, ot in the absence of the Lead Director, if any,
another officar In the following ordar of priotity: Viee Chairman of the Board of Directors,
President and Vice Prasidents (subjsct, howeaver, 1o Saction 4 of Arficle IV). The Chalrman shail
be nelther an officer nor an employes of the Corporation by viriue of his or her election and
service as Chairman of the Board; provided, however, the Chairman may bé an officer of the
Corporatien. The Chairman may use the title Chairman or Chairman of the Board
interchangeably.

ARTICLE IV. QFFICERS
Principal Officers

The principal officers of the Corporation required by statute shall be & President, such number of
Vice Presidents as may be elected by the Board of Directors, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. The
Board of Diractors may elect any principal officer as the Chief Executive Officer and may elect
such assistant sacrelaries and aesistant treasurers and other officers as it shall deem necessary,
and may prescribe by resolution their respective powers and dutias.

President

The President shall be elected by the directors. Unless the Board of Directors otherwise
prescribes, he or she shall be the Chiel Executive Officer of the Corporation. In the svent that the
President is not the Chief Execuiive Officer, he or she shall hava such powers and duties as the
Board of Directors may prescriba,

Chief Executive Qfficer

The Chief Executive Officer shall exercise active supervision over the business, property, and
affalrs of the Corporation,

a The Chief Executive Officer shall have authorily, subject fo such rules as may be
prascribed from time to lime by the Board or its cornmittees, (o appeint agenis or
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employess other than those elected by the Board, to prescribe their powers and dutles,
and to delegate such authority as he or she may sse fit. Any agent or employee not
elected by the Board shall hold office at the discretion of the Chiel Exacutive Officer or
ather officer emploving him or her.

b. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized {0 sign, execute, and acknowledge, on behalf of
the Corporation, all deeds, morigages, bonds, notes, debentures, contracts, leases,
reports and other documents and instruments, except where the signing and exscution
theraof by some other officer ar agent shall be expressly authorized and directed by faw
ot by the Board or by these By-laws. Unless otherwise provided by law or by the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer may authorize any officer, employes, or agent to sign,
execute, and acknowledge, on behalf of the Corparation, and in his or her place and
stead, all such documents and instruments.

c. Unless otherwise ordered by the Board of Directors, the Chief Execulive Officer, or a
proxy appointed by him, shall have fult power and authorlty, in the name of and on behalf
of the Corporation, to attend, act, and vote at any meeting of the sharehaolders of any
other corporation In which the Corporation may hold shares of stock. At any such
mesting, ha or she shall passess and may exercise any and all rights and powers incident
1o the ownership of shares of stock.

d. The Chief Executive Officer shall have such other powars and perform such other duties
as are incident to the office of Chief Executive Officer and as may be prescribed by the
Board.

Vice Presidents

In the absence of the President or during his or her inabifity or refusal to act, his or her powers
and duties shall tamporarlly develve upon such Vice Presidents or other officers as shall be
designated by the Board of Directors or, if not designated by the Board, by the Chief Executive
Officer or other officer to whom such power may be delegated by the Board; provided, that no
Vice Presidert or other officer shall act as a mamber or chalrman of any cotmittee of the Board
of Directors of which the President is 2 member or chairman, except at the direction of the Board.

a Fach Vice President shall have such powers and perform such other duties as may be
assigned to him by the Board or by the President, including the power 1o sign, executs,
and acknowledge all documents and instruments referred to in Seclion 3 of this Atlicle.

b. The Board may assign to any Vice Prasident, general supervision and charge over any
branch of the business and affairs of the Corporation, subject to such limitations as it may
elect to impose.

c. The Board of Directors may, if it choases, designate ons or mors of the Vice Presidents

"Execulive Vica President” wiih such powers and duties as the Board shall presctibe.
Secratary

The Secratary shall altend, and keep the minutes of meetings of the shareholders, of the Board of
Directors and, unless otherwise diracted by any such committee, of all ccmmittees, in books
provided for that purpose; shall have custody of the corporate records and seal; shall see that
notices are given and records and reports properly kept and filed as required by law or by these
By-laws; and, in general, shail have such other powers and parform such other dutias as are
incident to the office of Secretary and as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors
or tha Chief Executive QOfficer.
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Assistant Saecretaries

In the absence of the Secratary, or during his or her inability or refusal to act, his or her powers
and duties shall temporarily tdevolve upon such one of the Assistant Seorataries ag the President
or the Board of Ditectors may direct. The Assistant Secreteries shall have such other powers and
perform such other duties as may be assignsd to them by tha Beard, the Chief Executive Officer,
or the Secretary.

Treasurer

The Treasurer shail have charge and custody of ihe funds, securities, and other evidences of
value of the Corporation, and shall keep and deposit them as required by the Board of Directors.
He or she shall keep proper accounts of all raceipts and disbursements and of the financial
transactions of the Comporation. He or she shall render statements of such accounts and of
maoney received and disbursed by him or her and of property and monsay balonging to the
Corporation as required by the Board. The Treasurer shall have such other powers and perform
such other duties as are incident to the office of Treasurer and as from time to time may be
prescribed by the Board or the Chiaef Executive Officet.

Assistant Treasurers

In the absenca of the Treasurer, or during his or her inability or refusal ta act, his or her powers
and duties shall temporarily devolve upon such one of the Assistant Treasurers as the President
or the Boand of Directors may direct. The Assistant Treasurers shall have such cthar powars and
perform such cther duties as fram time to time may be assigned to them, respectively, by the
Board, the Chief Executive Qificer, or the Treasurer.

Other Assistants and Acting Officers

The Board of Directora shall have the power to appoint any person to act as assistant to any
officer, or as agent for the Corporation in his or her stead, or to perform ihe duties of such officer
whanever for any reason it is impracticable for such officer to act personally, and such assistant or
acting officer or other agent 50 appoiniad by the Board of Directors or an authorized officer shall
havs the power to perform all the duties of the office to which he or she is so appointed to be an
assistant, or as to which he or she is so appointed to act, except as such power may be otherwlse
defined or rasiricted by the Board of Directors.

Compensation

The salaries or other compensation of all officers elected as provided under Section 1 of this
Article {other than assistant officers) shall be fixed from time o time by the Board of Direciors.
The salarfes or other compensation of all other agents and employees of the Corporation shall be
fixad from time to time by the Chief Executive Officer, but only within such iimits as to amount,
and in accordance with such other conditions as may be prescribed by or under the authority of
the Board of Directors.

Tenwre

Each officer shall hold office until his or her successor shall have been duly slected and qualified,
or until his or her death, resignation, disqualification, or removal, Any officer, agent, or employse
may be removead, with or without causs, at any time by the Board of Directors notwithstanding the
contract rights, if any, of the officer removed. The appoinimeni of an officer doas not of itself
craate cantract rights.
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Resignation

An officer may resign at any time by delivering notice to the Corporation that complies with the
Wisconsin Business Corporation Law. The resignation shall be sffsctive when the notice is
delivared, unless the notice specifies & later effsctive date and the Corporation accapts the latar
effective date,

Vacancies

Any vacancy in any office may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the
term. I a resignation of an officer is effective et a later date as contemplated by Section 12 of this
Article IV, the Board of Directors may fill the panding vacancy before the effective date if the
Board provides that the successor may not take office until the effective date,

Reassignment of Duties

in case of the absence or disability of any officer of the Corporation, or for any other reason
deerad sufficlent by the Board of Dirsctors, the Board may reassign or delegate the powers and
duties, or any of them, io any other officer, director, or person it may select.

ARTICLE V. CERTIFICATES FOR AND TRANSFER OF SHARES
Form of Sharas

a Certificates rapresenting shares of the Corporation shall be in such form as shall be
determined by the Board of Directors. All certificates for shares shall be consecutively
numberad or otherwise identified. The name and address of the person to whom the
shares represented thereby are issusd, with the number of sharas and date of issus, shalil
be entered on the stock transter books of the Corporation. All cartificates surrendered for
the transfer shall be cancelled and no new certificate shall be issued until the former
certificate for a like number of shares shall have been surrendered and cancelled, excepi
in case of & lost or destroyed certificate provided for in Section 4 of this Article Y or a
cerlificate for shares transferred In compliance with the escheat laws of any state,

b. Shares of the Corporation may also be issued, without certificates to the full extant such

issuance Is allowed by the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law and the listing standards
of the New York Stock Exchange. To the extent required by the Wisconsin Business
Corporation Law, within a reasonabie timse after the issuance or transter of shares without
a certilicate, the Corporation shall send to the registered owner thersof a written nolice
that shall set farth (2) the name of the Corporation; {b) that the Corporation is organized
under the laws of the State of Wisconsin; (c) the name of the shargholder; (d) the number
and class (and the designation of the series, if any) of the shares represented; (e} if
applicable, a summary of the designations, relative rights, preferences and limitation
applicable to each class, and, If applicable, the variations in rights, prefarences and
fimitations determined for each series and {he authority of the Soard of Directors to
determine variations for future series (or a conspicuous statement that upon written
request the Gorporation will furnish the sharsholder with this information without charge);
and {f) if applicable, any restrictions on the transfer or registration of such shares of stock
imposed by the Articles of incorporation of the Corporation, these By-Laws, any
agreement ameng shareholders or any agreement between shareholders and the
Corporation.
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Signatures

Certificates representing shares of the Corporation shall be signad by the President or a Vice
President and by the Sacretary or an Assistant Secvatary; and may be sealed with the seal of the
Carporation (which may be a facsimile) and countersigned and registered in such manner, if any,
as the Board of Directors may prescribe. Whanaver any certificate is manuelly signed on behalf
of a transfar agent, or a registrar, other than the Corporation itself or an employea of the
Carporation, the signatures of the President, Vice Prasident, Secretary, or Asslstant Secretary,
upon such certificate may be facsimiles. in case any officer who has signed, or whose facsimile
signature has been placed upon such cettificaie, ceases to be such officer before such ceriificate
is issued, it may be issued with the same eifect as if he or she were such officer at the dats of its
issue.

Hestrictlions on Trensfer

The tace or reverse side of each certificate representing shares shall bear a cmspicuous notation
of any restriction imposed by the Corporation upon the transier of such shares.

Lost, Desiroyed, or Stolen Certificates

Where the owner claims that his or her certificate for shares has been lost, destroyed, or
wrengfully taken, the Corporaiion may issue (8) a new cetiificate or certificates for sheres or
(b) uncertificated shares in place thereof If the owner:

a. So requests before the Corporation has notica that such shares have basn acquired by a
bona fide purchaser;

b. Fites with the Corporaticn a sufficient indemnity bond; and

<. Satisfies such other reasonable requirements as may ba prescribed by or under the
authority of the Board of Diraclors.

Transfer of Shares

Pricr to due presentment of shares for registration of transfar the Gorporation may treat the
registerad cwner of such shares as the person exclisively antitled to vote, to receive notifications,
and otherwise to have and exercise all the rights and powers of an owner, Where shares are
presented la the Carporation with a request to register for transfer, the Corporation shall not be
liable to the owner ar any other person suffering loss as a result of such registration of transfer if:

a. There were on or with the cettificate the necessary endorsements, or, with respect to
unceriificated shares, proper transier instructions are recelved; and

b. The Corporaticn had no duty to inquire into adverse claims or has discharged eny such
duty.

The Corporation may require reasonable assurance that sald endorsements or transfer
instructions are genuine and effective and compliance with such other regulations as may be
prescribed by or under the authority of the Board of Directars.

Consideration for Sharas

The Brard of Directors may authorize shares 1o be issued for cansideration consisting of any
1anglble or intangible praperty or bansfit to the Corporation, including cash, promissory notas,
services performed, coniracis for services to be performed or other securifies of the Corporation.
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Befare the Corporation issues shares, the Board of Directors shall determine that the
consideration received or to be recsived for the shares to be issued s adequate. The
determination cf the Board of Directors Is conclusive Insofar as the adequacy of consideration for
the issuance of shares relates to whether the shares are validly issued, fully paid, and
nonassessable. The Corparation may place in escrow shares tssued in whole or in part for a
contract for future services or beneflis, a promissory note, or otherwise for property to be issued in
the future, or make other arrangements to restrict the transter of the shares, and may credit
distributions in respect of the sharas against thalr purchase price, untll the services are
performed, the beneflts ar property are received, or the promissory note is paid. If the senvices
are not performed, the benetits or property are not received, or the promissory note is not paid,
the Corporation may cancel, in whole or in part, the shares escrowed or restricted and the
distributions creditsd.

Olher Rules

The Boerd of Directors shall have the power and authority to make all such further rulss and
reguiations not inconsistent with tha statutes of the State of Wisconsin as it may deem expedient
concsrning the issus, transfer, and registration of shares of the Corporation, including the
appointment and designation of Transfer Agents and Registrars.

ARTICLE VI. INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS
Mandatory Indemnification

a. In all cases other than thoss set forth in Saction 1k hereof, subject to the conditions and
limitations set forth herainatter in this Article VI, the Gorporation shall indemnify and hold
harmless any person who is or was a parly, or is threatened to be mede a party, to any
Action (see Secticn 16 of this Article VI far definitions of capitalized terms used herein) by
reason of his or her stalus as an Exacutive, and/or as to acls performed in the course of
such Executive's duties to the Corporation and/or an Affiliate, against Liabiliies and
reasonable Expenses incutred by or on behalf of an Executive in connection with any
Action, including, without fimitation, in connection with the investigation, defense,
setlement or appeal of any Action; provided, pursuant 1o Section 3 of this Article VI, that it
is not determined by the Authority, or by a court, that the Executive engaged in
misconduct which constitules a Breach of Duty.

b. To the extent an Executive has been successiul on the merils or otherwise in conhection
with any Action, including, without limitation, the settlement, dismissal, abandonment, or
withdrawal of any such Action where the Executive doas not pay, incur, or assume any
material Lisbilities, or in connection with any claim, issue, or matter therein, he or she
shall be Indemnitied by the Corporation against reasonable Expenses incurred by or on
behalf of him or her in cannection therewith. The Corporation shall pay such Expenses to
the Executive (net of all Expenses, if any, previously advanced to the Execuiive pursuant
1o Section 2 of this Article VI), or to such other person or entity as the Executive may
designate in writing to the Cotporation, within ten days after the receipt of the Executive's
written requast therefor, without regard to the provisions of Section 3 of this Article V1. In
the event the Corporation refuses to pay such requested Expenses, the Executive may
E\eﬂtﬁm e; c%tiln to order the Corporation to make such payment pursuant to Section 4 of

is Article V1,

c. Notwithstanding any ather provision contained in this Article VI to ﬁe contrary, the
Corporation shall not:
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(1) Indemnify, contribute, or advance Expenses to an Executive with respect to any
Action inftiated or brought voluntarily by the Executive and nat by way of defense,
excapt with respect to Agliahs:

(a) brought 1o establish or enforce a right ta indemnification, contribution,
and/or an advance of Expenses under Ssction 4 of this Article V1, under
the Statute as it may then bs In effact or under any other statute or law or
otherwise as required;

{b) initiated or brought voluntarily by an Exacutive to the extent such
Exacutive Is successiul on the merits or otherwise in connegtion with
such an Action in accordance with and pursuant to Section 1b of this
Article \VI; or

{c) &8 to which the Board determines il o be appropriate.

(2} indemnify the Exscutive under ihis Article VI for any amounts paid in settlement of
any Action sffected without the Corporation's writlen consent.,

The Comoration shall not settle in any manner which would impose any Liabilities or other
vpe of limitation on the Executive without the Executive's written consent. Neither ths
Corporation not the Exacitive shall unreasonably withhald their consant to any proposed
setttement.

An Executive's conduct with respect to an employee benefit plan sponsored by or
olherwise associated wiih the Corporation andfor an Afliliate for a purpose he or she
reasonably believes to be in the interests of the participants in and beneficiaries of such
plan is conduct that does not conslitute a breach or fallure to perform his or her duties to
the Corporation or an Affiliate, as the case may be.

2, Advance for Expensas

a.

The Corporation shall pay to an Executive, or to such other person or entity as the
Executive may designate in writing fo the Corporation, his or her reasonable Expenses
incurred by or on behalf of such Executive in connection wilh any Action, or clalm, issue,
of malter associated with any such Actlon, in advance of the final disposition or
conclusion of any such Action (or claim, Issus, or matter associated with ary such Action),
within ten days after the receipt of the Executive's writien raquest therelor; provided, the
fallowlng conditlons ara satisfled:

1) The Executive has first requested an advance of such Expenses in writing (and
delivered a copy of such request to the Corporation) from the insurance carrier(s),
if any, to whom a claim has been reported under an applicable insurance policy
purchased by the Corporation and each such insurance carrler, if any, has
daclined to make such an advance;

{2) The Executive fumnishes to the Corporation an executed written certificate
affirming his or her good Talth belief that he or she has not engaged in misconduct
which constitutes a Breach of Duty; and

(3 The Executive furnishes 1o the Corporation an executed written agreement to
repay any advances made under this Section 2 if it is ultimately detemmined that
he or she is not entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation for such Expenses
pursuant to this Article VI.
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If the Corporation makes an advance of Expengsas 1o an Executive pursuant to this
Section 2, the Corporation shall be subrogated to every right of recovery the Executive
may have against any insuranca carrier from whom the Corporation has purchased
insurance for such purpose.

3. Determination of Right tc Indemnification

4.

Except as otherwise set forth in this Section 3 or in Section 1¢ of this Article VI, any
indemnification to ba provided to an Executive by the Corporation under Section 13 of this
Article VI upan the final disposition or conclusion of any Action, or any claim, issue, or
matter agsocizied with any such Action, unless otherwise ardered by a court, shall be paid
by the Corporation to the Executive {net of all Expenses, i any, previously advanced o
the Executive pursuant to Section 2 of this Article V1), or to such other parson or antity as
the Executive may designate in writing to the Corporation, within 60 daye after the receipt
of the Execitive's written request therefor. Such request shall includs an accounting of all
amounta for which indemnification is being sought. No further corporate authorization for
such payment shall be reguired other than this Section 3.

Notwithstanding the foregeing, the payment of such requested indemnifiable amounts
pursuant to Section 1a of this Article VI may be denied by the Corporation if:

Mn the Board by a majority vole theraof determinas that the Executive has engaged
in misconduct which canstitutes a Braach of Duty; or

@ a majority of the direciors of the Corporation are a party in interest to such Action.

In either gvent of nonpayment pursuant 1o Section 3b of this Arficle V1, the Board shali
immediately authotize and direct, by resolution, that an independent determination be
made as 1o whether the Exgcutive has engaged in misconduct which constitutes a Breach
of Duiy and, therefore, whether indemnification of the Executive is proper pursuant to this
Article V1.

Such independent determination shalt be made, at the option of the Executive(s) seeking
indemnilication, by:

(1) A pangl of three arbitrators (selected as sel forih below in Saection 3f from the
panels of arbitrators of the American Arbitration Association) in Milwaukee,
Wisconsin, in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules then prevailing
of the Amarican Arbitration Association;

{2) An indepandsnt legal counsel mutually selected by the Executive(s) seeking
indemnification and the Board by a majority vote of a quorum thereof consisting
of dirgctors who were not parties in interest to such Action {or, if such quorum is
not obtainable, by the majority vote of the entire Board); or

{3) A court in accordance with Section 4 of this Article VI.

in any such determination there shall exist a rebuttable presumption that the Executive
has not engaged in misconduct which constitutes a Breach of Duty and Is, therefare,
entitled to indemnification hersunder. The hurden of rebutting such presumption by clear
and convincing evidanca shall be on the Gomporation.

I a panel of arbitraiors is 1o be employed hersunder, one of such arbitrators shall be
selected by the Board by a majority vole of a quorum thereof consisting of directors who
were not parties in interest to such Action or, if such quorum is not obtainabls, by an
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independant lagal counsel chosan by the majority vote of the entire Beard, the second by
the Executive(s) seeking indemnification, and the third by the previous two arbilrators.

The Authority shall make its independent determination hereunder within 60 days of being
selected and shall simultaneously submit a writlen opinion of its conclusions to both the
Corporation and the Exacutive,

If the Authority determines that an Executive is entitled to be indemnified for any amounts
pursugnt fo this Aricle VI, the Corporation shall pay such amounts ie the Executive {net of
all Expanses, il any, previously atdvanced fo the Execitive pursuant 1o Section 2 of this
Article W1, including interest thereon as provided in Section 6¢ of this Article VI, or such
other person or entity as the Executive may designate in writing to the Corporatioh, within
ten days of receipt of such opinion.

Except with respect to any judicial determination pursuant to Section 4 of this Aricle VI,
the Expenses associated with the indemnification process set forth in this Sectlion 3 of this
Article VI, including, without imitation, the Expenses of the Authority selected hereunder,
shall ke paid by the Corporation,

4, Court-Ordered Indemnification and Advance for Expenses

a.

An Executive may, either before or within two years afer a determination, if any, has been
made by the Authority, petition the court before which such Action was brought or any
cther court of competent jurisdiction to indepandently determine whether or not he or she
has engaged in misconduct which constitutes a Breach of Duty and is, therefore, entitled
1o indemnification under the provisions of this Article V1. Such court shall thereupon have
the exclusive authotity to make such determination unless and untit such court dismisses
or otherwise terminates such proceeding without having made such determination. An
Executive may petition a court under this Section 4 elther o seok an initial determination
by the court as authorized by Saction 3d of this Articls VI o to seek review by the court of
a pravious adversa detarmination by the Authority.

The cowrt shall make its independent determingtion irrespective of eny prior determination
made by the Authority; provided, however, that there shall exist a rebuttable presumption
that the Executive has not engaged in misconduct which constitutes a Breach of Duty and
is, therefora, entitled to indemnification hereunder. The burden of rebutting such
presumption by clear and convineing evidence shell be on the Corporation,

In the event the court determines that an Execufive has engaged In misconduct which
constitutes a Breach of Duty, it may nonstheless crder indemnification to be paid by the
Comaration if it determines that the Executive is falrly and reasonabiy entitled o
indernnification in view aof all of the clrcumstances of such Action.

In the event the Corporation does not:

(N Advance Expenses to the Executive within ten days of suoh Executive's
compliance with Seciion 2 of this Article VI; or

2] Indemnify an Executive with respect o requested Expenses under Section 1b of
this Articie VI within ten days of such Executive’s written request therefor, the
Executive may petition the court before which such Action was brought, if any, or
any other court of competent jurisdiction 1o order the Corporation 1o pay such
reasanable Expenses immediately. Such court, after giving any notics i
considars necessary, shall order the Gorporation to pay such Expenses If it
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determines that the Executive has compiied with the applicable pravisions of
Section 2 of this Arficle VI or 1b of this Article VI, a8 the case may be.

if the court determines pursuant fo this Section 4 that the Executive is entitied to be
indemnified for any Liabilities and/or Expenses, or o the advance of Expenses, unless
otherwise orderad by such court, the Corporation shall pay such Liabililies and/or
Expenses to the Executive (net of all Expenses, if any, previously advanced i the
Executive pursuant to Section 2 of this Article V1), including interest thereon as provided
in Section B¢ of this Arlicle V1, or to such other person or entity as the Executive may
designate in writing to the Corporation, within ten days of the rendering of such
determination.

An Executive shall pay all Expenses incurred by such Executive in connection with the
judicial determination provided in this Seclion 4, unless it shalt ultimately bs determined
by the court that he or she Is entitled, in whale or In part, to be indemnified by, or to
receive an advance from, the Corporation as authorized by this Article VI. All Expenses
incurred by an Executive in connection with any subsequent appeal of the judicial
tetermination provided for in this Section 4 shall be paid by the Executive regardless of
the disposition of such appeal.

Termination of an Action 1s Nonconclusive

The adverse termination of any Action against an Executive by judgment, order setilement,
conviction, or upon a plea of no contest or its squivalent, shall not, of itseif, create a presumption
that the Executive has engaged in misconduct which constitutes a Breach of Duty.

Partial Indemnification; Reasonableness; Interest

a.

H it Is detarmined by tha Authority, or by a court, that an Executive is antitled to
indlemnification as to some claims, issues, or matters, but not as to other claims, issuss,
or matters, involvad in any Action, the Authority, or the court, shall autharize the proration
and payment by the Corporation of such Lisbilities and/or reascnable Expenses with
respect to which indemnification is sought by the Executive, among such claims, issues,
or matters as the Authorily, or the court, shall deem appropriate in light of all of the
circumstances of such Action.

if it is determined by the Authority, or by a court, that certain Expenses incurred by or on
behalf of an Exscutive are for whatever reason unreasonable in amount, the Authority, or
tha court, shall nonethsaless authorize indemnification to be paid by the Corporation to the
Exscufive for such Expenses as the Autherity, or the coutt, shall desm reagsonable in light
of all of the cireumstances of such Action.

Interest shall be paid by the Corporation to an Exscutive, 1o the extent deemed
appropriate by the Authority, or by a court, at a reasonable interest rate, for amounts for
which the Corporation indemnifiss ar advances to the Executive.
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insurance; Subrogation

a.

The Comporation may purchase and maintzin insurance on behalf of any person who Is of
was an Execuiive of the Corporation, and/or is or was serving as an Executive of an
Affilinte, against Liebilities and/or Expenses assserted against him or her andfor incurred
by or on behalf of him or her In any such capaclty, or arising out of his or her status as
such an Executive, whather or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify him
ot her against such Liabilities and/or Expenses under this Article VI or under the Statute
as it may then be in offect. Except as expressty provided herein, the purchase and
maintenance of such insurance shal not in any way limit or affect the rights and
oblipations of the Corporation and/or any Executive under this Article VI. Such insurance
may, but need not, be for the benafil of all Executivas of the Corporation and thosa
serving as an Executive of an Affiliate.

If an Executive shall recsive payment from any insurance carriar of from the plaintiif in
any Action against such Executive in respect of indemnified amounts after payments on
account of all or part of such indemnified amounts have been made by the Corporation
pursuant fo this Article VI, such Executive shall promptly reimburse the Corparation for
the amount, if any, by which the sum of such payment by such insurance carrier ar such
plaintiff and payments by the Corporation to such Exacutive excesds such indemnified
amounts; provided, howevar, that such portions, if any, of such insurance proceeds that
aré required to be reimbursed to the insurance carrier under the terms of its insurance
poligy, such as deductible, retention, or co-insurance amounis, shall not be deemed to be
payments to such Execulive hersunder.

Upon payment of indemnified amounts under this Article V1, the Corparation shall be
subrogated 1o such Execulive's rights against any insurance carrier in respect of such
indemnified amounts and the Executive shall execute and deliver any and all instruments
and/or documents and perform any and all other acts or deeds which the Corporation
shall deem nacessary or advisabla 1o secura such rights. The Executive shall do nothing
to prejudice such rights of recovery or subrogatian.

Witness Expenses

The Cerporation shall advance or reimburse any and ell reasonable Expenses incurred by of on
behalf of ah Executive in connecticn with his or her appsarance as a witness in any Action st &
time when he or she has not bean formally named a defendant or respondent to such an Action,
within tan days after the recaipt of an Executive's written request thersfor.

Contribution

a.

Subject to the limitations of this Sectlon 9, If the indemnity provided for In Sectlon 1 of this
Article VI is unavailable to an Execulive for any reason whatsoever, the Corporation, in
lieu of indemnifying the Executive, shall contribuie to the amount incurred by or on behatf
of the Executive, whether for Liabliities and/or for reasonable Expenses in connaction with
any Action in such praportion as deemad fair and reasonable by the Autherity, or by &
court, in light of all of the circumstances of any such Action, in order to reflact:

(1) The relative benefits received by the Corporation and the Executive as a result of
the eveni(s) and/or transaction(s) giving cause o such Aclion; and/or

2 The relative fault of the Corporation (and its other Executives, employeess, and/or
agents) and the Execulive in connection with such eveni(s) and/or fransaction{s).
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b. The relative fault of the Corporation (and its other Executives, employees, and/or agents),
on the oneg hand, and of the Executiva, on the other hand, shall be delermined by
reference to, among other things, the partias' relafive Intant, knowledgs, access 1o
information, and opportunily 10 correct or prevent the circumsiances resulting in such
Liabilities and/or Expensss. The Corporation agress that it would not be just and
equitable if contribution pursuant to this Sectien 9 were determined by pro rata allocation
or any other method of allocation which does not take account of the foregoing equitable
considerations,

c. An Executive shail not be entitied to contribution from the Corporation under this
Section 9 in the avent it is detarminad by the Authority, or by a court, that the Executive
has engaged in misconduct which constitutes a Breach of Duty.

d. The Corporation's payment of, and an Executive's right to, contribution under this
Section 9 shall be made and detsrmined in accordance with and pursuant to the
provisions in Sections 3 and/or 4 of this Article VI relating fo the Corporation's payment of,
and the Executive's right o, indemnification under this Article V1.

Indemnification of Employees

Unless otharwlise specifically set forth in this Articie Vi, the Corporation shall indemnify and hold
harmiess any person wha is or was a parly, or is threatened to be made a party to any Action by
raason of his or her status as, or the fact that he or she is ¢r wags an employee or authorized agent
of representative of the Corporation andfor an Affiliate as to acts pericrmed in the course and
within the scope of such employee's, agent's, or representative’s duties ta the Carporation and/or
an Affiliate, in accordance with and ta the fullest extent parmitted by the Stafute as it may then be
in effect.

Severabllity

If any provision of this Article VI shall be deemed invalid or inoperative, or if a court of competent
jurisdiction determines that any of the provisions of this Article Vi contravene public policy, this
Article VI shall be construed so that the remaining provigions shall not be affected, but shali
remain in full force and effeet, and any such provisions which are invalid cr inopsrative or which
contravena pubilc policy shall be deemed, without further Action or deed by or on behalf of tha
Corporation, to be modified, amendad, and/or limited, but only to the extent necessary to render
the same valid and erforceable, and the Corporation shall indemnify an Executive as to Liabilties
and reasonable Expenses with respect to any Action to the full extent permitied by any applicable
provision of this Article V1 that shall not have been Invalidatsd and to the full extent otherwise
permitted by the Statute as it may then be in effect.

Nonexclusivity of Ariicle Vi

The right to Indemnification, contribution, and advancement of Expenses provided to an Executive
by this Article VI shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to indemnification, contribution,
and/or advancement of Expenses which any Executive or other employee or agent of the
Corparation andfor of an Affiliate may be entitled under any charter provision, written agreement,
resolulicn, vote of shareholders or disinterestad directors of the Corporation ar otherwise,
including, witheut limitation, under the Statute as it may then be in effect, both as to acts In his or
her ofticial capacity as such Executive or other employee or agent of the Corporation and/or of an
Affiliate or as to acts in any other capacity while holding such ofiice or position, whether or not the
Corporation would have the powsr to Indemnify, centribute, and/or advance Expenses to the
Executive under this Arficle VI or under the Statule; provided that it is not determined that the
gxecuﬂva or othar employee or agent has engaged in misconduct which constitutes a Breach of
uty.
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Nolice to the Corporation; Defense of Actiona

a,

An Executive shall promnptly notify the Corporation in writing upon being served with or
having actual knowledge of any citation, summons, complaint, indiciment, or any other
similar document relating to any Action which may result in a claim of indsmnification,
contribution, or advancement of Expenses hareundger, but the omission so to nolify the
Corporation will not relieva the Corporation from any llability which it may have to the
Executive otherwise than under this Article VI unless the Corporation shall have been
wreparably prejudiced by such omission.

With respect to any such Action as to which an Executive notifies the Corporation of the
commencement thergof:

{1) The Corporation shall be entitled to participate therein at its own expense; and

{2 Except as otherwise provided below, to the exiant that it may wish, the
Corporatlon (or any other indemnlfying party, Including any insurance carer,
similarly notified by the Corporation or the Executive) shall ba entitled to assume
the defensse thareof, with counsel selected by the Corporation {of such other
indemnifying party) and reasconably satisfactory to the Executive.

After notice from the Corporatiort (or such ather indemnifying party) to the Executive of its
election to assume the dafense of an Agction, the Corporation shall not be liable to the
Executive under this Article VI for any Expenses subsequenily incurred by the Executive
in connectlon with the defense thereof othar than reasonable costs of investigation or as
otherwise provided below. The Executive shall have the right to empioy his or her own
counsed in such Action but the Expanses of such counsel incurred aftsr notice from the
Corporation (or such othar indemnifying party) of its assumptlon of the defense thereof
shall ba at the expense of the Executive unless:

(1) The employment of counsal by the Executive hag been autharized by the
Corporation;

(2} The Executive shatl have reasonably concluded that there may be a conflict of
interest between the Corporation {or such other indemnifying party) and the
Executive in the conduct of the defense of such Action; or

(3) The Corporation {or such other indemnifying party) shall not in fact have
employsd counsal 1o assume the defense of such Action, in each of which cases
tha Expanses of counsel shall be at the expenss of the Corporation. The
Corporation shall not be entitled to assume the defense of any Derivative Action
or any Aclion &s to which the Executive shall have made the conclusion provided
for in clause (2) above.

Continuity of Rights and Obfigations

The terms and provisions of this Article V| shall continue as to an Executive subsequent to the
Termination Date and such terms and provisions shalf inurs to the benefit of the heits, estats,
executors, and administrators of such Executive and the successors and assigns of the
Corporation, inciuding, without limitation, any successor to the Corporation by way of mergex,
consalidation, and/or sale or disposition of all ar substantially all of the assets or capital stock of
the Corporation. Except as provided herein, all rights and obligations of the Corporation and the

Executive hersunder shall continue in full force and affect despite the subsequent amendment or

modification of the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation, as such are in effect on the date heredf,
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and such rights and obligations shall not be affected by any such amendment or modification, any
resolution of directors or shareholders of the Corporation, or by any other corporate action which
conflicts with or purports to amend, modify, limit, ar efiminate any of the rights or obligations of the
Corporation and/or of the Executive hareunder.

Amendment

This Article VI may only be altered, amanded, or repealed by the affirmative vote of a2 majerity of
the sharaholders of the Corporation so entitled to vote; provided, howevar, that the Board may
alter or amend this Article Vi without such shareholder approval it any such alteration or
amendment;

a Is made In order ta conform to any amendment or revielon of the Wisconsin Business
Gorporation Law, including, without limitation, the Statute, which

1) Expands or permits the expansion of an Executive's right to indemnification there-
- under;

{2) Limits or eliminates, or permits thea limitation or alimination, of liability of the
Exscutives; or

{3) ls otherwise beneficial to the Execulives; or

b. In the sole judgment and discretion of tha Board, doss not materially adversely affect the
rights and protections of the shareholders of the Corporation.

Any repeal, modification, or amendment of this Article VI shall not advarsely affect any rights or
protections of an Executive existing under this Article VI inmedialely prior fo the time of such
repeal, modification, or amendment and any such repeal, modification, or amendment shall have
a prospective effact only.

Ceriain Definitions
The following terms as used in this Article Vi shall be defined as follows:

a. *Action(s)" shall include, without fimitation, any threatened, pending, or completad action,
claim, liligation, suit, or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administretive, arbitrative, or
investigative, whether pradicated on forgign, Federal, state, or local iaw, whether brought
under andfor predicated upon the Securities Act of 1833, as amanded, and/or the
Securitiss Exchange Act of 1934, as amanded, and/for their respective state counterparts
and/or any rule or regulation premulgated thereunder, whether a Derivative Action and
whether formal or informal.

b. “Affiliate" shall include, without limhation, any corporation, partnership, joint venture,
employee benefit plan, trust, or other similar anterptise that directly or indirectly through
one or mare intemmediaries, controls or is controlled by, or is under cammon control with,

the Corporation.

c. *Authority” shall mean the panel of arbitrators or independent legel counsel selected
under Section 3 of this Article V.

d. *Board" shall mean the Board of Directors of the Corporation.
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"Breach of Duty" shall mean the Executive breached or falled to pertorm his or her duties
1o the Corporation or an Affiliata, as the case may be, and the Exscutive's breach of or
failure to perform those duties constituted:

{1 A wiliful fallure to daal faidy with the Comporation (or an Affiliale) or its
shareholders In cannaction with a matter in which the Executive has a material
canflict of interest;

{2 A vidlation of the criminal law, uniess the Executive:
{a) Had reasonable cause to believe hls or her conduct was lawful; or
{b) Had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful;

{3) A transaction from which the Executive detlved an improper parsonal profit
{uniess such profit is determined to be immaterial in Hight of all the circumstances
of the Action); or

(4) Wiliful misconduct.

"Derivative Action” shall mean any Action brought by or in the right of the Corporation
and/or an Affiliate.

"Executiva(s)" shall mean any individual wha ks, was, or has agreed to become a director
and/or officer of the Corporation and/or an Affiliate.

"Expenses” shall include, without limitation, all expenses, fees, costs, charges, attorneys’
fees and disbursements, other out-pf-pocket costs, reasonable compeansation for time
spent by the Executive in connection with the Action far which he or she is not otherwise
compensated by the Corporation, any Affiliate, any third party or other entity, and any and
all other direct and indirect costs of any type or nature whatsoever.,

"Liabtlities" shall inclugde, without limitafion, judgments, amounts incurrad in settlement,
fines, penalties and, with respect to any employess benefit plan, any excise tax or penalty
incurred in connestion therewith, and any and all other liabilities of every type or nature
whatsoever,

“Statute” shall mean Wisconsin Businass Corporation Law Sections 180.0850-180.0859
{or any successar provisions).

“Termination Date® shall mean the date an Executive ceases, for whatever reason, to
serva in an employment relationship with ihe Company and/or any Affiliaie.

ARTICLE Vil. SEAL

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shaif provide a corporate seal which shall be cireular In form and shall have
inscribed theraon the words "INTEGRYS ENEAGY GROUF, INC., CORPORATE SEAL." The continued
use for any purpose of any former corporate seal or facsimile thereof shall have the same efiect as the
use of the corporate seal or facsimile thereof in the form provided by the preceding sentenca.
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ARTICLE Vill. AMENDMENTS

The Board of Directors shall have authority to adopt, amend, or repeal the By-laws of this
Corporation upon affimnative vote of a majority of the total number of directors at a meeting of the
Board, the notice of which shall have included notize of the proposed amendment; but the Board
of Diractors shall have no power to amend any By-law ot ta reinstaie any By-iaw repealed by the
shargholders unless the shareholders shall hereafter confer such authority upon the Board of
Directors.

The shareholders shall have power to adopt, amend, or repeal any of the By-laws of the
Corpaoration, at any regular or special meeting of the shareholders, in accordance with the
provisions of Article Il of these By-laws. There shall be included in the notice of such regular or
special meeting a statement of the nature of any amendment that is propesed for the
consideration of the shareholders by the holders of at least 5% of the voling stock of the
Corporafion in a writing deliverad 1o tha Secretary of the Corporation not less than 90 days priot to
the date of such meeting or by the Board of Directors.
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Forward-Looking Statements

In this report, Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries make statements concerning expectations,
beliefs, plans, objectives, goals, strategies, and future events or performance. Such statements are
“forward-lacking statements” within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended. Although Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries believe thal these forward-looking
statemeants and the underlying assumptions are reasonable, it cannot provide assurance that they wil
prove correct. Except ta the extent required by the federal securities laws, integrys Energy Group and its
subsidiaries undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether
as a result of new information, future events or atherwise.

In addition to statements regarding trends or estimates in Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations forward-locking statements included or mcorporated in this
repont inciude, but are not limited to statements regarding future:

+ Reavenues or expenses,
e« Capital expenditure projections, and
¢ Financing sources.

Forward-looking statements involve a number of risks and uncertainties. There are many factors that
could causa actual resulis to differ materially from those expressed or implied in this report. Some risk
factors that could cause results different from any forward-looking statement include those described in
ltem 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-X for the year ended December 31, 2007, Other factors
include:

¢ Unexpacted costs and/or unexpected liabilities related to the PEC merger;

+  The successful combination of the operations of Integrys Energy Group and PEC;

» Integrys Energy Group may be unable to achieve the forecasted synergies in connection with
the PEC merger or it may take longer or cost more than expected to achieve these synergies;

« Resclution of pending and future rate cases and negotiations {including the recovery of deferred
costs) and other regulatory decisions impacting Integrys Energy Group’s regulated businesses;

e Theimpact of recent and future federal and state regulatory changes, including legislative and
regulatory initiatives regarding deregulation and restructuring of the electric and natural gas
utility industries and possible future initiatives to address concerns about global climate change,
changes in environmental, tax and other laws and regulations to which Integrys Energy Group
and its subsidiaries are subject, as well as changes in application of existing laws and
regulations;

¢ Current and future litigation, regulatory investigations, proceedings or inquiries, including but not
limited to, manufactured gas plant site cleanup, and the contasted case proceeding regarding
the Weston 4 air permit;

s Resolution of audits or other tax disputes with the IRS and various state, local and Canadian

revenue agencies;

The effects, extent and timing of additional competition or regulation in the markets in which our

subsidiaries operate.

Available sources and costs of fuels and purchased power;

Investment performance of employee benefit plan assets;

Advances in iechnology;

Effects of and changes in palitical and legal developments, as well as econamic conditions and

its impact on customer demand, in the United States and Canada;

Potential business strategies, including mergers, acquisitions, construction or disposition of

assels or businesses, which cannot be assured to be completed timely or within budgets,

»  The direct or indirect effects of terrorist incidents, natural disasters or responses to such events;

e  The impacts of changing financial market conditions, cradit ratings and interest rates an our
financing efforts, and the risks associated with changing commodity prices {particularly natural
gas and electricity);

s  Weather and cther natural phenomena, in particutar the effect of weather on natural gas and
electricity sales;



»  The effect of accounting pronouncements issued periodically by standard-setting bodies; and
s Other factors discussed elsewhare herein and in other reporis filed by u3 from time to time with
the SEC.

Forward-fooking statements are subject to assumptions and uncertainties, therefore actual results
may differ materially from those expressed or impliad by such forward-iooking statements,
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
A. GENERAL

For purpases of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, unless the context otherwise indicates, when we refer
to "us," "we," "our" or "ours," we are describing integrys Energy Group, Inc.

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

Integrys Energy Group is domiciled in the United States and was incorporated in Wisconsin in 1993,
Integrys Energy Group is a holding company for regulated utility and nonregutated business units. As of
December 31, 2007, Integrys Energy Group served approximately 485,000 regulated slectric utility
customers and approximately 1,674,000 regulated natural gas utility customers.

See Note 24, "Segments of Business," for information on Integrys Energy Group’s foreign and domestic
revenues, foreign and domestic long-lived assets, and ravenues from external customers, net income
(loss), and total assets by reportable segment.

Electric Utility Segment

The slectric utility segment includes the regulated eleciric utility aperations of WPSC and UPPCO.
WPSC, a Wisconsin corporation, is domiciled in the United States and began operatians in 1883,
UPPCO, a Michigan corporation, is domiciled in the United States and began operations in 1884. For the
last three years, all of the electric utility segment's revenues were eamed within the United States and all
assets were located within the United States. In 2007, retail slactric sales accounted for 82.4% of total
revenues, while wholesale electric sales accounted for 17.6% of total revenues,

Natural Gas Utility Segment

The natural gas utility segment includes the regulated natural gas utility operations of WPSC, MGUC,
MERC, PGL, and N8G., MGUC and MERC, both Delaware corperations, are domiciled in the United
States and began operations upon acquisition of their natural gas distribution operations in Michigan and
Minnesota, respectively, from Aquila, Inc. in April 2006, and July 2008, respectively. PGL and NSG, both
lllinots carporations, are domiciled in the United States and began operations in 1855 and 1900,
respectively. Integrys Energy Group acquired PGL and NSG in February 2007 in the PEC merger.

Integrys Energy Services

Integrys Energy Services, a Wisconsin corporation, is domiciled in the United States and was established
in 1884, Integrys Energy Services is a diversified energy supply and senvices company senving
residential, commercial, industrial, and wholesale customers in developed competitive markets in the
United States and Canada. In 2007, Integrys Energy Services opened an office in Denver, Colorado, to
expand its operation into the Western Systems Coordinating Council markets. Integrys Energy Services
anticipates future operations in all viable competitive markets in the United States and Canadian natural
gas and electric markets.

Holding Company and Other Segment

The Holding Company and Other segment includes the operations of the Integrys Energy Group hoiding
company and the PEC holding company, along with any nonutility activities at WPSC, MGUC, MERC,
UPPCO, PGL, and NSG. Also included in the Holding Company and Other segment is WPS Investmeants,
LLC, a nanutility compeany which halds the investment of Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries in
ATC. On December 31, 2007, WPS Investments was owned 15.85% by WPSC, 3.37% by UPPCO and
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80.78% by Integrys Energy Group. Equity eamings from our investments in ATC, WRPC, and Guardian
Pipeline, L.L.C {prior to its sale in 2006) are included in the Holding Company and Other segment.

For mare information regarding revenues, net income, and total assets for Integrys Energy Group's
reporiable segments, see Note 24, “Segments of Business.”



B. REGULATED ELECTRIC OPERATIONS

integrys Energy Group's regulated electric operations are provided through WPSC and UPPCO. WPSC's
regulated electric operations generate and distribute electric energy mainly to northeastem Wisconsin and
a small portion of Michigan's Upper Peninsula. UPPCO provides electric energy in Michigan's Upper
Peaninsula. Wholesale electric service is provided to various customers, including municipal utilities,
electric cooperatives, anergy marketers, other investor-awned utilities, and municipal joint action agencies.

Regulated Electric Segment Operating Statistics

2007 20086 2005
Operating revenues (millions)
Residential $ 3818 $ 3530 § 3551
Commercial and industrial 807.0 548.8 491.7
Resale and other 257.3 197.8 190.3
Total $1,246.1 $1,009.4 $1,037.1
Kilowatt-hour sales {millions)
Residential 31738 3,144.8 31274
Commercial and industrial 8,750.9 8,645.2 8,641.8
Resale and other 408673 4,135,3 3,890.9
Total 15,991.8 15,925.3 15,660.1
Customers served (approximate, end of

poriod)

Residential 424 400 421,000 424 100
Commercial and industrial 59,600 59,100 51,600
Resale and other 1,000 a0ag 1,300
Total 485,000 481,000 477,000

In 2007, Integrys Energy Group's regulated slectric facilities reached a firm net design peak of

2,305 megawatts on July 31, 2007. As a rasult of continually reaching demand peaks in the summer
manths, primarily due to air conditioning load, the summer period is the most relevant for Integrys Enargy
Group's regulated eleciric ulility capacity. WPSC expects future supply reserves to meet the minimum
18% planning reserve margin criteria through 2008 as required by the PSCW. The PSCW has opened a
docket to review the adequacy of the 18% reserve margin requirement. The MPSC has not established
minimum guidelines for future supply reserves.

WPSC and UPPCO had adequate capacity to meet all firm electric load obligations during 2007 and
axpect to have adequate capacity to meet all obiigations during 2008, Both WPSC and UPPCQ are
members of the MISQ, which operates a financial and physical electric wholesale market in the Midwest,
and offer their generation and bid their customer load into the market. For further information on MISO,
see ltem 7 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation -
Other Future Considerations.

Facilities
For a complete Jisting of Integrys Energy Group's regulated eleclric facilities, see Hem 2 - Properlies, in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K. To see Integrys Energy Group's electric utility plant asset book value,
see Note 5, "Property, Flan, and Equipment.”
Power Purchase Agreements
Integrys Energy Group' regulated electric facilitias anter into shart and long-term power purchase
agreements to meet a portion of elechic energy supply needs. For more information on these power

purchase agreements, see ltem 7 - Management's Discussion and Anaiysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Qperation - Liquidity and Capita! Resources, Contractual Obligations.
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Fuel Supply
Electric Supply Mix

Integrys Energy Group's regulated electric supply mix for 2007 and 2006 was:

Energy Source 2007 2006
Company-owned generating plants
Coal 52.4% 57.3%
Natural gas and fuei oil 2.2% 1.4%
Hydroelectric 1.3% 1.8%
Wind ' 01% 0.1%
Purchased power
Kewaunee {nuclear) 19.3% 17.6%
Fox Energy Center, LLC and Combined
Locks Energy Center, LLC (natural gas) 3.4% 6.1%
Hydrosalectric 2.4% 3.3%
Other (including MISQ) 18.9% 12.7%
Total purchased power 44.0% 39.7%
Fuei Costs

Integrys Enargy Group's regulated electric fuel costs for its generating units for 2007 and 2006 were:

Fuel Cost by Source (Per Million Btus) 2007 2006
Coal $1.47 $1.30
MNatural gas 7.36 7.19
Fuel oil 13.95 13.60

Coal Supply and Deliveries

Ccal is the primary fuel source far Integrys Enargy Group's regulated electric generation facilities, the
miajority of which is from the Powder River Basin mines located in Wyoming. This low sulfur coal has heen
our least-cost coal source fram any of the subbituminous coal-producing regions in the United States.
Integrys Energy Group's requlated electric fuel portfolio strategy is to maintain a 25- to 40-day supply of
coal at each plant siie,

Historically, WPSC has purchased coal directly from the producer for its wholly owned plants. Wisconsin
Power and Light purchases coal for the jointly owned Edgewater and Columbia plants and is reimbursed
by WPSC for its share of the coal costs. WPSGC currently has contracts in place for coal transportation for
90% of its 2008 coal transportation requirements. For more information on coal purchases and coal
deliveries under contract, see ltem 7 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operation - Liquidity and Capital Resources, Contractual Obligations and Note 17,
"Commitments and Contingencies."

Natural Gas Supply - Generation

Through a power purchase agreement, WPSC is committed ta provide fuel for 500 megawatts of the Fox
Energy Center, a natural gas-fired combined cycle generation facility owned by a third party with a total
cambined electric capacity of approximately 580 megawatts. In addition, WPSC supplies natural gas
through its natural gas distribution system ta its approximately 429 megawatts of natural gas-fired
combustion turbine generation facilities. For more information on WPSC's natural gas supply under
coniract, see ltam 7 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Rasults of
Operatian - Liquidity and Capltal Resources, Contractual Qbligations and Note 17, "Commitments and
Contingencres.”



WPSC has received approval from the PSCW for its Energy Market Risk Management Plan fo govern its
activities in the energy markets. The order permits activities to limit exposure to the volatility of natural gas
prices affecting its electric generation, as well as the use of financial transmission rights for the use of
managing energy congestion costs. Tha plan provides for the use of financial futures contracts for natural
gas and the use of financial options that cap the price of natural gas for a portion of WPSC's forecasted
natural gas fuel generation requirements and natural gas price sensitive purchased power contracts.

Regulatory Matters
Integrys Energy Group's electric utility operations are regulated by the PSCW, MPSC, and FERC.
For additional information, see Note 23, "Regulatory Environment.”

Hydroalectric Licenses

WPSC, UPPCO, and WRPC (a company in which we have 50% ownership), have long-lerm licenses from
FERC for alt of their hydroelectric facilities,

UPPCO has announced its decision to restore Silver Lake as a reservoir to support power generation,
pending approval of an economically feasible design by the FERC. The FERC has required that a board
of consultants evaluate and ovarsee the design approval process. UPPCO continues to work with its
Board of Directors and the FERC o develop an economicelly feasible design.

For more information on Silver Lake, see Note 17, "Commitments and Contingencies.”
Other Matters
Customer Segmentation

tn 2007, paper production facilities and one wholesale customer (a private utility that primarily provides
power to paper mills) accounted for 8.3% of Integrys Energy Group’s regulated electric ufility revenues,
Residentiat sales accounted for 30.6% of Integrys Energy Group's regulaied electric utility revenues in
2007.

Seasonality

Integeys Energy Group's regulated electric utility sales in Wisconsin generally follow a seasonal pattern
due ta the air conditioning requirements of customers that ars primarily impacted by the variability of
summer temperatures. Regulated electric utility sales in Michigan follow no significant seasonal trend due
to cooler climate conditions in the Upper Peninsula of Michigar.

Generally during the winter months, the purchase price of fusl {natural gas and fuel! oil) for heating load
and generation production is heavily influenced by weather and the availability of baseload generation
units within the MISO energy market. Sustained calder-than-normal weather and unexpected extendad
generation outages can influence fuel supply and demand, impacting the praduction costs at Integrys
Energy Group's natural gas and oil-fired facililies, as well as natural gas supply commitments under
power purchase agresments. For Integrys Energy Group's electric segment, the impact on utility
production costs is managed through WPSC's Energy Market Risk Management Plan.

Compaetition
The retail electric utility market in Wisconsin is regutated by the PSCW. Retail electric customers currently
do not have the ability to choose their electric supplier. However, in order to increase sales, utiliies work

to attract new commercial/industrial customers into their service territory. As a result, there s competition
among ulilities to keep ensrgy rates low. Wisconsin ulilities have continued ta refine regulated tariiffs in
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order to provide customers with the true cost of electric energy to each class of customer by reducing or
eliminating rate subsidies among different ratepayer classes. Although Wisconsin electric energy markets
are regulated, utiliies still face competition from other energy sources.

Michigan electric energy markets are open tg competition; however, an active competitive markst has not
yet developed in the Upper Peninsula of Michigan primarily due to a lack of excess generalion and
transmission system capacity.

Working Capital Requirements
For information an capital requirements related to Integrys Energy Group’s reguizted electric utility

operations see ltem 7 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operation - Liguidity and Capital Resources.



C. REGULATED NATURAL GAS UTILITY OPERATIONS

Integrys Energy Group provides regulated natural gas utility service to Chicago and northeastern [linols,
northeastern Wisconsin, adjacent portions of Michigan's Upper Peninsula, various cities and communities
throughout Minnesota, and in the southern portion of lower Michigan.

Regulated Natural Gas Segment Operating Statistics
2007 2006 2005

Operating Revenues (millions)

Residential $1,441.7 34014 $291.9
Commercial and industrial 481.2 218.3 137.7
QOther 180.8 57.2 92.4
Total $2,103.7 $676.9 §522.0
Therms Delivarad (millions)

Resideniial 1,251.8 3515 2418
Commercial and industrial 4986 230.7 170.8
Cther 471 27.6 70.8
Total therm sales 1,797.5 609.8 483.2
Transportation 1,505.6 B657.5 3440
Total 3,3031  1,267.3 827.2
Customers Served (approximate, end of period)

Residential 1,548,400 620,500 279,200
Commercial and industrial 124,700 62,600 27,700
Other - - -
Transportation customers 800 900 1,000
Total 1,674,000 £84,000 308,000

Facilities

For infarmation regarding our regulated natural gas facilities, see ltem 2 - Properties in this Annual Repert
on Form 10-K. To see Integrys Energy Groups' natural gas utility plant assei book value, see Note 5,
"Property, Plant, and Equipment.”

Natural Gas Supply

Integrys Energy Group's natural gas utilities manage portfolios of natural gas supply contracts, storage
services and pipeline transpartatian services designed to mast thair varying load pattarn at the lowest
reasonable cost.

Integrys Energy Group's regulated natural gas subsidiaries contract for fixed-term firm natural gas supplies
with various natural gas suppliers each year to meet the November through March winter period demand
of firm system sales cusiomers. Integrys Energy Group's regulated natural gas supply requirements are
met through a combination of physical fixed price purchases, starage (contracted and owned), natural gas
call options and physical index purchases, and through the purchase of additional natural gas supplies on
the monthly spot market through fixed-term firm contracts i supplement natural gas supplies and
minimize risk. During periods of colder than normal weather, purchasing naturat gas in the daily spot
market may be necessary. Integrys Energy Group's regulated natural gas operations contract for
domestic natural gas supgplies and limit their purchases to minimize potential stranded natural gas supply
contract costs.



Under current regulatory practice, the {CC, PSCW, MPUC, and MPSC ellow integrys Energy Groups'
reguiated natural gas utllities to pass the prudently incurred cost of natural gas on to customers on a
dollar-for-dollar basis through purchased gas adjusiment clauses. Changes in the cost of natural gas are
reflected in both natural gas revenues and natural gas purchases, thus having litfe or no impact on net
income.

For further information on Integrys Energy Group's regulated natural gas utility supply and transportation
contracts, see ltem 7 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operation - Liquidity and Capital Resources, Contractual Obligations and Note 17, "Commitments and
Confingencias."

Integrys Energy Group's natural gas utilities contract with various underground storage facilities for
underground natural gas storage capacity and have company-owned storage. Besides providing the
ability to manage significant changes in daily natural gas demand, storage alsc provides Integrys Energy
Group with the ability to purchase natural gas at high load factors on a year-round basis, thus lowering
supply cost volatility. Integrys Energy Group has approximately 397 million therms of firm natural gas
storage capacity under coniract and approximately 314 million therms of firm natural gas storage capacity
located in its distribution system.

Regulatory Maiters

The natural gas retail rates of Iniegrys Energy Group are regulated by the ICC, PSCW, MPSC, and
MPUC. PGL utilizes its starage and pipeline supply assets as a natural gas hub. This activity is regulated
by the FERC and consists of providing wholesale transpertation and storage services in interstate
commerce.

For additional information, see Note 23, "Regulatory Environment."
Other Matters
Seasonality

The natural gas throughput of Integrys Energy Group's regulated natural gas utilities follows a seasonal
pattern due to the heating requirements of customers that is primarily impacted by the variability in winter
temperalures.

Competition

integrys Energy Group's regulated natural gas utility operations face competition with other enfities and
forms of energy in varying degrees, particularly for large commercial and industrial customers who have
the ability to switch between natural gas and alternate fuels. Due to the volatility of natural gas prices,
Integrys Energy Group has seen customers with dual fuel capability switch to altemate fuels for short
periods of time, then switch back to natural gas as market rates change. Interruptible natural gas sales
and natural gas fransportation service is offered for customers to enable them to reduce their energy
costs. Transportation customers purchase their natural gas directly from third-party natural gas suppliers
at market prices and contract with Integrys Energy Group's entities to transport the natural gas from
pipelines to their facilifies. Additionally, some cusiomers still purchase their natural gas commodity directly
from one of Integrys Energy Group's entities but have elected to do so on an interruptible basis, as a
means 1o reduce their costs. Customers continue o switch between firm system supply, interruptible
system supply and transportation service each year as the economics and service options change.

Working Capital Requirements
For information on capital requirements related to the regulated natural gas utility operations of Integrys

Energy Group see Item 7 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operation - Liquidity and Capital Resources.
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D. INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVICES

Integrys Energy Services is a diversified nonregulated energy supply and services company serving retail
and wholesale customers in developed campetitive markets in the United States and Canada.

Integrys Energy Services and its subsidiarles serve residential, commercial and industrial customers,
“"aggregated" small commercial and residential customers as well as provide standard offer service.
Aggregated customers are associations or groups of customers, which have joined together to negotiate
purchases of electric or natural gas energy as a larger group. In the wholesale market, Integrys Energy
Services facuses on structuraed transactions with raguiated local distribution companies, pipelines, starage
companies, cooperatives, municipalities, and other nonregulated energy marketing and trading
companies.

Energy revenues, volumes, and assets are as follows:

2007 2008 2005

Revenues (Millions)

United States $4,753.8 $3,176.9 $3,140.2

Canada 12,2259 1,982.2 2,165.7

Total $6,979.7 $5,159.1 $5,314.9
Electric Volumes
(Milion Megawatt-Haurs)

United States 17.7 5.0 8.1

Canada 05 0.5 -

Total 18.2 5.5 8.1
Gas Volumes (Billion Cubic Feet)

United States 479.0 359.1 2087

Canadz 286.0 2784 256.8

Total 765.0 B37.5 555.5
Long - Lived Assets (Millions)

United States $3,130.3 $2,715.7

Canada 20.3 21.0

Total $3,150.6 $2,736.7

Integrys Energy Services utlizes derivative instruments, including forwards, futures, options and swaps, to
manage its exposure 10 market risks in accordance with limits and approvals established in its risk
management and credit policies. The Market Risk Oversight Committee, comprised of cross-functional
members of management and senior leadership of Integrys Energy Services and its parent company
Integrys Energy Group, monitors compliance with these policies.

For more information on the trading and risk management activities of Integrys Energy Services, see
ltem 7 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation and
Market Price Risk Management Activities.

Facilities

At December 31, 2007, Integrys Energy Services owned and operated electric generation facilities in the
Midwest and Northeast regions of the United States with a total rated capacity of approximately
367 megawatts.

Integrys Energy Services' direct ownership of generation facilities allows for more efficient management of
the market risk associated with its generation capabilities and related confracts to provide efectric energy.
Integrys Energy Services focuses on effective economic dispatch and risk management strategies in order
to enhance the returns of its generation facilities.
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As parnt of the asset management strategy of Integrys Energy Group, Integrys Energy Services comntinues
to explore opportunities regarding the future of its electric generation facilities. Opportunities include, but
are not limited to purchasse, sales or development of cartain faciliies, joint ventures and long-term
contracts. Opportunities change and develop with the dynamics of the markets in which Integrys Energy
Services operates.

For a complete listing of generation facilities of Integrys Energy Services, see Item 2 - Propertias in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Fuel Supply

Integrys Energy Services' fuel inventory policy varies for eéach generation facility depending on the type of
fuel used and available natural gas storage facilities. In 2007, Integrys Energy Services' merchant
coal-fired generation facilities consisted of its Westwood and Stoneman facilities, Actual fuel needs in
2008 will dapend on market conditions and aperational capability of these facilities.

Integrys Energy Services' Westwood facility burns waste coal left behind by mining operations and has
severat year's supply on site. All fuel is located within a seven-mile radius of the plant.

The Stoneman facility currently has all of its anticipated 2008 coal needs on site.

integrys Energy Services currently has adequate transport and supply arangements in place for its
natural gas facilities (Beaver Falls, Syracuse, and Combined Locks) for their projecied needs to fuffill firm
commitments in 2008,

Licenses

Integrys Energy Services is a FERC licensed power marketer with import/fexport authorization through the
DOE. Integrys Energy Servicas on its own, or through certain of its subsidiaries, is registered to sall retail
electric service in Connecticut, Delaware, District of Columbia, lliinois, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts,
Michigan, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New York, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, Texas and Virginia
in the United States and the provinces of Ontaric and in Alberta in Canada.

Integrys Energy Services, on its own, or through certzin of its subsidiaries, is registered 1o sell natural gas
in the states of lllinois, lowa, Michigan, Ohio, Pennsylvania, New York and Alberta, Canada. Integrys
Energy Services also sells natural gas in Wisconsin where no license is required. Integrys Energy
Services' subsidiary, Integrys Energy Services of Canada Corp., is registered to do business in the
Canadian provinces of Alberta, British Columbia, Manitoba, Mova Scotia, Ontario, Quebec, and
Saskatchewan.

Integrys Energy Services, or certain of its subsidiares, are also members of the following regional
transmission operators and North American Electric Reliability Council refiability regions:

. Alberta Electric System Operator;

. Independent Electricity System Operator (located in Ontario);
. Electric Reliability Councit of Texas;

. IS0 New England;

» MISO;

. Midwest Reliability Organization;

. New Brunswick System Operator;

. New York Independent System Operator;

» Northeast Power Coordinating Council;

. Narthern Maing Independent System Administrator;
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. PJIM Interconnection;

. ReliabilityFirst Corporation;

. SERC Reliability Corporation;

. Texas Regional Entity; and

. Western Systems Cooerdinating Council

All the FERC hydroelectric facility licenses held by integrys Energy Services' subsidiaries are curent. The
J3-megawatt hydroeleciric facility owned in New Brunswick, Canada, is not subject to ficensing.

Other Matters
Customer Segmentation

Although Integrys Energy Services is not dependent an any ane customer, g significant percentage of its
retail sales volume is derived from indusiries related to:

Paper and allied products;
Food and kindred products;
Chemicals and paint; and
Stael and foundries.

Although Integrys Energy Services' concentration of sales in any single market sector has been generally
decreasing as it continues its expansion into markets in the wastern portion of the Uinited States, with the
PEC merger there has been a significant concentration of sales in the lllinois market.

Seasonality

integrys Energy Services beliaves that its business, in the aggregate, is not seasonal, even though certain
products sell more heavily in some seasons than in others. Sales of natural gas generglly peak in the
winter months, while sales of electric energy generally peak in the summer months. Generally in the
summer months, the demand for electric energy is high, which increases the price at which energy can be
sold. In periods of high residential fuel consumption {generally the winter months), the purchase price of
ail and natural gas increases, which increases the production costs at Integrys Energy Services’ natural
gas- and oil-fired generation facilities. Integrys Energy Services' business can be volatile as a result of
market conditions and the related market opportunities available to its customers.

Competition

Integrys Energy Services is a nonregulated energy marketer that competes against regulated utilities,
large energy trading companies and aother energy marketers. Integrys Energy Services competes with
other enargy providers on the basis of price, reliability, service, financial strength, consumer convenience,
performance and reputation.

Werking Capital

in addition ta equity infusions, long-term debt and short-term debt provided by its parent company
(Integrys Energy Group), Integrys Energy Services also has access to credit lines up to $175 million from
independent financial institutions, $150 million of which is guaranteed by Integrys Energy Group. The
working capital needs of Integrys Energy Services vary significantly over time due to volatility in
commadity prices (including margin calls), levels of natural gas inventories, the structure of wholesale
transactions, the price of natural gas, and altemnative energy options available to its customers. Integrys
Eneray Group provides guarantees for Integrys Energy Senvices' commodily transactions. These
guarantees provide the credit support needed to participate in the nonregulated energy market.
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See Item 7 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Candition and Results of Operation for
additionai information regarding working capital nesds of nonregulated operations.

E. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

For information on environmenial matiers related to Integrys Energy Group and any of its subsidiaries, see
Note 17, "Commitments and Contingencies.”

F. CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

For information on capital requirements related to Integrys Enargy Group, see ltem 7 - Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation - Liquidity and Capital
Resources.

G. EMPLOYEES

Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries had 5,231 employees at December 31, 2007, of which
approximately 45% are unicn employees.

Local 310 of the International Union of Operating Electricians represents approximately 46% of WPSC's
2,158 employees. The current Local 310 collective bargaining agreement expires on October 17, 2009.

Approximately 59% of PGL's 1,534 emplayees are represented by Local 18007 of the Utility Workers
Union of Amarica. The current collective bargaining agreement with PGL union employees axpires on
April 30, 2008. Negofiations are ongoing for renewal of the agreement.

Local 31 of the international Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, AFL C!O, represents approximately 19%
of the 225 employees at MERC. The currant coliective bargaining agreement will expire on May 31, 2011.

Approximately 67% of NSG's 203 employees are represented by Local 2285 of the Internationall
Brotherhood of Electrical Workers. The current collective bargaining agreement with NSG union
employaes expires on June 30, 2008. Negotiations are ongoing for renewal of the agresment.

MGUC has labor contracts with two unions; Local 12295 of the United Steelworkers of America, AFL CIO
CLC, and Local 417 of the Utility Workers Union of America, AFL CIO, which represent approximately
86% of MGUIC's 177 employees. The Local 12295 of the United Steelworkers of America, AFL CiO CLC,
contract will expire on January 15, 2010. The Local 417 of the Utility Workers Union of America, AFL CIO,
collective bargaining agreement will expire on February 15, 2012,

Lacal 510 of the International Braotherhood of Electrical Workers, AFL CIO, represents approximately
77% of the 163 emplayees at UPPCOQ. The current collective bargaining agreement expires on April 18,
2009,

H. AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Integrys Energy Group files with the SEC its:

Annual Report on Form 10-K;

Quarterly Reparts on Form 10-C;

Proxy statement;

Registration statements, including prospectuses;
Current Reports on Form 8-K; and

Any amendments to these documents.,

Integrys Energy Group makes these reports available free of charge, en Integrys Energy Group's Infernet
Web site, as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed with the SEC. integrys Energy Group's

14-



Intemet address is www.integrysgroup.com. Statements and amendments posted on Integrys Energy
Group's Web site do not include access o exhibits and supplemental schedules electronically filed with
the reports or amendments. Integrys Energy Group is not including the information contained on or
available through their Web sites as a part of, or incorporating such information by reference into, this
Armnual Report on Form 10-K.

You may also obtain materials filed with the SEC by Integrys Energy Group at the SEC Public Reference
Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20548. To obtain information on the operation of the Public
Reference Room, you may call 1-800-SEC-0330. You may also view reports, proxy statements and other
information regarding Integrys Energy Group (including exhibits), filed with the SEC, at its Web site at
WWW, SEC.gOV.
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ITEM1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following risk factors, as well as the other information included or
incorporated by reference in this Annual Raport on Form 10-K, when making an investment decision. The
risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties
not presently known or that we cumently believe to be immaterial may also adversely affect us.

We may not successfully integrate recent or future acquisitions into our operations or otherwise
achieve the antigcipated benefits of those acquisitions.

As part of our growth strategy, we continue to pursue a disciplined acquisition strategy. While we expect
to identify cost savings and growth opportunities before we acquire companies or assets, we may not be
able to achieve these anticipated benefits due to, among other things:

Delays or difficuities in completing the integration of acquired companies or assets;

Higher than expected costs or a need to allocate additional resources to manage unexpected
operating difficulties;

Parameters imposed or delays caused by regulatery agencies;

Reliance on inaccurate assumptions in evaiuating the expected benefits of a given acquisition;
Inahility to retain key employees or customers of acquired companies; and

Assumption of liabilities not identified in the due diligence process.

These risks apply to our 2006 acquisitions of natural gas distribution operations in Michigan and
Minnesota, as well as the 2007 merger with PEC.

The integration of PEC presents significant challenges and we are incurring significant
transaction, merger-related and restructuring costs that may result in a decline in the anticipated
potential benefits of the merger with PEC,

Integrys Energy Group expects the merger with PEC to generaie potential pre-tax cost synergy savings of
$106 million en an annualized basis by the end of the fifth full year of operations following completion of
the merger (excluding costs of integration). These savings may not be realized within the time periods or
amounts confempiated.

In addition to the risks noted above related to other potential or future acquisitions, the difficulties of
combining the previously indapendent operations of Integrys Energy Group and PEC include, but are not
limited to, the following:

« combining the best practices of two companies, including utility operations, non-regulated energy
marketing operations and staff functions;

the necessity of coordinating geographically separated organizations, systems and facilities;
integrating personnel with diverse business backgrounds and arganizational cultures;

reducing the costs associated with each company's operations; and

preserving important relationships of both companies and resolving potential conflicts that may
arisea.

4 & & A

The process of combining operations could cause an interruption of, or loss of momentum in, the
activities of one or more of the businesses of Integrys Energy Group and the possible loss of key
personnel. The diversion of management’s attention and any delays or difficulties encountered in
connection with the integration of the two companies' aperations could have an adverse effect on the
business, results of operations, financial condition, or prospects of Integrys Energy Group,

Integrys Energy Group is incurring and expects in the future to continue to incur integration and

restructuring costs associated with combining its operations with PEC, as well as fransaction fees and
other costs related to the merger. The estimated total pre-tax cost of achiaving anticipated marger
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synergies and cost savings is approximately $155 million (excluding internal tabor costs), most of which
will be incurred through 2010, Although Integrys Energy Group expects the elimination of duplicative
costs, as well as the realization of other efficiencies related to the integration of the businesses, to offset
incremental transaction, merger-related and restructuring costs over time, net benefits may not be
achieved in the near term.

integrys Energy Group has recorded goodwlil that could become impaired and adversely affect
the company's operating results.

The merger with PEC and the acquisition of natural gas distribution operations in Minnesota and Michigan
are accounted for as purchases by Integrys Energy Group in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Under the purchase method of accounting, the assets and liabilities acquired have
been recorded at their respective fair values at the date of acquisition and added to those of Inlegrys
Energy Group. The reported financial condition and results of operations of Integrys Energy Group reflect
PEC balances and results after completion of the merger, but such financial statements have not been
and will not ba restated retroactively to reflect the historical financial position or results of operations of
PEC for periads prior to the merger. The earnings of integrys Energy Group also reflect purchase
accounting adjustments,

Under the purchase method of accounting, the total purchase price is allocated to tangible assets and
liabilities and identifiable intangible assets based on their estimated fair market values as of the date the
merger was completed. The excess cost of the acquisition over those estimated fair market values is
recorded as goodwill. As a result of the application of purchase accounting, these transactions resulted in
a significant amount of goodwill. To the extent the value of goodwill or intangibles becomes impaired,
Integrys Energy Group may be required to incur material charges refating to such impairment. Such a
potential impairment charge couid have a material impact on the operating results of Integrys Energy
Group.

We are subject to changes in government regulation, which may have a negative impact on our
husiness, financial position, and results of cperations.

The rates our regulated utilitias are allowed to charge for their retail and wholesale services are some of
the most important items influencing our business, financial position, results of operations, and liquidity.

We are subject to comprehensive regulation by several federal and state regulatory agencies, which
significantly influences our operating environment and may affect our ability to recover costs from utility
customers. In particular, the PSCW, ICC, MPSC, MPUC, FERC, SEC, EPA, Minnesota Office of Pipeline
Safety, WDNR, and the lllinois Environmental Protection Agency regulate many aspects of our utility
operations, including siting and construction of facilities, conditions of service, the issuance of securities
and the rates that we can charge customers. We are required to have numerous pemmits, approvals and
certificates from these agencies to operate our business.

We are unable to predict the impact on our businesses and operating results from the future regulatory
aclivities of any of these agencies. However, changes in regulations or the imposition of additional
regulations may require us to incur additional expenses or change business operatiuns, which may have
an adverse impact on our results of operations. In addition, federal regulatory reforms may produce
unexpecled changes and costs in the public utility industry.
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A reduction in our credit ratings could materially and adversely affect our business, financial
position, results of operaticns, and liguidity.

Wa cannot be sure that any of our credit ratings will remain in effect for any given period of time orthat a
credit rating will not be lowered by a rating agency if, in its judgment, circumstances in the future so
warrant. Any downgrade could:

. Increase our borrowing costs;

. Require us to pay a higher interest rate in future financings and possibly reduce the potential
pool of creditors;

Increase our horrowing costs under certain of our existing credit facilities;

Limit our access to the commercial paper market;

Limit the availability of adequate credit support for Integrys Energy Services' operations; and
Require provision of additional credit assurance to contraci counterparties,

We may not compleie construction projects within estimated project costs.

Subsidiaries of Intergrys Energy Group undertake very large and complex construction projecls, subject
to numerous unpredictable events that could affect our ability to timely complete construction within
estimated costs. VWe may nat be able to meet these construction estimates due to, among other things:

e  Fluctuating or unanticipated construction costs;

s«  Supply delays;

s+ legalclaims; and

« Environmental regulation.

Our operations are subject to risks heyond our cantrol, including but not limited to weather,
terrorist attacks or related acts of war.

Our revenues are affected by the demand for electricity and natural gas. That demand can vary greatly
bhased upon:

. Weather conditions, seasonality, and temperature extremes;

) Fluctuations in economic activity and growth in our regulated service areas, as well as areas in
which our nonregulated subsidiarias operate; and

s The amount of additional energy available from current or new competitors.

Weather conditions directly influence the demand for electricity and natural gas and affect the price of
energy commedities.

In addition, the cost of repairing damage ko our facifities due to storms, natural disasters, wars, terrorist
acts and other catastrophic events, in excess of reserves established for such repairs, may adversely
impact our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows. The occurrence or risk of occurrence
of future terrorist activity and the high cost or potential unavailability of insurance to cover such terrorist
acfivity may impact our results of aperations and financial condition in unpredictable ways. These actions
could also result in disruptions of power and fuel markets. In addition, our netural gas distribution system
and pipelines could be directly or indirectly harmad by future terrorist activity.

Casts of environmental compliance, fiabilities, fines, penalties, and litigation could exceed our
estimates.

Compliance with current and future federal and state environmental laws and regulations may result in
increased capital, operating and other costs, including remediation and containment expenses and
monitoring obligations. Integrys Energy Group cannot predict with certainty the amount and timing of afl
future expenditures (including the potential or magnitude of fines or penalties) related to environmantal
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matters because of the difficulty of estimating clean-up and compliance costs and the possibility that
changes will be made to the current environmental laws and regulations.

Cn March 15, 2005, the EPA adopted the Clean Air Mercury Rule, which is intended to reduce mercury
emissions from coal-fired generation plants. On February 8, 2007, a court decision vacated the federal
rule. As a result, future impacts on Integrys Energy Group or its subsidiaries resulting from future federal
or state regulation regarding mercury emissions is uncertain. The EPA has also issued the Clean Air
Interstate Rule requiring reductions of sulfur dicxide and nitrogen oxide emissions. In addition, the
possibility exists of future initiatives to address concems about global climate change (such as the
potential regulation of greenhouse gases emitted from generation facilities). Integrys Energy Group
cannot be certain how these rules will affect it. There is also uncertainty in quantifying ligbilities under
envircnmental laws that impose joint and several liabilities on all potentially responsible parties.

Citizen groups that feel there are compliance issues not sufficiently enforced by environmeantal regulatory
agencies may also bring citizen enforcement actions against us. Such actions could seek penalties,
injunctive ralief and costs of litigation.

Fluctuating commaodity prices may reduce regulated and nonregulated energy margins.

Qur regulated energy margins are directly affected by commodity costs related to coal, natural gas, and
other fuels used in the electric generetion process. The commodity price of market purchases of
electricity and natural gas may alseo directly affect margins in our regulated electric and natural gas
segmants.

Higher commodity prices increase energy prices and may impact customer demand for energy in the
nonregulated market and increase counterparty risk. This may siress margins at our nonregulated
subsidiaries.

Integrys Energy Services may experience increased expenses, including interest costs and
uncollectibles, higher working capital requirements, and possibly some reduction in velumes sold as a
result of any increase in the cost of fuel or purchased power. If market prices for electric energy decline
below the cost of production at our nonregulated faciliies, these units may be temporarily shut down.

Actual results could differ from estimates used to prepare our financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
management must often make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabiliies, revenues, expenses, and related disclosures at the date of the financial statements and during
the reporting pericd. Some of those judgments can be subjective and complex and actual results could
differ from those estimates. For more information about these estimates and assumptions, see ltem 7
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Critical
Accounting Policies” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The use of derivative instruments could result in financial losses and liquidity constraints.

We use derivative instruments, including futures, forwards, options and swaps, to manage our commodity
and financial market risks. |n addition, we purchase and sell commodity-based contracts in the natural
gas and electric energy markets for trading purpases. In the future, we could recognize financial losses
on these contracts as a result of volatility in the market values of the underlying commodities or if a
counterparty fails to perform under a contract. In the absence of actively quoted market prices and
pricing information from external sources, the valuation of these contracts involves management's
judgment or use of estimates. As a result, changes in the underlying assumptions or use of alternative
valuation methods could affect the reported fair value of these contracts. Additionally, realized values
could differ from values determined by management.
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For additional infermation concerning derivatives and commodity-based frading contracts, see
Note 3, "Risk Management Activities."

We may not utilize Section 29/45K synthetic fuel production tax credits.

We have significantly reduced our consolidated federal income tax kability for the past several years
through tax credits avaiiable to us under Section 28/45K of the Intemat Revenue Code for the production
and sale of solid synthetic fuel from coal. We have not fully utilized Section 29/45K tax credits previously
available to us. Qur ability to fully utilize the Section 28/46K tax credits available to us as carryovers in
cannection with our interest in the production facility will depend on whether the amount of our future
federal taxable income and related income tax liability is sufficient to permit the use of such credits. Tax
regulations providing for the creation of Section 29/45K tax credits expired at the end of 2007,

Any future disallowance of some or all of those tax credits as a result of legislative changes or
examination of an open year by the IRS could materially affect our tax obligations. At this time, we
cannot predict the potential for or the outcome of any IRS review.

Any change in our ability to sell efectricity generated from our nonregulated facilities at
market-based rates may impact earnings.

The FERC has authorized us to sell generation from our nonregulated facilities at market prices. The
FERC retains the authority to madify or withdraw our market based rate authority. If the FERC
datermines that the market is not workably competitive, that we possess market power or that we are not
charging just and reasonable rates, it may require our nonregulated subsidiaries to sell power at a price
based upon the costs incurred in producing the power. Qur revenues and profit margins may be
nagatively affected by any raduction by the FERC of the rates we may receive.

We are subject to provisions that can limit merger and acquisition opportunities for our
sharehiolders.

The Wisconsin Public Utility Holding Company Law precludes the acquisition of 10% or more of the voting
shares of a holding company of a Wisconsin public utility unless the PSCW has first determined that the
acquisition is in the best interests of utility consumers, investors and the public. Those interests may, fo
some extent, be mutually exclusive. This provision and other requirements of the Wisconsin Public Ufility
Holding Company Law may delay, or reduce the likelinood of, a sale or change of control thus reducing
the likelihood that shareholders will receive a takeover premium for their shares.

Provisions of our articles of incorporation and by-laws may delay or frustrate the removal of incumbent
directors and may prevent or delay a merger, tender offer or proxy contest involving cur company that is
not approved by our board of directors, even if the shareholders believe that such events may be
beneficial to their interests. In addition, the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law contains provisions that
may have the effect of delaying or making more difficult attempts by others to obtain control of our
company without the approval of our board of directors.

ITEM1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

A. REGULATED
Electric Facllitios

The following table summarizes information on the electric generation facilities of Integrys Energy Group,

including owned or jointly-owned facilities as of December 31, 2007:

Rated
Capacity
Type Name Location Fusl {Megawatts) {3}
Steam Pulliam (4 units) Green Bay, Wi Coal 3250 (¢
Weston (3 units) Wausau, Wi Coal 4730 (&)
Columbia Units 1 and 2 Partaga, Wi Coal 3519 (b
Edgewater Unit 4 Shaboygan, Wi Coal 1016 (b)
Total Steam 1.251.8
Hydroelectric Alexander Linceln County, Wi Hydro 22
Caldron Falls Marinette County, Wi Hydro 6.7
Castle Rock Adams County, W1 Hydro 9.0 (b}
Grand Raplds Manominee County, W) Hydro 4.0
Grandfather Falls Lincoin County, Wi Hydro 17.3
Hat Rapids Onsida County, W Hydro 07
High Falls Marinette County, W1 Hydro i8
Jersay tincoln County, W1 Hydro a3
Johnsan Falls Marinette County, W Hydra 1.0
Mermill Lincoln County, Wi Hydro 10
Otier Rapids Vilas County, Wl Hydra 03
Pashligo Marinette County, Wi Hydro 03
Petenwell Adams Caunty, Wt Hydro 106 (b)
Patato Rapids Marinette County, Wi Hydro 04
Sandstone Rapids Marinette County, Wi Hydro 1.1
Tomazhawk Lincoln County, Wi Hydro 24
Wausau Marathen County, Wi Hydro D
Victaria (2 units) Ontonagon County, Ml Hydro 10.6
Hoist {3 units) Marguette County, M| Hydro 1.4
McClure (2 units) Marquetie County, Mi Hydro 3B
Prickett (2 units) Houghlon County, M) Hydro 0.4
Autrain (2 units) Algar County, MI Hydro 05
Cataract Marquette County, Mi Hydro 0.3
Escanaba #1 Delia County, MI Hydro 1.0
Escanaba #3 Delta County, Mi Hydro 13
Boney Falls Delta County, MI Hydro 14
Total Hydroelectric 828
Combustion De Pgre Energy Center De Pere, Wl Natural Gas 161.4
Turbine and Eagls River Eagle River, Wi Distillate Fue! Oll 4.2
Diesel Oneida Casino Green Bay, W Distilate Fuel Oif 35
Juneau #31 Adams County, W1 Distillate Fuel Qil 67 (b)
West Marinette #31 Marinette, Wi Natural Gas 354
Waest Marinette #32 Marinetie, Wi Natural Gas 355
West Marinette 233 Marinatie, Wi Matural Gas 624 (b)
Weston #31 Marathon County, Wi Naturat Gas 18.7
Weston #32 Marathon County, W Natural Gas 468
Pulliam #31 Gregen Bay, Wi Natural Gas 804
Ponage Houghton, Ml ot 19.1
Gladstone Gladstone, Ml Ol 19.1
Total Combustion Turbine and Diesel 4812
Wind Lincoln Kewaunes County, Wi Wind 1.0
Glenmore (2 units) Brown County, WI wind -
Total Wind 10
Total System 18i8.3
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(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Based on capacity ratings for July 2008. As a rasult of continually reaching demand peaks In the
summer months, primarily due to air conditioning demand, the summer period is the most relevant for
capacity ptanning purposes.

These facilities are jointly owned by WPSC and various sther utilities. Wisconsin Power and Lighi
Company operates the Columbia and Edgewater units and WPSC holds a 31.8% ownership interest in
these faciities, WRPC owns and operates the Castle Rock, Petenwell and Juneau units, and WPSC
holds a 50% ownership interest in WRPC. WPSC operales the West Marinette 33 unit and holds a
68% ownership interest in the facility, Marshhield Electric and Water Depattment has a joint ownership
in the rest. The capacity indicated for each of thase units is WPSC's portion of total plant capacity
based on its percent of ownership,

Pulliam Units 3 and 4 were retired an December 31, 2007, and capacity ratings for these facilities are
not included in the tabie above.

Woeston 4 is scheduled te be placed in servics in the first quarter of 2008 and, therefore, is not included
in the table above. WPSC's 70% ownarship in the facility will increase system rated capacity by
359.8 megawalts for a total system rated capacity of 2,176.1 megawatlts.

As of December 31, 2007, Integrys Energy Group's electric utilities owned 183 distribution substations
and 24,744 miles of slectric distribution lines.

Natural Gas Facilities

integrys Energy Group's natural gas properties inciutle approximately 21,490 miies of natural gas
distribution mains, 774 miles of natural gas transmission mains, and 279 natural gas distribution and
transmission gate stations. Integrys Energy Group's natural gas utilities also own a 3.6 billion cubic foot
natural gas storage fieid iocated in Michigan and operate a 36.5 billion cubic foot underground natural gas
storage reservoir and a liquefied natural gas plant located in lllinois.

Integrys Energy Group’s utitity plant at WPSC, UPPCQ, PGL, and NSG is subject to a first mortgage lien.
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The folowing table summarizes information on the electric generation facllittes owned by Integrys Energy
Services as of December 31, 2007:

B. INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVICES

Rated
Capacity
Type Namsg Location Fuel (Megawsatts) _ (a}
Steam Carlbou Caribou, ME ol 21.7
Stoneman Cassville, Wi Coal 445
Westwood Tremont, PA Culm 30.0
Total Steam _862
Cambined Cycle Syracuse Syracuse, NY Gas/O# 85.0
Beaver Falls Beaver Fails, NY Gas/Qil 789
Combined Locks Combined Locks, W (3as 468 {b)
Total Combined Cycle 2107
Hydroelectric Tinker New Brunswick, Canada Hydro 345
Squa Pan Asnland, ME Hydro 1.4
Caribou Caribou, ME Hydro 0.9
Total Hydroalectric 368
Combustion Turbine Caribou Caribou, ME Diesel 7.0
ang Diesel Tinker New Brunswick, Canada Diesel 1.0
Flo's Inn Presque Isle, ME Diesel 4.2
Loring Lirestene, ME Diessl 5.2
Total Combustion
Turbine and Diesel 17.4
Reciprocating Engine Winnebago Rockford, IL Methane 6.1 (c)
Total System _ 3672

(a) Based on summer rated capacily.

'(h} Combined Locks also has an additional five megawatts of capacity available at this facility through the lease of
an additional steam turbine.

{¢) Wirnebago was placed into service on Decembear 21, 2007.



ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For information on material legal proceedings and matters related o Integrys Energy Group and
its subsidiaries, see Note 17, "Commitments and Confingencies.”
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of the security hoiders of Integrys Energy Group during the
fourth quarter of 2007,
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ITEM 4A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP AS OF JANUARY 1, 2008

Position and Business Effective
Name and Age Experlence During Past Five Years Date
Larry L. Weyars 62  Presidant and Chief Executive Officer 02-21-07
Chalrman, President and Chief Executive Officer 02-12-98
Thomas P. Meinz 61 Exacutive Vice Prasidant - External Affairs 02-21-07
Executive Vice Prasident - Public Affairs 09-12-04
Senior Vice President - Public Affairs 12.24-00
Phillip M. Mikulsky 59  Executive Vice President and Chief Development Officer 02-21-07
Executive Vice Presidant - Development 09-12-04
Senior Vice President - Development 02-12-98
Joseph P. O'Leary 53  Senior Vice Prasident and Chief Financial Officer 06-04-01
Bernard J. Treml 58  Senior Vice Prasident and Chief Human Resources Officer 02-21-07
Senior Vice President - Human Resources 12-13-04
Vice President - Human Resources 02-1298
Diane L. Ford 54 Vice President and Corporate Contreller 02-21-07
Vice President - Controller and Chief Accounting Officer 07-11-99
Bradiey A. Johnson 53  Vice President and Treasurer 07-18-04
Treasurer 06-23-02
Barth J. Wolf 50  Vice President - Chief Legal Officer and Secretary 07-31-07
Vice President - Legal Services and Chief Compliance Officer of 02-21-07
Integrys Business Support, LLC
Secretary and Manager - Legal Services 09-19-89

NQTE: All ages are as of December 31, 2007. None of the executives listed above are related by blood, marriage,
or adoption to any of the other officers listed or to any director of the Registrants. Each officer holds office
untii his or her successor has been duly slected and qualified, or until his or her death, resignation,

disqualification, or removal.

-26-


file:///No/f

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Integrys Energy Group, Inc. Common Stock Two-Year Comparison

Dividends Price Range
Share Data Per Share _High Low
2007
1st Quarter $ 583 $58.04 $52.72
2nd Quarter .660 60.63 50.11
3rd Quarter 560 55.25 48.10
4th Quarter .660 54.10 50.02
Total $2.563
2006
1st Quarter $ .566 $57.75 $40.02
2nd Quarter 565 51.60 47.30
3rd Quarter 575 52.88 47.67
4th Quarter 575 54.83 49.18
Total $2.280

Integrys Energy Group common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol
"TEG." The transfer agent and registrar for integrys Energy Group's common stock is American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company, 59 Maiden Lane, New York, NY 10038.
As of February 21, 2008, there were 35,100 common stock shareholders of record.

Dividend Restrictions

For information on dividend restrictions related to Integrys Energy Group and any of its subsidiaries, see
Note 21, "Comrmon Equity.”

See ltermn 11 - Executive Compensation of this Annual Report an Form 10-K for information regarding aur
equity compensation plans.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP, ING.

COMPARATIVE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL AND OTHER STATISTICS {2003 TO 2007)

As of or for Year Ended Dacember 31
(Milfions, except per share amounts, stock price, retum on average equity

and number of shareholders and employees) 2007 ™ 2006 ¥ 2005 2004 2003
Total revenueas $10,202.4 $6.890.7 $6,825.5 $4,876.1 $4,302.8
Income from continuing operations 1811 1516 150.6 156.5 110.7
Income avallable for commeon sharshotders 251.3 1558 157.4 138.7 04.7
Total assets 11,234.4 6.861.7 5,462.5 4,376.8 4,292.3
Profarred stock of subsidiaries 511 51.1 51.1 51.1 51.1
Lang-lemn debt (excluding current portion) 2,265.1 1,287.2 867.1 865.7 871.9
Shares of comman stock {less treasury stook

and sharss in defarred compansalion trust)

Quistanding 76.0 43.1 39.8 7.3 38.6
Average 716 42.3 38.3 374 33.0

Earnings per common share {basic)

Income from continuing operations $2.49 33.51 $3.85 $4.1D $3.26

Esrnings per common share $3.51 $3.68 $4.41 §3.74 $2.87
Earnings per common share {diluted)

Income from continuing operations 2.48 350 3.61 408 324

Earnings per common share 3.50 367 4.07 372 2.85
Dividend par share of common stock 2.56 2.28 2.24 2.20 2.16
Stock price at year-end $51.69 $54.03 $55.31 $49.96 $45.23
Book value per shara $42.58 $35.61 $32.76 $29.30 $27.40
Return on average equity ) B.5% 10.6% 13.6% 13.5% 11.5%
Number of c0mmon stack shareholders 35292 19,837 20,701 21,358 22,172
Number of emplayees 5,231 3,326 2,945 3,048 3,080

U Includes the impact of the PEC merger on February 21, 2007,

@ includes the impact of the sequisition of natural gas distribution operations from Aquila by MGUC an April 1, 2008 and MERC on July 1, 2008.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION

Integrys Energy Group is a diversified holding company with regulated utility aperations operating through
six wholly owned subsidiaries, WPSC, PGL, NSG, UPPCO, MGUC, and MERC; nonregulated energy
operations through its wholly owned nonregulated subsidiary, Integrys Energy Services; and aiso a 34.5%
aquity ownership interest in ATC (an electric transmission company operating in Wisconsin, Michigan,
Minnesota, and lllinois).

Strategic Overview

Integrys Energy Group's goal is the creation of long-term value for shareholders and customers through
growth in its regulated and nonregulated portfolio {while placing an emphasis on regulated growth). In
arder o craate value, Integrys Energy Group is focused on:

Maintaining and Growing a Strong Regulated Utiiity Base — A strong regulated ufility base is
necessary 1o maintain a strong balance sheet, predictable cash flows, a desired risk profite, attraciive
dividends, and quality credit ratings, which are critical to our success. Integrys Energy Group believes
the following recent developments have helped, or will help, maintain and grow its regulated utility base:

+ The February 2007 merger with PEC, which added the regulated natural gas distribution
operations of PGL and NSG to the regulated utility base of Integrys Energy Group.

s  Ourinvestment in ATC was at 34.5% at Decamber 31, 2007. ATC owned approximately
$2.2 billion in net transmission and general plant assets at December 31, 2007 and anticipates
additional capital investment of approximately $865 million over the next 3 vears.

s Construction of the 500-megawatt coal-fired Weston 4 base-load pawer plant located near
Wausau, Wisconsin, which is scheduled to be placed in service in the first quarter of 2008. This
power plant is jointly-owned with DPC. WPSC halds a 70% ownership interest in the Weston 4
power plant, with DPC owning the remaining 30% interest in the facility.

s The proposed acceleration of investrent in the natural gas distribution system at PGL. The
replacement of ¢cast iron mains and investment in underground natural gas storage facilities is
expected to total approximately $100 million through 2010.

+ Investment of approximately $75 million in lateral infrastructure related to the connection of the
WRPSC distiibution system to the Guardian 11 natural gas pipeline to Green Bay.

+« WPSC's negotiations to purchase a 99-megawatt wind generation facility to be constructed in
Howard County, lowa.

« WPSC's continued investment in environmental projects to improve air quality and meet the
requirernents set by environmental regulators. Capital projects to construct and upgrade
equipment to meet or exceed required environmental standards are planned each vear.

« For more detailed information on Integrys Energy Graup's capital expenditure program see
"Liquidity and Capital Resources, Capital Requirements," below.

Strategically Growing Nonregulated Business — Integrys Energy Services is focused oh growth in the
competitive energy services and supply business through growing its customer base. Integrys Energy
Group expects its nonregulated operations to provide between 20% and 30% of integrys Energy Group's
earnings, on average, in the future. Integrys Energy Group beliaves the foliowing recent developments
have helped, or will halp, maintain and grow its nonreguiated business:
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+ The merger with PEC combined the nonreguiated energy marketing businesses of both
companies. The combination provided Integrys Energy Services with a strong market
position in the lilincis retail electric market and expanded its ariginated wholesale natural
gas business, creating a stronger, more competitive, and better balanced growth platform for
the nonregulated business.

« The 2007 opening of nanreguiated operations in Denver, Colarado, has allowed Intagrys
Energy Services to expand its operations into the Western Systems Coordinating Council
markets.

» The 2007 complation of a 6.5 megawatt landfill gas project, the Winnabaga Energy Center
Development in Rockford, Ilinois, which consists of gas cleanup equipment and engines to
coliect and burn tendfill gas at the site to generate electricity.

s The on-going development of renewable energy products, such as land fill gas and solar
projects.

integrating Resources to Provide Operational Excelfence — Integrys Energy Group is committed to
integrating resaurces of its regulated businesses and also its nonregulated businesses, while meeting any
and all applicable regulatory and legal requirements. This will provide the best value to customers and
shareholders by leveraging the individual capabilities and expertise of each business and assist in
lowering costs for certain activities. Integrys Energy Group believes the following recent developments
have helped, or will help, integrate resourcas and pravide operational excellence:

» The PEC merger is helping to align the best practices and expertise of both companies,
which will continue to result in efficiencies by eliminating redundant and overlapping
functions and systems. Intagrys Energy Group expects the mergar to generate annual
pre-tax synergy savings of approximately $108 million for the combined company by the end
of the fifth full year of operations following completion of the merger. One-time ¢osts to
achieve the synergies are expected to be approximately $155 million.

s Integrys Business Support, LLC, a wholly owned servica company, was formed to achieve a
significant portion of the cost synergies anticipated from the merger with PEC through the
congolidation and efficient delivery of various support services and to provide more
consistent and transparent allocation of costs throughout Integrys Enargy Group and its
subsidiaries.

« “"Competitive Excellence” and project management initiatives are being implemented at
Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries o improve processes, reduce costs, and
manage projécts within budget and timeline constraints to provide more value to customers.

Placing Strong Emphasis on Asset and Risk Management — Qur assel management strategy calls for
the continucus assessment of our existing assets, the acquisition of assets, and contractual commitments
to obtain resources that complement our existing business and strategy, thereby providing the most
efficient use of and best return on our rescurces while maintaining an acceplable risk profile. This
strategy calls for a focus on the disposition of assets, including plants and entire business units, which are
either no longer strategic to ongoing operations, are not performing as needed, or have an unacceptable
risk profile. We maintain a portfalio approach to risk and earnings. Integrys Energy Group believes the
following recent developments have helped, or will help, manage assets and risk:

¢ The combination of Integrys Energy Group and PEG created a larger, stronger, and more
competitive regional energy company. This merger, along with the 2008 acquisition of the
Michigan and Minnesota natural gas distribution operations, diversified the company's
regulatory and geographic risk due to the expansion of utility operations to multiple
Jjurisdictions.
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« The September 2007 sale of PEP, Integrys Energy Group's oil and natural gas production
subsidiary acquired in the merger with PEC. The divesture of the oil and natural gas
production business reduced Integrys Energy Group's business risk profile and provided
funds to reduce debt.

« The January 2007 sale of WP'S Niagara Generation, LLC for approximately $31 milfion.
WPS Niagara Generation, LLC owned a 50-megawatt generation fecility located in the
Niagara Mohawk Frontier region in Niagara Falls, New York.

QOur risk management strategy, in addition to asset risk management, includes the management of
mariet, credit, and operational risk through the normai course of business. Forward purchases and sales
of elactric capacity, enargy, natural gas, and other commeodities allow for opportunities to secure prices in
a volatile energy market. Oversight of the risk profile related to these financial instruments is monitored
daily in each business unit consistent with the company’s financial risk management policy. Corporate
oversight is provided through the Corporate Risk Management group which reports through the Chief
Financial Officer.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
YearE mber 31 Changein  Change in
2007 over 20086 over
{Millions except per share amounts) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2005
Electric utility operations $ 874 $ 85.5 5 642 2.2% 33.2%
Natural gas utility oparations 287 (2.3} 13.2 - -
Nonregulated energy operations 298.0 723 74.1 35.5% {2.4)%
Holding company and other operations (18.8) 0.3 5.9 - (94.9)%
Qil and natural gas operations 56.0 - - - -
Incarmne available for common

shareholders $251.3 $155.8 $157.4 61.3% (1.0)%
Average basic shares of common stock 71.6 42.3 38.3 69.3% 10.4%
Average diluted shares of common stock 71.8 42 4 38.7 64.3% 9.6%
Basic earnings per share $3.51 $3.68 $4.11 {4.8)% (10.5)%
Diluted earnings per share $3.50 $3.67 $4.07 {1.6)% (9.8)%

2007 income available for common shareholders increased $25.5 million and 2007 diluted earnings per
share decreased $0.17, bath compared to 2006, 2006 income available for cormmon shareholders
decreased $1.6 miltion and 2006 diluted earnings per share decreased $0.40, both compared to 2005.
Significant factors impacting the change in earnings and diluied eamings per share were as follows (and
are discussed in more detail thereaiier):

Electric Utility Operations:
Eamings increased $1.9 million in 2007 over 2006, resulting primarily from the following:

e Retail electric rate increasas at both WPSC and UPPCO had a positive year-over-year impact on
operating incoms.

s Favorable weather conditions at WPSC contributed an approximate $6.0 miliion ($3.6 million
after-tax) year-over-year increase in operating incame; however, this increase was partially offset by
a decrease in weather normalized residential and commercial and industrial custoner usage.

» Fuel and purchased power costs were higher than what was recovered in rates during the year
ended December 31, 2007, compared with fuel and purchased power costs that were less than what
was recoverad in rates during the same period in 2006, driving a $14.4 million ($8.6 million after-tax)
negative variance in operating income.
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Maintenance expense related to WPSC's power plants was higher in 2007 compargd 1o 2006, driven
by an increase in unplannad outages in 2007 as well as the extension of some 2007 planned
aoutages.

Earnings increased $21.3 million from 2005 to 2008, primarily due to the following:

Fuel and purchased power costs that were less than what was recovered in rates during the year
ended December 31, 2008, compared with fuel and purchased power costs that were more than
what was recovered in rates during the same period in 2005 (the under collection in 2005 was
primarily due to the impact 2005 hurricanes had on natural gas prices), contributed an estimated
$14 million after-tax, year-over-year increase in eamings.

A PSCW ruling, which disallowed recovery of costs that were deferred related to the 2004
Kewaunee nuclear plant autage as well as a portion of the loss on the Kewaunee sale, resulted in
the write-off of $13.7 million of regulatory assets in 2005, which resulted in an after-tax reduction in
earnings in 2005 of approximately $& million (positive variance compared with 2006 earnings).

Retail electric rate increases at both WPSC and UPPCQ also had a positive year-over-year impact
an amings.

Unfavorable weather conditions in 2006, compared with 2005, had an estimated $8 million
year-over-year negative after-tax impact on electrie utility earnings.

Natural Gas Utility Operations:
Financial results improved $31.0 millian in 2007 over 2008, primarily due to the following:

Financial results for MGUC and MERC increased $18.1 miillion, from a combined net loss of

$11.3 milfion in 2008, to earnings of $6.8 million in 2007. The positive change in sarnings at MGUC
and MERC was driven by the fact that these natural gas utilities operated during the first quarter
heating season in 2007, but were not acquired by Integrys Energy Group until after the first quarter
2006 heating season. n addition, MGUC and MERC incurred a combined $11.8 million ($7.1 miflion
after-tax) of transition costs in 2008 for the stari-up of autsourcing activities and other legat and
consulting fees. In 2007, MGUC and MERC were allocated $1.7 million ($1.0 million after-tax) of
axternal costs to achieve merger synargies related to the PEC merger,

Regulated natural gas utility eamings at WPSC increased $13.5 million, from eamings of

$9.6 million in 2008, to earnings of $23.1 million in 2007. Higher earnings were driven by increasad
volumes due to colder weather conditions during the heating season. A natural gas rate increase
effective January 12, 2007 also contributed to the increase.

The PEC natural gas utilities (PGL and NSG), which were acquired effective February 21, 2007,
recognized a combined net loss of approximately $1 million, primarily related to the seasonal nature
of natural gas utilities, which derive earnings during the heating season (first and fourth quarters).
Because of the late February acquisition date, results for the majority of the two coldest months of
the year were not included in natural gas utility earnings in 2007, The 2007 net income for PGL was
less than the level we would normally expect, primarily due to increased costs of providing service.

It is important to note, however, that we received a rate increase at PGL in February 2008, which will
help offset rising costs. Please see Note 23, "Regufatory Environment," for more information on the
rate increase.
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Earnings decreased $15.5 miflion from 2005 to 2008, primarily due to the following:

MGUC and MERC (acquired on April 1 and July 1, 2006, respectively) had a combined net loss of
approximately $11 million. Included in the net loss incurred by MGUC and MERC, was $7.1 million
of after-tax external transition costs incurred by these regulated natural gas utilities. The net loss
recognized at MGUC and MERC in excess of transition costs incurred can be attributed to not
owning these operations during the January through March 2006 heating season and wamer than
normal weather conditions during the last few months of 2006. From the acquisition dates through
December 31, 2006, actual heating degree days were 13.9% and 7.3% below normal for MGUC and
MERC, respectively.

Earnings at WPSC's natural gas utility also decreased approximately $4 miflion, driven by
unfavorable weather conditions and customer conservation efforts.

Nonregulated Energy Operations:
Earnings increased $25.7 million in 2007 over 2008, primarily due 1o the following:

Operating income at Integrys Energy Services increased $40.2 million {$24.1 million after-tax).

After-tax income from discontinued operations at Integrys Energy Services increased $7.5 million,
driven by the sale of Niagara Generation, LLC in the first quarter of 2007.

Miscellaneous expense at Integrys Energy Services decreased $11.1 million ($6.7 million after-tax),
driven by a decrease in pre-tax losses recognized for the period related to Integrys Energy Services'
investment in a synthetic fuel faciiity.

Minority interest income decreased $3.7 million ($2.2 million after-tax) as Integrys Energy Services'
partner elected to stop receiving production from the synthetic fuel facility and, therefors, did not
share in losses from this facility in 2007.

Section 29/45K federal tax credits recognized from Integrys Enargy Services' investment in a
synthetic fuel facility decreased $15.9 million, from $29.5 million in 2006, to $13.6 million in 2007.

Earnings decreased $1.8 million from 2005 to 2008, primarily due to the following:

An $11.0 million ($6.6 milfion after-tax} increase in interest expense due ta higher warking capital
requirements, primarily related to growth in Integrys Energy Services’ natural gas operations.

A $10.6 miliion ($6.4 million after-tax) increase in miscellanaous expenses, primarily related to
increased tons procured from Integrys Energy Services' investment in a synthetic fual facility and the
fact that Integrys Energy Services received no royalty payments from this investment in 2006.

A $4.2 million aftertax decrease in income from discontinued operations.

The items negatively impacting eamings {discussed above) were partially offset by a $14.4 million
($8.6 million after-tax) increase in margin (including an $11.1 million pre-tax decrease in gains on
derivative instruments used to pratect the value of Section 29/45K tax cradits).

A $6.7 miliion ($4.0 miliion after-tax) decrease in operating expenses, primarily related to the
recognition of a $9.0 million pre-tax gain on the sale of WPS ES) Gas Storage, LLC in the second
quarter of 2006, .

A §3 .4 million increase in Section 29/45K federal tax credits recognized from Integrys Energy
Services' investmant in a synthetic fuel facility.
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Holding Company and Other Operations:

in 20407, financial results decreased $19.1 millicn, from eamings of $0.3 million in 20086, to a net loss of
$18.8 million in 2007. See "Qverview of Holding Company and Other Segment Opearations,” for more
information.

Ih 2006, earnings decreasad $5.6 million from eamings of $5.2 million in 2005, to eamings of $0.3 million
in 2006. See "Holding Company and Other Segment Operations,” for more information.

Qil and Natural Gas Operations:

In connection with tha PEC merger, integrys Energy Group anhounced its intant to divest of PEC's oil and
natural gas production operations, PEP. PEP was sold in the third quarter of 2007. |n 2007, PEP
recognized earnings of $56.0 million, including $58.5 million of earnings reported as discontinued
operations. The $2.5 million loss reported in continuing operations related primarily to intercompany
expense allocations to PEP (salarias, interest expense, etc.) related to employees and debt that remained
at Integrys Energy Group after the sale. The sale of PEP resulted in a $7.6 million after-tax gain.

Earnings per share:

Diluted earnings per share was impacted by the items discussed above as well as an increase of

29.4 million shares (89.3%) in the weighted average number of cutstanding shares of integrys Energy
Group's common stock from 2008 to 2007 and an increase of 3.7 million shares (9.6%) in the weighted
average number of outstanding shares of Integrys Energy Group’s common stock from 2005 io 2008.
Integrys Energy Group issued 31.9 million shares of common stock on February 21, 2007, in conjunclion
with the merger with PEC, issued 2.7 million shares of common stock in May 2006 in crder to settle its
forward equity agreement with an affiliate of J.P. Morgan Securities, and issued 1.9 million shares of
commeon stock through a public offering in November 2005. Additional shares were also issued under the
Stock Investment Plan and certain stock-based employee benafit plans in 2007, 2006, and 2005.

Utility Operaticns

In 2007, utility operations included the regulaied elactric segment, consisting of the regulated electric
operations of WPSC and UPPCO, and the requiated natural gas utility segment, consisting of the natural
gas operations of WPSC, PGL, NSG, MGUC, and MERC. The natural gas operations of WPSC, MGUC,
and MERC were included for all of 2007, while the natural gas opersations of PGL and NSG were included
from February 22, 2007 through December 31, 2007. The natural gas operations of WPSC were included
for all of 2006, while the natural gas operations of MGUC and MERC were included from Aprit 1, 2006
through Decemhber 31, 2006, and July 1, 2006 through Decermber 31, 2006, respectively. For the year
ended December 31, 20085, utility operations included the regulated electric segment, including the
electric operations of WPSC and UPPCO, and the regulated natural gas utility segment, including the
natural gas gperations of WPSC.
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Regulated Electric Segment Qperations

Year Ended December 31, Changein Changein
2007 over 2006 aver
_(Millions) 2007 2006 2005 2008 2005
Revenues $1,246.1 $1,0004 $1,037.1 13.3% 6.0%
Fuel and purchased power costs 636.5 £51.0 444 2 15.5% 24.0%
Marging 609.8 548.4 5929 11.2% (7.5)%
Operating and maintenance expense Y | 2693 3857 21.0% {25.4)%
Depreciation, amortization and 801 785 1204 2.0% (34.8)%
decommissioning expense
Taxes other than income 43.2 416 38.5 3.8% 8.1%
Operating income $ 165.2 $ 163.0 $ 783 1.3% 108.2%
Sales in kilowatt-hours
Residential 3,173.8 3,144.8 31274 0.9% 0.68%
Commercial and industriat 8,750.¢ 8,645.2 8,641.8 1.2% %
Wholesale 4,024 9 4,0931 3,849.2 (1.77% 6.3%
Cther 42.4 42.2 41.7 0.5% 1.2%
Tetal salas in kilowatt-hours 15,991.8 15,826.3 15,660.1 0.4% 1.7%
Weather - WPEC
Heating degree days 7102 6,785 7,401 4.7% (8.3)%
Cooling degree days 634 51 849 21.7% {(19.7)%
Revanue
2007 Compared with 2008:

Regulated slactric revenue increased $146.7 million, driven by the following:

On January 11, 2007, the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin issued a final written order to
WRPFSC authorizing a retail electric rate increase of $56.7 million (6.6%), effective January 12, 2007,

for Wisconsin electric customers.

In June 2006, the MPSC issued a final written order to UPPCO authorizing an annual retail electric
rate increase far UPPCO of $3.8 million {4.8%), effective June 28, 2006. See Note 23, "Regulatory
Environment," for more information related fo the retail electric rate increases at WPSC and UPPCO.

On a per-unit basis, fuel and purchased power costs were approximately 17% higher during the ysar

ended December 31, 2007, compared with the same period in 2006. In addition, sales volumes

increased 0.4%, primarily related to an increase in sales volumes (o residential and commercial and
industrial customers, drivan by wanmer weather during the cooling season and colder weathar during
the heating season (a portion of heating Ibad is elsctric) in 2007, compared with 2006, The increase
in sales volumes related to weather was partially offset by an approximate 2% decrease in weather

normalized residential and commercial and industrial customer usage, driven by customer
conservation resulting from higher energy costs and weaker general ecanomic conditions.
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2008 Comparad with 2005;

Regulated electric revenue increased $62.3 million, driven by the following:

s Approved 2008 electric rate increases for WPSC and UPPCO retail electric customers and rate
increases for WPSC's wholesale customers resulting from the formula rate mechanism in place for
these customers. See Note 23, "Regufatary Environment,” for more information related to these rate
increases.

s Electric sales volumes increased 1.7%, primarily related to a 6.3% increase in sales volumes to
wholesale customers due to higher demand and new wholesale contracts.

« Unfavorable weather conditions during both the heating and cooling seasons for the year ended
December 31, 2008, compared with 2005, partiaily offset the increases discussed above.

Margin

2007 Compared with 2008;

The regulated electric margin increased $61.2 million, driven by the following:

» A $57.0 million (11.5%) increase in the electric ulility margin at WPSC.

WRPSC's margin was positively impacted by the retail electric rate increases discussed above and
by higher electric sales volumes to residentiai and commercial and industrial customers ralated
to weather. Favorable weather conditions during both the heating and cooling seasons positively
impacted margin by an estimated 3$6.0 million.

The year-over-year change in WPSC's margin was also positively impacted by a $16.2 million
decrease in the 2006 margin related to the accrual of the refund to wholesale customers in 2006
of their portion of the Kewaunee nonqualified decommissioning trust fund. Pursuant to reguiatory
accounting, the decrease in the 2008 margin related to this rafund was offset by a correspanding
decrsase in operating and maintenance expenses in 2006 and, therefore, did not have an impact
on earnings. No such accrual to wholesale customers occurred in 2007, however, the payment
of the refund was made in 2007.

Partially offsetting the increase in WPSC's margin, fuel, and purchased power costs weare 3.7%
higher than what was recovered in rates during the year ended December 31, 2007, compared
with fuel and purchased power costs that were 10.5% less than what was recovered in raies
during the same pariod in 2008, driving a2 $14.4 million negative variance in WPSC's elactric
margin. In 2007, fuel and purchased power prices were abave whal was projected in the rate
case primarily due to higher than anticipated commodity costs and the market effects of
unplanned plant outages. On October 8, 2007, a lightning strike hit Weston 3, The unit returned
to full service on January 14, 2008. The unscheduled outage did not have a significant impact on
the electric utility margin as the PSCW approved deferral of unanticipated fuel and purchased
power costs directly related to the outage. The outage did, however, cause the price of
purchased power from other sources to increase. Excluding the additional purchased power
which resulted from the Weston 3 outage, fuel and purchased power costs at WPSC increased
17% in 2007, compared with the same period in 2006, primarily related to the higher per-unit cost
of fuel and purchased power required from the market to serva WPSC's customers.

« UPPCO's margin increased approximately $4 million, primarily due to its retail efectric rate increase,
effective June 2006, and higher retail sales volumes.

-36-



2008 Campared with 2005:

The regulated electric margin decreased $44.5 million, driven by the following:

o A $48.7 million decrease in WPSC's slectric margin, primarily related to the sale of the Kewaunee
nuclear generation plant ta Dominion Energy Kewaunee on July 5, 2005, and the related power
purchase agreement. Excluding the $54.2 miilion increase in fixed payments made to Dominion
Energy Kewaunee during the year ended December 31, 2008, WPSC's slectric utility margin
increased $5.5 million.

The retail and wholesale electric rate increases discussed above had a favorable impact on
WPSC's regulated electric margin.

WP3C's fuel and purchased power costs were less than were recovered in rates during the year
ended December 31, 2008, compared with fuel and purchased power costs that were more than
were recovered in rates during the same period in 2005 (the under collection in 2005 was
primarily due to the impact 2005 hurricanes had on natural gas prices), which had an estimated
$23 million positive year-over-year impact on margin.

WPSC's margin was aiso positively impacted by higher wholesale electric sales volumes, driven
by higher demand from existing customers and new wholesale customer contracts.

The increase in WPSC's margin was partially offset by a $70.8 million decrease in 2008 margin
related to the refund to retail customers and the accrual for the refund to wholesale customers of
a portion of the Kewaunee nongualified decommissioning trust fund.

Also, unfavarable weather conditions during the 2008 heating and cooling seasons negatively
impacted margin by an estimated $14 million

« UPPCO's margin increased approximately $4 million primarily due to its first retail electric base rate
increase since 2002.

Operaling Income
2007 Compared with 2006:

Operating income increased $2.2 million, driven by the $61.2 million increase in regulated electric margin
discussed above, partially offset by a $54.3 million {23.7%) increase in operating and maintenance
expenses at WPSC and a combined $3.2 million increase in depreciation and taxes other than income
taxes at the ragulated electric utility.

« The change in operating and maintenance expense at WPSC was primarily related 1o the following:

Regulated electric maintenance expenses increased $15.3 million, driven by longer than
anticipated planned outages and a higher number of unplanned outages year-over-year (which
included major overhauls plannad at the Weston 2 and Weston 3 generation stations and the
De Pere Energy Center, planned major turbine and generator work performed at the Pulliam
electric generation station, and several unplanned outages at the Weston 3 generation station).

Regulated electric transmission expenses increased $14.2 million, primarily related to higher
rates charged by MISO and ATG due to additional transmission investment.

The reguiated electric segment of WPSC was allocated external costs to achieve merger
synergies of $11.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2007.
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Amortization in 2006 of the regulatory liability recorded for WPSC's obligation to refund
proceeds received from the liquidation of the Kewaunee nonqualified decommissioning trust
fund to wholesale electric ratepayers contributed $16.2 million to the increase in WPSC's
operating and maintenance axpenge. Pursuant to regulatory accounting, the 2006 increase in
operating and maintenance expense related to this refund was offset by a comresponding
increase in 2008 margin and, therefore, did not have an impact an earnings.

Lower pension, post-retirement, and other employee benefit costs partially offset the increase in
regulated electric operating and maintenance expense at WPSC.

s Anincrease in depreciation expense related to continued capital investment at the slectric utility,
while the increase in taxes other than incoma reflected an increase in sales year-over-year.

2008 Compared with 2005:

QOperating income increased $85.1 million, driven by a $90.8 million decrease in operating and
maintenance expense, and a $41.9 million decrease in depreciation and amortization expanse, partially
offset by the $44.5 million decrease in the regulated electric margin.

» The change in operating and maintenance expense was primarily related to the following:

L]

Partial amortization of the regulatory liability recorded for WPSC's obligation to refund proceeds
received from the liquidation of the Kewaunee nongualified decommissioning trust fund to retail
and wholesale electric ratepayers contributed $70.8 million to the decrease in operating
expenses in 2006, compared with 2005. Pursuant to regulatory accounting, the decrease in
operating expense related to this refund was offset by a corresponding decrease in margin.

Operating and maintenance expense related to the Kewaunee nuclear plant decreased
approximately $17 million, driven by the sale of this facility in July 2005. The decrease in
operating and maintenance expense related to Kewaunee did not have a significant impact on
income available for common shareholders as WPSC is still purchasing the same amount of
power from this facility as it obtained from it when WPSC owned a 59% interest in the plant. The
cost of the power is included as a companent of utility cost of fuel, naturat gas, and purchased
power.

As a result of the PSCW's disallowance of certain costs, WPSC incurred a $56.1 million charge in
2005 related ta ona-half the loss on the sale of Kewaunee, creating a corresponding
year-over-year decrease in operating expenses.

Also, a3 disallowad by tha PSCW, WPSC wrote-off $2.1 million in 2005 of previously deferred
operating and maintenance sxpenses related to the 2004 extended outage at Kewaunes,
creating a corresponding year-over-year decrease in operating expenses.

Salaries and employee benefits also decreased in part due to the sale of Kewaunee in 2005.

Partiatly offsetting the decrease in operating and maintenance expense, software amortization
increased $5.4 million, driven by the late 2005 implementation of a new customer billing system.

Excluding Kewaunee, maintenance expenses at the electric utility segment were up $4.9 million.
Planned maintenance was required on certain combustion turbines, and maintenance expense
related to electric distribution assets also increased.

Electric transmission expense increased $4.1 million.

« The change in depreciation, amortization and decommissioning expense was primarily related to the
follawing:
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» Approximately $41 million of decommissioning expense was recorded during 2005, compared

with no decommissioning expense recorded in 2006. In 2005, realized gains on

decommissioning trust assets were substantially offset by decommissioning expanse pursuant to
regulatory practice (see analysis of "Miscellaneous Income” below).

» A $10.2 million decrease in depreciation expense resulting from the sale of Kewaunee in July
2005, Subsequent to the sale of Kewaunee, decommissioning expense is no longer recorded.

e Anincrease in depreciation expense related to continuad capital investment at the electric utility
partially offset the overall decrease in depreciation and decommissioning expense.

Regulated Natural Gas Utility Segment Operations

Year Endsd Dacember 31, Changein  Changein
2007 over 2006 over
{Miillons) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2005
Revenues $2,103.7 $676.9 $5622.0 210.8% 29.7%
Purchased natural gas costs 1,453.5 483.8 397.4 194.4% 24.3%
Margins 650.2 183.1 124.6 255 1% 47.0%
Opearating and maintenance expense 427 .4 1213 69.4 252.4% 74.8%
Depraciation and amortization expense 97.7 27 19.5 198.8% 67.7%
Taxes other than income 33.1 1.8 8.1 180.5% 93.4%
Qperating income $ 020 $17.3 $ 208 431.8% {41.8)%
Throughput in therms
Residantial 1,251.8 3515 2415 256.1% 48.5%
Commercial and industrial 439.2 180.6 134.7 130.4% 41.5%
Interruptible 59.4 401 36.1 48.1% 11.1%
interdepartmental 471 276 70.8 70.7% (51.0)%
Transport 1,505.8 B857.5 344.0 129.0% 9M1.1%
Total sales in therms 3,3031 1,267.3 827.2 160.6% 53.2%
Weather !
WPSC healing degree days 7,102 6,785 7.401 4.7% (8.3)%

*  Weather information for MGUC, MERC, PGL, and MSG is not shown as the information is not comparabls to the prior year
since the companies were not part of Integrys Energy Group prior to April 1, 2008 (MGUC), Juty 1, 2008 {MERC), and

February 21, 2007 (PGL and NSG),
Revenue

2007 Compared with 2006;

Regulated natural gas utility segment revenue increased $1,426.8 million, driven by the following:

o PGL and NSG (acquired February 21, 2007) generated $1,118.5 million of natural gas utility revenue
and contributed approximately 1.5 billion therms of natural gas throughput volumes in 2007.

« MERC (which acquired natural gas distribution operations in Minnesota on July 1, 2008) generated
$294.0 million of natural gas utility revenue and approximately 705 million therms of natural gas
throughput volumes in 2007, compared with $123.0 million of natural gas utility revenue and
approximately 348 million therms of natural gas throughput volumes in 20086,
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MGUC (which acquired natural gas distribution operations in Michigan on April 1, 2006) generated
$220.2 million of naturat gas utility revenue and approximetely 311 millian therms of natural gas
throughput volumss in 2007, compared with $110.1 million of natural gas revenue and approximately
193 milliont therms of natural gas throughput volumes during 2006.

WPSC's natural gas utility revenue increased $27.2 million, from $443.8 million in 2008, to
$471.0 million in 2007, driven by the following:

s On January 11, 2007, the PSCW issued a final written order to WPSC authorizing a retail natural
gas rate increase of $18.9 million (3.8%), effective January 12, 2007. See Note 23, "Regulatory
Environment," for more information related to the retail natural gas rate increase at WPSC,

« An 8.6% increase in natural gas throughput volumes. The ingrease in natural gas throughput
volumnes was driven by 2 10.3% increase in residential volumes and a 70.7% increase in natural
gas volumes sold to the electric utility. The increase in sales volumes 1o residential customers
was driven in part by colder year-over-year weather conditions during the 2007 heating season.
The increase in natural gas volumes sold to the electric utility was driven by an increase in the
need for the electric ufility to run its peaking generation units.

+ Natural gas prices were 10.1% lower on a per-unit basis, compared with 2008, resultingin a
decrease in natural gas ulility revenue, which partially offset the overall increase in natural gas
utility revenue at WPSC.

2006 Compared with 2005;

Requlated natural gas utility segment revenue increased $154.9 million, driven by the following:

The acquisition of natural gas distribution operations in Michigan by MGUC on April 1, 2006, and the
acquisition of natural gas distribution operations in Minnesota by MERC on July 1, 2006. These
acquisitions contributed approximately $233 million to natural gas utility revenue and approximately
541 million therms to natural gas throughput volumes in 2006.

WPSC's natural gas utility revenue was $443.8 million in 2008, compared with $522.0 million in 2005.
Lower natural gas revenues at WPSC were primarily related to:

e A 12.2% decrease in natural gas throughput valumes, primarily related to a 61.0% decrease in
naturai gas throughpuf volumes sold to the electric utility for electric generation and a 8.2%
decrease in throughput volumes to residential and commercial and industrial customers. The
decrease in throughput volumes ta the electric utility resulted from a decrease in the need for the
electric utility to run its natural gas-fired peaking generation units during the year ended
December 31, 2006, comparad with 2005, and from higher dispatch of these peaking generation
units by MISQ in 2005 for reliability purposes. The decrease in throughput volumas to residential
and commercial and industrial customers was also driven by unfavorable weather conditions in
2006 compared with 2005, as well as customer conservation efforts. Particularly at the
beginning of 2006, customers were taking measures to conserve energy as a resuit of the high
natural gas prices in the first half of 2006.

« In 2006, natural gas prices were 1.4% lower on a per-unit basis, compared with 2005, resulting
frem a large dacline in the price of natural gas in the second half of 2008, also contributing to the
decrease in natural gas revenue.

s Partially offsetting the decrease in WPSC's natural gas ulility revenue was the 2006 natural gas

rate increase at WPSC (see Note 23, "Reguiatory Environment,” for more information related to
this raie increase).
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Margin

2007 Compared with 20086:

The ragulsted natural gas ulility segment margin increased $487.1 million, driven by the following:
+ The combined margin provided by PGL and NSG in 2007 was $287.2 million.

v The combined margin al MGUC and MERC increased $55.1 million, from $59.1 million in 2008, to
$114.2 milfion in 2007. The increase in natural gas margin a2t MGUC and MERC was driven primarily
by the fact that MGUC and MERC operated during the first quarter heating season in 2007, but were
nat acquired by Integrys Energy Group until after the first quarter heating season in 2006,

« WPSC's natural gas margin increased $24.8 million, from $124.0 million in 2006, to $148.8 million in
2007. As discussed in more detail above, the increase in WPSC's margin was driven by the retail
natural gas rate increase and an increase in throughput volumes to higher margin residential
customers dug in part to colder year-over-year weather conditions during the heating season. The
increase in throughput volumes sold to the electric utility did not have a significant impact on WPSC's
natural gas utility margin.

2006 Compared with 2005:

The regulated natural gas utiity segment margin increased $58.5 million, driven by the following:

« . The combined margin provided by MGUC and MERC was approximately $59 miliion.

» WPSC's natural gas utility margin decreased $0.6 million. As discussed in more detajl above, a
decrease in throughput volumes to highar margin residential and commercial and industrial
customers was partially offset by the natural gas rate increase.

Operating income
2007 Compared with 2006:

Operating income increased $74.7 million, driven by the $467.1 million increase in the regulated natural
gas utility margin, partiaily offset by a $306.1 million increase in operating and maintenance expense, a
$65.0 million increase in depreciation and amortization expense, and a $21.3 million increase in taxes
other than income faxes.

» Theaincrease in operating and maintenance expense was primarily related to the following:

s Combined operating and maintenance expenses of $292.2 million were incurred by PGL and
NSG in 2007,

o Combined operating and maintenance expense at MGUC and MERC increased approximately
$9 million, primarily due to the fact that both of these businesses Incurred operating expenses for
only a partial year in 2006, compared to incurring a full year of aperating and maintenance
expenses in 2007. For the year ended December 31, 2006, $11.8 million of combined opsrating
and maintenance expense related to external transition costs, primarily for the start-up of
outsourcing activities and other legal and consulting fees. For the year ended December 31,
2007, MGUC and MERC were allocated $1.7 million of external costs to achieve merger
syhergies related to the PEC merger.
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« Operating expenses related to WPSC's natural gas operations increased $3.7 million
year-over-year, due primarily to the allacation of $2.8 million of external ¢costs to achieve merger
synergies related to the PEC merger.

« The increase in depreciation and amortization expense was primarily related to the merger with PEC
(a combined $59.0 million of depreciation and amortization expense was recognized at PGL and
NSG in 2007) and an increase in depreciation expense at MERC and MGUC (these businesses were
not included in results of operations for the full year in 2008}. Depreciation and amortization expense
at WPSC'’s natural gas utility was relatively flat year-over-yaar.

» The increase in taxes other than income taxes from 2006 to 2007 was primarily related to the merger
with PEC ($16.8 million of taxes other than income taxes were recognized at PGL and NSG in 2007),
and the acquisition of the Michigan and Minnesota natural gas distribution operations, which were not
included in results of operations for the full year in 2008. Taxes other than income taxes are primarily

related to property taxes, real estate taxes, gross receipts taxes, and payroll taxes paid by these
companies.

2006 Compared with 2005:

QOperating incorne decreasad $12.5 million, driven by & $71.0 million increase in total operating and
maintenance expense, partially offsét by the $58.5 million increase in regulated natural gas utility margin
as discussed above. The increase in operaling expenses is explained belaw,

» Operating and maintenance expenses increased $52.1 million. The increase in operating and
maintenance expense at the regulated natural gas ulility segment was driven by $56.6 million of
combined operating and maintenance expense incurred by MGUC and MERC. Of the $56.6 million of
operating and maintenance sxpense incurred by MGUC and MERC during the year ended
December 31, 2008, $11.8 million related to external transition expenses, primarily for the start-up of
outsourcing activities and other legal and consulting fees. Partially offsetting the increase in
operating and maintenance expenses related to MGUC and MERC, operating expenses related to

WPSC's natural gas operations decreased, driven by decreasaes in various employee bensfit related
SXPENses.

« The $13.2 million year-over-year increase in depreciation expense recorded al the regulated natural
gas utility segment was driven by 2 combined $10.4 million of depreciation expense recorded by
MGUC and MERC for the year ended December 31, 2066. Continued capital investment at WPSC's
natural gas utility alse contributed to the increase in depreciation expense.

e The $5.7 million increase in taxes other than income taxes was driven by $4.8 million of taxes cther
than income taxes recorded by MGUC and MERC, primarily related to property taxes.

Integrys Energy Services' Operations

Integrys Energy Services is a diversified nonregulated energy supply and services company serving
residential, commercial, industrial and wholesale customers in developed competitive markets in the
United States and Canada.
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Integrys Energy Services’ Segment Results of Operations

eqy End r Changa in Change in
2007 Over 2006 Qver

{Milions, except natural gas sales volumes) 2007 2006 2005 2006 005
Revenues $6,979.7 $5,1591 $5,314.9 35.3% 2.9%
Cost of fuel, natural gas, and purchased power 6,675.6 4.978.0 5.148.6 34.1% (3.3%
Mangins $ 304.1 3 1811 $ 166.3 67.9% 8.9%
Margin Detai

Electic and other margins $164.9 $ 60.5 $105.3 1726% (42.5)%

Natural gas marging $139.2 $120.6 $ 610 15.4% o7.7%
Operaling and maintenance expense $150.4 $818 $38.8 95.6% (8.3)%
Depreciation and amaorlization 14.4 9.4 a5 53.2% {1L.1)%
Taxes other than income taxes 7.1 7.2 5.4 (1.4)% 33.3%
Operating Income $123.2 $83.0 $62.5 48.4% 32.8%
Gross volumes {includes volumes both physically

delivered and net seftled)
Wholesale electric salea volumes in idlowatt-hours 132,6236 58,7949 44 778.3 125.6% 31.3%
Retail electric sales volumes in kilowatt-hours 14,8497 5,554.1 8,021.0 126.6% (18.3)%
Wholasale natural gas sedes volumes in billlon cubic feet 4831 4022 3381 20.1% 19.0%
Retail natural gas sales volumes in bilfion cubic feet 368.8 314.5 276.6 17.3% 13.7%
Physical volumes (includes only transactions settled

physicaily for the periods shown)
Wholesale electric sales volumes in kilawatt-hours * 3,500.7 868.2 15158 271.8% (36.2)%
Retail electric sales volumes in kitowatt-hours * 14,584.4 45656 6,504.5 219.4% (30.8)%
Wholesale natural gas sales volumes in billion cubic fect * 4458 s 327.8 18.3% 13.9%
Retail natural gas sales volumes in billion cubic feet * 319.4 264.0 227.7 21.0% 15.9%
* Represents gross physical volumes.
Reyenue
2007 Comparead with 2006

»  Year-over-year, revenues increased approximately $1.8 billion. The increase was primarily due to
increased volumes as a result of the addition of the nonregulated energy operations of PEC and an
average increase in 2007 electric prices of over 10%. In addition to revenue and volume
contributions from the merger with PEC, retall electric sales volumes and related revenue increased
as aresult of Integrys Energy Services' new retail electric product offerings to existing markets and
axpansion into new retail electric markets. Wholesale electric sales volumes and revenue increased
as aresult of the additional wholesale origination structured transactions. Wholesale natural gas
volumas increased as a result of an increase in the profitability of wholesals origination structured
natural gas transactions throughout 2006 and into 2007. Some of these transactions were entered
into in prior periods for future delivery; therefore, Integrys Energy Services is seeing an increase in
volumes in the periods in which these transactions seitle. Retail natural gas volumes also
increased, driven by favorable pricing compared with 2006, which encouraged new and existing
customers to enter into or extend supply contracts with Integrys Energy Services,

2006 Compared with 2005

s Year-over-year, revenues decreased $155.8 million, primarily related to a decrease in both physical
retail and wholesale electric sales volumes and a decrease in energy prices during the fatter half of
2Q006. The decrease in physical retail electric sales volumes was driven by a decrease in retail
electric sales volumas in Ohio as aggregation sales in Ohio ended on December 31, 2005, with the
expiration of Integrys Energy Services' contracts with Ohio aggregation customers. Michigan retail
electric sales volumes also decreased as many customers retumed to their utility supplier beginning
in 2005 and continuing into 2006 as a result of high wholesale energy prices and utility tariff changes,
which significantly lowered the savings that customers could obtain from contracting with non-utility
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suppliers. In other areas, lower wholesale energy prices in the latter half of 2006 allowed Integrys
Energy Services to sign up a significant number of new retail customers. The decrease in physically
settled wholesale electric sales volumes was driven by a trend toward more financially settled

transactions in 2006, compared {o 2005.

Margins

Integrys Energy Services' margin increased $123.0 million from 2008 to 2007 and increased $14.8 miliion
from 2005 to 2006. The table below provides a summary of the significant items coniributing to the
change in margin. "Other significant itams" in the table below are generally relatad ta the timing of gain
and loss recognition on certain transactions and the settliement of the derivative instruments used to

protect the value of Section 29/45K tax credits,

Increase (Decrease) in Margin in

{Millions except natural gas sales volumes) 2007 2006
Electric and other margins
. Realizad gains on structured origination contracts $ 11.8 $ 63
Realized retail alectric margin 15.9 {2.9)
All other whoiesale electric operafions 3.9 4.8
Other significant items:
Oit option activity 22.0 (11.1}
Retail mark-to-market activity 45.3 (27.3)
2005 liguidation of electric supply contract 5.5 (14.8)
Net increage (decrease) in electric and other margins 104.4 (44.8)
MNatural gas margins
Realized natural gas margins 8.0 322
Other significant items:;
Mass market supply options 8.6 (8.4)
Spot ta forward differential (0.2) 5.4
Dther mark-to-market activity 4.2 30.4
Net increase in natural gag margins 18.6 59 8
Met increase in Integrys Energy Services' margin $123.0 $14.8

Electric and Other Margins

Integrys Energy Services' electric and other margins increased $104.4 million from 2006 i0 2007 and
decreased $44.8 million from 2005 to 2008. The 2007 electric and other margin included the negative
impact of $15.2 million of amortization related to purchase accounting adjustments required as a result of
the merger with PEC. The following items were the most significant contributors to the change in Integrys

Energy Services’ alectric and other margins.



Realized gains on structu iQination contracts

Realized gains on structured origination contracts increased $11.8 million, from $6.3 miilion in 2006
to $18.1 million in 2007. Origination contracts ara physical, customer-based agreements with
municipalities, merchant genarators, cooperatives, municipalities, and regulated utilities. The
increase was primarily due to continued growth in existing markets in the Midwest and Northeastarn
United States, as well as expansion into the markets in the westem United States.

Realized gains on structured crigination contracts increzsed $6.3 million from 2005 to 2008. The
increase was primarily due to realized gains from origination contracts involving the sale of energy
through structured transactions to wholesale customers in the Midwest and northeastern United
States. These origination contracts were not in place in 2005. Integrys Energy Services provided
products to large origination customers desiring to take advantage of falling energy prices.

Bealized retail electric margin

The realized retait electric margin increased $15.9 million from $18.3 million in 2006 to $34.2 million
in 2007. The change was primarily due to the following:

o A $13.9 million increase related to operations in lllinois, driven by the merger with PEC's
nonregulated business and the addition of new customers due to the expiration of certain
regulatory provisions in the state in 2007 that effectively opened the market o nonregulated
energy suppliers.

¢ A $6.0 million increase related to operations in Texas, as a result of further penetration into this
market resulting from continued marketing efforls. Retail offerings in Texas first began in the
third quarter of 2006.

* A $3.6 million increase related to operations in New England as new customers were added due
o an increased sales facus in this region.

Partially offsetting the increases discussed above were:

s A $4.4 milion decrease related to Michigan operations as many customers continued to retum
to utility suppliers as a result of high wholesale energy prices and changes in utility tariffs which
have continued to make the Michigan energy market less competitive.

¢ A §3.3 million decrease related to operations in the state of New York, related to a change in the
praduct mix offered to customers in response to utility rate structure changes.

The realized retail electtic margin decreased $2.9 million from 2005 to 2006. The decrease was
primarily driven by an $8.2 million decrease in margin in Ohio and a $3.7 million decrease in margin
in northern Maine. These decreases were partially offset by a $4.4 million increase in margin in
Michigan, a $2.8 million increase in margin in New York, and positive margin contributions from
retail electric operations in Texas and lllinois. Integrys Energy Services' retail electric aggregation
sales in Ohio ended on December 31, 2005, with the expiration of Integrys Energy Services'
contracts with Ohio aggregation customers. The decrease in margin from operations in northern
Maina was driven by higher supply costs in part tied to diesel fuel prices. A portion of the electricity
purchased by Integrys Energy Services to supply customers in northern Maine is derived from
burning wood chips. The cost to transport wood chips, as well as the operating costs of the machine
utilized to make the wood chips, were negatively impacted by higher diesel fuel prices. In 2008,
Integrys Energy Services shared in this diesel fuel exposure with the generation supplier. The
increase in margin from retail electric operations in Michigan was driven by the elimination of the
Seams Elimination Charge Adjustment (SECA) effactive March 31, 2006, Sze Note 23, "Regulatory
Environmant, “ for more information related to SECA. Integrys Energy Services began developing a
product offering in the Texas retail electric market in 2005 and started ta deliver power to these
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customers in July 2008. In 2006, Integrys Energy Services began offering retail elactric products to
large commercial and industrial customers in lllinois. In 2005, integrys Energy Services was only
offering natural gas products and energy management services to customers in lllinois.

All other wholesale electric operations

As part of its lrading activities, Integrys Energy Services seeks to generate profits from the volalility of the
price of electricity by purchasing or selling various financial and physical instruments (such as forward
contracts, options, financial transmission rights, and capacity contracts) in established wholesale markets
where Integrys Energy Services has market expertise, under risk management policies set by
management and appraved by Integrys Energy Group's Board of Directors. Integrys Energy Services
also seeks fo reduce market price risk and extract additionat value from its generation ahd customer
supply portfolios through the use of various financial and physical instruments (such as farward contracts,
options, financial transmission rights, and capacity contracts). Period-by-period variability in the margin
contributed by Integrys Energy Services' aptimization strategies and trading activities is expected due to
changing market conditions and differances in the timing of gains and losses recognized on derivative
and non-derivative contracts, as required by generally accepted accounting principlas. A diverse mix of
preducts and markets, combined with disciplined execution and exit strategies, has allowed Integrys
Energy Services to generate economic value and earnings from these activities while staying within the
value-at-risk (VaR) limits authorized by Integrys Energy Group's Board of Directors. For mors information
on VaR, see "item 7A, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk."

¢ Integrys Energy Services' margin from all other wholesale electric operations increased $3.9 million
from 2008 to 2007, driven by an increase in net realized and unrealized gains (primarily unrealized
gains) related to trading activilies utilized io optimize the value of Integrys Energy Services'
merchant generation fieet and energy contract portfolios. Partially offsetting the increase resulting
from realized and unrealized gains, the overall level of progrietary trading was less in 2007, due
primarily to a decrease in electric price volatility during the first three quarters of 2007, increased
emphasis on siructured electric transactions in 2007, and the departure of several key traders in the
third quarter of 2008. Proprietary trading started picking up again in the fourth quarter of 2007 as
electric price volatility increased. integrys Energy Services used the 2008 depariure of several of its
traders as an opportunity to restructure trading operations into two groups. Its East trading group
was ralocated from Washington D.C. 1o Chicago and the West trading group is located in Denver.
The restructured trading operations aiiow {ntegrys Energy Services to more effaclively service
customers in the West by providing better diversification of trading talent, market expertise, and
product offerings.

s Integrys Energy Services' margin from all other wholesale electric operations increased $4.8 million
from 2005 to 2008, driven by an increase in net realized and unrealized gains related to trading
activities utilized to optimize the value of Integrys Energy Services' merchant genaration fleet and
anergy contract pottfolios.
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Qil option activity

¢  Qil option activity drove a $22.0 million increase in electric and other margins from 20086 to 2007,
The oil options were utilized to protect the value of a portion of Integrys Energy Services' Section
29/45K federal tax credits from 2005 to 2007. However, companies are no longer allowed to
generata tax cradits from the praduction of synthetic fuel as this program ended effective
December 31, 2007. Therafore, Inlegrys Energy Services exercised subsiantially all of its remaining
oil options in 2007. Net mark-to-market and realized losses on oil options of $2.4 million were
racegnized in 2006, compared with net mark-to-market and realized gains on oil options of
$19.6 million in 2007. These derivative instruments ware not dasignated as hedging instruments
and, as a result, changes in the fair value were recorded in @amings. The increase in the fair value
of these instruments in 2007 over 2006 reflects increased oil prices.

« Qil option activity drove an $11.1 million decrease in electric and other margins from 2005 to 2006.
The decrease was driven by a decrease in the fair value of derivative instruments utilized to protect
the value of a portion of Integrys Energy Services' Section 29/45K federal tax credits from 2005 to
2006. This decrease is a result of net mark-to market and realized losses on oil options of
$2.4 million in 2008, compared with net mark-to-market and realized gains on ail aptions of
$8.7 million in 2005.

Retail mark-to-market actjvi

Earnings volatility from this activity results from the application of derivative accounting rules to customer
supply contracts (requiring that these derivative instruments be marked-to-market), without a
corresponding mark-to-market offset related to the customer sales contracts, which are not considered
derivative instruments. Thesa mark-to-market gains and losses will vary each period, and ultimately
reverse as the related customer sales contracts settle. As a result, Integrys Energy Services generally
experiences mark-to-market losses on supply contracts in periods of declining wholesale prices and
mark-to-market gains in periods of increasing wholesale prices.

o Results from retail mark-to-market activity increased $45.3 million from $18.5 million of unrealized
losses in 2006 ta $26.8 million of unrealized gains in 2007,

s Results from retail mark-to-market activity decreased $27.3 million from 2005 to 2008.

2005 liquidation of elactric supply contract

In the fourth quarter of 2005, an electricity supplier exiting the wholesale market in Maine requested that
Integrys Energy Services liquidate a firm contract to buy power in 2006 and 2007. At that time, Integrys
Energy Services recognized an $8.2 million gain related to the liquidation of the contract and entered into
& new tontract with another supplier for firm power in 2008 and 2007 1o supply its customers in Maine.
The cost to purchase power under the new contract was more than tha cost under the liquidated contract.
The liquidation and subsequent replacemant of this contract resulted in the following:

s A $5.5 million increase in margins from 2006 to 2007. The replacement contract increased the cost
of purchased power needed to serve cuslomers in Maine by $6.4 million in 2008, compared with
$0.9 million in 2007.

e A $14.6 million negative impact on the 2008 electric and other margin, as a result of higher

purchased power costs recorded under the new contract of $6.4 million compared with an
$8.2 million gain recognizad on the liquidation of the original contract in 2005,
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Natural Gas Margins

integrys Energy Services' natural gas margins increased $18.6 million from 2006 to 2007 and increased
$59.6 miliion from 2005 to 2008. The 2007 natural gas margins included the negative impact of

$6.1 million of amortization related to purchase accounting adjustments required as a result of the merger
with PEC. The following items were the mast significant contributors to the change in Integrys Energy
Services' natural gas marging.

Realized natural gas margins

» Realized natural gas margins increased $8.0 million, from $92.6 million in 2006, to $100.6 million in
2007. The majority of this increase, $5.7 million, was driven by margin contributed by the
nonregulated retail natural gas marketing operations of PEC and improved supply optimization, as
Integrys Energy Services was able to secure lower supply costs for firrn sales commilments to retail
natural gas customers in Ohio and llincis. The remaining increase in realized natural gas margins
was driven by the nonregulated wholesale natural gas marketing operations added with the PEC
merger.

e Realized natural gas margins increased $32.2 million, from $60.4 million in 2005, to $92.6 milion in
2006, The majority of this increase, $26.8 million, related to an increase in retail natural gas margin,
driven by continued expansion of integrys Energy Services' Canadian retail operatians (including
higher sales volumes to existing customers as well as new customer additions). Margins from retait
natural gas operations in Wisconsin, Michigan, and lllincis also increased, as Integrys Energy
Services was able to better manage supply to these customers, aided by favorable markst
conditions. The remaining $5.8 million increase in realized natural gas margins related to wholesale
operations, driven by an increase in structured wholesale natural gas fransactions attributed to an
increase in the volatility of the price of natural gas as well as high natural gas storage spreads
during most of 2006.

Mass market supply options

Options ufilized to manage supply cosis for mass market customers are used 1o reduce the risk of price
movements, customer migration, and changes in consumer consumption pattems. Earnings volatility
results from the application of derivative accounting rules to the options (requiring that these derivative
instruments be marked-to-market), withaut a comesponding mark-to-market offset related to the customer
contracts. Full requirements natural gas contracts with Integrys Energy Services' customers ars not
considered derivatives and, therefore, no gain or loss is recognized on these contracts until settlement.
The option mark-to-market gains and icsses will reverse as the related customer sales cantracis seitle.

e In2007, oplions utilized to manage supply costs for mass market customers drove a $6.6 million
increase in Integrys Energy Services' natural gas margin. These options had a $1.1 million positive
impact on margin in 2007 {commensurate with higher natural gas prices), compared with a nagative
$5.5 million impact on margin in 2006 (commensurate with declining natural gas prices).

s [n 2008, options utilized to manage supply costs for mass market customers drove an $8.4 million
decrease in Integrys Energy Services' natural gas margin. These options had a $5.5 million
negalive impact on Integrys Energy Services' natural gas margin in 2006 (commensurate with
declining natural gas prices), compared with a $2.9 million positive impact on margin in 2005
(commensuratz with higher natural gas prices in the latter half of 2005).

Spot to forward differential

Integrys Energy Services experiences earnings volatility associated with the natural gas storage cycle,
which runs annually from April through March of the next year. Generally, injections of natural gas into
storege inventory take place in the summear manths and natural gas is withdrawn from storage in the
winter months. Integrys Energy Services' palicy is to hedge the value of natural gas storage with
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contracts in the over-the-counter and futures markets, effectively locking in a margin on the natural gas in
storage. However, fair market value hedge accounting rules require the natural gas in storage to be
marked-to-market using spot prices, while the future sales contracts are marked-to-market using forward
prices. When the spot ptice of natural gas changes disproportionatsly to the forward price of natural gas,
Integrys Energy Services experiences volatility in its earnings. Consequently, earnings volatility may
accur within the contract period for natural gas in storage. The accounting treatment does not impact the
underlying cash flows or economics of these transactions.

» The natusal gas storage cycle had a negative $0.2 million impact on natural gas margins from 2006
{o 2007. There was no material impact on margin as a result of the natural gas storage cycle in
2007 compared with a $0.2 million positive impact in 2006. At December 31, 2007, the market value
of natural gas in storage was $5.6 million less than the market value of future sales contracts (net
unrealized loss), related to the 2007/2008 natural gas storage cycle. This $5.8 million difference is
expected to vary with market conditions, and will reverse entirely and have a positive impact on
earnings when all of the natural gas is withdrawn from storage.

» The natural gas storage cycle had a positive $5.4 million impact on natural gas margins from 2005
to 2006. In 2006, the nalural gas storage cycle had a positive $0.2 million impact on margin,
compared with a $5.2 million negative impact on margin in 2005.

Other mark-to-market activity

Other mark-to-market activity primarily relates to changes in the fair market value of basis swaps utilized
to mitigate market price risk associated with natural gas transportation contracts and ceriain natural gas
sales contracts as well as contracts utilized to mitigate market price risk related fo certain natural gas
storage contracts. Earnings volatility resuits fram the application of derivative accounting rules to the
basis and other swaps (requiring that these derivative instruments be marked-to-market), without a
corresponding mark-ta-market offset related to the physical natural gas transportation contracts, the
natural gas sales contracts, or the natural gas storage contracts (as these contracts are not considered
denvative instruments). Therefore, no gain or |oss is recognized on the transportation contracts,
customer sales contracts, or natural gas storage contracts until physical settlement of these contracts
QCCUrs.

¢ Derivative instruments not previously discussed drove a $4.2 million increase in the natural gas
margins as mark-to-market gains on these instruments increased to $37.5 million in 2007.

¢ Derivative instruments not previously discussed drove a $30.4 increase in the natural gas margins
as mark-fo-market gains on these instruments increased in 2006, compared with 2005.

Operating Income
2007 Compared with 2006:

« Operating income at Integrys Energy Services increased $40.2 million, driven by the $123.0 million
increase in margin discussed abave, partially offset by a $77.9 million increase in operating and
mainienance expense and a $5.0 million increase in depreciation and amortization expense.

The increase in operating and maintenance expense was driven by higher payroll and benefit costs
related to additional employses reguirad as a result of continued business expansion activities at
Integrys Energy Services (the most significant of which related to the merger of PEC's nonregulated
operation into Integrys Energy Services). A $9.0 million pre-tax gain an the 2006 sale of WPS ESI
Gas Storage, LLC, §7.7 million of costs to achieve merger synergies and additional costs related to
plant outages of $2.6 million in 2007 also contributed to the increase in operating and maintenance
expense.
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2006 compared with 2005;

Operating income at Integrys Energy Services increased $20.5 million, driven by the $14.8 million
increase in margin discussed above and a $7.4 million decrease in operating and maintenance
expense. The decrease in operaling and maintenance expense was primarily related to a

$9.0 miltion pre-tax gain recognized on the sale of WPS ES| Gas Storage, LLC in the second
quarter of 2006, This gain was partially offset by highar payroll and benefit costs related to an
increase in the number of employees as a result of business expansion activities.

Heolding Company and Other Segment Operations
2007 Comparad with 2006:

Financial results at the Holding Company and Other segment decreasad $19.1 million, from net income of
$0.3 milfion for the year ended December 31, 20086, to a net loss of $18.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007. The change was driven by the following:

A $42.0 rmillion ($25.2 million after-tax) increase in interest expense, driven by additional borrowings
assumed in the merger with PEC, as well as an increase in short-term and long-term borrowings
required to fund the acquisitions of the natural gas distribution operations in Michigan and Minnesota,
higher working capital requirements at Integrys Energy Services, and transaction and transition costs
related to the merger with PEC.

A $6.2 million ($3.7 million after-tax) gain on the sale of Integrys Energy Group's one-third interest in
Guardian Pipeline, LLC in April 2008 also contributed to the decrease in year-over year eamings.

An $11.5 million increase in pre-tax earnings ($6.9 million after-tax) from Integrys Energy Group's
34.5% ownership interest in ATC. Integrys Energy Group recorded $50.5 million of pre-tax equity
earnings from ATC during the year ended December 31, 2007, compared with $39.0 million for the
same period in 2006.

A $1.7 million ($1.0 million after-tax) decrease in operating and maintenance expenses, primarily
related to the reallocation of extarnal costs to achieve merger synergies associated with the PEC
merger, incurred from July 2006 through March 2007, In March 2007, aii external costs to achieve
were reallocated from the Holding Company and Other segment (where they were initially recorded)
to other reportable segments, which will ultimately be the beneficiaries of the synergy savings
resulting fram the costs to achieve.

2006 Compared with 2005:

Earnings at the Holding Company and Other segment decreased $5.6 million, from net income of
$5.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, to a net income of $0.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The changes were driven by the following:

A $12.9 million increase in interest expense, net of intercompany interest income ($7.7 million after
taxes) Higher interest expense was driven by an increase in short-term and long-term bomrowings
required to fund the acquisition of hatural gas distribution operations in Michigan and Minnasota and
warking capital requirements at Integrys Energy Services.

A $9.2 million increase in operating and maintenance expense ($5.5 million after taxes). The
increase in aperating and maintenance expense was driven by legal and consulting expenses related
to business expansion activities, primarily attributed to the merger with PEC.

A $4.8 million year-over year decrease in after-tax gains from land sales.
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o A $13.9 million increase in pre-tax earnings {$8.3 million after-tax) from ATC (pre-tax equity earnings
from ATC increased to $39.0 million in 2008, from $25.1 million in 2005).

e A $6.2 million ($3.7 million after-tax) gain recognized from the 2006 sale of Integrys Energy Group's
one-third interest in Guardian Pipsline, LLC.

Summary of Exiernal Costs to Achieve

Below is a table depicting the pre-tax impact that external costs to achieve had on each reportable
segment of Integrys Enargy Group during the year ended December 31, 2007. Note that external costs
to achieve incurred at the holding company in 2006 and the first quarter of 2007 were reallocated down to
the segment level in the first guarter of 2007.

2007 Pre-tax Impact
Reportable Segment (miflions) {Income)/Expense
Electric utility $123
Natural gas udility 4.5
Integrys Energy Services 1.7
Holding company and other {6.8)
Total $17.7
Other income (Expense)
Year Ended December 31, Change Change

2007 over 2006 over
{Millions}) 2007 2006 2005 2008 2005
Miscellaneous income $ 64.1 $428 $88.8 49.8% (51.8%)
Interest expense (164.5) (92.2) {62.0} 65.8% 60.0%
Minority interest 0.1 3.8 4.5 {97 .4%) {15.6%)
Other (expense) income ${(100.3) $(52.6) $31.3 90.7% -

Miscellansous income
2007 Compared with 2006:
The $21.3 million increase in miscellansous income was primarily driven by:

¢ An §11.6 million increase in pre-tax equity earnings from Integrys Energy Group's 34.5% ownership
interest in ATC.

s A $5.7 million decrease in pre-tax losses recognized for the year related to Integrys Energy Services'
investment in a synthetic fusl facility. Integrys Energy Services took less production from this facility
in 2007 compared with 2006.

« A $3.3 million increase in foreign currency gains at Integrys Energy Services' Canadian subsidiaries,
which was offsst by related losses in gross margin. These transactions are substantially hedged
from an economic perspective, resulting in no significant impact on income (loss) available for
common shareholders.

» Anincrease of $2.9 million, partially due to an increase in interest income recognized related to the
tfransmission faciliies WPSC is funding on ATC's behalf pending the start-up of Weston 4.

« A decrease due fo the $6.2 million pre-iax gain recegnized from the sale of Integrys Energy Group's
one-third interest in Guardian Pipeline, LLC in the second quarisr of 2006.
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2008 Compared with 2005
Miscellaneous income decreased $46.0 million driven primarily by:

» Approximately $41 million of realized gains on nuclaar decommissioning trust assets recorded during
the year ended December 31, 2005, Pursuant to reguiatory practice, the increase in miscellanecus
income refated to these realized gains was offset by a corresponding increase in decommissioning
expense in 2005.

» Integrys Energy Services' equity investment in a synthetic fuel facility contributed an additional
$11.3 million decrease in miscellaneaus ingome, driven in part by additional synthetic fuel production
procured in 2006 from our partners in this facility.

» Pre-tax gains recognized on land sales decreased $8.0 million, from $10.3 million in 2005 to
$2.3 million in 2006.

o These decreases were partially offset by a $13.9 million increase in pre-tax equity eamnings fram ATC
and a $6.2 million pre-tax gain recognized from the sale of Integrys Energy Group's one-third interest
in Guardian Pipeline, LLC.

Interest Expense
2007 Compared with 2006:

Interest expenise increased $65.3 million as a result of:

» Inferest expense of $30.3 million recorded at PGL and NSG from February 22, 2007 through
December 31, 2007.

o The remaining increase in interest expense was driven by an increase in short-term and fong-term
borrowings reguired to fund the acquisitions of the natural gas distribution operations in Michigan and
Minnesota, higher working capital requirements at Integrys Energy Services, and transaction and
transition costs ralated to the merger with PEC.

2006 Compared with 2005:
Interest expense increased $37.2 million due primarily to:

s Anincrease in the average amount of both short-term and long-term debt outstanding and higher
average short-term interest rates. During 2006, borrowings were primarily utilized to fund the
purchase of natural gas distribution operations in Michigan and Minnesota, the construction of
Weston 4, and for working capital requirements at Integrys Energy Services.

Minarity Intarest
2007 Compared with 2006;
A decrease of $3.7 million in minority interest ralated to Integrys Energy Services' synthetic fuel

aperations. In 2007, Integrys Energy Services' partner efected 1o stop receiving production from the
synthetic fuel facifity and, therefore, did not share in losses fram this facility.
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2006 Compared with 2005:

Minarity interest related to Integrys Energy Services' synthetic fuel operation did not significantly change
for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the same period in 2005.

Provision for Income Taxes

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2008 2005

Effective Tax Rate 32.2% 22.9% 20.8%

The 2007 increase in the effective tax rate was driven by a decraase in Section 29/45K federal tax cradits
recognized in 2007 compared with 2006. The decrease in Section 29/45K federal tax credits recoghized
was driven by the impact of high oil prices on our ability to realize the benefit of Section 29/45K federal
tax credits. Section 29/45K federal tax credits recognized from the production and sale of synthetdic fuel
wara $13.6 million in 2007, compared with $29.5 million in 2006.

The 2006 increase in the effective tax rate was driven by a higher effective state tax rate, primarily related
to the acquisition of regulated natural gas operations in Minnesota and also due to a loss in valug of
various state net operating loss carryforwards. Section 29/45K federal tax credits from the preduction
and sale of synthetic fusl increased $3.4 million to $29.5 millian in 20086, to partially offset the increase in
effective tax rate.

Discantinued Oparations, Net of Tax
2007 Compared with 2006:

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax, increased $66.0 million, from after-tax income of
$7.3 million in 2006 to after-tax income of $73.3 million in 2007,

s |n September 2007, Integrys Energy Group completed the sale of PEP for approximately
$879.1 million. Post-closing adjustments in the amount of $9.9 million were seltled in February 2008
related to this sale, which reduced the sale price to $869.2 million. Thesa post-closing adjustments
were fundad through other current liabilities at December 31, 2007. During the year ended
December 31, 2007, $58.5 million of income from discontinued operations was recognized related to
PEP, which included an after-tax gain of $7.8 million on the sale.

+ Discantinued operations, net of tax, related to WPS Niagara Generation, LLC (Niagara), which was
sold in January 2007, increased $14.4 million, from income of $0.4 million in 2006 to income of
$14.8 million in 2007. The increase in income generated from Niagara was mostly due to a
$14.7 million after-tax gain on the sale of the facility.

= Partially offsetting these increases were discontinued operations related to Sunbury Generation,
LLC (Sunbury). Income from discontinued operations related to Sunbury was $6.9 million for the
period January 1, 2008, through the date of sale in July 2008, including a $12.5 millicn after-tax gain
on the sala of this facility.

2006 Compared with 2005:

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax, decreased $4.2 million, from aftertax income of
$11.5 million in 2005 to after tax income of $7.3 million in 2008.

e Discontinued operations, net of tax, related to Sunbury decreased $2.2 million, from income of

$2.1 million in 2005, to income of $6.9 million in 2006. The $6.9 million of income recorded in 2006
inciuded a $12.5 million after-tax gain on the sale of Sunbury, which was sold in July 20086.
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s  Discontinued operations, net of tax, related to WPS Nizgara Generation, LLC decreased
$2.0 million, from income of $2.4 million in 2005 to income of $0.4 mitlion in 2006. The decrease in
incarme generated from WPS Niagara Generation was mostly due to a decrease in the average price
per megawatt sold from this facility in 2006 compared to 2005.

Cumulative Effact of Chande in Accounting Principles

2008 compared with 2005:

In March 2005, the FASB issued Interpratation No. 47, "Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations.” This Interpretation clarifies when companies are required to recognize conditional legal
asset retirement obligations that result from the acquisition, construction, and normal operation of a
long-lived assef. Because the accounting for conditional assef retirement obligations had baen
interpretad differently between companies, SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations
had been inconsistently applied in practice.

The adoption of Interpretation No. 47 at Integrys Energy Services on December 31, 2005, resulted in a
negative $1.6 million after-tax cumulativa effect of change in accounting principla, related to recording a
liability for asbestos remediation at certain of Integrys Energy Services' generation plants. For the utility
segments of Integrys Energy Group, we concluded it was probable that any differences between
expenses under Interpretation No. 47 and expenses currently recovered through customer rates will be
recoverable in futura customer rates. Accordingly, the adoption of this statement had no impact on the
utility segment's income.

BALANCE SHEET

Net accounts receivable increased $368.0 million (35.5%), from $1,037.3 million at December 31, 2008,
to $1,405.3 million at December 31, 2007, primarily due to the following:

¢ Al December 31, 2007, PGL and NSG had a net accounts receivable balance of $128.0 million.

s  Net accounts receivable at Integrys Energy Services increased $83.5 million, driven primarily by the
integration of PEC's nonregulated business into Integrys Energy Services, as well as coniinued
growth in Integrys Energy Services' business in 2007,

¢ Net accounts receivable at WPSC increased $84.7 million (49.8%), primarily due {o an $82.3 million
receivable from ATC pertaining o transmission facilities required to support Weston 4 that WPSC is
funding on iheir behalf pending completion of Weston 4. At December 31, 2008, the amount owed
to WPSC by ATC was $20.8 million and was included as a component of other long-term assets. At
December 31, 2007, the $20.8 million was reflectsd as a receivable from ATC as was the
$61.5 milfion of incremental funding that was incurred in 2007.

Accrued unhilled revenues increased $279.9 million (151.5%), from $184.8 million at December 31, 2006,
to $464.7 million at December 31, 2007, primarily driven by combined accrued unbilled revenues of
$155.1 million at PGL and NSG at December 31, 2007. Accrued unbilled revenues at Integrys Energy
Services also increased $108.9 million, driven by the integration of PEC's nonregulated business into
Integrys Energy Services, as well as continued growth in Integrys Energy Services' business in 2007,

Inventories increased $207.1 million {45.4%), from $456.3 million at December 31, 20086, to $663.4 million
at December 31, 2007. The inventory balance at integrys Energy Services increased $139.9 million
(48.6%), due to the addition of PEC's nonregulated business as well as an increase in storage volumes
related to coniinued growth of Integrys Energy Services' natural gas business in new and existing
markets. The inventory balance at PGL and NSG was $93.8 milfion at December 31, 2007.
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At December 31, 2007, compared to Deceamber 31, 2006, tolal agsats from risk management activities
decreased $76.8 million (5.6%) and total liabilities from risk management activities decreased

$80.9 million (6.4%). The decrease in assets and liabilities from risk management activities was driven by
timing of mark<to-market gain and loss recognition on the underlying contracts. Although total risk
management assets and liabilities decreased, long-term risk management assets and liabiiities increased
at December 31, 2007, compared to December 31, 2006. This increase related to more emphasis on
structured origination contracts, which are physical, customer based agreements with municipalities,
merchant generators, and regulated utiities, and are generally longer term in nature.

Tota} regulatory assefs increased $805.2 million {183.5%), from $438.8 miilion at December 31, 2008, to
$1,244.0 million at December 31, 2007, primarily attributed to a $656.1 millicn increase in the regulatory
asset related to environmental remediation costs and a $63.2 miilion increase in the regulatory asset for
pension and post-retirement benefit related items. The increase in the environmental related regulatory
asset related to estimated costs of future natural gas remediation for several manufactured gas plant sites
at PGL and NSG. See Note 17, "Commitments and Contingencies,” for maore information, The increass
in the regulatory asset related to pension and postretirement benefit relatad items was driven by the
merger with PEC and changes Integrys Energy Group made to certain of its retirement benefit plans.

See Note 19, "Employee Bensiit Plans,”" for more information.

Net property, plant, and equipment increased $1,929.0 million (76.1%), from $2,534.8 million at
December 31, 2006, to $4,463.8 million at December 31, 2007, due primarily to the following:

e Netproperty, plant, and equipment related to PGL and NSG at December 31, 2007 was
$1,788.6 million.

» Net property, plant, and equipment at WPRSC increased $106.0 milian. WPSC's capital expenditures
in 2007 were $221.1 million, in part due to $100.3 million of capital expenditures related to the
construction of Wesioh 4 and the purchase of unit trains for this facility, partiaily offset by
depreciation and amortization expense of $96 4 million in 2007.

The $644.0 million (212.0%) increase in goodwill from December 31, 2008, to Decaember 31, 2007, is
primarily refated to goodwill recorded in conjunction with the PEC merger. See Note 11, "Goodwill and
Other intangible Assets,” for more information.

The change in pension and post-retirement assets and liabilities recarded on the Consclidated Balance
Sheets was driven by the PEC merger as well as changes Integrys Energy Group made to certain of its
retirement benefit plans, as well as changes made to the assumptions used to measure these plans at
December 31, 2007, compared with December 31, 2006. Sze Note 18, "Employee Bensfit Plans,” for
mare information.

Detailed explanations for changes in the short-term and long-term debt balances at December 31, 2007,
compared to December 31, 2006, are included in Note 13, "Short-term Dsbt and Linas of Credit,” and
Note 14, "Long-Term Dobt."

Accounts payable increased $382.4 million {40.3%), from $349.4 million at December 31, 2008, to
$1,331.8 million at December 31, 2007. Accounts payable racorded at PGL and NSG at Dacember 31,
2007 was $197.0 million. Accounts payable at Integrys Energy Services increased $177.8 million, driven
by the addition of PEC's nonregulated business ($120.6 million of accounts payable related to PEC's
nonregulated cperations was assumed on the merger date). Accounts payable at integrys Energy
Services also increased as a result of an increase in natural gas purchases in the fourth quarter of 2007,
compared with the same quarter of 2006, due to general business growth.

Other current liabilities increased $304.0 million (168.8%), from $180.1 million at December 31, 20086, to

$484.1 million at December 31, 2007, primarily due to an increase in liabilities related to vacation,
salaries, and other general expanses related to the PEC merger.
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Environmental remediation liabilities increased $609.8 miilion (836.5%), from $35.8 miflion at

December 21, 2008, to $705.6 million at December 31, 2007. The increase related to estimated costs of
future natural gas remediation for several manufactured gas plant sites at PGL and NSG. PGL and NSG
anticipate that natural gas plant site remediation costs will be collected in rates; therefore, an offsetting
regulatory asset has been recorded. See Note 17, "Commitments and Contingencies,” for more
information,

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We believe that our cash balances, liquid assets, operating cash flows, access to equity capital markets
and borrowing capacity made available because of strong credit ratings, when taken together, provide
adequate resources to fund ongoing operating requirements and future capital expenditures related to
expansion of existing businesses and devslopment of new projects. However, our aperating cash flow
and access to capital markets can be impacted by macroeconomic factors outside of our control. In
addition, our borrowing costs can be impacted by short-term and long-term debt ratings assigned by
independent rating agencies. Currently, we beligve our ra’ungs are among the hest in the energy industry
(see "Financing Cash Flows - Cradit Ratings" below).

Operating Cash Flows

During 2007, net cash provided by operating activities was $238.5 million, compared with $72.9 million in
2006. The $165.6 million increase in net cash provided by operating activities was driven by a

$84.0 million decrease in working capital requirements year-over-year. It is important to note that
changes in working capitaf balances at February 21, 2007, as a result of the PEC merger are not
incorporated in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, as the merger was a noncash transaction.
Cnly PEC changes in working capital from the merger daie to Dacernbar 31, 2007 ars included.
Inventory levels at integrys Energy Services increased from December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2007,
but this change was less than the increase from December 31, 2005 to December 31, 2008, driving the
majority of the decrease in warking capital requirements. Integrys Energy Services continued to see
growth in its natural gas business in both new and existing markets. The year-over-year change in
natural gas inventories at the regulated utilities was not significant. The remaining increase in net cash
provided by operating activities was driven by & year-over-year increase in income available for common
shareholders.

During 2006, net cash provided by operating activities was $72.9 million, compared with $77.4 million in
2005. The $4.5 million decrease in net cash provided by operating activities was driven by an

$88.2 million increase in cash required to fund working capital requirements, primarily due to an increase
in natural gas inventories at integrys Energy Services. Natural gas in storage at Inlegrys Energy Services
increased $85.2 million primarily related to a 121% increase in patural gas volumes in storage at
December 31, 2006, compared to December 31, 2005 (partially offset by a 20% decrease in the average
cost of inventory in storage). Integrys Energy Services chose to purchase more natural gas for storage
due to high natural gas storage spreads (future natural gas sales prices were higher than the near lerm
price of natural gas). The increase in cash used to fund higher Integrys Energy Services natural gas
inventories was partially offset at the regulated ufilities by cash used to fund costs incurred in 2005
related to the unplanned outage at Kewaunee, the start-up of MISO, and coal shorfages.

investing Cash Flows

Net cash used for investing activities was $451.5 million in 2007, compared with $1,030.1 million in 2006.
The $578.6 million decrease was driven by $859.3 million of cash used by Integrys Energy Group to
acquire natural gas operations in Michigan and Minnesota in 2006. Also contributing $44.0 million to the
decraase in net cash used for investing activities in 2007 was WPSC's liquidation of the cash that was
deposited into an escrow account in 2006, which was used for the payment of the outstanding principal
balance of first mortgage bonds in January 2007 (discussed below in significant financing activities).
Pariially offsetting these decreases were $58.4 million of proceeds received from the sale of our
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investment in Guardian Pipeline LLC and WPS ESI Gas Storage, LLC in 2006 and a $50.6 million
year-gvar-year increasa in capitai expenditures (discussed below).

Net cash used for investing activities was $1,030.1 million in 2008, compared with $148.8 million in 2005,
The $881.3 million year-over-year increase was primarily due to $659.3 million of cash paid in 2008 for
the acquisition of the Michigan and Minnescta natural gas distribution operations from Aquila,

$112.5 milllion of proceeds received in 2005 related to the sale of Kewaunee, $127.1 million of proceeds
received in 2005 from the liquidation of the related non-qualified decommissioning trust, and $95.1 million
of proceeds received in 2005 from DPC upon closing of the sale of a 30% ownership interest in Weston 4.
Also contributing to the increase was $22.0 million of cash deposited into an escrow account in 2006 for
the payment of the outstanding principal balance of first mortgage bonds in January 2007. Partially
ofisetiing the increase in cash used for investing activities was a $71.9 million decrease in ¢capital
expenditures (discussed below), proceeds of $38.5 million received in 2006 from the sale of the
company’s ohe-third interest in Guardian Pipeline, LLC, and proceeds of $12.9 million received in 2006
from the sale of WPS ESI Gas Storage, LLC.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures by business segment for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2008, and 2005 were
as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

Reportable Segment (millions) 2007 2006 2005

Electric utility $202.6 $282.1  $373.9
Natural gas utility 158.8 54.68 36.4
Integrys Energy Services 20.5 5.5 2.7
Holding company and other 10.7 (0.2) 0.9
Integrys Energy Group consolidated $392.6 $3420 $413.8

The decrease in capital expenditures at the electric utility in 2007 compared with 2006 was mainly due to
a decrease in capital expenditures assoctated with the construction of Weston 4. The increase in capital
expenditures af the natural gas utility was primarily driven by capital requirements of PGL and NSG,

which were acqguired in the merger with PEC on February 21, 2007. Capital expendituras in 2007 for PGL
and NSG related mainly to the natural gas distribution systems. The increase in capital expenditures at
Integrys Energy Services was due to capital required ta open new offices in Colorado, Michigan, and
Washington, D.C., as well as to move the Chicago office; improvements at various generation facilities;
new systems infrastructure; and the Winnebago Energy Center landfill gas project. The increase in
capital expenditures at the Holding Company and Other segment was driven by the purchase of a
carporate airplane,

The decrease in capital expenditures at the electric utility in 2006 compared with 2005 was mainly due to
lower capital expenditures associated with the construction of Weston 4. The increase in capital
expenditures at the natural gas utility was related to a combined $20.1 million of capital expenditures
incurred by MGUC and MERC for natural gas mains.

Financing Cash Flows

Net cash used for financing activities was $459.2 million in 2007, compared with net cash provided by
financing activities of $891.7 million in 2008. The $1.4 hillion change was driven by $458.0 million of
short-term debt borrowings during 2006, compared with the repayment of $463.7 million of short-term
debt in 2007. In 2007, Integrys Energy Group was able to pay down short-term debt with a portion of the
proceeds received from the sale of PEP. The remaining net change in financing activity was driven by a
$321.8 million decrease in long-term debt issuances year-over-year and a $119.0 million year-cver year
decrease in common stock issued. Shortterm borrowings in 2006 and the long-term debt and stock
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issuances in 2006 were used primarily for the acquisitions of the natural gas distribution operations in
Michigan and Minnesota. An $81.0 million increase in dividends paid in 2007, comparad with 2006, was
driven by an increase in shares outstanding and higher dividend rates. These items ware partially offset
by natural gas loan proceeds at Integrys Energy Services of $34.4 million in 2007, compared with
repayment of $88.4 million of natural gas loans during 2006. An increase in natural gas spreads made it
more conducive to enter into natural gas lean deats in 2007 compared with 2008.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $891.7 million in 2006, compared with net cash related to
financing activities of $0 in 2005. The change was primarily attributed to a $458.0 million increase in
short-term debt and the issuance of $447.0 million of long-tem debt in 2008. Increased borrowings were
used primarily for the acquisitions of the natural gas distribution operations in Michigan and Minnesota,
construction expenditures related to Weston 4, working capital requirements at Integrys Energy Services,
and other general corporate purposes.

Significant Financing Activilies

Dividends paid increased in 2007 compared with 2006 as a result of the merger with PEC. Integrys
Energy Group issued 31.9 million shares of common stock as part of the merger and increased the
dividend paid per share. The quarterly common stock dividend was increased from 57.5 cents per share
to 86 cents per share in 2007. In February2008, Integrys Energy Group increased its quarterdy common
stock dividend to 67 cents per share,

Integrys Energy Group had outstanding commercial paper borrowings of $308.2 milfion and

$562.8 million at December 31, 2007, and 2006, respectively. Integrys Energy Group had other
outstanding short-term debt of $160.0 million as of December 31, 2007, and 2008. In April 2008, Integrys
Energy Services entered into a $150.0 million credit agreement, which has been renewed to Aprit 2008,
ta finance its margin requirements related to natural gas and electric contracts traded on the NYMEX and
the ICE, as well as the cost of natural gas in storage and for general corporate purposes. As of
December 31, 2007 and 2008, $150.0 million of borrowings were outstanding under this credit
agreement, which is guaranteed by integrys Energy Group.

In 2007, 2006, and 2005 Integrys Energy Group issued new shares of common stock under its Stock
Investment Plan and under certtain stock-based employee benefit and compensation plans. As a result of
these plans, equity increased $45.7 miflion, $25.0 million, and $29.0 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively. Integrys Energy Group did not repurchase any existing common stock during 2007, 2008,
or 2005.

in Novemnber 2007, WPSC issued $125.0 million of 5.65%, 10-year senior notes. The net proceeds from
the issuance of the senior notes wers used to fund construction costs and capital additions, reduce
short-term indebtedness, as well as for general carporate utility purposes.

On December 14, 2006, the Village of Weston, Wisconsin, issued $22.0 million of 3.85% Potlution Cantrol
Refunding Revenue Bonds and loaned the praceeds from the sale of the bonds to WPSC. In return,
WPSC issued $22.0 million of 3.95% senior notes, due in 2013, to the Village of Weston. At

December 31, 2006, the $22.0 million of proceeds received from the Village of Weston were classified as
restricted cash. In January 2007, WPSC used the restricted cash to repay the outstanding principal
balance of its 6.90% first morigage bonds which originally were te mature in 2013.

In December 2006, WPSC issued $125.0 million of 5.55% 30-year senior noies. The net proceeds from
the issuance of the saniar notes were used for general corporate utility purposes, including funding
construction costs and capital additions and reducing short-term indebtedness.

On December 1, 2008, Integrys Enargy Group issued $300.0 million of junior subordinated notes.

Interest has been fixed at 6.22% through the use of farward-starting interest rate swaps. For more
information on the junior subordinated notes, see Nate 14, "Long-Term Debt."
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In November 2005, integrys Energy Group entered into a forward equity sale agreement with an affiliate
of J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc., as forward purchaser, relating to 2.7 million shares of Integrys Energy
Group's commeon stock. On May 10, 2006, Integrys Energy Group physically settled the farward equity
agreement by issuing 2.7 million shares of common stock, and received proceeds of $139.8 million. The
proceeds were used to pay down commercial paper borrowings.

In Novernber 2005, Integrys Energy Group issued and sold 1.9 million shares of cornmon stack at a
public offering price of $53.70 per share. The proceeds of $58.3 million, net of underwriting discounts
and commissions, were used to reduce short-term debt and fund equity contributions to subsidiary
companies.

In June 2005, $62.9 million of non-recourse debt at an Integrys Energy Services subsidiary that was used
to finance the purchase of Sunbury was restructured to a five-year Integrys Energy Group obligation in
connection with the sale of Sunbury's allocated emission allowances. An additional $2.7 million drawn on
a line of credit at Integrys Energy Services was rolled into the five-year Integrys Energy Group obligation.
The floating interest rate on the total five-year Integrys Energy Group obligation of $85.6 million was fixed
at 4.525% through two interest rate swaps.

Credit Ratings

Integrys Energy Group uses internally generated funds and commercial paper borrowings to satisfy most
of its capital requirements. Integrys Energy Group also pericdically issues long-term debt and common
stock to reduce short-term debt, maintain desired capitalization ratics, and fund future growth. Integrys
Energy Group may seek nonrecourse financing for funding nonregulated acquisitions. Integrys Energy
Group's commercial paper borrowing program provides for working capital requirements of the
nonreguiated businesses, PEC, UPPCO, MGUC, and MERC. WPSC and PGL have their cwn
commercial paper borrowing programs. NSG provides for its working capital needs through
inter-company borrowings. WPSC pariodically issues long-ierm debt, receives equity contributions from
Integrys Energy Group, and makes payments for returns of capital to Integrys Energy Group to reduce
short-term debf, fund future growth, and maintain capitalization ratios as authorized by the PSCW. PGL
and NSG pericdically issue long-term debt in order to reduce short-term debt, refinance maturing
securities, maintain desired capitalization ratios, and fund future growth. The specific forms of long-term
financing, amounts, and timing depend on business needs, market conditions, and other factars.
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The current credit ratings for Integrys Energy Group, WPSC, PEC, PGL, and NSG are listed in the table
below.

Credit Ratings Standard & Poor's Moody's
integrys Energy Group
Issuer credit rating A- n/a
Senior unsecured debt BBE+ A3
Commercial paper A-2 P.2
Credit facility n/a A3
Junior subordinated notes BBB Baa
WERSC
Issuer credit rating A Al
First morigage bonds A+ Aa3
Senior secured debt A Aal
Preferred stock BBB+ A3
Commercial paper A-2 P-1
Credit facility n/a A1
PEC
Issuer credit rating A- nfa
Senior unsecured debt BBE+ A3
PGL
Issuer credit rating A- n/a
Senior secured debt A- Al
Commercial paper A-2 P
NSG
Issuer credit rating A- nfa
Senior secured debt A Al

We believe these ratings continue to be among the best in the energy industry and allow us to access
commercial paper and long-term debt markets on favorabie terms. Credit ratings are not
recommendations to buy and are subject to change, and each rating should be evaluated independently
of any other rating.

in December 2007, Standard & Poor's and Moody's withdrew the ratings assigned to PEC's commercial
paper at the request of tntegrys Energy Group.

On November 13, 2007, Standard & Poor's revised the outlock on Integrys Energy Group and all of its
subsidiaries to stable from negative. Standard & Poor's outicok had been negative since February 21,
2007 for all Integrys Energy Group companies, as discussed below. The revised outlook reflects Integrys
Energy Group's progress to improve its finanzial position and business profiles since its one-noich
downgrade on February 21, 2007. On November 13, 2007, Standard & Poor's also reaffirmed its A rating
on WPSC's senior secured debt.

On Sepiember 6, 2007, Standard & Poors raised the senior secured debt for NSG one notech from A- to
A. The new rating was the result of a review and changes made to the collateral coverage requirements
Standard and Poor's uses when assigning recovery ratings to United States Utility First Mortgage Bonds.

On February 21, 2007, Stendard & Poor's lowered the corporats credit rating on Integrys Energy Group o
A-from A and removed it from CreditWatch with negative implications. Standard & Poor's also lowered
Integrys Energy Group's unsecured ratings to BBB+ from A and all other issue-specific ratings by one
noteh. Standard & Poor's stated that the ratings actions were due to concerns related ta plans to expand
its energy marketing business, the dividend requirements resulting from the PEC merger, moderate
capital expenditure requirements, lower than expected performance at MGUC and MERC, uncertainty
regarding future rate relief, and full integration of the newly acquired PEC utilities. At the same time,
Standard & Poor's lowered all WPSC's issue-gpecific ratings by ong notch as they stated "WPSC's
liquidity is being pressured by its ongoing construction program.” Standard & FPoor's affirmed all PEC,
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PGL, and NSG ratings. Standard & Poor's outlook for all Integrys Energy Group related companies was
negative pending successful integration of recent acquisitions.

On February 21, 2007, Moady's downgraded the senior unsecured rating of Integrys Energy Group to A3
from A1, the bank credit facility to A3 from A1, the commercial paper rating to Prime-2 from Prime-1, and
the junior subordinated nates to Baal from A2. Moody's also downgraded WPSC's senior secured rating
to Aa3 from Aa2, its senior unsecured bank cradit facility to A1 from Aa3, and its preferred stock to A3
from A2 and confirmed WPSC's commercial paper rating at Prime-1. At the same tima, Moody's affirmed
the ratings of PGL and NSG. Moody's actions {o downgrade were due to concerns about increases in
Integrys Energy Group's consolidated debt levels and business risk profile evidenced by the increased
scale and scope of the post merger non-regulated energy marketing business plus the entry into the
historically more challenging regulatory jurisdiction of llinois. Moody's outlook for all Integrys Energy
Group related companies is stable.

On February 21, 2007, Moody's also upgraded the senior unsecured rating of PEC to A3 from Baaz,
conforming it with those of Integrys Ensrgy Group, and affirmed all other ratings for PEC. Moody's
actions to upgrade the senior unsecured rating were tue to the expected business risk improvemant from
the merger with Integrys Energy Group, which resulted in the sale of PEP and transfemed PEC's energy
and marketing business to Integrys Energy Services, leaving PEC hoiding only the two regulated
subsidiaries, PGL and NSG. In addition, the upgrade reflects Integrys Energy Group's guaranty of the
$325.0 million of PEC 6.90% notas due in 2011.

Discontinuad Operations

Net cash provided by discontinued operations was $690.2 million in 2007 and $61.0 million in 2006. The
increase in net cash provided by discontinued operations was driven by approximately $879.1 million of
proceeds received from the sale of PEP in the third quarter of 2007. Post-closing adjustments in the
amount of $9.9 million were setiled in February 2008 related to this sale, which reduced the sale price to
$869.2 million. These post-closing adjustments were funded through other current liabilitias at
December 31, 2007 and, therefore, are included in Note 1(d), "Cash and Cash Equivalents," as a
non-cash transaction.

Net cash provided by discontinued operations was $61.0 million in 2006 and $59.1 million in 2005. The
increase in cash provided by discontinued operations in 2006 was driven by a decrease in cash paid for
emission allowances required to operate Sunbury in 2006, comparad with 2005 (substantially all of the
emission allowances required to operate Sunbury through the 2006 sale were purchased in 2005), and by
the $33.6 million of proceeds received from the sale of Sunbury in 2006. Thess increases were partially
offset by $110.9 million of proceads received from the sale of Sunbury's allocated emission allowances in
2005 (which was partially offset by income taxes paid related to the gain on the sale of these emission
allowances).
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Futura Gapital Requirements and Resources
Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes the contractual obligations of infegrys Energy Group, including its
subsidiaries.

Contractual Qbligations Total Payments Due By Period
Asg of December 31, 2007 Amounts 2013 and
(Millions) Committed 2008 20092010 2011-2012  Thereaftar
Long-term debt principal and intergst

payments®™ $ 36422 $ 1885 $ 5222 3 9106 $2.0229
Operating lease obligations 43.7 8.3 13.4 124 9.6
Commadity purchage obligations™ 6,986.7 33528 2,1028 7847 746.6
Purchase orders® 349.1 336.1 0.4 25 1.1
QOthar @ 378.5 721 79.9 40.0 1876
Total contractual cash obligations $11,401.2 $3,955.8 52,7278 $1,760.2 $2,967.8

™ Rapresents bonds issued, natas issued, and loans mada to Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries, Al
pringipal obligations are recorded on the Consolidated Baiance Sheet  For purposes of this table, itls
assumed that the interest rates on variable rate debt at December 31, 2007 will remain in effect until the
debt matures.

@ Energy supply contracts at Integrys Energy Services includad as part of commadity purchase obligations are
generally entered into to meet cbligations to defliver energy to customers. WPSC, UPPCO, MGUC, MERG, PGL,
and NSG expect to recover the costs of their contracts in future customer rates.

 Includes obligations related to normal business operations and large construction obligations, including 100% of
Weston 4 obligations. The sale of a 30% interest in Weston 4 to DPC was completed in November 2005, but
WPSC retains the |egal obligation o initially remit payment to third parties for 100% of all construction costs
incurred, 30% of which will subsequently be bilied to DPC.

“ Mainly represents expected pension and postretirement funding obligations.

The table above does not reflect any payments refated o the manufactured gas plant remediation liability
of $704.2 million at December 31, 2007, as the amouni and timing of payments are uncertain. See

Note 17,"Commitrnents and Comingencies," for more informsation about environmental liabilities. Also,
the table doss not reflact any payments for our liability at December 31, 2007, for unrecognized tax
benefits. See Note 16, "Income Taxes," for more information about this liability.
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Capital Requirements

Estimated construction expendituras by company for the three-year period 2008 through 2010 are as
follows:

{Mitlions)
WPSC
Environmental projects $ 3004
Wind generation projects 252.0
Electric and natural gas distribution projects 223.2
Natural gas laterals 1o cannect to Guardian pipeline 65.4
Weston 4 " 18.9
Other projects 131.9
UPPCO
Electric distribution projects and repairs and safety measures
at hydroelectric facilities 54.4
MGUC
Matural gas pipe distribution system and underground natural
gas storage facilities 219
MERC
Natural gas pipe distribution system 50.1
PGL
Natural gas pipe distribution system and underground natural
gas storage facilities @ 4510
NSG
Matural gas pipe distribution system 30.5
integrys Energy Services
Miscellaneous projects and landfill natural gas project 222
IBS
Cotporate services infrastructure projects 80.3
Total capital expenditures $1,702.2

) s of December 31, 2007, WPSC has incurred a total cost of approximately $516 million related to its ownership
interest in the project. WPSC has incurred approximately $77 million and expects to incur an additional $16 million
related to the construction of the transmissian facilities required to support Weston 4. ATC will reimburse WPSC
for these transmission facilities and related carrving costs (approximately $8 million in camrying costs) when
Waston 4 becomes operafional. VWeston 4 is scheduled to be placed in service in the first quarber of 2008.

@ Includes approximatety $100 million of expenditures related 1o the accelerated replacement of cast iron mains at
PGL. The expenditures wera initially included in a request for recaovery in 2 rider to PGL's rate case; howaver, the
ICC rejected the rider. The company is investigating alternative recovery options. See Note 23, "Regufatory
Environment,” for more information on the PGL rate case.

Integrys Energy Group expects to provide additional capital contributions to ATC {not included in the
above table) of approximately $47 million for the period 2008 through 2010.

All projected capital and investment expenditures are subject to periodic review and revision and may
vary significantly from the estimates depending on a number of factors, including, but not limited to,
industry restructuring, regulatory constraints, acquisition opportunities, market volatility, and economic
trends. Other capital expenditures for Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries for 2008 through 2010
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could be significant depending an its success in pursuing developmant and acquisition opportunities.
When appropriate, Integrys Energy Group may seek nonrecourse financing for a portion of the cost of
these acquisitions.

Capital Rasources

As of December 31, 2007, integrys Energy Group and each of its subsidiaries were in compliance with afi
of their respective covenants under thair lines of credit and other debt obligations.

For the period 2008 through 2010, Integrys Energy Group plans to use intemally generated funds net of
forecasted dividend payments, cash proceeds from asset sales, and debt and equity financings to fund
capital requirements. Integrys Energy Group plans to maintain current debt to equity ratios at appropriate
ievels to support current cradit ratings and corparate growth. Management believes Integrys Energy
Group has adenuate financial flexibifity and resources to meet its future needs.

See Note 13, "Short-Term Debt and Lines of Credit,” for more information on our credit facilities and other
short-term credit agreements.

In April 2008, Integrys Energy Group filed a shelf registration under the new SEC securities offering
reform rules for the ability to issue debt, equity, and certain types of hybrid securities. This shelf
registration statement inciudes the unused capacity remaining under Intagrys Energy Group's prior
registration statement. Specific terms and conditions of securities issued will be determined prior to the
actual issuance of any specific security. Under the new SEC securities offering reform rules, Intsgrys
Energy Group will be able to issue securities under this registration statement for three years. Integrys
Energy Group's Board of Directors has authorized issuance of up to $700 million of equity, debt, ar other
securities under this shelf registration statement, $300 millian of which was used in December 2008 when
Integrys Energy Group issued junior subordinated notes,

In May 2004, WPSC filed a shelf registration with tha SEC autharizing the issuance of up to $350 million
of senior debt securities. WPSC issued $125 million of senior debt securities under this registration
statement in December 2006 and an additional $1256 million of senior debt securities under this
registration statement in November 2007, leaving existing capacity under the regisfration statement of
$100 million as of December 31, 2007.

Other Future Considerations
Asset Managemant Strategy

Integrys Energy Group continues to pursue alternatives for the sale of the balance of its identified real
estate holdings no longer needed for operation.

Reguiatory Matters and Rafe Trends

To mitigate the volatility of eleciric fuel generation and purchased power costs in 2008 and heyond,
WPSC is employing risk management technigues pursuant to its PSCW approved Risk Plan and Policy,
including the use of derivative instruments such as fufures and options.,

In WPSC's retail electric rate case proceeding for 2008, the PSCW applied a "financial hamm” test when
eonsidering the rate recovery of certain costs previously authorized for deferred accounting treatment.
The PSCW has not applied a financial harm test previously when considering the rate recovery of costs
that were previously authorized for deferral. In WPSC's rate case proceeding for 2008, after applying the
financial harm test, the PSCW disallowed rate recavery of the 2004 extended outage at Kewaunee. The
PSCW also disallowed recovery of 50% of the pre-tax loss rsalized on the sale of Kewaunea. Nane of
these disallowed costs were found to be imprudent by the PSCW. Notwithstanding the PSCW's decision
on thesa Kewaunee retated deferred costs, WPSC slill believes it is probable that all regulatory assets
recorded at December 31, 2007, will be collected from ratepayers.
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Forecasting and monitoring of fuel costs have become extremely difficult for both the PSCW and WPSC.
These challenges can be attributed to the implementation of the MISO Day 2 market and volatility in
natural gas prices. In 2005, the PSCW received several applications from various Wisconsin electric
utilities under the PSCW Chapter 116 fuel rules for large rate increases due to increased naturai gas
prices. In response, on February 7, 2006, the PSCW opened Docket 01-AC-224 to review the fuel rules.
Cn February 1, 2007, the five utiliies subject to the current fuel rules filed proposed changes to the fuel
rules with the PSCW. The primary proposed change was to replace the trigger mechanism with a true
"dead band" of 1%, which would limit a utility's annual exposure or opportunity to a maximum of 1% of
fue! costs. On May 3, 2007, the PSCW directed staff to prepare a draft rule revision to PSCW Chapter
116 fuel rules incorporating many of the components of the utilities' proposal, with a 2% bandwidth as
opposed to the 1% bandwidth recommended by the utilities. The PSCW staff circulated a draft rule to
that effect and the parties have commented on the draft rule. The draft rule is currently awaiting PSCW
action.

Far a discussion of regulatory filings and decisions, see Note 23, "Regulatory Environment.”

See Note 9, "Regufatory Assels and Liabilities,"” for a list of regulatory assets and lizbilities recorded at
December 31, 2007.

Natural Gas Charge Reconciliation Proceedings and Related Matters

For the Integrys Energy Group regulated retail gas operations, the ICC, PSCW, MPUC, and MPSC
conduct annual proceedings regarding the reconciliation of revenues from the Gas Charge and related
gas costs. In these proceedings, the accuracy of the reconciliation of revenues and costs is reviewed and
the prudence of gas costs recovered ihrough the Gas Charpge is examined by interested parties.

For additional information on the Gas Charge Reconciliation Proceedings and Related Matters, see
Note 17, "Commitrnenis and Contingencies."

Industry Restructuring
-lllinois-

The llincis Attorney General filed a complaint at FERC on March 15, 2007, against 15 power genarators
and suppliers that won coniracts in the auction to supply Commonwealth Edison and the three Ameren
utilities. Integrys Energy Services was named in the complaint because it won three tranches of
approximately 50 megawafts each in the auction. On August 28, 2007, the Aftorney General filed a
motion to voluntarily dismiss the pending action at the FERC with prejudice. The FERC ruled on that
motion and issued an order dismissing the people's claims based on the llinois 2006 power auction "with
prejudice, and terminating the proceeding.”

On the heels of the lllinois Attomey General's complaint filed at FERC, two class action lawsuits were
filed by various ratepayers in Gook County. Those complaints, which essentially mirrored the Attarney
General's complaint, were removed to federal court. Motions to dismiss these cases filed by the
defendants were granted an December 21, 2007, and the cases were dismissed without prejudice.

-Maine-

Integrys Energy Services conlinues to serve ratail customers in both northern and southem Maine by way
of direct customer contracts and Standard Offer Service for a number of utilities. Northern Maine
customers experienced a significant increase in their energy supply rates starting January 1, 2007. This
increase was a result of the competitive bid process conducted in late 2006 whereby Integrys Energy
Services was the successful bidder. Integrys Energy Services is currently petitioning the Maine Public
Utilities Commission for rate relief as a result of market rule changes in the northern Maine market.
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These changes are a part of bidder conditions for the utility Standard Offer Service (default service) that
was included in Integrys Energy Servicas' bid in late 2006.

The legislature is back in session and there are a few bills that will be of interest to Integrys Energy
Services, ranging from the creation of a Northem Maine Power Authority, changes/enhancements to
transmission investment, encouragement of wind development, and different levels of re-regulation.

New Renewable Portfelio Standard requirements are in effect for the state of Maine. The new standard
will cause Competitive Electric Providers to acquire 10% of new renewable generation by 2017. As part
of its obligations as an active Competitive Electricity Provider in Maine, Integrys Energy Services is
warking to meet this obligation with qualifisd generators,

Seams Elimination Charge Adjustment

For a discussion of SECA, see Note 23, "Reguiatary Environment."
Income Taxes

-Michigan Taxes-

On July 12, 2007, the Michigan Govermor signed legislation that replaced the Single Business Tax with an
effective date of January 1, 2008. On September 30, 2007, the Michigan legislature passed, and the
govarnar signed into law, a "SFAS No. 108" amendment to the new Michigan Business Tax (MBT),
providing a future tax deduction for existing hook-tax differences. This legislation allows companies ta
recard a state deferred tax asset for this future tax deduction, which offsets the state deferred tax liability
recorded in the third quarter of 2007 for this new MBT.

On September 30, 2007, the Michigan legislature passed a bill that will expand the state's 6% sales tax to
additional services. The Governor signed the legislation on September 30, 2007. On December 1, 2007,
the Governor signed legislation that would repeal the previous expansion of the state's sales tax. The
same legislation added an annual surcharge to taxpayer's MBT lability. These new provisions discussed
above are effective as of January 1, 2008, at which time we began recording the effects oh current
earnings.

Environmental

See Note 17, "Comunitments and Contingencies,” for a detailed discussion of environmental
considerations.

Wisconsin Energy Efficiency and Renewables Act

In March 2006, Wisconsin's Governor signed 2008 Wisconsin Act 141 (2005 Senate Bill 459), the Energy
Efficiency and Renewables Act, which requires Wisconsin electric providers fo increase the amount of
renawable electricity they sell by 2% above their current level before 2010 and 6% above their current
level by 2015. The goal is to have 10% of the state's electricity generated from renewable sources by
2015, which is intended to increase the use of renewable energy in Wisconsin, promote the development
of renewable energy technologies, and strengthen the state's energy efficiency programs. As of
December 31, 2007, approximately 4% of Integrys Energy Group's generation in Wisconsin is from
renewable sources. Integrys Energy Group continuously evaluates altemnatives for cost affective
renewable energy sources and will secure reliable and efficient renewable energy sources to meet both
requirements by their respective dates, Currently, WPSC is negotiating a transaction to purchase a
99-megawatt wind generation project, to be constructed in Howard County, lowa. An agreement with the
counterparty is anticipated to be reached in the first quarter of 2008.
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Michigan 21% Century Energy Flan

On January 31, 2007, the MPSC Chairman presented the "21* Century Energy Plan" to Michigan's
Governor. The plan recognizes the increased need for energy in tha next 20 years. The plan proposes
an alternative method of receiving pre-construction approval for significant generating plant additions
versus the alternative of building a generation plant and then seeking appraval for recovery of costs, The
plan calls for [egislaticn to implement a 10% renawable energy partfolic standard by 2015 as well as a
statewide energy efficiency program. Discussions have maved to the legislature and several bills have
been introduced, though none have been enacted at this time.

Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator

WESC, UPPCO, and Integrys Energy Setvices are members of the MISO, which operates a financial and
physical electric wholesale market in the Midwest. The market pricing is based on a locational marginal
pricing system. MISO participants offer their generation and bid their customer load into the market on an
hourly basis and on a day ahead basis. This results in net receipts from, or net obligations to, MISOQ for
each hour of each day. MISO aggregates these hourly transactions and provides bi-weekly settlement
statements. These disputable settlements have an adjustment paricd based on the subsequent data
which may require billing adjustments resulting in increases or decreases to the net MISQ raceipt or
obligation. For WPSC and UPPCO, it is anticipated that the billing adjustments will be recovered through
the state rate recovery process.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1(v), "New Accounting Pronouncements,” for a detailed discussion of new accounting
pronouncements.

GUARANTEES AND OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

See Note 18, "Guaranfees, " for information regarding guarantees.
MARKET PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

Market price risk management activities include the electric and natural gas marketing and related risk
management activities of integrys Energy Services, along with oil options used to mitigate the risk of an
increase in oil prices. Integrys Energy Services' marketing and trading operations manage alectricity and
natural gas procurement as an integrated portfolio with its retail and wholesale sales commitments.
Derivative instruments are utilized in these aperations.

Integrys Energy Services measures the fair value of derivative instruments an a mark-to-market basis.
The fair value is included in assets or liabilities from risk management activities on Integrys Energy
Group's Consolidated Balance Sheet, with an offsetting entry to other comprehensive income (for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges) or to earnings. The following table provides an assessment of the
factors impacting the change in the net value of Integrys Energy Services' assets and liabiliies from risk
management activities for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Integrys Energy Services

Mark-to-Market Roll Forward Qi
{Miilions) Options Natural Gas Electric Total
Fair value of contracts at December 31, 2008™ $(4.7) $105.2 $ 7.1 $107.6
Plus: Contracts assumed in the merger with PEC - 6.9 0.5 7.4
Less: Contracts realized or settled during period® 4.7 1208 (38.8) 771
Plus: Changes in fair value of contracts in existence at

December 31, 2007% {0.2) 98.0 1.9 99.7
Fair value of cantracts at December 31, 2007" $(0.2) $ 89.5 $48.3 $137.6
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M Reftects the values reported on tha halance shest for net mark-to-market current and long-term risk management
assets and lisbilities as of those dates.

@ ncludes the value of coniracts in existence at December 31, 2008, that wera na longer included in the net
mark-to-market assets as of Decambar 31, 2007, along with the amortization of contracts originally accounted for
as derivatives and later designated as normmatl purchases and sales under SFAS No. 133.

 Includes unrealized gains and losses on contracts that existad at Dacamber 31, 2006, and contracts that were
enfered into subsequent to Dacember 31, 2008, which are included in Integrys Energy Servicas' portfolio at
December 31, 2007, as well ag gains and losses at the inception of contracts when a liquid market exists.

There were, in many cases, offsetting positions entered into and settled during the period resulting in
gains or losses being realized during the current period. The realized gains or losses from these
offsetting positions are not refiected in the table above.

Market quotes are more readily available for short duration contracts (generally for contracts with a
duration of less than five years). The table below shows the sources of fair value and maturities of
Integrys Energy Services’ risk management instruments.

Integrys Energy Services
Risk Management Confract Aging at Fair Value
As of December 31, 2007 {(Millions)

Maturity  Maturity Maturity  Maturity Total

Less Than 1t03 4t05 in Excess Fair
Source of Fair Value 1 Year Years Years of § years Value
Pricas actively quoted'’ $37.2 $30.8 $10.8 $ - $ 78.8
Prices provided by external sources® 7.5 36.9 3.0 - 47 4
Prices based on models and other
valuation methods - - - 11.4 11.4
Total fair value $44.7 $67.7 $13.8 $11.4 $137.6

W Includes axchange-traded contracts such as NYMEX and ICE contracts and basis swaps.

@ Jnciudes slectric and natu ral gas contract positions for which priging information, used by Integrys Energy Services
to calculate fair value, is abtained primarily through broker quotes and cther publicly available saurces.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

integrys Energy Group has identifizd the following accounting policies to be critical to the understanding
of our financial statements because their application requires significant judgment and refiance on
estimations of matters thal are inherently uncertain. Integrys Energy Group's management has discussed
these critical accounting policies with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors,

Risk Managament Activities

Integrys Energy Group has entered into contracts that are accounted for as derivatives under the
provisions of SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," as amended.
At December 31, 2007, those derivatives not designated as hedges are primarily commedity contracts
used to manage price risk associated with natural gas and electricity purchase and sale activities. The
utilities defer the effects of mark-to-market accounting for most energy-related derivatives as regulatory
assets or liahilities, pursuant to SFAS No. 71. In addition, Integrys Energy Group may apply the normal
purchases and sales exception, provided by SFAS No. 133, as amended, o certain derivative contracts.
The normal purchases and sales exception provides that recognition of gains and losses in the
consolidated financial statements is not required until the settlement of the contracts.
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Cash flow hedge accounting treatment may be used when Integrys Energy Group enters contracts to buy
or sell a commaodity at a fixed price for future delivery to protect future cash fiows corresponding with
anticipated physical sales or purchases. Fair value hedge accounting may be used when integrys Energy
Group holds assats or firm cammitments and enters into transactions that hedge the risk that the price of
a commadity may change between the contract's inception and the physical delivery date of the
commodity. To the extent that the hedging instrument is fully effective in offsetting the transaction being
hedged, there is no impact on income available for common shareholders prior to settlement of the
hedge.

Derivative contracts that are determined to fall within the scope of SFAS No. 133, as amended, are
recorded at fair value on the Cansolidated Balance Sheets of integrys Energy Group. Changes in fair
value, excepl those related fo derivative instruments designated as cash fiow hedges or qualifying for
regulatory deferral, are generally included in the determination of income available for common
shareholders at each financial reporting date until the contracts are utimately settled. When available,
yuoted market prices are used to determine a contract's fair value. If no active trading market exists for a
commodity or for a contract's duration, fair value is estimated through the use of internally developed
valuation techniques ar models using extemal information wherever possible. Such estimates require
significant judgment as to assumptions and valuation methodalogies deemed appropriate by Integrys
Energy Group's manegement. Like most commeodity markets, after some length of time, markets for
natural gas and power become relatively illiquid, making it difficult to obtain reliable price information.

As a component of the fair value determination, Integrys Energy Group considers the requirements to
service certain of its contracts as well as counterparty credit risk and liquidity risk. This component of the
fair value determinatian is espscially subjective because limited liquid market information is available.
tnder SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements,” heginning January 1, 2008, Integrys Energy Services
will no longer include transaction costs in these fair value determinations. See Note 1(v), "Mew
Accounting Pronouncements,” for more information on this topic. The effect of changing the underlying
assumptions for this component of fair value at December 31, 2007, is as follows:

Effect on Fair Value of Net Risk
Management Assets at December 31, 2007

Change in Component (Miillons)
100% increase - $27.1 decrease
50% decrease $13.5 increase

These potential changes in fair value would be included in current and long-term liabilities from risk
management activities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and as part of nonregulated revenue on the
Consolidated Statements of Income, unless the related contracts are designated as cash flow hedges, in
which case potential changes would be included in Other Comprahensive Income - Cash Flow Hedges on
the Consolidated Statements of Commeon Sharehoiders' Equity.

Purchase Accounting

The merger with PEC in 2007, as well as the acquisitions of natural gas distribution operations in
Michigan and Minnesota in 2006, were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in
accordance with SFAS No. 141, "Business Combinations”. Under this statement, the purchase price paid
by the acquirar, including transaction costs, is allocated to the assets and Kabilities acquired as of the
acquisition date based con thair fair valuas. The per share fair value of the common stock issued by
integrys Energy Group for the acquisition of PEC was determined by using the average market value of
Integrys Energy Group's common stock over a five-day period, beginning two days before the
announcement date of the merger. As integrys Energy Group announced its intent to sell PEP at the time
of the closing of the merger, the PEP assets and liabilities were reported at estimated fair value less costs
to sell.

Management makes estimates of fair value based upon historical experience and information obtained
from the management of the acquired company. Assumptions may be incomplets, and unanticipated
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events and circumstances may occur which may affect the validity of such assumptions, estimates, or
actual results. As discussed below within "Asset Impairment,” a significant amount of goodwill resulted
from these agguisitions, which requires impairment testing on at least an annual basis.

In conjunction with the PEC merger, the most significant fair value adjustments related io nonderivative
commadify contracts and customer relationships, which were recorded as intangible assets at Integrys
Energy Services. The intangible asset related to the contracts is being amortized into eamnings as the
contracts settle, and the intangihle asset related to customer relationships is being amortized over the
estimated lives of those relationships. The amortization of these items had a negalive impact on eamings
in 2008,

PGL, NSG, MGUC, and MERC are predominantly regulated utilities; therefore, in accordance with SFAS
No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Cedain Types of Regulation,” the fair value of tha majority of their
assets and liabilities did not change significantly as a result of applying purchase accounting.

Environmental Activities Relating to Former Manufactured Gas Operatlons

Integrys Energy Group's utility subsidiaries, their predecessors, and certain former affiliates operated
facilities in the past at multiple sites for the purpose of manufacturing gas and storing manufactured gas
{manufactured gas sites). The utility subsidiaries ara accruing and deferring the costs they incur in
connection with environmantal activities at the manufactured gas sites pending recovery through rates or
fram other entities. The amounts deferred include costs incurred but not yet recovered through rates and
management's best estimates of the costs that the utilities will incur in investigating and remediating the
manufactured gas sites, Management's estimates are based upon a probabilistic mode! and an ongaing
review by management of future investigative and remedial costs.

Integrys Energy Group considers this policy critical due fo the substantial uncertainty in the estimation of
future costs with respect to the amount and timing of costs, and the extent of recovery from cther
potential responsible parties. (See Note 17, "Commitments and Contingencies™ for further discussion of
gnvironmental matters).

Asset Impairment

Integrys Energy Group annually reviews its assets for impairment. SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the
Impairment and Disposal of Long-Lived Assets," and SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assetg,” form the basis for these analyses.

WPSC recorded goodwill of $36.4 million in its natural gas utility segmant resulting from the Wisconsin
Fuel and Light acquisition in 2001. In 2008, Integrys Energy Group recorded $267.0 million of goodwill in
conjunction with the acquisition of the natural gas distribution operations in Michigan and Minnesota. In
2007, £644.9 million of goodwill attributable to the PEC merger was recorded. The goodwill for each of
our reporting units is tested for impairment annually or whan events or circumstances warrant based on
the guidance of SFAS No. 142. The test for impairment includes estimating the fair market value of each
reporting unit using assumptions about future profitability of the reporting units. A significant decrease in
markst values and/or projected future cash flows could result in an impairment loss.

The review for impairment of tangible assets is mora critical to Integrys Energy Services than to our other
segments because of its significant investment in property, plant, and equipment and lack of access ta
rate setting based on cost of sepvice that is available to our regulated segments. At December 31, 2007,
the carrying value of Integrys Energy Services' property, plant, and equipment totaled $140.1 million,
Integrys Energy Group believas that the accounting estimate related to asset impairment of power plants
is a "critical accounting estimate” because: (1) the estimate is susceptible to change from period to
period because it requires management to make assumptions about future market sales pricing,
praduction costs, capital expenditures, and generation volumes and (2) the impact of recognizing an
impairment could be materia! to our financial position or results of operations. Management's
assumptions about future slectricity and capacity prices and generation volumes require significant
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judgment because actual prices and generation volumes have fluctuated in the past as a result of
changing fuel costs, environmental changes, and required plant maintenance and are expected ta
continue to do so in the future.

The primary estimates used at Integrys Energy Services in the impairment analysas are future revenue
streams and operating costs. A combination of inputs from both internal and extemal sourcas is used to
project revenue streams. Integrys Energy Services forecasts future operating costs with input from
external sources for fuel costs and forward energy prices. These estimates are modeled over the
projected remaining life of the power plants using the methodology defined in SFAS No. 144. Integrys
Energy Services evaluates property, plant, and equipment for impairment whenever indicators of
impairment exist. These indicators include a significant underperformance of the assets relative to
historical ar projected future operating resuits, a significant change in the use of the assets or business
strategy related to such assets, and significant negative industry or economic trends. SFAS No. 144
requires that if the sum of the undiscounted axpected future cash flows from a company's asset is less
than the carrying value of the asset, an asset impairment must be recognized in the financial statements.
For assets held for sale, impairment charges are recorded if the camying value of such assets exceeds
the estimated fair value less costs to sell. The amount of impairment recognized is calculated by
reducing tha carying value of the asset to its fair value (or fair value less costs to sall if held for sale).

Throughout 2007, Integrys Energy Services tested various power plants for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicated that their carrying amount might not be recoverable. No
impairment charges were recorded in 2007 as a result of the recoverability tests. Results of past
impairment tests may not necessarily be an indicator of future results given the nature of the accounting
estimates involved, as discussed more fully above. Changes in actual results or agsumptions could result
in an impairment.

Receivables and Reserves

Our regulated natural gas and electric utilities and Integrys Energy Services accrue estimated amounts of
revenue for services rendered but not yet billed, Estimated unbilled sales are calculated using actual
ganeration and throughput volumes, recorded sales, and weather factors. The estimated unbilled sales
are assigned different rates based on historical customer class allocations. At December 31, 2007 and
20086, Integrys Energy Group's unbilled revenues were $464.7 million and $184.8 million, respectively.
Any difference between actual sales and the estimates are recorded in revenue in the next period.
Differences historically have not been significant.

Integrys Energy Services, UPPCO, MERC, MGUC, PGL, and NSG record reserves for potential
uncollectible customer accounts as an expense on the income statement and an uncollectible reserve on
the balance sheet. WPSC, however, records a regulatory asset to offset its uncoliectible reserve. The
resetve is most critical to PGL because their accounts receivables have higher credit risk and are
sensitive to the price of natural gas, and to Integrys Energy Services because their receivables comprise
the majority of the total. PGL's reserve for uncollectible accounts reflects its best estimates of probable
losses on the accounts receivable balances. The reserve is based on known troubled accounts, hislorical
experience, and other currently available evidence. Pravisions for bad debt expense are affected by
thanges in various factors, including the impacts of natural gas prices and weather, Each quarter, PGL
evaluates the adequacy of the reserve for uncollectible accounts based on the most current available
information and adjusts the reserve for changes in estimated probable accounts receivable losses.
Integrys Energy Services calculates the reserve for potential uncollectible customer receivable balances
by applying an estimated bad debt experience rate to each past due aging category and reserving for
100% of specific customer receivable balances deemed to be uncollectible. The basis for calculating the
reserve for receivables from wholesale counterparties considers netting agreements, collateral, and
guarantees. If the assumption that historical uncollectible experiance matches current customer default is
incorrect, or if a specific customer with a large account receivable that has not previously been identified
as a risk defaults, there could be significant changes to the expense and uncollectible reserve balance.
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Pension and Poastretirament Benefits

The costs of providing non-contributory defined benefit pension benefits and other postretirement
benefits, described in Note 18, "Employee Banefit Plans,” are dependent upon numerous factors resulting
from actual plan experience and assumptions regarding future axperience.

Pension and oiher postretirement benefit cosis are impecied by actual employee demographics (inciuding
age, compensation levals, and employment periods), the level of contributions made to the plans, and
aarnings an plan assets. Pension and other postretirement benefit costs may be significantly affected by
changes in key actuarial assumptions, including anticipated rates of return on plan assets, discount rates
used in determining the projected pension and other postretirement benefit obligations and pension and
other postretirement benefit costs, and health care cost trends. Changes made to the plan provisions
may also impact current and future pension and other postretirement benefit costs.

Integrys Energy Group's pension and other postretirement benefit plan assets are primarily made up of
equity and fixed income investments. Fluctuations in actual equity market returns, as well as changes in
general interest rates, may result in increased or decreased benefit costs in future periods. Management
believes that such changes in costs would be recovered at our regulated segments through the
ratemaking process.

The following chart shows how a given change in certain actuarial assumptions would impact the
projected benefit obligation and the reported annuat pension cost on the income statement. Each factor
beiow reflects an evaluation of the change based on a change in that assumption only.

impact on

Percent Projected Impact on
Actuarial Assumption Change in Benefit Pension
(Millions, except percentages) Assumption Ohligation Cost
Discount rate (0.5) $66.3 $2.4
Discount rate 0.5 {61.8) {3.6)
Rate of return on plan assets (0.5) NIA 52
Rate of return on plan assets 0.5 N/A {5.2)

The following chart shows how a given change in certain actuarial assumptions would impact the
accumuiated cther postretirement bensfit cbligation and the reported annual other postretirement banefit
cost on the income statement. Each factor below refiects an evaluation of the changs based on a change
in that assumption only.

Impact on

Percent Postretirement Impact on
Actuarial Assumption Change in Benefit Postretirement
{Miliions, except percentages) Assumption QObligation Benefit Cost
Discount rate {0.5) $24.8 §2.3
Discount rate 05 (22.8) (1.9)
Health care cost trend rate (1.0) (41.1) (6.9)
Health care cost trend rate 1.0 49.7 7.7
Rate of retum on plan assets {0.5) N/A 1.1
Rate of return on plan assets 0.5 N/A {1.1)

Integrys Energy Group utilizes the assistance of its plan actuaries in determining the expected timing of
cash outflows from plan payments. Integrys Energy Group considers bonds, rated by Moody's as "Aa” or
better, when determining the discount rate at the measurement date. Regression analysis is applied to
construct a best-fit curve that makes coupon yields to maturity a function of time to maturity. The pension
or retiree medical cash flows are then matched to the appropriate spot rates and discounted back to the
measurament date. '
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Ta select an assumed long-term rate of return on qualified plan assets, the historical returng and the
future expectations for returns for each asset class are considered, as well as the target allocation of the
benefit trust portfolios. The assumed long-term rate of return was 8.5% in 2007, 2008, and 2005. For
2007, 2006, and 2005, the actual rates of return on pension plan assets, net of fees, were 6.2%, 11.3%,
and 6.9%, respectively.

The determination of expected retum on qualified plan assets is based on a market-related valuation of
assets, which reduces year-to-year volatility. Cumulative gains and losses in excess of 10% of the
greater of the pension banefit obligation or market-related value are amortized over the average
remaining future service to expected retirement ages. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on plan
assets are recognized for purposes of calculating benefit cost over a five-year period. Because of this
methad, the future value of assets will be impacted as praviously deferred gains or losses are recorded.

In selecting assumed health care cost trend rates, past performance and forecasts of health care costs
are considered. More information on haalth care cost trend rates can be found in Note 19, "Employee
Bensfit Plans.”

For a table showing future payments that Integrys Energy Group expects to make for pension and other
postretirement benefits, see Note 19, "Employee Benefit Plans.”

Regulatory Accounting

The electric and natural gas ulility segments of Integrys Energy Group follow SFAS No. 71, "Accounting
for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation,” and our financial statements reflect the effects of the
different ratemaking principles followed by the various jurisdictions regulating these segments. We defer
certain items that would otherwise be immediately recognized as expenses and revenues because our
regulators have authorized defemal of these iters as regulatary assets and regulatory liabiiities for future
recovery or refund to customers. Future recovery of regulatory assets is not assured, but is generaily
subject to review by regulators in rate proceedings for matters such as prudence and reasonableness.
Management reguiarly assesses whether these regulatory assets and liabilities are probable of future
recovery or refund by considering factors such as changes in the regulatory environment, earnings at the
utility segments, and the status of any pending or potential deregulation legislation. Once approved, we
amortize the regulatory assets and liabilities into income over the rate recovery period. If recovery of
costs is not approved oris no longer deemed probable, these ragulatary assets or liabilities are
recognized in current period income.

If our regulated electric and natural gas utility segments wouid no longer meet the criteria for application
of SFAS No. 71, we would discontinue its application as defined under SFAS No. 101, "Regulated
Enterprises - Accounting for the Discontinuation of Application of SFAS No. 71." Assets and liabilities
recognized solely due to the actions of rate regulation would no longer be recognized on the balance
sheet and would be classified as an extraordinary item in income for the period in which the
discontinuation occurred. A write-off of all of Integrys Energy Group's’ regulatory assets and regulatory
liabilities at December 31, 2007, would result in a 11.1% decrease in total assets and a 4.7% decraase in
{otal liabilities.
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Tax Provision

As part of the process of preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements, we are required to estimate
our income taxes for each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves estimating our
actual current tax exposure together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing
treatment of items, such as depreciation, for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in
deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included within our Consolidated Balance Sheet. We must
also assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxabie income and,
to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we must establish a valuation allowance, which is
offset by an adjustment to income tax expense in the income statement. The interprelation of tax laws
involves uncertainty, since tax authorities may interpret them differently. As of January 1, 2007, we
adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, "Accaunting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an
Interpretation of FAS 109." As allowed under Interpretation No. 48, Integrys Energy Group elected to
change its method of accounting to record interest and penalties paid on income tax obligations as a
component of income tax expense.

Significant management judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes, our deferred
tax assets and liabilities, and any valuation allowance recorded against our deferred tax assets. The
assumptions involved are supported by historical data, reasonable projections, and technical
interpretations of applicable tax law and regulation across multiple taxing jurisdictions. Significant
changes in these assumptions could have a material impact on Integrys Energy Group's financiat
condition and results of operations.

IMPACT OF INFLATION

Qur financial statements are preparad in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and report operating results in terms of historic cost. The statements provide a
reasonable, objective, and quantifiable statement of financial results, but they do not evaluate the impact
of inflation. For our ragulated operations, to the extent we are not recovering the effects of inflation, we
will file rate cases as necessary in the various jurisdictions. Our nonregulated businesses include
inflation in forecasted costs. However, any increase from inflation is offset with projected business
growth. Therefore, the estimated effect of inflation on our nonregulated businesses is minor.
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ITEM7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Market Risks and Other Significant Risks

Integrys Energy Group has potantial market risk exposure related to commadity price risk {(including
regulatory recovery risk), interest rate risk, equity retum risk, and principal preservation risk. Integrys
Energy Group is also exposed to other significant risks due to the nature of our subsidiaries’ business and
the environment in which we operate. Integrys Energy Group has risk managermeant policies in place to
monitor and assist n controlling these risks and may use derivative and other insfruments to manage
some of these exposures, as further described below.

Commodity Price Risk and Regulatory Recovery Risk
Lkiilities

The electric utilities of Integrys Energy Group purchase natural gas and coal for use in power generation.
They also purchase power on the MISO market at a price that is often reflective of the underlying cost of
natural gas used in power generation. As a result, the electric utilities are subject to commodity price risk,
which they manage in a number of ways, the primary method being fuel recovery mechanisms reflected
in the rates charged to customers.

Prudent fuel and purchased power costs are recovered from customers under che-for-one recovery
machanisms by UPPCO and by the Michigan retail electric operations and wholesale electric operations
of WPSC. The costs of natural gas used by the natural gas utility subsidiaries are generally also
recoverad from customers under one-for-one recovery mechanisms. Thesa racovery mechanisms greatly
reduce commodity price risk for the utilities.

WPSC's Wisconsin retail electric operations do not have a one-for-one recovery mechanism for price
fluctuations, but annual rate cases have mitigated the year-to-year price risk. For intra-year price risk, a
"fuel window" mechanism is used to recover costs resulting from significant price volatility. Under the fuel
windaw, if actual fuel and purchased power costs deviate by more than 2% (the range for 2007 and
2008), a rate review can be triggered. Once a rate review is triggered, rates may be reset (subject to
PSCW approval) for the remalnder of the ysar to recover, on an annualized basis, the projected increase
in the cost of fuel and purchased power. For 2008, under the order approving the PEC merger, WPSC
was allowed to adjust Wisconsin retail electric rates effective January 1, 2008, subject to the fuel window,
to take into account the impact of natural gas prices on purchased power costs, as well as changes in the
price of coal, rail costs to ship the coal, and natural gas used for fuel. However, for 2008, WPSC was not
allowed to adjust retail electric rates for other changes.

To manage commodity price risk, our regulated utiiities enter into contracts of various durations for the
purchase and/or sale of natural gas, fuel for electric generation, and eleciricity. In additton, the eleciric
operation of WPSC and the natural gas operations of WPSC, PGL, NSG, and MERC are employing risk
management techniques pursuant to the risk policies approved by their respective regulators, which
include the use of derivative instruments such as swaps, futures and options.

Non ed idli

As part of its trading activities, Integrys Energy Services seeks to generate profits from the volatility of the
price of electricity by purchasing or selling various financial and physical instruments (such as forward
contracts, options, financial transmission rights, and capacity contracts) in established wholesale markets
where Integrys Energy Services has markst expartise, under risk management policias set by
management and approved by Integrys Energy Graup's Board of Directors. Integrys Energy Services
also seeks to reduce market price risk and extract additional value from its generation and customer
coniract portfalios through the use of various financial and physical instruments {such as forward
contracts, options, financial transmission rights, and capacity contracts).
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To measure commodity price risk exposure, Integrys Energy Group employs a number of controls and
pracesses, including a value-at-risk (VaR) analysis of its exposures. Integrys Energy Services' VaR
calculation is utilized to quantify exposura to market risk associated with its marketing and trading
portfolio {primarily natural gas and power positions), which includes near-term positions managed under
its asset management sirategy through lolling agreements with the merchant ganerating fleet, but
excludes the long-dated positions created by the merchant generating fleet and associated coal, sulfur
dioxide emission allowances, and other ancillary fuels.

VaR is used to describe a probabilistic approach to quantifying the exposure to market risk. The VaR
amount represents an estimate of the potantial change in fair value that could occur from changes in
market factors, within a given confidence level, if an instrument or portfolio is held for a specified time
period. VaR models are relafively sophisticated. However, the quantitativa risk information is limited by
the parameters established in creating the model. The instruments being used may have features that
could trigger a potential loss in excess of the calculated amount if the changes in the underlying
commadity price excead the confidance level of the model used. VaR is not necessarily indicative of
actual results that may occur. In addition to VaR, Integrys Energy Services employs other risk
measurements including mark-to-market valuations and stress testing. In conjunction with the VaR
analysis, these other risk measureiments provide the risk management analysis for integrys Energy
Services' risk exposure.

integrys Energy Services' VaR is estimated using a delta-nommal approximation based on a ona-day
holding period and a 95% confidence leval, The delta-normal approximation is based on the assumption
that changes in tha value of the portfolio aver short time periods, such as one day, are normally
distributed. Integrys Energy Services' VaR calculation includes derivaiive financial and commodity
instruments, such as forwards, futures, swaps, and options, as well as commodities held in inventory,
such as natural gas held in storage, to the extent such positions are significant.

The VaR for Integrys Energy Services' trading portfolio is presented in the following table:

(Mitlions}) 2007 2006
85% confidence level, one-day holding period, one-tailed December 31 $0.9 $0.9
Average for twelve months ended December 31 1.1 1.1
High for 12 months ended December 31 1.3 1.5
Low for 12 months ended December 31 0.9 09

The average, high, and low amounts were computed using the VaR amounts at each of the four
quarter-ends,

Intarest Rata Risk

Integrys Energy Group is exposed to interest rate risk resulting from its variahle rate long-term debt and
shart-term borrowings. Exposure to interest rale risk is managed by limiting the amount of variable rate
obligations and continually monitoring the effects of market changes in interest rates. Integrys Energy
Group enters into long-term fixed rate debt when it is advantageous to do so. Integrys Energy Group may
also enter into derivative financial instruments, such as swaps, to mitigate interest rate exposure.
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Due to decreases in short-term commercial paper borrowings in the last year, integrys Energy Group has
decreased its expasure to variable interest rates. Based on the variable rate debt of Integrys Energy
Group autstanding at December 31, 2007, a hypothetical increase in market interest rates of 100 basis
points in 2007 would have increased annual interest expense by $6.5 million. Comparatively, based on
the variable rate debt outstanding at December 31, 2006, an increase in interest rates of 100 basis points
would have increased interest expense by approximately $7.5 million. This sensitivity analysis was
performed assuming a constant level of variable rate debt during the period and an immediate increase in
Interest rates, with no other changes for the remainder of the pericd. In the event of a significant change
in interest rates, management would take action to mitigate integrys Energy Group's exposure to the
change.

Equity Return and Principal Preservation Risk

Integrys Energy Group currently funds liabilities related to employee benefits through various external
trust funds. The trust funds are managed by numerous investment managers and hold investments in
debt and equity securities. Changes in the market value of these investments can have an impact on the
future expenses related to these liabilities. Integrys Energy Group maintains gualified pension plans for
employees’ retitement. Declines in the equity markets or declines in interest rates may result in increased
future pension costs for the plan and possible future required contributions. Changes in the market value
af investments ralated to other employee banefits could also impact future contributions. Integrys Energy
Group monitors the trust fund portfolia by benchrmarking the performance of the investments against
cerlain security indices. Mast of the employee benefit costs relate to Integrys Energy Group's regulated
utiliies. As such, the majority of these costs are recovered in customers' rates, mitigating the equity return
and principal preservation risk on these exposures.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
A. MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate intemal control over financial reporting. Integrys Energy Group's control systems
were designed to pravide reasonable assurance to Integrys Energy Group's management and Board of
Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements.

All intemal control systems, no matier haw well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, aven
those systems determined to be effsctive can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial
statement preparation and presentation.

integrys Energy Group's management assessed the effectiveness of its intemal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007. In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ) in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework. Based on this assessment, management believes that, as of
December 31, 2007, Integrys Energy Group's intemal control over financial reporting is effective based on
those criteria.

Integrys Energy Graup, Inc.'s indapendent registered public accounting firm has issued an audit repart an
the effectiveness of Integrys Energy Group's internal control over financial reporting.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

B. REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Integrys Energy Group, Inc.:

We have audited the intarnal control over financial reporting of Integrys Energy Group, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the "Company"} as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in internal Control
— Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal controf over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control aver financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management Report on Intemal Control over Financial Reporting. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit includad obtaining an undarstanding of intemal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and parforming such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

A company's intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision
of, thae company's principal executive and principal financial officers, or persans performing similar
functions, and sffected by the company's board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal contral over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures thet (1) pertain
fo the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principies, and thai receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only.
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of contrals, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
not be prevented or detacted on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of
the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal contral over financial

reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in infernal Controf — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
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We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2007 of the Company and our report dated February 27, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and financial statement schedules.

s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
February 27, 2008



ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

C. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31

{Millions, except per share data) 2097 2006 2005
Nanraguiated revenue $6,907.0 $5,156.7 $5,301.3
Utility revenue 3,3054 1,734 0 1,524.2
Total revenues 10,2924 8,890.7 88255
Morwsgulated cost of fuel, natural gas, and purchased power 6,676.2 49689 5,139.5
LHility cast of Ruel, natural gas, and purchased power 20442 1.008.1 8.2
Operaling and maintenance expense 9221 484.3 525.9
Depreciation, smartization, and decommisaloning evpense 195.4 1243 1497
Taxes other than income taxes av.4 80.9 50.3
Dparating income 367.4 2492 1589
Misceliansous incoma 641 428 88.8
luterest expense [164.5} {98.2} (62.0)
Mingrity interest 0.1 3.8 4.5
Qthar {axpanse) income {100.3) (52.5) 313
Income bafors taxes F- 101 198.6 190.2
Provision for income t=es 86.0 45.0 39.6
Income from conlinulng operations 18141 1618 150.8
Discontinyed operations, net of tax 73.3 7.3 11.5
Income bafore cumuiative effect of change In
accounting principle 254 4 158.9 162.1
Cumnulative effect of change in accounting principla, net of tax - - _{1.6)
Y before prefuved stock dividends of subsidiary 254.4 158.9 160.5
Preferrad stock dividends of subsidiary 31 3.1 3.1
income available for common sharehaldars §251.3 31558 $157.4
Average shares of contmon stock
Basic 7186 423 38.3
Dilutad 718 424 387
Eamings {loss) per common share [basic)
Ingome from cantinwing operations 52.48 $3.51 £3.98
Discontinued operations, nel of tax $1.02 30.17 50.30
Cumdative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax - - (0.04)
Earnirgs per comman share (basic) $3.51 $3.68 4.1
Earnings (foss) par common share (diluted)
income from continuing operations $2.43 $3.50 $3.81
Discontinued operations, net of tax £1.02 $0.17 $0.3¢
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax - - (0.04)
Eamings par common share (diluted} $3.50 5367 $4.07
Dividends per common share $2.56 $2.28 $2.24

The accompanying notes te Integrys Energy Group's consolidated financial slatements are an integral part of these statements.



ITEM B. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

D. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Al December 31

{Milions) 2007 2006
Assuts

Cash and cash equivalents $41.2 323.2
Rastricied cash - 22,0
Accounts receivakle - net of reserves of $51.3 and $17.0, respectively 1,405.3 1,037.3
Accryed unbliled revenues 464.7 184.8
Inventonies 863.4 458.3
Agsats from risk management activities 8407 1.0858.6
Regulatory assets 1417 8.7
Asgats held for sale - 6.1
Othar cumrent assets 169.3 120.4
Cuorrent assets 3,726.3 2,027.4
Property, plant, and equipment, net 44638 25348
Regulatory assets 1,102.2 430.1
Assats from risk management activilies 459.3 08.2
Goodwill 948.3 3039
Pansion assets 101.4 -
Other 433.0 357.3
Total assets $11,234.4 $6,861.7
Liabilities and Sharehoiders' Equity

Shor-term debt §4689.2 $7228
Currgnt portion of long-term dabt 55.2 26.5
Accounis payable 1,331.8 943.4
Liabilities from risk management activities B13.5 1,0017
Regulatory liabllities 79 228
Defarred income taxes 13.9 3.1
Other current liabilities a87.7 180.1
Current liabilitles 3,248.2 2,906.4
Long-term debt 2,265.1 1,287.2
Deferred income taxas 494.4 976
Deferrad investmeant tax credits 38.3 136
Regulatory fiabdities 2824 361.7
Environmental remediation liabilities 705.6 95.8
Pension and postretiremant benefit obligations 2478 188.6
Liakilities fram risk management activities 372.0 264.7
Asset retiremenl obligations 140.2 140.1
Other 143.4 111.3
Long-term fiabilities 4,899.3 2,370.6
Commitments and contingencias

Prefarred slock of subsidiary with no mandatery radamption 51.1 51,1
. Camman siock aquity 3,235.3 1,533.6
Total liabilitles and sharsholders' equity §11,234.4 $6,861.7

Tha accompanying notes to Integrys Energy Group's consolidated financial stalements are an intagral parl of these staioments.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

E. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON SHAREHQLDERS' EQUITY

Employes
Stock Flan
Guaranteas and Aoaurnuleiad
Duferres Capital v Oihar
Comprshensive Compamation  Common Excessaf Ratalned Toaasury Comprehensive

i) Ingoma Totat Trust Stook Par value Eaminis Stoci Incorna {Losa)
Balarce al Desembr 35, 2004 - 2088 (584 815 4582 1 34970 203) 348.1)
Income aveilable far common sharehokiers $157.4 1674 - - - 15674 - -
Cter comprehmnsive incoma = cash flow hadges (riok of tax of §7.0) 12,1} {121 - - - - - 12,1}
Cther comprahnsive oo - minimum pendlen abiity (nel of thx of $171.4) 171 171 - - - . - 171
Othsr comprahansive inceme - available for safe securliies {net of tax of 504} 0e o8 - - - - - 08
Githar omp ive ihcame = cUrrandy ranstation [nol of tax of 50.1) ol 0.1 R . . . - 01
Gamprahensive income §1431 - - - - - . .
Istuenoa of comman siock - 1273 - 2.6 1242 - - -
Plividends on coraman siock - {85.4) - - - 854 - -
Othar - 7.d {£25) L] 10.1 ©.3) - -
Balance at Decamber 37, 2608 - $1,3042 $om $40.1 7170 3508.7 ($0.3} {104}
Income availabie for cormenon eharohoidars $156.8 155.8 - - - 1658 - -
Thhver gomprahensive INosma - cash fwn hedgas (el of tan of $0.4] {08} 0.8y - - . - - o8)
Gthar comprehenaive income - minimuwm pension k=bllity (et of tax of $1.6) 24 24 - - . - - 24
Other comprehansive incama - suallable far sale sacurilies: (netof tax of 50.2) (04) 0.4 . . - . - o)
Cthar comprensnsive income « currency lranelaticn (net of tax of 50.2} Juk)| 0.3 - - - - 0.3
Comprehunaive ibcoms 51569 - - . - - - -
Isquance of commen stoek - 1845 - 32 1814 . - -
Dividands on comman stock - (96.0) - - - (#4.00 - -
Adiusirants b inftiatly apply 3FAS Wo. 158 [m of vex of $2.60 - {4.5) - - - - - {4.5)
Other - B4 (2.9} o4 108 03 _ - -
Balance gt Decamber 31, 2006 F1.55.8 3132) $43.4 $B8RGZ 36282 ($o.3) ($12.8)
Incorme avaitzble for common shareholders 251.3 2613 212

Other comprahensiva incume - cash fiew hadge [nat of taxes 0f $3.1) 49 49 4.9
Cther comprehengive Income - SFAS Mo, 168 unrecognized costs (net of taxes of $ 3.0) 3.8 18 38
QOther comprehanaive income - awailedte for sale securities [net of laxes of $0.2) 04 04 04
Othsr comprehensive incoms - foreign turrency transialion [net of texes of $2.2) kX 36 38
Comprehensive incoma 264,

Igsuanos of commae Slock 456 14 445 - -

Paaples Energy merger 1,559, 318 1.527.4

Stock-basad compensation 87 B

Dividends om common stock {177.0) - (7.
Cthar 16 {1.6) 3% 10,6} ©2)
Aalance at Dacambar 31, 2007 $3.2758 (§14.7) 1784 32,4738 $T01.9 {34.3) {31.3)

The eccomgenying hotas 1o Intagrys Ensrgy Group's coneolidaled fnancial aistemants are an integral part of these satamenda.



ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DAT#

F. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Yem Evdded Docember 31

{Miliong) 2007 2006 2005
Operating Activities
Income before preferrad stock dividends of subsidlary $254.4 31589 §160.5
Adjustrments ta racancile net incoma o het cash provided by operating activities
Discontinusd opevations, nat of tax {73.3) 7.3) A0
Depraciation, amcrilzation, and decommissioning expenae 1854 1213 148.7
Retavery {deferral) of Kewaunee oulage expenses 18.0 95 (48.2)
Refund of non-qualified decommissioning trust {70.6) {54.5) -
Daférral of Westan 3 culage expanses (22.7) - .
Recoveries and refunds of other requiatory assets and labiltjes 148 5T 78
AmuxEration of nonregulabed cusiome? coriract intamgibles 210 - -
Reolized gain on invesiments held in tust, set of regulatory defems) - - [SEN4]
Unreslized (gains) lessas on noncsgulated anergy 159.5) 73 (39.2)
Paension and postatirement expenss B7.5 5.8 50.5
Pansion and posretirament funding (324 43.2) (28.6)
Deferied ncome taxes and investment tax credit 66.3 - 124 9.0
Gaing dua io setilement of contracts pursuant to the merger with FEC 4.9 . -
Gain on sata of interest in Guardian Fipeline, LLC - (6.2 -
3ain on sele of WS E3) Gas Skvage, LLC - {9.0) -
Galn an sale of partial interest in synthetic fuel operation 127) (6.4] (2.1
(Gain} Loss on saie of propery, plant, and equipment 1.1 13 (5.5)
Exuity income, net of dividends 2.4 14.4 10.9
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principles, net of tax - - 1.6
Other {12.4) 252 (387
Changas in working capital
Recsivables, nat 8.4 (0.0} 1499.8)
Inveritores {40.2) {206.5) (112.9)
Other oument assets 0.9 32.4) (13.9)
Agrounts payebls 96.5) 76 487.3
Qihar current Jabiliies 7n 313 254
Net cash provided by operating aciivides 238.5 72.9 74
Tnvasting Activities
Capltal expendilures (302.6) 13420 (413.9)
Proceeds from the saie of property, plant, and equipment 154 45 12.0
Purchase of aquity invesiments and ather scouisitions {66.5) (60 1) (82.6)
Proceeds from thé sale of interest in Guardian Pipeline, LLC - 385 -
Praceeds from the sale of WPS £85I Gas Storage, LLG - 18.9 -
Proceeds from the sale of Kewaunee power pkant - - 125
Proceeds from the sale of partial intarest in Wesion 4 power plarit . - 5.1
Cash paid for transaction costs relatsd to PEC merger (14.4) (5.5} -
Proceeds from liquidation of non-gualiied dacommissloning trust - - 1271
Purch of nuclear d issioning brust | 3 - - (18.6)
Sales of nutlear d ioning st invastients . - 18.6
Acquisiton of natyrel gas operations in kishigan and Minnesota, nel of isblies a3sumed 1.9 [669.3) -
Restrictad cash for repayment of long-term delbt 229 {22.0) -
Transmission interconnection {23.8) {11.8) (6.3}
Other 6.3 1.5 7.2
Met vach used for nvagting activitlies {451.5) (1,030.1} (148.8)
Financing Activilies
Shert-term debt, ned {4837 468.0 25,01
Gag loans, net 3.4 (68.1) o4
|sguance of iong-term debt 1282 4474 -
Repayment of lang-term dett 26.5) 4.0) (34)
Payment of dividends
Prafaed stock (3.1) 3.4 A1)
Common stock (177.0) (96.0) (85.4)
Issuance of camman stock 456 164.6 1214
Cther 55 64) (3.3
Mot cash pravidyd by [uasd for) financing activitias 1458.2) BOL7 -
Ghanga In cash and cash equivalents - continuing operations (672.2) (65.5) 714
Change in cash and cash equivalents - discontinied cparationg
Matcash (used for) provided by operating aclivities {169.3) 413 {15.0)
Hat cash provided by Investing aciivities 799.5 131 4.8
Nel cash usad for financing activilies - - {038)
Change In oash and caah squivalemts 18.8 (4.5} 12,3}
Cagh Bnd cash eguivalents at beginning of year 23.2 2.7 40.0
Cash and cash squivalents at end of year 541.2 $23.2 $27.7

Tha accompanying notes o Integrys Enargy Group's consolidated finsncial sigtements sre an infegral part of thesa statements.



ITEM8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
G. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{a) Nature of Operations—Integrys Energy Group is a holding company whose primary wholly owned
subsidiaries at December 31, 2007, include WPSC, UPPCO, MGUC, MERC, PGL, NSG, and Integrys
Energy Services. Of these subsidiaries, six subsidiaries are regulated electric and/or natural gas utilities
and one subsidiary, Integrys Energy Services, is a nonregulated energy supply and services company.
For more information about our regulated and nonregulated segments, see Note 24, "Segmenls of
Business."

The term "utility” refers to the regulated activities of the electric and natural gas utility segments, while the
term “nonutility” refers to the activities of the electric and natural gas utility segments that are not
regulated. The term "nonregulated” refers to activities at Integrys Energy Services.

The line itarm on the Consalidated Staterments of lncome "incame availahle for comman shareholders,” is
net income.

(b} Consolidation Basis of Presentation-—-The Consolidated Financial Statements include the
accounts of Integrys Ensrgy Group and all majority owned subsidiaries, after eliminating intercompany
transactions and balances, and proportionate shares of jointly owned utility facilities. If a minority owner's
equity is reduced to zero, our policy is to record 100% of the subsidiary's losses until the minority owner
makes capital cantributions or commitments to fund its share of the operating costs. The cost method of
accounting is used for investments when Integrys Energy Group owns Jess than 20% of the voting equity
of the company, unless other evidence indicates we have significant influence over the operating and
finandial policies of the investee. Investments in businesses not controlled by Integrys Energy Group, but
over which we have significant influence regarding the operating and financial policies of the investee, are
accounted far using the equity method. For additional information on our equity method investments seeg
Naote 10, *Investments in Affiliates, at Equity Method.”

Mergers and Acquisitions

Effective February 21, 2007, the PEC merger was consummated and the assets and liabilities, results of
operations, and cash flows of PEC were included in Integrys Energy Group's Consolidated Financial
Statements commencing February 22, 2007. See Note 6, "Acquisitions and Sales of Assets,” for more
information.

The assets and liabilities, results of operations, and cash flows of MGUC and MERC were included in
Integrys Energy Group's Consalidated Financial Statements effective April 1, and July 1, 2006,
respectively. See Note 6, "Acquisitions and Sales of Assets,” for more information.

Dispositions

PEP's results of operations and cash flows were recorded as discontinued operations in 2007. The sale of
PEP was completed on September 28, 2007. Refer to Note 4, "Discontinued Operations, " for more
information.

For all periods presented, certain assets and liabilities of Sunbury and Niagara have been reclassified as
held for sale and Sunbury's and Niagara's results of operations and cash flows have been reclassified as
discontinued operations. Refer to Note 4, “Discontinued Qperations,” for more information.

(c) Use of Estimates—We prepare our financial statements in conformity with accounting principies
generally accepted in the United States of America. We make estimates and assumptions that affect
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reported amounts. These eslimales and assumptions affect assets, liabilitias, the disclosura of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financlal statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

() Cash and Cash Equivalents--We consider short-term investmants with an otiginal maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

The following is supplemental disclosure to the Integrys Energy Group Consclidated Statements of Cash
Flows:

{Miflions) 2007 2006 2005
Cash paid for interest $144.5 $87.6 $59.6
Cash paid for income taxes 198.1 37.7 50.4

Significant non-cash transactions were as follows:

{Milllons) 2007 2006 2005
Weston 4 consfruction costs funded through accounts payable § 26.1 $32.0 $33.7
Equity issuad for nat assets acquired in PEC merger 1,550.3 - -
Realized gain on settlement of cantracts due to PEC merger 4.0 - -
PEP post-clasing adjustments funded through other currant 9.9 - -
liabilities
Transaction cosis related to the merger with Peoples Energy
funded through other current liabilities - 8.1 -

(e} Revenue and Customer Receivables—Revenues are recognized an the accrual basis and
include estimated amounts for electric and natural gas services rendered but not billed. Currently there
are no custorners or industries that account for more than 10% of Integrys Energy Group's revenues.

Integrys Energy Group's regulated electric utility segment operations use automatic fuel and purchased
power adjustment clauses for the retall electric partions of their business in Michigan and also for their
FERC wholesals electric business. There is a portion of Integrys Energy Group's wholesale electiic
business that limits cost recovery to no greater than the 2-year average rate charged to large indusirial
retail customers for that same period. The Wisconsin retail electric partion of integrys Energy Group's
business uses a "cost variance range" approach, based on a spacific estimated fuel and purchased power
cost for the forecast yaar. if the actual fuel and purchased power costs fall outside this range, the PSCW
can authorize an adjustment to future rates. Decreases to rates can be implemented without a hearing,
unless requested by Integrys Energy Group, PSCW staff, or interveners, while increases to rates are
generally subject to a hearing.

Billings to Integrys Energy Group's retall electric customers under the MPSC's jurisdiction include base
rate charges and a power supply cost recovery factor. Power supply cost recovery factors are established
annually to recover projected power supply costs approved by the MPSC. The MPSC reconciles these
factors to actual costs annually and permits 100% recovery of allowed power supply costs. Integrys
Energy Group recognizes any over or under recovery currently in its revenues, and the regulatory asset or
liabllity i5 recognized on the balance sheet until settlement. The deferrals are refleved with additional
billings or refunds.

integrys Energy Group's regulated natural gas utility segment operations are approved to use one-for-one
natural gas cost recovery plans for all prudently incurred natural gas costs. These plans allow Integrys
Energy Group to pass changes in the cost of natural gas on to system natural gas customers, subject to
regulatory review for reasonableness.
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All of Intagrys Energy Group's utility subsidiaries are required to provide service and grant credit to
customers within their service territories. The companies continually review their customers'
credit-worthiness and obtain or refund deposits accordingly. The utiliies are generally precluded from
discontinuing service to residential customers during winter moratorium months.

For Integrys Energy Services' merchant electric generation plants, electric power revenues related to
fixed-price contracts are recognized at the lower of amaunts billable under the contract or an amount
equal to the volume of the capacity made available or the energy delivered during the period multiplied by
the estimated average revenue per kilowaltt-hour per the terms of the contract. Under floating-price
contracts, electric power revenues are recognized when capacity is provided or energy is deliverad.

For its nonregulated business of supplying energy, management, and consulting services fo retail and
wholeszle cusiomers, integrys Energy Services accrues revenues in the month that energy is delivered
and/or services are rendersd. Revenues related to derivative instruments classified as trading are
reported net of relaled cost of sales for all periods presented.

H Inventorles--Inventories consist of natural gas in storage, liquid propane, and fossil fuels,
including coal. Average cost is used to value fassil fuels, liquid propane, and natural gas in storage for our
regulated segments, excluding PGL. and NSG. PGL and N3G price natural gas siorage injections at the
calendar year average of the costs of natural gas supply purchased. Withdrawals from storage are priced
an the LIFO cost methad. Inventories stated on a LIFQ basis represent approximately 14% of tolal
inventaries at December 31, 2007, The estimated replacement cost of natural gas in inventory at
December 31, 2007, exceeded the LIFQ cost by approximately $304.4 million. Inventories at Integrys
Energy Services are valued at the lower of cost or market uniess hedged pursuant to a fair value hedge, in
which case changes in the fair value of inventory subsequent to the hedge designation are recorded
directly to inventory.

{9) Risk Management Activities—As part of our regular operaticns, Integrys Energy Group enters
into contracts, including optians, swaps, futures, forwards, and other contractual commitments, t0 manage
market risks such as changes in commodity prices and interest rates.

Integrys Energy Group accounts for derivative instruments pursuant to SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivatives Instruments and Hedaging Activities’. as amended and interpreted. Under the provisions of
SFAS No. 133, all derivatives are recagnized on the balance sheet at their fair value except for certain
darivatives that qualify for the normal purchases and sales exception. Subsequent changes in fair value of
the derivatives are recarded currently in sarnings unless certain hedge accounting criteria are met. If the
derivatives qualify for regulatory deferral subject to the provisions of SFAS No, 71, "Accounting for the
Effects of Certain Types of Reguiation,” they are marked to fair value pursuant to SFAS No. 133 and are
offset with a correspanding regulatory asset or liability.

Integrys Energy Group classifies mark-to-market gains and losses on derivative instruments not qualifying
for hedge accounting or regulatory deferral as a component of revenues.

{h) Emission Allowances--Integrys Energy Services accounts for emission allowances as an
intangible asset, with cash inflows and outflows related to purchases and sales of emission allowances
recorded as investing activities In the Consolidated Stlatements of Cash Flows. Integrys Energy Services
uses the guidance in SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment and Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,"
to test allowances for impaimment. The utilities account for allowances as inventory at average cost by
vintage year. Emission allowances granted to WPSC are recorded at zero cost. Charges to income result
when allowances are utilized in operating the utilities' generation plants, Gains on sale of allowances are
generally refurned to ratepayers.

(i) Property, Plant, and Equipment--Utility plant is stated at the ariginal cost of construction
including an allowance for funds used during construction. The custs of renewals and bettarments of units
of property (as distinguished from minor items of property) are caphtalized as additions to the utility plant
accounts. Except for land, no gain or loss is recognized in connection with ordinary retirements of utility



property units. Maintenance, repair, replacement, and renewal costs associated with items not qualifying
as units of property are considerad operating expanses. PGL and NSG charge the cost of units of
property retired, sold, or otherwise disposed of to the accumulated provision far depreciation and record
the cost of removal, less salvage value, associated with the retirement to depreciation expense. The other
utilities charge the cost of units of property retired, sold, or otherwise disposed of, less salvage value, to
the accumulated provision for depraciation and initially record a regulatory liability for removal costs and
charge the costs against the liability as incurred.

Integrys Energy Group records straight-line depreciation expense over the estimated useful life of utility
property. The PSCW approved depraciation rates for WPSC effective January 1, 2005. Depreciation
rates for UPPCO were approved by the MPSC sffective January 1, 2002. Depreciation rates for MGUC
and MERC were approved by the MPSC and MPUC effective April 1, 2006, and July 1, 2006, respectively.
In April 2005, the ICC approved depreciation rates for PGL and NSG Annual utility composﬁe
depreciation rates are shown below.

Annual Utility Composite Depreciation Rates 2007 2006 2005
WPSC - Electric 3.35% 3.36% 3.65%
WPSC — Natural Gas 3.52% 3.57% 3.61%
UPPCO 3.01% 2.90% 2.85%
MGUC 2.67% 2.06%" -
MERC 3.42% 1.76%@ -
PGL 2.86% - -
NSG 1.85%> - -

“’Composnte dapreciation rate for 9 months of the year
YComposite depreciation rate for 6 months of the year
® Composite depreciation rate from February 22, 2007 through the end of 2007

Interest capitalization is applied to nonutility property during construction, and gain and loss recognition
oceurs in connection with retirements. Currently, nonutility property at the regulated utilities consists
primarily of land.

Nonregulated plant is stated at cost, which includes capitalized interest, or esfimated fair value at the time
of acquisition. The costs of renewals, betterments, and major overhauls are capitalized as additions to
plant. The gains or losses associated with ordinary retirements are recorded in the period of retirement.
Maintenance, repair, and minor replacement costs are expensed as incurred.

Most of the nonregulated subsidiaries compute depreciation using the siraight-tine method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Structures and improvements 15 to 40 years

Office and plant equipment 5 to 40 years

Office furniture and fixtures 310 10 years

Vehicles 5 years

Computer equipment 31to B years

Leasehald improvements Shorter of: life of tha lease or life of the asset

The nonregulated Combined Locks Energy Center uses the units of production depreciation methad for
selected components of equipment having defined lives stated in terms of hours of production.

Integrys Ensrgy Group capitalizes ceriain cosis related to software developed or ohtained for internal use

and amortizes those costs fo operating expense over the estimated useful life of the related software,
which ranges from 3 to 15 years.



{i) Capitalized Interest and Allowance for Funds Used During Construction—-OQur nonregulated
subsidiaries capitalize interest for construction projects, while our utitities capitalize the cost of funds used
for construction using a calculation that includes both internal (equity) and external (debt) components, as
required by regulatory accounting.

Approximately 50% of WPSC's retail jursdictional construction in progress expenditures are subject to the
allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) calculation, except on specific projects approved
by the PSCW. For 2007, WPSC's AFUDC retail rate was 8.61%. Carrying costs related to Weston 4 are
curently being recovered in rates. WPSC's construction in progress AFUDC debt and equity percentage
formula for the whoiesale jurisdiction Is specified in the FERC's Uniform System of Accounts. The 2007
average AFUDC wholesale rate was 8.54%. WPSC's allowance for equity funds used duning construciion
for 2007, 2008, and 2005 was $0.9 million, $0.8 million, and $1.5 million, respectively. WPSC's allowance
for borrawed funds used during construction for 2007, 2008, and 2005 was $0.3 million, $0.2 miilion, and
50.4 million, respectively,

The AFUDG calculation for the other utilities is determined by the respective state commissions, each with
specific requirements, Based on those requirements, the other utilities did not record AFUDC for 2007,
2006, or 2005.

Qur nonregulated subsidiaries calculate capitalized interest on long-term construction. The interest rate
capitalized is based upon the monthly short-term borrowing rate Integrys Energy Group incurs for such
funds. The amount of interest capitalized during 2007, 2008, and 2005 was not significant.

(k) Regulatory Assets and Liabilities--The regulated electric and natural gas utility segments are
subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 71. Regulatory assels represent probable future revenue
associated with certain incurred costs that will be recovered from customers through the ratemaking
process. Regulatory liabilitles represent amounts that are refundable in futurs customer rates. Based on a
current evaluation of the various factors and conditions that are expected to impact future cost recovery,
we believe that future recovery of our regulatory assets is probable, If at any reporting date a previously
recorded regulatory asset is no longer probable of recovery, the regulatory asset is reduced ta the amount
considered probable of recovery with the reduction chargad to expense in the year the determination is
made.

U] Asset impairment--We review the racoverability of long-lived tangible and intangible assets in
accordance with SFAS No. 144. This Statament requires review of assets when circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The carrying amount of assets held and used is not
recoverable if it exceeds the undiscounted sum of cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual
dispesitian of the asset. If the carrying value is not recoverable, the impairment loss is measured as the
excess of the asset’s carrying value over its fair valug., The carrying value of assets held for sale is not
recoverable if it exceeds the fair value less cost to sell the asset. An impairment charge is recorded for
any excess of the carrying value over the fair value less cost to sell, If events or circumstances indicate
the: camying value of investments accounted for under the equity method of accounting may not be
recoverable, potential impairment is assessed by comparing the fair value of these investments to their
carrying values as well as assessing if a decline in fair value is temporary. If an impairment is indicated, a
charge is recognized squal to the amount the carrying value exceeds the investment's fair value.
impairmant charges are recorded if the camrying value of such assets exceed the fulure anticipated cash
flows. See Note 4, "Discontinued Operations, " for information related to the impairment charge recorded
at Sunbury in 2005.

{m) Goodwill and QOther Intangible Assets—In accordance with SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other
tntangible Assets,” goodwill and ather intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized, but are
subject to annual impairment tests. The regulated electric and natural gas utility segments perfarm their
impairment test during the second quarter of each year, while Integrys Energy Services parforms its
impairment test annually during the third quarter. The intangible asset impairment tests are updated
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired. Based upon the
resulls of testing, no impaiments were noted in 2007, 2008, or 2005,
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Other intangible assets with definite lives consist primarily of emission allowances, customer related
intangible assets, and customer contract assets and liabilitiss. For more informaticn on integrys Energy
Group's intangible assets, see Note 11, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

{n} Retirement of Debt—-Premiums, discounts, and expenses incurred with the issuance of
outstanding long-term debt are amortized over the terms of the debt issues. Any call pramiums or
unamortized expenses associated with refinancing higher-cost debt obligations used to finance regulated
assets and operations are defined and amortized consistent with regulatory treatment of those items,

()] Asset Retirament Obligations--Integrys Energy Group applies SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations,” and Interpretation No, 47, "Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations.” Under these accounting standards, integrys Energy Group recognizes, al fair value, legal
obligations associated with the retiremant of tangible lang-lived assets that result from the acguisition,
construction or development, and/or normal operation of the assets. A liability is recorded for these
obligations as long as the fair value can be reasonably estimated, even if the timing or method of settling
the obligation is unknown. The assef retirement obligations are accreted using a credit-adjusted risk-free
interest rate commensurate with the expected seftiement dates of the asset retirement obligations. The
assoclated refirement costs are capitalized as part of the related long-lived assets and are depreclated
over the useful fives of the assets.

{r) Incoma Taxes--We account for incoma taxes using the liability method as prescribed by SFAS
Na. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes.* Under this method, deferred income taxes have been recorded
using currently enacted tax rates for the differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and the
basis reported in the financial statements. Our regulated utilities are allowed to defer certain adjustments
made to income taxes and record regulatary assets or liabilities related to these adjustments.

Integrys Energy Group adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes - an interpretation of FAS 109" on January 1, 2007. As a result of the implementation of
Interpretation No. 48, Integrys Energy Group recognized a $0.1 million decrease in the liability for
unrecognized tax benefits, which was accounted for as an increase in the January 1, 2007 balance of
retained eamings.

Investment tax credits, which have been used to reduce our federal income taxes payable, have been
deferred for financial reporting purposes. These dsferred investment tax credits are being amortized over
the useful lives of the property to which they relats.

Integrys Energy Group files 2 consolidated United States income tax retum that includes domestic
subsidiaries of which its ownership is 80% or more. Integrys Energy Group and its consolidated
subsidiaries are parties 1o a tax allocation arrangement under which each entity determines its income tax
provision on a stand-alone basis. In several states, combined or consoclidated filing Is required for certain
members of Integrys Energy Group doing business in that state. The tax allocation arrangement equitably
allocates the state taxes associated with these combined or cansolidated filings.

(q) Taxes other than income--Intagrys Energy Group presents revenue net of pass-through taxes on
the Consalidated Statements of Incorme.

{r) Guarantees--integrys Energy Group appligs Interpretation No. 45, "Guarantor's Agcounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantzes Inciuding Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others," which
requires that the guarantor recognize, at the inceplion of the guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the
obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. See Nole 18, "Guaranises," for additional information on
Interpretation No. 45.

{s) Stock-Based Employee Compensation--Integrys Energy Group has stock-based employee

compensation plans, which are described more fully in Note 22, "Stock-Bassd Compsnsation." Prior to
January 1, 20086, Iniegrys Energy Group accounted for these plans under the recognition and
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measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Emplayees.” Accordingly, Integrys Energy Group provided pro forma disclosure amounts in accordance
with SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” as if the fair
value method defined by SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” had been applied.

The following table illustrates the effect on 2005 income available for common shareholders and earnings
per share if Integrys Energy Group had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123:

~ (Millions, excep! per share amounts) 2008
Incoma avallakle for commen shareholders
As reported $157.4
Add: Stock-based compensation expense
using the intrinsic value method — net of tax 20
Deduct: Stock-based compensation expense
using the fair value method ~ net of tax {1.9)
Pro forma $157.5
Baslc sarnings per common share
As reported $4.1
Pro forma 4N

Dilutad earnings per common share
As reported $4.07
Pro farma 4.07

Effective January 1, 2006, Integrys Energy Group adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS
No. 123(R}, "Share-Based Payment,” using the modified prospective transition method. Under this
transition method, prior periods' results are not restated. Stock-based compensation cost for 2006
included compensation cost for all stock-based compensation awards granted prior to, but not yet fully
vastad as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value sstimated in accordance with the ariginai
provisions of SFAS No. 123, adjusted for estimated future forfeitures. The fair values of stock-based
compensation awards granted after January 1, 2006 were estimated in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS No. 123(R). There was no material cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle recorded
upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). The implementation of SFAS No. 123(R) did not have a material
impact on cash flows from operations and cash flows from financing activities.

{t) Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principles—The adoption of Interpretation No. 47
on December 31, 2005, resulted in a $1.6 million after-tax cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, decreasing income available for common shareholders, related to recording a liability for
asbestos remediation at certain of Integrys Energy Services' generation plants. Approximatety $1.4 million
af the after-tax cumulative effect of change in accounting principle recorded in 2005 related to Sunbury.
For mare information on Sunbury, see Note 4, "Discontinued Operations.” Far the utility segments of
Integrys Energy Group, we concluded it was probable that any differences betwaen expenses under
Interpretation No. 47 and expensas currenily recovered through customer rates will be recoverabis or
refundable in future customer rates. Accordingly, the adoption of Interpretation No. 47 had no impact on
the utility segments’ income, as ils effect is offset by the establishment of regulatory assets or liabilities
pursuant to SFAS No. 71,

{u) Recilassifications--We reclassified certain prior year financial statement amounts to conform to
the current year presentation. Significant reclassifications are as follows:

o1-



Consolidated Balance Shoot

Customers electing a budget payment plan had a credit balance of $49.2 million at December 31, 2008,
Since this balance is subject fo change based upon the amount of future billings, this balance was
reclassified from accounts payable to other current liabilities to conform to the December 31, 2007
prasentation.

Consolidated Statements of Income

For the year ended Decamber 31, 2006, and 2005, $16.5 million and $8.1 million, respectively, of software
and intangible asset amortization expense was reclassified from operating and maintenance expense to
depreciation and amortization expense to conform to the presentation for the year ended December 31,
2007,

Consolidated Statemant of Cash Flows

The reclassifications discussed above were also reflected as reclassifications in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. These reclassifications had
ne impact on total operating, investing, or financing activities.

{v) New Accounting Pronouncements—In September 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair
Value Measurements,” which defines fair value, establishes new criteria to be considered when measuring
fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 does not require any
new fair value measurements. Integrys Energy Group applies fair valus measurements to certain assets
and liabilities, primarily defrivative instruments, available-for-sale securities, deferred compensaiion
ligbilities, financial instruments required to be disclased at fair value under SFAS No.107, "Fair Value of
Financial Instruments,” and long-lived assets evaluatad for impairments. SFAS Na. 157 is effective for
integrys Energy Group on January 1, 2008 for finanaial assets and liabilities and January 1, 2000 for
nanfinancial assets and liabilities.

SFAS No. 157 nullified a portion of Emerging 1ssues Task Force Issue No. 02-3, "ssues Invalved in
Accounting for Derivaiive Contracts Held for Trading Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading
and Risk Management Activities." Under Issue No. 02-3, inception gains or losses were deferred unless
the fair value of the derivative was substantially based on guoted prices or cther current market
transactions. However, SFAS No. 157 pravides a framework to consider, in evaluating a transaction,
whether a transaction represents fair value at initial recagnition. Integrys Energy Services expects to
recognize a pre-tax cumulative effect increase to retained eamings of $4.5 million on January 1, 2008.

SFAS No. 157 requires that a fair value measurement reflect the agsumptions market participants would
use in pricing an asset or liability based on the best available information. These assumptions include the
risks inherent in a particular valuation technique {such as a pricing model) and the risks inherent in the
inputs to the model. SFAS No. 157 also requires that we consider our own credit profile in valuing
liabilities and specifies that transaction casts should not be considered in the determination of fair value.
On January 1, 2008, Integrys Energy Group expects 1o recognize an increase to operating income of

$0.5 million as a resuit of considering its own credit profile in the measurement of certain liabilities at fair
value, and an increase of $11.0 milfion due to the exclusion of transaction costs from Integrys Energy
Servicas' fair value estimates.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities.” This standard permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and
certain other items at fair value, following the provisions of SFAS No. 157. SFAS No. 159 is effective for
Integrys Energy Group beginning January 1, 2008. We have chosen not to elect the fair value option for
any of our financial assets and liabilities,

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141{R}, "Business Combinations.” SFAS No. 141(R)
provides greater consistency in the accounting and financial reporting of business combinations. SFAS
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Na. 141(R) requires the acquiring entity in & business combination to recognize all assets acquired and
liabilities asstmed In the transaction and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at the acquisition
date, measured at the fair value as of that date. This includes the measurement of the acquirer's shares
issued as consideration In a business combination, the recognition of contingent consideration, the
accounting for pre-acquisition gain and loss contingencies, the recognition of capitalized in-process
research and development, the accounting for acquisition-related restructuring cost accruals, the
treatment of acquisition-related transaction costs, and the recognition of changes in the acquirer’s income
tax vaiuation allowance and deferred taxes. This statement also establishes disclosure requirements to
enable the evaluation of the nature and financial effect of the business combination. SFAS No. 141(R) is
effective for business combinations consummated after January 1, 2008. Also effective January 1, 2009,
any adjustments to uncertain tax positions from business combinations consummated prior to January 1,
2009 will na longer be recorded as an adjustment to goodwill, but will be reported in income.

NOTE 2--FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each dass of financial
instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, noles payable, and
outstanding commercial paper: The carrying amount approximates fair value due to the short maturity of
these investments and obligations.

Long-term debt and preferred stock: The fair values of long-term debt and preferred stock are estimated
based on the quoted market price for the same or similar issues or on the current rates offered to Integrys
Energy Group for debt of the same remaining maturity.

Risk management assets — net: Assets and liabilities from risk management activities are recorded at fair
value in accordance with SFAS No. 133.

The estimated fair values of our financial instruments as of December 31 were:

2007 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

(Milllons) Amount Value Amount Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 412 § 412 $ 232 $ 232
Restricted cash . - 224 22.0
Accounts receivable — net 1,405.3 1,405.3 1.037.3 1,037.3
Accounts payable 1,331.8 1,331.8 949 .4 949.4
Notes payable 160.0 160.0 160.0 180.0
Commercial paper 308.2 308.2 562.8 562.8
Long-term debt 2,320.3 2,334.2 1,313.7 1,323.1
Prefarred stock 51.1 49.6 51.1 438.3
Risk management assets — net 114.5 114.5 110.4 110.4




NOTE 3-RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

The following table shows Integrys Energy Group's assets and liabilities from risk management aciivities
as of December 31, 2007, and 2006:

Assets Liabilitios
{Millions) 2007 2006 2007 2006
Utility Segments
Commaodity confracts $ B2 $ 59 $ 304 $ 121
Financial transmission rights 13.4 14.3 4.4 2.0
Cash flow hedges — commodity
contracts - - 0.3 -
Nonreguiated Segments
Commodity and foreign
currency contracts 1,241.4 1,237.7 1,125.7 1,195.4
Fair value hedges
Commadity coniracts 74 1.0 2.0 0.3
Interest rate swaps - - 0.3 ~
Cash flow hedges
Commadity contracts 29.6 107.9 18.3 53.3
Interest rate swaps - - 4.1 33
Total $1,300.0 $1,376.8 $1,185.5 $1,266.4
Balance Sheet Presentation
Current $ 840.7 $1,068.6 $ 8135 $1,001.7
Long-term 459.3 308.2 372.0 264.7
Total $1,3000 $1,376.8 $1,185.5 $1,266.4

Assets and liabilities from risk management activities are classified as current or long-term based upon the
maturities of the underlying contracts.

Utility Segments

Derivativa instruments at the utilities are entered into in accordance with the terms of the risk managemant
policies approved by Integrys Energy Group's Board of Directors and, if applicable, by the respective
regulators. For mast energy-related physical and financial derivatives in gur regulated operations, our
regulators allow the effects of mark-to-market accounting to be deferred as regulalory assets and
liabilities. Management believes any gains or losses resulting from the aventual setflement of these
derivative instruments will he collected from or refunded to customers.

The derivatives listed in the above table as "commodity contracts” include a limited number of electric and
natural gas purchase contracts as well as financial derivative contracts (NYMEX futures and options) used
by both the electric and natural gas utility segments to mitigate the risk associated with market price
volatility of natural gas. The electric utility segment also uses financial instruments to manage
transmission congestion costs, which are shown in the above table as "financial transmission rights."

Additionally, PGL uses dervatives to hedge changes in the price of natural gas used to support
operations. These instruments are designated as cash flow hedges, which allow for the effective portion
of the unrealized change in value during the life of the hedge to be recorded in comprehensive income, net
of taxes. Gommadity contracts that are designated as cash flaw hedges extend through Fabruary 2009.
Cash flow hedge ineffectiveness recorded in operating and maintenance expense on the Consolidated
Statements of Income related to these commodity contracts was insignificant for the year ended

December 31, 2007. When testing for effectiveness, no portion of the derivative instruments was
excluded. Amounts recorded in other comprehensive income related to these cash flow hedges will be
recognized in earnings as the hedged transactions occur or if it becomes probable that the hedged



transaciion will not occur. The amount to be recognized in eamings over the next 12 months as the
hedged transactions accur is insignificant.

Nonregulated Segments

The derivatives in the nonregulated segments not designated as hedges under generally accepted
accounting principles are primarily commodity contracts used to manage price risk associated with natural
0as and electric energy purchase and sale activities and foreign currency contracis used to manage
foreign currency exposure related to Integrys Energy Services' Canadian operations. In addition, Integrys
Energy Services enterad into interest rate swaps associated with long-term storage contracts as well as a
series of options covering a spacified number of barrels of oil in order ta manage exposure to the risk of an
increase in oll prices. Changes in the fair value of non-hedge derivatives are recognized currently in
gamings.

In the second quarter of 2006, Integrys Energy Services began entering into 2 limited number of derivative
energy contracts with terms that extend as long as 12 years. Observable market data is not available for
the ionger-dated portion (generally periods greater than five years) (the unchservable periods) of these
contracts and, therefore, Integrys Energy Services had valued the unobsarvable periods of these contracts
et zero. In the third quarter of 2007, Integrys Energy Services determined that this approach was
inappropriate under generally accepted accounting principles and began to use intemally developed
pricing data to estimate the fair value of such uncbsarvable periods. The cumulative effect related to prior
periods was an increase in income from continuing operations and income available for common
shareholders of $4.6 million, net of taxes. Management has determined that this amount is not material to
prior periods, The determination of fair value for these darivative contracts is subjective and requires
significant management judgment.

Qur nonregulated segments also enter into commodity derivative contracts that are designated as either
fair value or cash flow hedges. Integrys Energy Services uses fair valua hedges to mitigate the risk of
changes in the price of natural gas held in storage. The changes in the fair value of these hedges are
recognized currantly in eamings, as are the changes in fair value of the hedged items. Fair value hedge
ineffectiveness recorded in nanregulated revenue on the Consolidated Statements of Income was not
significant in 2007. Fair value hedge ineffectiveness recorded in nonregulated revenue on the
Congolidated Statements of Income was a pre-iax gain of $3.7 million in 20086, and a pre-tax loss of
$2.5 million in 2005, Changes in the difference between the spot and forward prices of natural gas were
excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness and reported directly in nonregulated revenue.
During 2007 and 2008, the amounts excluded were not significant. During 2005, the amount excluded
was a pre-tax loss of $5.2 million.

Commodity contracts that are designaled as cash flow hedges extend through December 2011, and are
used to mitigate the risk of cash flow varability associated with future purchases and sales of natural gas
and glectricity. To the extent they are effective, the changes in the values of these contracts are included
in other comprehensive income, net of taxes. Cash flow hedge ineffectiveness recorded in nonregulated
revenue on the Consolidated Statermnents of Income related to commadity contracts was a pre-tax loss of
$4.4 milion in 2007, a pre-tax gain of $8.6 million in 2008, and a pre-tax loss of $2.6 millian in 2005.
When testing for effectiveness, no portion of the derivative instruments was excluded. Amounts recorded
in other comprehensive income related to these cash flow hedges will be recognized in earnings when the
hedged transactions affect eamings, which is typically as the related contracts are settled, or if it is
probable that the hedged transaction will not occur. During 2007, the amount reclassified from other
comprehensive income into earnings as a result of the discontinuance of cash flow hedge accounting for
certain hedge transactions was nat significant. During 2006 and 2005, Integrys Energy Group reclassified
pre-tax gains of $2.1 million, and $5.2 million, respectively, from other comprehensive income into
eamings as a result of the discontinuance of cash flow hedge accounting for certain hedge transactions.

In the next 12 months, subject to changes in market prices of natural gas and electricity, Integrys Energy
Group expects that a pre-tax gain of $7.4 million will be recognized in earings as the hedged transactions
occur. This amount is expecied to be substantially offset by the settlement of the related nonderivative
contracts that are being hedged.
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NOTE 4--DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
PEP

In September 2007, integrys Energy Group completed the sale of PEP, its oil and natural gas production
subsidiary acquired in the merger with PEC, for $879.1 million. Post-closing adjustments in the amount of
$9.9 million were settled in February 2008 related to this sale, which reduced the sale price to

$869.2 million. These post-closing adjustments were funded through other current liabilities at

December 31, 2007 and, therefore, are Included in Note 1{d), "Cash and Cash Equivalents,” as a
non-cash transaction. Including the impact of the post-closing adjustments, the pre-tax gain recorded was
$12.6 million ($7.6 million after-tax), and was included as a compeonent of discontinued operations.

A summary of the components of discontinued operations recordad in the Consolidated Statements of
Income related to PEFP was as follows:

February 22, 2007

through
{Millions) December 31, 2007
Nonregulated revenue $114.2
Operating and maintenance expense 285
Gain on PEP sale ' 128
Taxes other than income 5.1
Other expense 0.1
Income before taxes 83.1
Provision for income taxes 34.6
Discontinued operations, net of tax $ 585

It is Integrys Energy Group's policy to not allocate interest to discontinued operations unless the asset
group being sold has external debt obligations. PEP did not have any external debt obligations.

Niagara

in January 2007, Integrys Energy Services completed the sale of Niagara for approximately $31 million.
The gain recorded in 2007 was $24.6 miliion pre-tax {$14.7 million after-tax), and was included as a
component of discontinued operations. This facility was a merchant generation facility and sold power on
a wholesale basis when market conditions ware ecanomically favorable.

The major classes of assets held for sale at December 31, 2008, for Niagara were as follows:

_(Millions)
Inventories $0.4
Property, plant, and equipment, net 4.8
QOther assets 1.1
Total assets held for sale $6.1

A summary of the components of discontinued operations recorded in the Consolidated Statements of
Income related to Niagara for the year anded December 31 were as follows:



(Mitllons) 2007 2006 2005

Naonregulated revenue $15 $19.3 %218
Naonregulated cost of fuel, natural gas, and purchased power 1.0 12.9 12.2
Operating and maintenance expanse 0.5 53 49
Gain on Niagara sale 246 - -
Depreciation and amortization expense - 0.4 03
Taxes other than income - 0.3 0.2
Qther income - 02 -

Income before taxes 24.6 0.6 4.2
Income tax provision 9.8 0.2 1.8
Discontinued operations, net of tax $14.8 504 $ 24

No interest expense was allocated {o discontinued operations as Niagara did not have any extemnal debt
obligations.

Sunbury

In July 2006, Integrys Energy Services completed the sale of Sunbury. Sunbury’s primary asset was the
Sunbury generation plant located in Pennsylvania. The gain recorded in 2006 was $20.2 million pre-tax
($12.5 million after taxes), and was included as a companent of discontinued operations. This facility sold
power on a wholesale basis when market conditions were economically favorable.

A summary of the components of discontinued operetions recorded in the Consolidated Statements of
Income for the years ended December 31 related to Sunbury were as follows:

(Millions) 2006 2005
Naonregulatad revenue $69.2 $1154
Nonregulated cost of fuel, natural gas, and purchased power 61.6 68.7
Operating and maintenance expense 17.9 275
Gain on Sunbury sale 20.2 -
Depraciation and amortization expense 0.3 0.2
Gain on sale of emission allowances - (86.8)
Impairment loss - 80.6
Taxes gther than income 0.3 0.4
Interest expense - {10.4)
Income before taxes 9.3 14.4

Income tax provision 24 5.3

Discontinued operations, net of tax $ 648 $ 9.1

For the year ended December 31, 2006, interest expense of $9.1 million was recognized related to the
termination of an interest rate swap pertaining to Sunbury's non-recourse debt ohligation in addition to the
recognition of interest expense on the non-recourse debt prior to the restructuring of this debt fo an
Integrys Energy Group obligation in the second quarter of 2005.
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NOTE 5--PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment in service at December 31 consists of the following utility, nonutility, and
nonraguiated assets:

(Millions) 2007 2006

Electric utility $2,230.0 52,181.7
Natural gas utility 4,058.1 1,129.8
Total ufility piant 6,288.1 33113
Less: Accumulated depreciation 2,533.1 1,366.2
Net 3,755.0 1,946.1
Construction in progress 543.5 4449
Nef utility plant 4,268.5 2,380.0
Nonutility plant 29.3 21.0
Less: Accumulated depreciation 8.8 6.5
Net nonutility plant 20.5 14.5
Eleciric nonregulated 168.2 161.0
Natural gas nonregulated 12.6 1.1
Other nonregulated 24.3 21.9
Total nonregulated property, plant, and eguipment 205.1 184.0
Less: Accumulated depreciation 60.3 53.7
Net nonregulated property, plant, and equipment 144.8 130.3
Total property, plant, and equipment $4,463.8 $2,534.8

The increase in the natural gas utility assets in 2007 is due to the merger with PEC. See Note 6,
"Acquisitions and Sales of Assets” far mare information on the merger with PEC. The increase in
construction in progress in 2007 is mainly due to the construction of Weston 4, which is scheduled to be
placed in service in the first quarter of 2008.

MOTE 8--ACQUISITIONS AND SALES OF ASSETS

Merger with PEC

Effective February 21, 2007, the PEC merger was completed and WPS Resources Corporation changed
its name io Integrys Energy Group, Inc. The merger was accounted for under the purchase method of
accounting, with Integrys Energy Group treated as the acquirer. In the merger, shareholders of PEC
raceived 0.825 shares of Integrys Energy Group common stock, $1 par value, for each share of PEC
commen stack, no par value, which they held immediately prior to the merger. The total purchase price
was approximately $1.6 billion (as shown in the table below). The results of operations attributable to PEC
are included in the Consalidated Financial Statements from February 22, 2007, through December 31,
2007.

The purchase price was allocated based on the estimated fair market values of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. The excess of the purchase price over the esimated fair values of the tangible net
assets acquired was allocated to identifiable intangible assets, with the remainder then allocated to
goodwill. The following table shows the allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at the date of the acquisition.



